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INTRODUCTION 
I, the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee, as authorised 

by the Committee, to present on their behalf this Hundred and 
Sixty-Sixth Report of the Public Accounts Committee on paragraph 
13 (Imports from Portugal notwithstanding n ban on trade with 
that country) of the report of the Comptroller & Auditor General 
of India for the year 1972-73, Union Government (Civil), Revenue 
Receipts, Vol. I, Indirect Taxes, relating to Customs Receipts, and 
the BOAC Gold Smuggling Case, which the Committee examined 
as an off shoot of the Audit Paragraph. 

2. The Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
for the year 1972-73-Union Government (Civil), Revenue Receipts, 
Vol. I Indirect Taxes was laid on the Table of the House on the 
8th ~ a ~ ,  1974. The Committee examined paragraph 13 of the Audit 
Report relating to Ban on trade with Portugal at their sittings held 
on the 10th December 1974 and the BOAC case on the 21st November 
(Afternoon) and 23rd December (Forenoon and Afternoon!, I974 
This lieport was considered and finalised by the Committee at theil 
sitting held on the 26th April, 1975. Minutes of the sittings form 
Part '11 of the Report. 

3. A statement showing the summary of the main conclusions/ 
recommendations of the Committee is appended to the Report (Ap- 
pendix IX) .  For facility of reference these have been printed in 
thick type in the body of the Report. 

4. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the assis- 
tance rendered to them in the examination of the Audit Report bp 
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. 

5. The Committee would also like to express their thanks to the 
offlcers of the Ministries of Finance (Department of Revenue and 
Insurance) and Commerce (Che f  Comptroller of Imports and Ex- 
ports) and the Reserve Bank of India for  the cooperation extended 
by them in giving information to the Committee. 

NEW L)EL)II; JYOTIRhlOY BOW. 
Ap'ril, 26th, 1975. Chairwan, .. ..- ---. - - -. 
Voisakltn 5 ,  1897 (S). Public Acco~r~~ts  Committee. 
-__. ._ _._ _ --. - 

'Not printed (One cyclostyled copy laid on the Table of the House 
and five copies placed in the Parliament Library). 



REPORT 
Imports from Portugal Notwithstanding a Ban on trade witb that 

country 

Audit Pu~agraph 

1.1. Government of India in a letter dated 6th December, 1966 
addressed to all Collectors of Customs and Central Excise directed 
that pending issue of a formal notification under the Imports and 
Exports Control Act boycotting trade with Portugal, trade with 
Portugal should be stopped with immediate effect. 

1.2. During the course of audlt of Ship's files it was noticed that 
the vessel 'Tabor' a r r~ved  at a port in December 1966. The bills of 
entry in respe:t of ~mpor t  of goods valued at Rs. 78,146 shipped at 
Lisbon (Portugal) in November 1966, were filed with the Custom 
Housc and  the goods were cleared on I ; !  and 23rd December, 1966. 

1.3. The irregular clearance of goods notwithstanding a ban im- 
posed by the C;overnment of India was objected in audit. The Cus- 
tom Hou_se. huwevcr, held that the executive instructions issued by 
the Government of India could not be regarded as a ban promuiga- 
ted by the Government and since the order prohibiting the trade 
with Portugal was issued only in August. 1967 by the issue of Import 
Tradc Control Order 916: (Public Notice 135/67), the clearance 
allowed in these cases was in order. The Custom House further eon- 
tended that since valid licences were issued, action had to be taken 
by the Reserve Bank of India prohibiting remittance to Portugal 
and the question of Custom House informing the Reserve Bank 
would not arise. The Ministry in its reply stated that the Customs 
authorities had no jurisdiction for not allowing clearance and that 
responsibility for not allowing imports was with the Reserve Bank 
of India and not with the Custom House. 

[Paragraph 13 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of lndia for the  year 1972-73, Union Government 

(Civil) .--Revenue Receipts--Volume :-Indirect 
Taxes] 

1.4. The Committee desired to know the purpose for which ins- 
euctions had been issued, in the letter dated 6th December 1966. 
to the Collectors of Customs und Central Excise to stop trade with 
Portugal with h l m e d i ~ t ~  effect. The Finance b r e t a r y  inhrmed 



the Committee during evidence that this was in connection with the 
resolution passed by the United Nations for boycotting trade with 
Portugal. The Committee enquired when the resolution was passed 
by the United Nations and the reasons for the delay, if any, in issu- 
ing instructions thereunder. The Chief Controller of Imports & 
Exports stated in a written note: 

"The Resolution was passed by the United Nations in Decem- 
ber 1965 boycotting the trade with Portugal. The decision 
to ban trade with Portugal by issue of executive instruc- 
tions was taken, in consultation with the Ministry of Ex- 
ternal Affairs in November 1966. The Ministry of Com- 
merce wrote a letter dated 24-11-1966 to the Ministry of 
Finance (Department of Revenue and Insurance) for issue 
of executive instructions to the Collector of Customs. That 
Department accordingly issued instructions to the Collec- 
tor of Customs on 6-12-1966. The time-lag between the 
U. N. Resolution and the ultimate issue of executive ins- 
tructions was mainly due to the fact that various aspects 
had to be taken into consideration by the Government be- 
fore coming to the decision." 

1.5. Since diplomatic relations between Portugal and lndia had 
been broken in 1961 and India had also had no direct relations with 
Portugal from 1955 onwards, the Committee desired to know why i t  
had taken till 1966 to ban trade with Portugal. The Chairman, Cen- 
tral Board of Excise and Customs stated during evidence: 

"Banning imports into this country and exports from this 
country is not one of the functions which falls within the 
purview of the Board of Revenue. That would be the 
function of the Ministry of Commerce in consultation with 
the Ministry of External Affairs. So far as the Customs 
Department is concerned, so long as  a proper, valid im- 
poft trade control licence is available to an importer to 
bring in goods and those goods are  validly covered by it, 
the customs authorities will allow such imports. If such 
a licence does not exist or the licence by way of phraseo- 
logy and other things does not quits correctly cover the 
goods, then, of course, the Collt?ctor will deal with the 
matter." 

1.6, When asked whether any intimation had been sent' by the 
Board to the Reserve Bank when the circular of Derember 1966 was 
issued, the witness replied that this was done by the Commetce 



Ministry. To another question whether these instructions had been 
issued as a result of a Government decision, he replied: 

"So far as the Customs Department is concerned, the order 
which really bans imports was dated 1st August 1967 and 
from that date it was automatically applied. Till then, the 
order that was issued was dated 6th December, 1966. I 
suppose copies of these orders are available with the 
Committee, but I shall read the relevant portion. It  reads: 

'In the context of the Re~o~lution passed by the U.N. in 
January 1966, on boycotting trade with Portugal. . . . In  the 
meantime, it has been decided to stop with immediate 
effect trade with Portugal by the issue of executive ins- 
tructions'. 

In paras 2 and 3, it gives the machinery, how this will be 
brought about. Para 2 says: 

'It is felt that there should be no difficulty in disallowing the 
exports. . . ' 

-because, as you know, so far as export is concerned, unless 
on the shipping the exporter has the clearance and stamp 
irom the Export Control Department, the customs would not 
pass i t  for export. So, ~t got effectively banned. 

Para 3 gives the machinery for imports. It  says: 

'As regards imports, even though the licences might con- 
tinue to be issued without specific endorsement to the 
effect that it is not valid for imports from Portugal, the 
Commerce Ministry have intimated that no imports will 
actually take place as the Reserve Bank has been ad- 
vised to issue instructions to tne authorised dealers in 
foreign exchange prohibiting remittances to Portugal.' 

As a result of identical information received by us from the 
Commerce Ministry, the Ministry of Commerce also 
wrote to the Reserve Bank or the Economic Affairs Minis- 
try. Para 3 very clearly lays down how this is to be done. 
That is to say, they have intimated that no imports will 
normally take place as the Reserve Bank is  being advised 
to issue instructions to the authorised dealers in foreign 
exchange prohibiting remittances to Portugal, so that 
there was no question of our coming into the picture as 
such. As L explained, so long as an importer came forward 



with a valid import trade control licence issued under the 
authority of the Government of India in the Ministry of 
Commerce, there was no possibility of uiybody disallow- 
ing that import." 

1.7. The Committee asked whether similar instructions had been 
simultaneouly sent by the Ministry of Commerce to the other De- 
partments including the Reserve Bank. The Chief Controller of Im- 
ports 8. Exports stated during evidence that the Ministry of Cotn- 
merce had written to the Department of Economic Affairs as well 
as the Ministry of External Affairs on 24th November 1966. He added 
that the Department of Economic Affairs had been requested t o  issue 
instructions to the Reserve Bank. 

1.8. The Controller of Exchange. Reserve Bank of India stated 
in this connection: 

"The Economic Affairs Department consulted us in I)cc.cmber 
1966 saying that they \\.anted to bring about prohib~tion 
of imports from Portugal and that Government had al- 
ready issued standing instructions to Collectors of Custom 
for disallowing tmports from Portugal. This question was 
examined In the Rescr\v Bank and tt was felt that so 
long as import licences conti11:red to be issucd and rcmain- 
cd in circulation and thew licmct?.; ir.erc  lid for imports 
from the C;cncral Currency Ares. \ Y ~ I I U I  obviously ~nciurl- 
ed Portugal, the prohibitton "f remittances could not be 
brought about until a valid notifkiltion \\.its issued under 
the Import and Expo12 Trade Control Ac t  Our commcr- 
cia1 banks have st.anding instructions from the Reserve 
Bank to strictly follow the tcrrr~s s t~t(!d  in t h ~  11.11p0rt 
licences and so long as these licences ivcre issued and 
were valid for imports from the General Currency Area. 
we could not disallow remittances for imports f rom Por- 
tugal. So, accordingly we advised Government to have 
a notification issued. Alternatively we suggested to thc' 
Economic Affairs Department issuing a dirrction to the 
%serve Bank under section 25 of thc Foreign Exchange 
Regulation Act, 1947." 

He added: 

"Then we received the notification only in August 1965. There- 
after, wc issued the instructinns to thc Banks." 



1.9. A written note furnished to the Committee by the Chief 
Controller' of Imports and Exports, indicating the circumstances 
leading to the ban on trade with Portugal and the chronological 
sequence of events leading to the  issue of the final notification in 
August, 1967 is reproduccd below: 

"In hovember ,  1966, in the contest  uf the lieso1,~tion passed 
by the United Nations in (December, 1965) (Resolution 
2107 (xx)  adopted on 21-12-1965), on boycotting trade 
with Portugal, the question whether the imposition of the 
ban on trade with Portugal should be by a formal noti- 
fication under the Imports and Exports (Control) Act, 
3947, or by the issue of executive instruction. was under  
consideration in the Ministry of Commerce, in consulta- 
tion with the Ministry of External  Aflairs. Since the  Gov- 

ernment 's  intention was  nut to stop trade ~ ; l t h  Mozam- 
bique which \vas a Portuguese posses~ion. it was decided 
to stop tradc ~ v i t h  Portugal by the issue of executive ins- 
tru.tions. Accurdlngiy, the h l~n i s t ry  uf  Commerce ad- 
dressed thc Central  Board of Revenue. requesting them 
to suitably advice the  Collectors of Customs to disa!low 
~ x p a r t  of uncontrolled commt)dir:cs 11: Portugal In res- 
pect of export of controlled cornn~odi t re~,  s u ~ t a b l e  ~ n s t r u c -  
tlons were lssucd to llccnsing aui11or:t:es not to allow such 
rxports.  Similarly, the hhnistry of Finance (Depar tment  
of Economic Affairs) was addressed by the  Ministry of 
Commercc. raequesting them to ask the Reserve Bank of 
India to issue it crrcular to the  outhorised dealers in foreign 
exchange, prohibiting r emi t t~ i l ce  to Portugal. for i lnprt  
c,f any gotds. Thus, by csecatl\.e ~ ~ ~ s t r u c t i o n ; ,  export 10 

and import f rom Portugal WJS ;ought to be banned. 
The  nboic cvmmunlcatlons were addressed by the hillnlstry 

of Commercc on 24-11-1966 The M l n ~ s t i y  of Finance (De- 
partment c ~ f  Revenue and Insurance) lssued executive Ins- 
tluctions to all the Collectors of Customs on the  6th De- 
cember. 1966, hannrng trade 1~1th P o ~ t u g a l ,  on the  lrnes 
indicated a h c  On 24-11-1966, the M ~ n ~ s t r y  of F ~ n a n c e  
(Dcpartmcnt of Economrc Affalrs) wrote to  the Ministry 
of Cornmercc that  issue of 3 c l ~ c u l a r  notrfii.:~tion by the  
Reserve Bank of Itidla to v~r1ou.s dedicrs rn forelgn ox- 
changc stopprng rwuttancc* to P o r t u ~ a l  rnlght result ;n 
publ~ci ty  and  rn \ w w  of this, they desrred that  the  M m s -  
try of External  Affarrs should be consulted, before  the 
mstructlons were 1ssut.4 by thc Resenw Bank of India. 
ti) t h e  a u t h o r w d  dealers In forciqr~ t-xchangc On 13-1- 
1967, t h c  Mrnrstrg of Cornmcrcc addrcsc.1 a 1etrt.r to 



the Ministry of External Affairs asking for clarification 
on the points raised by the Ministry of Finance (Depart- 
ment of Economic Affairs). An interim reply dated 9-2- 
1967 was received from the Ministry of External Affairs 
stating that the points raised by the Ministry of Finance 
(Department of Ecanomic Affairsj were being examined. 

Another interim reply dated 18-2-1967 was also received 
from the Ministry of External Affairs. 

On 14-3-1967, the Ministry of Finance (Department of Eco- 
nomic Affairs) wrote a letter to the Ministry of Commerce 
enclosing a copy of letter dated 24-2-1967 ffom the Reserve 
Bank of India wherein the Reserve Bank of Lndia had 
explained their difficulties in issuing any secret instructions 
to various dealers in foreign exchange and their inability 
to issue instructions in the absence of a Government Noti- 
fication banning trade with Portugal. 

On 15-3-1067, a letter was addressed by the Chief Controller 
of Imports & Exports, to the Ministry of Finance (Depart- 
ment of Economic Affairs) stating that the matter had 
been carefully considered in consultation with the Minis- 
try of External Affairs and the Ministry of Commerce 
and it had been decided that necessary instructions to 
various dealers in foreign exchange should be issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India, e1.m though there might be 
some publicity as a result uf issue of such instructions. 

'l'he Chief Controller of Imports & Exports wrote another 
letter on 15-3-1967 to the Ministry of Finance (Department 
of Revenue and Insurance) stating that the entire matter 
had been carefully considered, in consultation with the 
Ministry of External Affairs and the Ministry of Com- 
merce and it had been decided that, in order to avoid any 
unnecessary publicity, the ban on exports to Portugal 
should not be enforced by issue of formal Import Trade 
Control Order, but should be done only through executive 
instructions. IR was also made clear that the ban should 
apply only to Portugal and not to the Portugese colonies. 

On 141967, a letter was received by the Ministry of Commer- 
ce from the Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue 
and Insurance) stating that there were certain inherent 
difficulties in enforcing ban on trade with Portugal by 



executive instructions and they desired that the matter 
should be considered at a meeting of the Inter-Departmen- 
tal Committee, to evolve some legal basis to enforce the 
ban on trade with Portugal. Accordingly, it was decided 
to convene an Inter-Departmental meeting to discuss the 
entire issue to come to a final decision. 

In pursuance of the decision taken at the Inter-Departmental 
meeting, an Import Trade Control Order was issued on 
1-8-1967, prohibiting import and export of all goods from 
or to any place in Portugal." 

1.10. The Committee desired to know the relative functions of 
the Customs authorities, Chief Controller of Imports & Exports and 
the Reserve Bank of India on the imposition of a ban on imports. 
In a note furnished to the Committee, the Ministry of Rnance (De- 
partment of Revenue 8: Insurance) stated: 

"Imports into the country and exports from the country are 
controlled under the Imports and Exports (Control) Act, 
1947 (as amended from time to time). Thls Act is admin- 
istered by the M~nistry of Commerce. Whenever the 
Government decides to prohbit import/export of any goods 
or class of goods, an order is Issued in exercise of the 
powers conferred by the said Act. Thus the Ministry of 
Commerce have issued the Imports (Control) Order, 1955 
and the Exports (Control) Order, 1968 (both as amended 
from time to time) by virtue of which. save as otherwise 
provided in the Order. no person shall importlexport any 
goods of the description specified in the Schedule thereto, 
except under, and in accordance with a licence or a cus- 
toms clearance permit granted by the Central Government 
or by an officer so authorised. The orders issued by the  
Ministry of Commerce, Office of the Chief Controller of 
Imports and Exports are ln the Gazette of 
India. There are also circulated to all their lower forma- 
tions for bringing these to the notice of the trade as also 
to the concerned Departments. 

Prohibitions on Import have also been imposed under various 
other Acts such as the Arms Act, the Copyright Act, the 
Dangerous Drugs Act, the Destnictive Insects and Pests 
Act, the Indian Explosives Act, the Foreign Exchange Re- 
gulation Act, e k ,  etc., which are administered by the 



vatious Departments of the Government of India. Besides, 
t,here a re  prohibitions under the Customs Act, 1962 ad- 
ministered by this Ministry. 

Jn so tar  as the  Customs author i t~es  arc concerned, any prohi- 
bition imposed in terms of thc Imports and Exports (Con- 
trol) Act as also many other Acts, is deemed to be a 
prohibition under section I1 of the Customs Act, 1962. 
Any goods imported in contravention of thc p140hibition 
become liable to confiscation undcr sec t~on 111 (d )  and, the 
person concerned with the importation becomes liable to 
penalty under section 112 of the Custom.; Act, 1962. 

The function of the Customs is to check at  the time of clear- 
ance that the goods imported are properly covered b? a 
valid import licence or exempted from the requirement of 
such a licence, failing which the goods and the persons 
concerned with the importation of the goods vmuld become 
liable to be proceeded against. 

The Reserve Bank of Zndia's function is limited to restricting 
remittances in respect of goods whose import is banned. 
Ordinarily. whenever Government's orders banning im- 
ports f rcm any particular country arc  jssued, the Import 
Trade C o n t n l  authorities dn not issue fresh licences per- 
m ~ t t i n g  import of goods from that country. In regard to 
licences already issued. authori.<eil dealers in foreign ex- 
change a re  instructed by the Rescrvc. Cank of India nc~t 
tn  enter into any transaction with an;:  son, firm or 
company. involving remittances to the country concerned 
in respect of imports from that c o ~ ~ ~ l t r y ,  and to rcfcr all 
npplications for such remittances to Reser\lC, Bank for 
approval. To the extent of irrevocable lctters of credit 
rtlreadv opened against such !iccnces. remi t tanccs will 
have to be allowed by Reserve Bank. Authoriserl dealers 
are, however, prohibited from cxtenrling thr validity of 
such letters of credit or  enhancing their value. Where 
commitments have not aircad). 1:cen rtntcred into by 
euthorised dealers. as in case of bills received on collec- 
tion hasis. remittances are  c,rdin:lrilv :illowed i f  physical 
import of goods has already taken place i.c., i f  goods have 
allowed clearance by Customs. Whrrt: all remittances to 
thr country concerned are  required to  he suspended, pay- 
ments due to the exporters in th3t counlr!,, includrng 
those where contractual obli!zatinns or. cornmitn,cnts h a w  



already been entered into, are directed to be  credited to 
non-resident blocked accounts in their names with banks 
in India." 

1.11. Section 111 of the Customs Act lists out the types of goods 
that  shall be liable to confiscation. Sub-section (d) thereunder 
prov~des- 

" (d )  any goods which a rc  imported or attempted tu he im- 
ported or are brought within the I n d ~ a n  Custom Waters for 
the purpose of being imported, contrary to any prohibition 
imposed by or under this Act or any other law for the 
time being in force." 

The persons who does any act as to wnder  t h ~ .  gooci: brought by 
him liable to confiscation is also liable to penalty as provided in 
Section 112. 

112. Any person- 

(a) u-ho, in relation to any goods does or omits, to do any act 
which act ord omission would render such goods liable to 
confiscatim under section i l l .  or abets the doing or omis- 
sion of such an act, or: 

(b) who acquires possession of or is in any way concerned in 
carrying* remming,  depositing. harbouring. keeping con- 
cealing, selllng or purchasing. or In nn;: other manner 
dealing with a n  goods which lir. i,noivs 01 has reasons to 
believe are liable tc~ confiscation under  Seztion 111. 

shall b e  liable,-- 

(i) in  the case of goods in respect of which any prohibition is  
in force undcr this Act or any other law for t'7e tlme be- 
ing in force, to a penalty esceedlng fi\.e times the 
value of the goods or one thousand rupees. ~vhichever is 
the greater; 

(ii) in the  case of dutiable goods. other than prohibited goods. 
to a penalty not escecding fiipc t ~ m c s  the duty sought t c  
be evaded on such goods or one thousand rupees, which- 
ever i s  greater. 

1.12. The Committee were informed by Audit that prior to the  
issue of the Notification dated 1st Auypst 1967, there were  five Im- 
ports from Portugal valued nt Rs. 1.31 lakhs and subscyuent to tnc 



Notification, there were six imports valued a t  Rs. 6.64 lakhs. While 
confiscation was done only in respect of two shipments cleared on 
17th and 18th October 1967. One clearance of November 1967 was 
reIeased on warning. Out of the two confiscations, one was set aside 
by the Madras High Court, In the other cases, no action was taken 
as the shipments were effected prior to the date of ban. 

1.13. The Committee desired to know the reasons for allcwing im- 
ports from Portugal after the issue of the circular on 6th December 
1966. The Finance Secretary stated during evidence: 

"Our entire stand is that the instructions that were issued 
on 6th December. 1966 were merely executive instruc- 
tions." 

r, 

1.14. Even if an import licence is issued, it is governed by the 
condition that nothing in the licence shall affect' the application to 
any goods or any prohibition or regulation affecting the import 
thereof in force at the time when such goods are imported. When 
the attention of the Minist* was d l m n  by the Committee to this 
condition, the Chairman. ~ e i t r a l  Board of Excise and Customs stated 
during evidence that. in this context, the date of prohibition was 1st 
August 1967. The Finance Secretary added in this connection: 

"This applies to the statutory order which would only mean 
No. 9/67 of August 1967. The orders of 6th December were 
mere executive instructions-the mechanism of enforce- 
ment by stopping remittances of foreign exchange. The 
remittance was made long before the goods were shipped 
and goads were shipped in No\.emher. I do not see how 
you can imposc a ban in December on goods which were 
shipped in preceding November. The condition that you 
mentioned would become applicable when a formal order 
under the Import Trade Control Act was introduced and 
that was done only in August 1967. We have made this 
submission and you can have it checked up by any legal 
experts." 

1.15. Import Trade Control Order No. 9 of 1987 dated 1st August 
1967 reads as  follows: 

"Whereas there is no export to and import from Portugal and 
whereas it is considered necessary to continue the ban on 
expart to and import from P a r t u p l ,  now, therefore, in 
exercise of the powers conferred by section 3 of the Im- 



port & Export Order, 1947, the Central Government here- 
by prohibits the import and export of all goods whether 
directly or indirectly into or from any part or place in 
India or trom or  to any place from Portugal." 

1.16. The Committee desired to know the action the Collectors 
w e r e  expected to take on the  basis of the instructions dated 6th De- 
cember 1966. The Chairman, Central Board of Excise & Customs 
s ta ted in evidence: 

"Gist of the instructions is that Custom House does not come 
in for any action a t  all in this regard. That is what I am 
trying to say. Let us follow the language of these execu- 
tive instructions. What is the result? Export always takes 
place before hand. 1.t is upto the authority which is giving 
the espo18t control licence, not to allow goods to leave the 
country. You were enquiring what is the effect so far 
as export is concerned, that effect is complete by execu- 
tive instructions. It is fur the Government to give export 
licence or not. So far as import is concerned the action has 
already taken place. Goods have already been imported 
in this country. The question arises how has this to be 
implemented? They (Commerce Ministry) have them- 
selves treated this letter as 'top secret'. There can be no 
ban imposed by way of 'top secret' instructions. The inten- 
tion was that so far as import from Portugal is concerned, 
Reserve Bank shall stop the remittances, imports will 
automatically stop. This is the sum and substance. You 
yourself will pull us up i f  there is valid import control 
trade licence issued by the Government of India, how do 
you ignore i t .  If we do something like that we mag be 
drawn to the court. In fact, later on, after the ban had 
actually come, in a case where the order for goods had 
been placed before the ban came, the Court set aside the 
order gf confiscation." 

1.17. The Co~nmittee asked whether any esports had been per- 
mitted after 6th December 1966. The Chairman, Central Board of 
Excise and Customs stated during evidence: 

"Collectors rcportcd that no esports took place. If any Ship- 
ping Bill comes with the Esport Trade Control permitting 
the expurt, Customs \\.ill have no jurisdiction to stop it. 
That is the submission 1 am making The Controller of 
Jmports and Commerce Ministry had sent instructions to 
these people-to the Controllers a t  various ports that they 
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should not give any export licence to export goods. I am 
making a very clear distinction between export and import. 
By the time import takes place, the act is complete. The 
goods have already come into this country. That is the 
difference. So far as the export is concerned, the action 
has to start. In this particular case, the instructions which 
were sent to us in March were 'Top Secret'. Can you im- 
pose ban on trade by 'Top Secret' instructions?" 

1.18. Since the communication from the Ministry of Commerce 
was treated as 'top secret', the Committee asked whether the objec- 
tives sought to be achieved by the issue of 'top secret' instructions 
were actually achieved. The Chief Controller of Imports & Exports 
stated in a written reply: 

"The idea behind the issue of the D.O. letter dated 24-11-1966 by 
the Ministry of Commerce to the Ministry of Finance 
(Department of Revenue and Insurance and the Dcpart- 
ment of Econolnic Affairs) was to ban the trade with 
Portugal by the issue of executive instructions. This was 
based on the advice of the Ministry of External Affairs 
who were the Ministry concerned with the international 
political relationship. Moreover, the decision was only to 
ban trade with Portugal and not with the Portugese Pos-, 
sessions. like Mozambique. The objective sought to be 
achieved was that these executive inst~uctions should be 
issued to all Collectors bf Customs, authorised dealers in 
foreign exchange and the Reserve Bank of India for ban- 
ning trade with Portugal, as the former controlled the 
import and export from and to India and the latter con- 
trolled the remittance from India. The communication 
dated 24-11-1966 was treated as secrc.t and executive ins- 
tructions were issued to the Customs and Reserve Bank 
of India. Thus, the objectivcs in view, by and large, were 
achieved." 

1.19. The Committee enquired why a circular had been issued in 
December 1966 instead of a notification under the Imports and 
Exports (Control) Act, 1947. The Chief Controller of Imports dc 
Exports stated in a written note: 

"It was decided not to issue any Notiflcation under the Imports 
and Exports (Control) Act, 1947, purely on politjcal con- 
sidmations and in order to avoid publicity." 



1.20. In  reply to another question whether the question of ban 
on trade with Portugal was consideied a t  the time of announc~tnent 
of the Import Policy for 1967-68, the Chief Controller of Imports & 
Exports stated in another written note: 

"The import policy for 1967-68 was announced on 1-4-1967. 
The question of banning trade with Portugal or with any 
particular country was not considered a t  the time of 
announcement of policy, as i t  is not the practice to review 
trade relations with particular countries a t  the time of 
announcement of the annual import policy. The policy 
regarding trade relations with any particular country is 
taken as and +hen the occasion demand%." 

1.21. The Committee desired to know the steps taken by the 
m s i n g  authorities, on receipt of the instructions dated 24th No- 

vember 1966 from the Committee Minlstry to ensure that no licenccs 
were issued either for import from or exports to Portugal. The Chief 
Controller of Imports & Exports stated in a written note furnished 
to the Committee: 

"The question of taking any steps by the licensing authorities 
as a result of the executive instructions issued by the 
Ministry of Commerce in their letter dated 24-11-1966 did 
not arise, as the licensing authorities ..:ere to cnntinue to 
issue import licences in the normal course, without indi- 
cating anything on the licence about the ban on trade 
with Portugal. As already indicated. the decision was to 
prohibite remittance of foreign cschang;. through authoris- 
ed dealers in foreign exchangt3, by the issue of instruc- 
tions to the Reserve Bank of Indid whicb would automa- 
tically prevent any import from Portugal. i\j regards 
prohibiting esport of controlled commodities to Portugal, 
necessary instructions were issued by the Chief Control- 
ler of Imports & Exports to import and export t.rade 
control suthorities at ports to disallow such exports. As 
regards exports of uncontrolled commodities, the customs 
authorities were advised not to allow such exports.' 

1.22. The Committee were informed by Audit that in the judge- 
ment of the Madras High Court in respect of the confiscation of 
goods imported after 1st August 1967, i t  was observed on the basis 
of the amdavit filed by the Controller of Foreign Exchange of the 
Reserve Bank of India that there was a clear indication by the 
Reserve Bank of India that no such instructions as contemplated in 
the circular of 6th December 1966 were actually issued by them till 
6th September 1967. 



1.23. The Committee note that a United Nations Resolution boy- 
cotting trade with Por,tugal was implemented by the Government of 
India by a formal notification only after a lapse of nearly twenty 
months. I t  is surprising that the Ministry of Commerce sought to 
accomplish a ban on trade with Portugal by the issue of 'top secret'. 
instructions in order to avoid publicity. 

1.24. The Committee find that even though the instructions had 
been issued by the Ministry of Commerce in November 1966, nei- 
ther the Customs authorities nor the licensing authorities were ex- 
pected to do anything positive to stop imports from Portugal. Ad- 
mittedly, the licensing authorities were to continue to issue in~port 
licences in the normal course, without indicating anything on the 
licences about the ban on trade with Portugal. On the other hand, 
the Customs authorities had been informed that even though licen- 
ces might continue to be issued without a specific endorsement to 
the effect that it was not valid for imports from Portugal, no imports 
would actually take place as the Reserve Bank had been advised to 
issue instructions to the authorised dealers in foreign exchange 
prohibiting remittances to Portugal. The Reserve Bank had, how- 
ever, taken the view that so long as import licences continued to be 
issued and remained in circulation, and these licence5 were valid for 
imports from the General Currency Area, which included Portu- 
gal, the prohibition of remittances could not be brought about until 
a valid notification was issued under the Import and Export Trade 
Control Act, which was not done for 20 months. 

1.25. The net result of all this as that, even after the issue of 
instructions by the Ministry of Commerce in Novemher 1966, there 
was no effective ban on trade with Portugal and five imports valu- 
ed at Rs. 131 lakhs had taken place. The committee fail to under- 
stand, in these circumstances, the objective sought to he achieved 
by the issue of such executive instructions. If the intention was 
indeed to bring about an effective ban, the Committee feel that a 
proper notification should have been issued instead of executive 
instructions. That this was not done till August 1967 would indicate 
that a seriousness of purpose was totally lacking in implementing 
an international agreement, particularly when we owselves were 
in conflict with Portugal on Goa issue. In the opinion of the Com- 
mittee, this is most regrettable. 

1.B. The Committee however, feel that the contention of the 
Ministry that the Reserve Bank should have stopped remittances 
and that the Customs had no responsibility in the matter is not 
tenable. If that be the view and if the Customs authorities were 



not to take any action, there was no need for the issue of the ins- 
tructions in December 1966. Further, the wording of the circular 
issued in pursuance of  he UN Resolution imposing a ban on trade 
wolld indicate that this had been issued only pending a decision on 
the question whether the ban should be brought out through a for- 
mal notification. The Committee consider that this would tanta- 
mount to a de facto ban. 

1.27. From the circunlstances of the case, it would appear that 
Government had considered that ban by executive instructions 
would be sufficient and enforcible. Otherwise, the Committee are 
unable to understand the reason for the preamble to the Notification 
No. 9/67 dated 1st August, 1967 which states 'whereas there is no 
export to and import from Portugal, and whereas it is considered 
necessar~ to continue the ban on export to or import from Portugal, 
etc.' It would, therefore, be evident that the notification had been 
issued only in continuation of the executive instructions and that 
the ban was effective from December 1966 itself. If this was not 
so, the Committee see no valid reasons whatsoever for the delay 
in the issue of notification till August 1967, especially when Gov- 
ernment had ample time from December 1966 before announcing 
the policy of import for 1967-68. 

1.28. The Committee are, therefore, not at all satisfied with the 
manner in which the entire case has been handled. Since the de- 
cision to impose a ban had been taken in pursuance of an interna- 
tional resolution to which India had also been a signatory, the Gor- 
ernnient should have been more purposeful in their approach. The 
Committee can only sincerely hope that such instances will not re- 
cur in future and would urge Government to ensure that decisions 
affecting our international relations are given effect to with the 
utmost promptitude. 

1.29. The Committee also note that in the case of one import from 
Portugal that took place after 1st Aagust 1967, the goods had been 
released on a mere warning. When the provisions of Sections 111 
and 112 are amply clear in this regard and a valid ban by notifica- 
tion was also in force on the day the consignment touched Indian 
shores, the reasons for this special treatment in this case give rise 
to serious suspicion. The Comtiiittee desire that the circumstances 
leading to the release of goods on w ~ r n i n g  should be investigated 
into hmediately with a view to ensuring that no mala tides are in- 
volved and respojlsibility fixed. The Committee would await a 
further report in this regard. 



(B) The B.O.A.C. Gold Smuggling Case 

2.1. As an offshoot of the Audit paragraph on imports from Por- 
tugal notwithstanding a ban on trade with that country, the Com- 
mittee also decided to examine what has come to be popularly 
known as the 'BOAC Gold Smuggling Case', in which considerable 
gold carried by aircraft of the British Overseas Airways Corpora- 
tion in transit through Delhi to Hongkong had been seized and con- 
fiscated by the Collector of Central Excise, Delhi for violation of 
the conditions of a Reserve Bank of India Notification dated 8th 
November, 1962 which lays down the conditions for bringing bul- 
lion into India. The final destination of one of the two consign- 
ments of gold, which was of South African origin, was Macao, a 
Portuguese Colony. The gold and the aircraft seized by an adjudi- 
cating order of the Collector of Customs could be redeemed on pay- 
ment of a redemption fine. The case had been taken up on appeal 
by the Central Board of Excise and Customs and the Board of Ap- 
peal had quested the orders of the Collector. The case had also at- 
tracted considerable attention both in the press and Parliament. 

2.2. In view of both the South African and Portuguese angles to 
the case and considering the fact that there was a possibility of 
srnugglir~g of gold into India through macao, the Committee decided 
to exanxne the case in detail, even though the incident had occur- 
red fairly a long time back, in 1967. The examination by the Com- 
mittee of the various official witnesses and documcnt.i in this regard 
is contained In the succeeding paragraphs. 

2.3. The Committee suggested that a brief account of the whole 
episode beginning from the discovery of the gold might be given by 
the officials. The Chairman Board of Excise and Customs stated 
during evidence: 

"The facts briefly are like this. The EOAC Aircraft Bocing 
707 started from London via Franirfurt-Teheran and ar- 
rived a t  Palam Airport on 14th September 1967 at  about 
10.30 in the morning. In the normal course, it took riff 
for Bangkok at  about 11.20 and returned and relanded at  
Palarn Airport once again at  1.30 P.M. That was on the 
14th September. On the 15th, there was a request from 
BOAC for off loading two Consignments of gold which 
were on the aircraft and put them under security arrange- 
ment. At that stage the concerned officer saw the mani- 
fest and in that manifest i t  was described ee metal or 
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metal bars. But when the  consignment notes covering 
these consignments were also inspected, he found that 
there they had described the goods as gold. Thereafter, 
this question became a subject matter of adjudication. 
The Collector of Central Excise, who has jurisdiction over 
Palam Airpoort, had asked the concerned authorities to 
investigate it. The Director of Revenue Intelligence had 
made some investigation which he placed before the Col- 
lector for adjudication purpose.;. The Collector adjudi- 
cated the case and imposed a fine of approximately Rs. 25 
lakhs in lieu of confiscation of the gold. In  addition, he 
also imposed a penalty of Rs. 5 lalihs on M/s. BOAC. IIc 
also confiscated the aeroplane which was carrying these 
consignment and related it  Qn payment of a fine of Rs. 10 
lakhs in lieu of confiscation. Thereafter the matter came 
u p  in appeal before the CBE&C. There were two ap- 
peals from the consignors and one from M/s. BOAC. The 
Eoard examined various export \vitnesscta and went into 
great detail. They did it in a very eleborate manner. 
As a result of that ,  they allowed amendment of the mani- 
fest, holding tha?, when they said metal bar or metal in- 
stead of gold, there was nothing sinister about it and 
there was no intention to smuggle gold into India." 

2.4. The Committee asked under what rule the Board had per- 
mltted amendment of the manifest The witness replied that it was 
a n  amendment of the manifest under Sect1011 30(3) of the Customs 
Act which reads as follows: 

"If the proper officer is satisfied that the import manifest or 
import report is in any way incorrect or incomplete, and 
that there was no fraudulent intention, he may permit 
it to be amended or supplemented." 

2.5. In reply to another question whether there was an applica- 
Zion to the proper officer for the amendment of the manifest, the 
Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs stated during evi- 
dence: 

"This is also mentioned in the Board's orders. There was an  
application and it was oral. Every detail has been given. 
The crux of the position is that, our regulations require 
that when gold is being carried through India, but is only 
in transit, i t  should be specifically declared as such. Gold 
is carried through various countries and countries aliow 



permission for transit. But, we  have, in the case of gold, 
laid down that i t  must be, even in transit, specifically dec- 
lared as such, when you say it should be declared as g o l d  
Kow, the entire question is this. BOAC declared it a s  
metal orlmetal bar and they went into in greater length, 
explaining why they said so. They said that this was 
because cf security reasons. because I E  they openly dec- 
lared it as gold, there were chances of its being falling 
into wrong hands and dacoity being committed and so on." 

2 6. The Committee desired to knov7 whether the BOAC autho- 
rities had declared the gold suo  moto before they approached t h e  
Customs Officers at Delhi for protection. The witness stated: 

"Declaration is supposed to be made In the manifest and that  
is how it was deciared. In the manifest. i: was written 
metal 'V' and that is metal bar or metal. These are the 
explanations which came forward after the case started." 

The Committee asked whether metal 'V' did not mean white  
metal or platinum. The witness stated. 

"I am not very much aware of thls. As fa r  as we  are aware, 
the intention was t h a ~  any metal which is vaiuable and 
which is liable to theft etc. IS described as such." 

2.7. Since it had been stated by the Chairman. Central Board of 
Excise and Customs that the Director of Revenue Intelligence had 
made some investigations into the case which had been placed be- 
fore the Collector for adjudication purposes, the Committee called 
for a copy of the Investigation Report of the Director of Revenue 
Intelligence, which is reproduced in Appendix I. The main conclu- 
sions of the Director of Revenue Intelligence were as follows: 

"Since.. . .:he gold is held to haire been imported into India in 
contra~~ent inn of the prohibition under the F.E. Regula- 
tions. its export out of India even in the shape of tran- 
shipment would require the permission of the Reserve 
Bank of India. l ' h e  export of the seized gold without 
such permission would he banned under Section 8(2) of 
the F.E.R. Act. If the Adjudicating Officer decides that  
the gold should he allowed to be taken to Hong Kong (in 
transit to Macao) he should impose the condition that t h e  
permission would be accorded on production of permis- 
sion of the Rcserve Bank of India. 



Since, in view of the foregoing reasons, it appears that t h e  
gold has made liable to confiscation on account of a n  
act of M/s. BOAC, viz. the non-declaration of gold in 
the manifest, they alone should be liable to personal pe- 
nalty under Section 112(1) of the Customs Act, 1962. 
There appears to be no justification for imposing penalty 
on any other person under the section. 

In the aforesaid c~rcumstances, the aircraft is to be held to  
have been used in the transport of gold liable to confisca- 
tion. The aircraft, therefore, appears to be liable to con- 
fiscation under Section 115(2) of :he Customs Act, 1962. 

Before the guld was detected the aircraft had taken off from 
Palam for its next destination, Bangkok. An attempt t o  
export the gold without :he permission of the RBI appears 
therefore to have been made. The gold therefore is lia- 
ble to confiscation under Section 113(d) of the Customs 
Act, 1962, and M s. BOAC are liable to penalty under 
Section 114 of the Customs Act, 1962. 

2 . 8 .  The then Director of Revenue Intelligence, who had con- 
ducted the in\,est~ga?ions, was also examined by the Committee. 
The Committee asked him to furnish the details of the investigation 
conducted b v  him and the results. The witness stated during evi- 
dence: 

"The seizures were effected when I was in Allahabad. The  
gold was still in the process of seizure when I arrived at 
Palam aerodrome from Allahabad. I saw the gold and I 
f o m d  that i t  had markings which showed that it was of 
South Afl.ican origin. We felt that since it was of South 
African origin, it had to be confiscated eventually because 
as our  knowledge  vent a t  that time, there was an absolute 
ban c\.en on transit of goods of South African origin 
through India. Then when we were esamining. other 
thlngs also came into the picture There was another as- 
pect; and \vas whc:her the. gold had been manifested 
or not; becriusc, according to the Foreign Exchange (Re- 
gulations) Act, if the gold is not nlanifested and i t  passes 
through India, it would be liable to be confiscated and 
treated as being imported into India without an import 
permit from the Reserve Bank of India. We proceeded 
on this basis. In the course of the  investigations, some 



statements were recorded by the officers of the Collecto- 
rate of Central Excise, Delhi. A few statements were re- 
corded by the officers of the Directorate of Revenue In- 
telligence but the division of work was particularly such 
that all the investigations would be done by the Excise 
officers and that the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence 
will try to gather information which was likely to be col- 
lected from abroad. One of the things to be found out 
was this, viz. who was the actual consignee. It  appeared 
,that ~t was stated in some documents that the consign- 
ment as to go only to Hong Kong; but from some other 
documents i t  appeared that the consignment had even- 
t u a l ! ~  to go to Macao. Again, according to our knowledge 
there was as that time an absolute ban on any export to 
or Import lrom any Portuguese colony, which was treat- 
ed as Portugal. Macao was treated as Portugal, since 

Portugal had claimed that all its colonies should be trea- 
ted, not as colonies, but as Portugal. Only goods which 
were imported into India could be allowed to go out of 
India, to Portugal. Our attention was then invited to the 
original notification regarding the ban on the transit of 
goods of South African origin, as amended. According to 
the amended Notification, it was felt that we could not 
use it. According to certain clarifications received from 
the Ministr\? of External Affairs, we had only to see whe- 
ther the goods had been manifested. The Collector of 
Central Excise had held that it was not so. The matter 
went on appeal and the Board had held that the goods 
were not manifested, but that it was an omission on ac- 
count of inadvertence and that there were no mala fides. 
That is the situation; and, therefore, the amendments 
was allowed; and i t  was held that the goods were mani- 
fested and the order of confiscation was revoked." 

2.9. The Committee desired to know whether any request had 
been made by the witness to the Board to permit him to proceed to 
London or any other place for finding out the true ownership of the 
gold flown by the BOAC aircraft to Macao and whether he had 
been permitted to do so. The Director of Revenue Intelligence sta- 
ted during the evidence: 

"At the initial stage, such a request was made but it was not 
considered necessary to do so because some co-operation 
which ws expected to come did not come forth." 



2.10. In reply to a question whether, during his tenure as Direc- 
tor of Revenue Intelligence, he was aware that gold was being flown 
by the BOAC aircraft regularly from London to Hong Kong and 
Macao, the witness stated that some statistics had been collected in 
this case and would be supplied. 

2.11. Under a notification issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
on 8-11-1962, bringing of bullion into India will not be permitted un- 
less two conditions are satisfied. The two conditions are: 

(a) The gold is not removed from the ship or other convey- 
ance except for the purpose of transhipment; and 

(b) it is declared in the manifest for transit as same botton 
cargo or as transhipment cargo. 

1.12. This notification was issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
under section 8(1) of the Foreign Exchange Regulations Act, and 
this came in for judicial scrutiny by the Supreme Court in the case 
of 'State of Maharashtra k7s. M. H. George' (1965 SC 722). The Sup- 
reme Court held that the ban imposed in the Reserve Bank of India 
notification created an absolute liability and even if a person had 
no knowledge of the provisions of the notifications, he would s i l l  
be liable because in the case of absolute liability, intention or know- 
ledge which were the essential ingredients of mens rea, were not to 
be imported. That is. if some one contravenes this notification it 
would be no defence for him to say that he had no intention of vio- 
lating the notification; nor that he had no knowledge of the notifica- 
tion. It  is enough if he transgresses the provisions of the notifica:ion 
to be made liable under the Foreign Eschange Regulations Act. 

2.13. The Committee asked what steps had been taken bv him 
to see that the carriage of the gold fulfiled the conditions prescrib- 
ed in the Reserve Bank of India Notification. The witness replied: 

"After investigation of the case, the whole matter was refer- 
red to the Collector of Central Excise, Delhi and it was 
he who had to see whether the conditions had been corn- 
plied with. The Director of Revenue Intelligence had no 
hand in the matter." 

2.14. The Committee desired to know whether, when the appeal 
was heard by the Board against the Collector's order, he had been 
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allowed to represent his case f ~ e e l y  without any pressure of fear.  

The witness stated: 

"I think so, I represented the case freely and without any 
pressure. I do not think my witness was pressurised by 
the Board. I do not feel any member of the Board had 
put any pressure on me regarding this case." 

2.15. In reply to questions whether, during the investigations, he  
had sought any instructions of guidznce from the members of the 
Board and. if so. who were the members and what were the instruc- 
tions given, the  witness stated: 

"I was expected in the initial stage to submit my reports 
about the progress of the investigations. These reports 
were submitted to Shri T .  C .  Seth and Shri las j i t  Singh, 
the present Chairman. Most of the time I \vas reporting 
to them and i t  was not a question of any guidance from 
them.  " 

2.16. The Committee asked the witness ivhether he hed filed any 
affidavit in the  High Court alleging pressures and coercion by mem- 
bers of the Board against him resulting in his transfer from the post 
of Director of Revenue Intelligence. The witness replied that no 
affidavit was filed by him. 

2 . 1 7 .  Copies of the Collector of Central Excise, Delhi, who had 
adjudicated the BOAC Gold Smuggling case and the Board of Ap- 
peal furnished by the Ministry of Finance (Department of Rcvenue 
& Insurance), at the Instance of the Committee. are reproduced in 
Appendices I1 and 111. 

2.18. The Collector of Central Excise, Delhi held the adjudita- 
tion proceedings in February 1968 and passed an order on 15th Fcb- 
ruary 1968 confirmed the seizure of gold by confiscation. He further 
ordered that the confiscated gold might be redeemed on payment of 
a redemption fine of Rs. 25 lakhs for the first consignment destin- 
ed for Macao and Rs. 25,000 for the second consignment bound fo r  
'Okinawa. The main grounds on which the gold was confiscated 
were: 

(a)  The ban imposed by the Reserve Bank of India notifica- 
tion was absolute as had been held by the Supreme Court 
and there was a failure on the part of the BOAC in com- 
plying with the  notification. 



(b) This failure could not be atributed to a mere clerical er. 
ror, nor could it be deemed to be a technical irregularit\ 
because in his opinion there as a fraudulent intention tr 
keep away from the knowledge of the Customs authori- 
ties in India that gold was being carried in the aircraft. 
In  support of this finding he cited the Traffic Manual of 
BOAC in which special instructions were given that whe- 
rever gold of South Africa origin was to be routed 
through India, it should be speciffically mentioned as 
'gold' and not 'metal' or 'metal V', except wherever con- 
signments of negligible value were involved when they 
could be carried provided they were stowed out of sight. 

(c) This was not the first instance where gold was being car- 
ried like this. There had been a regular traffic of such 
gold disguised s 'metal' or 'metal V' previous to Septem- 
ber 1967 and that between April and August 1967, 5382 
kilos of gold described as metal or metal bar were car- 
ried through India. 

2.19. The Board of Appeal consisted of the Chairman, Central 
Board of Excise and Customs, Member (Customs) and the Member 
(Central Excise). The hearing of the appeal as taken u p  in August 
1968 and thr hearings were concluded on 3rd March 1969. By the 
appellate order issued on 3rd March 1969, the order of the Collector 
was quashed mainly on the following grounds: 

(a)  The Supreme Court case (in M. H. George's case) was 
distinguishable from the present one because in the for- 
rrcr case the gold carried on the person of M. H. George 
was not sho~vn in the manifest at  all 'whereas in the lat- 
ter case i . e .  BOAC's case. the gold was manifested thou- 
gh incor r t~ t lg  and incompletely as metal. This incorrect 
and incomplete manifestation was not on account of 
any fraudulent intention but was the result of a clerical 
error arising from the switching over of writing up of ma- 
nifest by computers from 1965. As go!d carried by B0.4C 
throughout the world was described as 'metal' o r  'metal 
V' end as the persons \rho fed the cornputor with the key 
punch card ivould not be in a position to  know that the  
aircraft was going through India. they n a t r ~ r a l l ~  did not 
take care to correct the  description in accordance with 
the Tramc Manual. 

(b) Since there was no fraudulent intention. the manifcst 
could be corrected under section 30(3) of the  Customs Act 



and such correction could relate back to the date of pre- 
sentation of the manifest. 

(c) There was in fact a request for such a correction, though 
oral, which request was unjustifiably refused by the Cus- 
toms authorities. 

2.20. The Committee enquired as to whom an appeal against the 
orders of the Collector lay. The Chairman, Central m a r d  of Ex- 
cise and Customs stated during evidence: 

"The appeal lies, under the Act, to the Board as such. So 
far as the Board is concerned, various members are allot- 
ted various duties. At present, one of the members is 
Member (Appeal) who hears appeals. At that stage 
there was no such duty allotted to any particular mem- 
ber; Member (Customs) heard customs appeals. Member 
(Excise) heard excise appeals and so on. It was not de- 

fined preciously. The distribution of work among the 
members was approved by the Minister and that become 
the final decision. In important cases, i t  was open to the 
Board to sit not as one member but more than one mem- 
ber and hear it wholly or partly." 

2.21. In reply to another question as to in how many cases more 
than one member of the Board heard the appeal, the witness stated: 

"I do not remember in how many cases we did it but I dis- 
tinctly remember that in the Bird and Company case it 
was done. Whether there was any other case in which it 
was done? I do not recollect." 

2.22. The Committee asked whether there was no appellate aut- 
hority about the Board. The Chairman, Central Board of Excise 
and Customs replied thzt there was a revision authority and that 
the revision order against the Board lay to the Government. 

2.23. Explaining, at the instance of the Committee the reasons 
for the appeal having been heard by a panel of three members, the 
Finance Secretary stated during evidence: 

"I shall read out the then Chairman, Central Board's noting. 
It starts: 

"This refers to the group of appeals filed in the BOAC case. 
Naturally, appeals are heard end decided by only one 



member of the Board. However, considering the im- 
portance of the case and the publicity i t  has received, 
i t  will be desirable if this group of appeals is heard and 
decided by more than one member. I, therefore, pro- 
pose to constitute a panel consisting of Member (Cus- 
toms), Member (Central Excise) and myself as the ap- 
pellate authority for the purposes of this case. 

In this connection, my note on page 4 and 5 and the note 
overleaf might hnd ly  be seen. To avoid any legal ob- 
jection later on, the papers are submitted for the for- 
mal approval of Deputy Prime Minister for considering 
this case by the enlarged panel as proposed above'. 

It is signed by Shri D .  P .  Anand on 7-6-1968. Below that is 
the endorsement of the then Finance Secretary- 

"I am in agreement with 'A'." 

The portion sidelines 'A' i s -  

'I, therefore, propose to constitute a  ane el consisting of 
Member. Customs. Member Central Excise and myself 
as the appellate authority for purposes of this case'. 

A panel is to be preferred to hearing by one Member for o b  
vious reasons. 

It was signed by Shri T .  P .  Singh on 7th June. Below that is 
the endorsement of the Deputy Prime Minister Shri 
Morarji Desai on 10th June." 

2.24. Subsequently in a written note, the Ministry of Finance 
(Department of Revenue & Insurance) informed the Committee that 
apart from the BOAC case, benches of the Board had been constitu- 
ted in two groups of cases. the Bird & Co. cases and cases which 'can 
be loosely described as rags cases'. 

2.25. The Committee desired to know the reasons given in the 
adjudicatlng order of the Collector for confiscation of the gold and 
the aircraft. The Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs 
stated during evicknce: 

"The grounds on which the Collectorate confiscated the gold 
were as follows: Under Section 8(1) of FERA read with 
relevant notification, bring or sending of gold into India 



is prohibited except when the sa,me is covered by the 
general or special permission of the Reserve Bank. For 
this purpose, even goods in transit are deemed to be goods 
brought into India. The Reserve Bank has, however, by 
notification No. 208/62-RB dated 8-11-1962 given general 
permission to the transit of gold through India provided 
that inter aha it is declared in the manifest for transit as 
the same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo. According 
to the Collector, the two consignments of gold in question 
were in transit through India. Since, howver ,  they were 
not declared in the manifest as gold, but were declared 
as metal bar or gold, they were not covered under the 
general permission of the Reserve Bank; accordingly, the 
importation on those consignments was considered un- 
authorised by the Collector." 

2.26. In reply to questions on the quantity of gold brought by 
this particular fight and its value, the uitness stated that the quan- 
tity was about 12-18 kilograms and its value would be about Rs. 2 
crores calculated at the market price and above Rs. 1 crore at in- 
ternetional prices. 

2 .27 .  The Committee desired to know the names of the consignor 
and consignee of the gold and whether they were inter-connected. 
The Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs stated that the 
consignor was M s. Mocatta and Goldsmid Limited, London, who 
were authorised dealers of the Bank of England, and that one con- 
signment of the gold u7as consigned to M/s. Commercial Investment 
Co.. Hongkong for onward transmission to M/s. Companhia de De- 
senvolvimento Commercial, Mecau. The witness also confirmed that 
Mocatta and Goldsmith, London held 40 per cent of the shares of the 
Hongkong firm. 

2.28. The Committee desired to know the description on the gold 
bars. The Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Custc.qs stated 
during evidence: 

"Para 9 of the Board's order says: 
T h e  aircraft was carrying two consignments of gold, to- 

tallv weighing 1018.599 K.G. and valued approximately 
at Rs. 1.03 crores at the international rate. Twenty- 
four packages containing 96 bars weighing 120.899 K.G. 
consigned by Mokata Goldsmith. London to Messrs 
Commercial Investment Co., Hongkong for onward 
transmission to . .  . . (the Portuguese & Co.), each babore 



bare a serial number as also the name of the South 
Africa refinery, the Rand Refinery Ltd.' 

It continues: 

7 'he fineness of the gold, ,9951, was marked on each bar. 
Each bar also bore the inscription Mokata Goldsmith, 
London, Bullion Brokers'." 

2.29. The Finance Secretary stated in this connection that there 
was also another package containing ten bars of gold weighing 10 
kgs. consigned by the Bank of Novascotia, Toronto, to a bank in 
Okinawa, Japan. 

2.30. Since the gold was of South African origin, the Committee 
desired to know whether it could be permitted to pass through 
India having regard to the ban on trade with South Africa. The 
Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"That point was gone into a t  the earlier stages; and the advice 
given was that the ban would not be attracted, because 
the ban is not against the goods of South African origin; 
but  the Notification talks about goods coming from South 
Africa'. In this case, the gold had already been purchased 
by the Bank of England. It was Iymg with them. They 
had certified that the gold was later sold to Mokata." 

2.31. S ~ n c e  there was an indication of the country of origin, viz. 
South Africa, on the gold, the Committee desired to know whelther 
i t  should not have heen treated as coming from South Africa. The 
witness stated: 

"No. It wuuld then mean that the goods of South African 
origin were banned: but the Notification, as framed, does 
not justify that interpretation." 

2.32. In reply to a question in this connection whether there was 
not, therefore, a loophole in  the notification, the witness replied: 

"It was so from the Customs' angle, but not from the revenue 
angle. Goods come from all countries. Because there is a 
ban in regard to South Africa, they do not come from 
there; otherwise they would come." 

2.33. The Cornmidtee desired to know whether any advice had 
been sought by the Board on this point and, if so, from whom and 



on what points the advice had been sought. The Mini~try of Finan- 
ce (Department of Revenue & Insurance) informed the CommiUtee 
in a written note: 

"The Director of Revenue Intelligence, on his owti had sent 
a note to the Ministry of Law for advice and the Joint 
Secretary, Ministry of Law had made certain observations 
by the side of the note. One of the points raised by the 
Director of Revenue Intelligence was regarding Notifi- 
cation 135-CUS of 3-10-64. The observation madc by t he  
Joint Secretary, Law was 'prohibition under Notification 
135-CUS of 3-10-64 could be applicable subject to proof 
by Customs that the gold was exported from Soulh Africa 
to Macau via U.K. and that no intermediate acquisition 
by ox-nership of that gold in U.K. by anyone'. Indepen- 
dently of the Ministry of Law's advice this question was 
exam~ned by the Board also in its appellate order." 

2.34. The Committee pointed out that there was a preferential 
tariff for goods from ComrnonweaIth countries and in this case the  
criteria of the 'country of origin had to be applied. The Chairman, 
Centra! Board of Excise and Customs stated during evidence: 

"You are quite correct; but for that purpose, the important 
thing is the country of origin, You cannot givtb preferen- 
tial treatment to something whose country of origin i s  
somewhere else, but which is despatched from England. 
The preferential tariff will not apply there. Rules are 
there to  determine the countries of origin which will get 
preferential treatment." 

He added: 

"They will have definitely to certify that the goods have as 
their origin, the country which claims prefcrcnce. There 
are well-laid-down rules in this regard. Here, i t  is decided 
on political grounds that imports from South Africa will 
not get preference." 

2.35. The Committee desired to know whether with the 
cation, as i t  stands at present, Government had been able to enforce 
complete economic blockade by banning goods from and those made 
in South Africa. The Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue 
and Insurance) stated in e note furnished to the Committee: 



"The Board in its appellate order had taken the view that the 
Notification in regard to imports of goods from South 
Africa prohibited i m p o r t  only in respect of goods com- 
ing from South Africa and since the gold carried by 
B.O.A.C. had been purchased by the Bank of England 
and since goods of South African origin were not ban- 
ned, that Notification would not apply in this case. With 
regard to Commonwealth Preferential Tariff, the  country 

of origin criteria have to be applied and these are gov- 
erned by U.K. India Trade Agreement Rules relating to 
rules of origin. As far as goods coming from South Africa 
is concerned, the ban was being enforced." 

2.36. The Committee enquired as to how it was ensured that 
countries with which there is a trade ban or for which higher rates 
of duty have been prescribed do not make use of the preference 
given to imports from Commonwealth countries and arrange for 
their goods to be carried to India from these countties so as to  
circumvent the ban or pay lesser rates of duty The Ministry of 
Fbance  (Department of Revenue & Insurance) stated In mother  
note: 

"As regards preference to imports from Commonwealth coun- 
tries, Customs Authorities insist on a certificate of origln 
from the supplier or the manufacturer In doubtful cases 
they can call for any further evidence to satisfy them- 
selves nbout the origin of the goods. In the case of trade 
ban a!so, where there is doubt that the goods are coming 
from a country with which there is a trade ban, they 
can call for evidence to satisfy themselves that the goods 
are not coming from such a country." 

2.37. Since the gold was consigned to Macao, the Committee 
desired to know whether it was in order to permit this export from 
India to a Portuquese territory. The Finance Secretary stated in 
evidence: 

"It might be of interest to the Committee to know what was 
the view of the then Solicitor Ccneral, the present At- 

tornev General on this particular point. Certain discus- 
sions'had taken place and 1 am rqading from a rlote. I t  
says- 

'The second question discussed with the Solicitor General 
related to the provisions of the Imports and Exports 
(Control) Act, 1947. Section 2 of the said Act provides 



that "Import" and "Export" means respectively bring- 
ing into and taking out of h d i a  by Sea, land or air. 
Section 3(1) of the Act empowers the Central Gov- 

ernment inter alia to prohibit and restrict: 

(a) the import, export, carriage coast-wise or shipment 
as ship sbres  of goods of any specified description; 

(b) the bringing into any port or place in India of goods 
of any specified description intended to be taken out 
of India without being removed from the ship or 
conveyance in which they are being carried. 

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section 3 of the 
said Act, the Central Government by order 9/67 dated 
1st August 1967 prohibited the import and export of 
all goods, whether directly or indirectly into or from 
any port or place in India, from or to any place in 
Portugal. 

Two questions arose for consideration: 

(i) whether order 9/67 was issued in terms of clause (a)  
of sub-section 1 of the Section 3 of the Impcrts and 
Exports (Control) Act, or could i t  be taken also to 
have been issued i n  terms of clause (b)  of the said 
section? 

(ii) whether the scope of clause ( a )  was wide enough to 
include the situations contemplated b!. clause (b) 
and if so, whether as a natural corollary, the words 
'impozt" and "export" would include bnnging into 
India in the manner as described in clause (b) i.e. 
bringing into India of goods intended to be taken out 
of India without being removed from the conveyance? 
On the first point the Solicitor General was of the view 
that order 9/67 was clearly issued under clause (a)  

and not under clause (b)'. I t  related to export and 
export directly and not to goods in transit. 

Now, I will come to the other point. After having carefully 
considered both the points of view and also having 
gone through the definitions of 'import1 and 'export' in 
the Imports and Exports Control Act 1947, the Customs 
Act 1962~ . .The Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 
1947, the Arms Act and the Dangerous Drugs Act the 



Solicitor General was of the opinion that the provisions 
of clause (a*) were not wide enough to include situations 

covered by clause (b) and further #at the expressions 
'import' and 'export' as used jn clause (a) would not 
include bringing into India in the manner described 
in clause (b). The opinion of the Solicitor General was 

based on two considerations: 

(a) The fact that the legislature had made a separate 
provision for entry of goods into India which were 
only in transit and which were to be taken out of 
India in the same vessel or aircraft or other convey- 
ance shows that such bringing into India was not 
covered by the term 'import'. 

(b) Wherever the legislatbre intended that such entry 
of goods into India as aforesaid was to be included 
within the connotation of the word 'import' it has 
expressly stated so (for example Explanation to Sec- 
tion 8(1) of the F.E.R. Act and Section 2( i )  of the 
Dangerous Drugs Act 1930 etc.). In the absence of 
any such provision in the Imports & Exports (Con- 
trol) Act 1947, the normal presumpyion would be 
that  for the  purposes of the said Act, the term 'import' 
does not include bringing into 4ndia of goods in tran- 
sit intended to be taken out of India without being 
removed from the conevyance. 

I think this opinion of the Solicitor General knocks the 
bottom completely out of the case for the application 
of this Notification 9/67 to this particular transaction 
is concerned." 

2.38. Explaining the position further, the Chairman, Cent!:,l 
Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"The notification reads as follows: - 
'Whereas there is export to axid import from Portugal and 

whereas it is considered necessary to issue a ban on 
exports to and imports from Portugal, now, therefore, 
in exercise of the powers conferred by section 3 of the 
Imports and Exports Control Act, 1947 (18 of 47), the 
Central Government hereby prohibits the import and 
export of all goods, whether directly or indirectly, into 
or thmugh any port or place in India from or to any 
pIace in Portugal'. 



In the BOAC case, the ultimak destination of one of the 
consinment was shown as Macao. Two points arose for 
consideration. The first point was whether Macao could 
be consjdered as part of Portugal. If you kindly see the 
notification, it says 'from or to any place in Portugal'. 
The External Affairs Ministry was consulted in this 

regard, The Ministry of External Affairs informed us that 
on account of the large volume of our trade with Mozam- 
bique and other Portuguese colonies in Africa, i t  was 
not considered-expedient to include these territories with- 
in the scope of this ban. However, they did not consider 
the question of Macao as a distinct unit because we had 
no direct trade with Macao, Nevertheless, the Ministry of 
External Affairs felt that any interpretation that ban on 
trade wi th  Portugal includes ban on trade with Macao 
will, to some extent. lmplg conceding the Portuguese 
thesis that Macao is a part of Portugal. Further, the issue 
of an order at  this stage may not help because that order 
would not have any retrospective effect. There was noth- 
ing categorical one way or  the other in what they said. 
The second is a legal question, which is more important." 

2.39. The Committee asked whether the first quesyion, namely 
whether hlacao could he considered as part of Portugal, had been 
referred to the Solicitor Ckneral. The witness stated t h a t  this had 
not been referred because the Mmistry of External Affairs them- 
selves we& not categorical one way q- the other. When the Com- 
mittee pointed out that that was all the more a reason for seeking 
the advice of the Solicitor General on t'his point, the witness stated: 

"That second categorical interpretation of the notification 
given by the Solicitor General clinched the issue. So, this 
question went into the background. 

On ~e second question, the Solicitor General observed that 
section 3 of the Imports and Exports Control Act has two 
clauses, (a)  and (b).  

Section 3(1) of the Act empowers the Central Govcrnmcnt 
Inter alia, to prohibit and restrict (a)  the import, export, 
car?iage coastwise or shipments as ship stores of goods 
of any specified dewription, and (b) the bringing into 
any port or place in India of goods of any specified des- 
cription intended to be taken out of India without' being 
removed from the ship of conveyance in which they arc 
being carried. These are the two clauses. The Solicitor 



General expressed the view that the Legislature had 
made a separate provision for entry of goods into India 
which were only in transit and which were to be taken 
in the same vessel or by other conveyance." 

2.40. A copy of the opinion furnished by the Ministry of Externll  
Affairs in this regard made available to the Committee by the Minis- 
try of Finance (Department of Revenue and Insurance) is repro- 
duced in Appendix IV. A copy of the Record of Discussion with 
t h e  Solicitor General also furnished to the Committee by the Minis- 
try is reproduced in Appendix V. 

2.41. The Committee desired to know whether the Portuguese 
angle and UN resolution to ban trade with Portugal had been taken 
into account by the appellate board. The Member (Customs) stated: 

"The Appellate Order is supposed to discuss the issues which 
have been taken by the Collector for confiscation. The 
Appellate Order cannot discuss new Issue:;. This i.; only 
in appeal against the order of the Collector. The  order of 
the Collector was not based on this particular notificatiut;. 
Therefore, the appeal to order did not discuss it." 

2.42. Sinc ethe appellate Board permitted the ~ n a ~ i i e s t  of the air- 
craf t  to bc corrected retrospectively, the Committee asked whether 
any application had been made by BOAC for correction of the mani- 
fest. The Chairman. Central of Excisc and Customs stated that what 
had gone on record was that there was an oral request madc. When 
the Committee asked as to what stage the oral request had been 
madc by the BOAC, the witness stated: 

"I would refer to Issue No. 6, page 34 of the Board's Order- 
Appellate Order-paragraph 44: 

'The ncxt point which falls for our considcratiorl is whether 
on the basis of the evidence on record i t  ca:] be stated 
that a request for amendment of the rncl!lifest was made 
and if so s t  what stage. The rival content~ons on this 
point h e w  already been summarised in paras 27 and 33 
above. There is no dispute that under Section 30(3) of 
the Customs Act no p m c ~ d u r e  is prl)ividd, there is no 
form of the application and there is also no period of 
limitatiorl kvithin which the request folS amendment has 
to be made. In fact, i t  is common ground that a rCqUeSt 
for amendment of the manifest may be in writing of 



oral. Shri S. N. Karkhanis, the Assistant Collector of 
C ~ b z u ,  Incharge a t  Palm in reply to a specific ques- 
tion, "Do you accept verbal applications or request for 
amendment of the manifest" has stated: "In some cases 
we do accept." He has, however, further added that in 
that case i t  is not in the form of a query and "it is al- 
lowed on the regular request which is followed by a sub- 
sequent action for amending the manifest." During the 
arguments, the D.R.I. conceded that the application could 
be made orally but he argued that at  least the person to 
whom the application is made should know that such an  
application has been made. It is, therefore, necessary 
to recount the evidence in this regard. in some detail.' 

Shri !$anthanam had stated in his afiidavit- 

'At approximate 1645 on 15th September I asked the Customs 
Irlspector Mr. Ramachandran for transhipment facility. 
He asked to see the consignment notc which was duly 
produced to him . When he examinecl the consignment 
note he noticed that i t  had been incorrectly manifested 
i.e. described as "metal" and not "gold" on the cargo 
manifest. He stated that he would h a w  to bring this to 
to notice of his Assistant Collector. i explained to him 
that this was clearly an error and that 1 would make an  
application to make an amendment to the manifest and 
would pay the usual amendment fee. The Inspector re- 
fused to accept the application until h r  had discussed the 
matter with the Assistant Collector. I went along with 
him to the Assistant Collector's office and explained to 
the Assistant Collector why it was desirable for us to 

! manifest the shipment as metal and that this was a 
BOAC Regulation to ensure safeguarding. I showed him 
the relevant instructions in cargo Manual Regulations 
on safeguarding and also pointed out that the descrip- 
tion of the goods on the consignment notc was in fact 
correct. He appreciated mv explanation but regretted 

he could not do anything until he referred the matter t~ 
higher authorities as the  amount of gold was a h u W  
quantity and according to him we had violated the laws 
of the land'. 

I'he Order continues- 

In his oral statement before us, Shrl Sanlhanam stated that 
he told SM Ramachandran that the incomplete descrlp 



of the manifest was purely ,due to error and that he be 
allowed to amend the manifest. This request was not 
accepted. During the cross-examination Shri Santhanam 
was asked a question, "Did you make any request for 
amendment of the manifest to the Collector?" Shri 
Senthanam replied-"No. In this case the Assistant Col- 
lector did not refuse my request. All that he said was 
that he  would consult higher authorities. But thereafter 
the whole thing exploded and the things moved on so 
rapidly that I could not even coherently think about the 
course of action. My Manager being new was not very 

well conversant with these things." 

Shri Karkhanis has stated- 

'I scrutinised the manifest and found that it was not declar- 
ed. Mr. Santhanam at that time also said that "What 
can be done with regard to amending of the manifest?" 
He was told that at this point of time the gold was liable 
to confiscation and nothing can be done'. 

b r i n g  his cross-examination we put a specific questior: to  Shri 
Karkhanis, "Did Mr. Santhanam request you that he should 
be allowed to amend the manifest?" The reply of Shri  
Karkhanis was "At that point of time he did say, Well, 
why can't we amend the manifest?" I told him that a t  t h s  
point of time the gold was liable for confiscation. Another 
question put to Shri Karkhanis was "Did he tell you that 
there seems to be a mistake in the manifest and that  it is 
properly declared in the consignment notes and, therefore, 
please amend the manifest?" The answer given was, "No, 
he did say, why can't we amend the maniiest." Again in 
reply to another question, Shri  Karkhanis stated: "He tcld 
me as far as I remember not in the office but at  the ccl ~ n t e r  
that this is their practice to describe gold as 'metai' and 
why can't he amend the manifest." Shri Ramachandran, the  
Air Customs Inspector on duty a t  Palam, a t  the relevant 
time, stated before us: "I told Mr. Santhanam that our  
Notification on the subject was very clear and that the 
gold which was being transisted through India should be 
declared as gold and by not other term. Since the gold 
was not mentioned as gold in the manifest, the same was 
Uable to confiscation. Then, Mr. Santhanam thought over 

while and what could be done and whether I would 
p d t  amendment of the manifest. I told him that the 
question did not arise a t  that stage! 



However, in EmWer to a specific question, "Was any applica- 
tion XWde to you for permission to amend the manifest?" 
Shri Ramachandran replied, "No, Sir." He was further 
asked, "Was any such application made in your presence 
to the Assistant Collector orally or in writing?" The ans- 
wer was "Not to m,y knowledge." When Shri Ramachen- 
dran was asked "We thought an oral request was made by 
Mr. Santhanam", the reply was "Mr. Santhanam said what 
could be done; if the manifest could be smended. I said 
no." Again, the question put to him was "So you did not 
take it as an application." He gave the answer "No, Sir. 
It was a casual query; not an application.'' A specific ques- 
tion was put to Shri Ramachandran whether he asked Shri 
Santhanam to make any application in writing. Shri 
Ramachandran replied "No, I did not, since he only made 
a query." The answers to two other questions are also 
relevant. Question-"You mentioned that for the first 
time it was at  about 3 O'clock that Mr. Santhanam asked 
you whether amendment could be permitted 1s jt so?". 

Answer: "That is so Sir." 

Question: "You told him that it could not be permitted." 

Answer: "Yes, Sir." 

46. In the reply to the show--cause notice, BOAC stated in sub- 
para (4) of para 17-19 "When the mar was discovered 
Mr. Santhanam BOAC's Acting Airport Manager did vcr- 
bally request permission to make such an amendment to  
the Manifest." In the end of their reply. they have further 
stated: "The bonafides of the respondcri:, hovrfever, are 
absolutely evident and, therefore, i t  is reyuested that as 
requested by Mr. Santhanam, already the ~nanifest may 
be allowed to be corrected so as to coniwm strictly to 
the Regulations." We also find that durin:? the personal 
hearing before the Collector they had agnln made a speci- 
fic request for permission to get the manifest suitably 
amended under Section 30(3) of the Customs Ac:. During 
the hearing, they also invited attention to the request 
made verbally by Shri Santhanam to Palam Customs and 
the request made in their reply to the show-cause notice. 
In fact, in his order, the Collector while summi~lg up the 
defence of BOAC has observed that one of the points taken 
by them was- 



"The gold and aircraft were not liable to confscation simply 
because of inadequate description of the 'gold' as 'meal 
V' or 'metal bar V' in the manifest. BOAC should have 
been given the benefit of Section 30(3) of Customs Act, 
1962, the gold being in transit as same bottom cargo, they 
should have been allowed to amend the manifest as re- 
quested by their Airport Manager, Shri K. Santhanam. 
They requested release of the gold and the aircraft after 
amending the manifests suitably." 

The finding of the Collector in this regard is- 
"I also do not accept their contention that at best the case 

could be treated s a case of incomplete manifestation or 
insuffcient description without any fraudulent intention. 
I reject their plea that the case should be treated as a 
case falling under sub-clause (3) of Section 30 of the 
Customs Act, 1962 and amendment to the manifest be 
allowed." 

47. From the aforesaid evidence. it appears to us that a repre- 
sentative of BOAC has asked for the amendment of the 
manifest but the same was not permitted because the 0%- 
cers on the spot seemed to have taken the view that since 
gold had not been declared as gold but as metal or metal 
bar, the same was liable to confiscation and, as such, am- 
endment of the manifest could not be pcrmittea. We con- 
sider that the request made by the representative of BOAC 
was not a mere query but an oral request for the amend- 
ment of the manifest. In any case a request in writing 
was made in their reply to the show-cam- notlce as well 
as during the personal hearing before the collector. The 
Collector has specifically rejected the rcques' in his order. 
We, therefore, hold that a reqest for amendment of the 
manifest in  terms of Section 30 (3)  of the Customs Act 
was made bv BOAC as soon as the mistake was noticed and 
also at relevant subsequent stages." 

2.43. The Committee asked whether any advice of the Ministry of 
Law had been obtained in this case. The Chairman, Central Board 
of Excise and Customs stated that the Joint Secretary, Ministry of 
Law had made various comments on a note of the Director of Rev?- 
nue Intelligence raising various legal issues connected with the case. 
A copy of the note recorded by the Director of Hevenue Intelligence 
in this regard along with the comments of the Joint Secretary, Min- 
istry of Law, furnished to the Committee by the Ministry of Fmance 
(Department of Revenue and Insurance) is reproduced in Appendix 
VI. 



2.44. The Committee desired to h o w  whether the Attorney Gene- 
ral had been consulted on this case. The Chairman. Central Board 
of Excise and Customs sh ted  during evidence: 

"The Attorney General's advice was sought through the Law 
Ministry. A reference was made to the Attorney General 
thmugh the Law Ministry. The Attorney General said 
that the matter was already before the Board. Therefore, 
he refused to give his opinion in this matter." 

2.45. The Collector, in paragraphs 29 and 30 of his adjudication 
order, had pointed out that this was not the first instance when gold 
was being carried like this and that between April and August, 1967, 
5,382 kgs. of gold,described as 'metal V' and 'Metal bar V' had been 
transported from London to Hongkong through India. The Collector, 
in his order, had observed as follows: 

"It is significant that M/s. BOAC have been transporting large 
quantities of gold from London through India to Hongkong 

under the guise of 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V'. Hongkong 
is a vulnerable spot in the East for smuggling of gold as 
well as other commodities. Details of six consignment: so 
transited from London to Hongkong via India during five 
months from April to August, 1967 arc given below: 

Date Airway Bill No. Dewription 

Troasport of over 5,000 kgs. of gold valued at  over Rs. 10 crores 
in a short period of 5 months from London to Hongkong 
via India describing i t  as 'V-Metal' or  'V-Metal Bar'. is 
quite significant. Shipments of gold through India under 
the guise of 'Metal' have been facilitated by MIS. BOAC.* 



2.46. The Committee pointed out that this was, therefore, not the 
first occasion that BOAC was carrying gold through India and asked 
whether the Board was aware of this fact. The Chairman, Central 
Board of Excise and Customs stated that gold had been carried pre- 
viously. The Committee asked whether the Customs authorities were 
aware that it was gold. The witness stated: 

"6 do not know whether they had come across that much gold 
or seen gold consignments being carried through this coun- 
try. I t  was never their intention to stop transit once they 
are declared as gold." 

2.47. In reply to an observation of the Committee that it was a 
fact that the gold went from South Africa or London or from South 
Africa via London to Macao or Hongkong and that it was possible 
that i t  had been sent to Macao with the sole object of being smuggl- 
ed back into India ultimately, the witness stated: 

"I would only give the position as it is. If they had declared 
clearly as gold. it could come in open daylight. It is not a 
question whether it comes back or not nor anybody can 
go into it. Nobody has the authority t o  presume that this 
will go to Macao and will come back." 

He added: 

"I am only trying to put across the situation as it is available 
under 'the law. The Government itself has stated. Other- 
wise, the law would have been that you just will not al- 
low any transit of gold through India and i t  will become 
liable to confiscation. The position is very simple." 

2.48. When the Committee pointed out that that was precisely 
be reason why gold had been described as 'metal V' in the manifest, 
the witness stated: 

"I would not comment on that. I would only refer you to what 
the Board has stated in their very lengthy order. They 
have discussed everything so that you can draw your 
own conclusions. So, they came to the conclusion that 
this was not fraudulent. Therefore, they allowed amend- 
ment of the manifest and they have discussed in their 
order why they are doing so. They also took into can- 
sideration the fact that the consignment notes themselves 
covering this, which were available when the BOAC made 
their request, did mention it as gold. So, the penalty 



imposed on BOAC and aircraft etc. was revoked and this 
gold was allowed to go to its destination. That is the sum 
and substance of this case." 

2.49. The Committee asked whether BOAC had been suspected 
of carrying on this business earlier also. The Chairman, Central 
Board of Ekcise and Customs stated that while cases in regard to 
individuals had come to light, he would not be able to say as such 
whether cases had come to light particularly in regard to BOAC. 
When the Committee pointed out that this case had ramifications in- 
volving BOAC also. the witness stated: 

"I cannot say one way or the other. I am prepared to accept, 
this must be so. When you are saying, it must be so." 

He added subsequennly that there were BOAC people who had 
come to notice from time to time. 

2.50. In a subsequent note furnished, at the instance of the Com- 
mittee in this regard. the Ministry of Finance (Department of Reve- 
nue 8: Insurance) stated: 

"The Collector in his adjudication order has referred to six 
previous instances wherein gold weighing in aggregate 
5382 kilos and valued at o\,er Rs. 10 crores was carried 
by BOAC through India. There is no other material rpn- 
dilS available in this regard." 

2.51. The Committee also desired to know whether, before this 
seizure in 1967. there was any other occasion when t h c  BOAC or 
any employee of BOAC was found carrying contraband gold and, if 
so, the action taken on such cases. The Ministry of Finance (De- 
partment of Revenue & Insurance stated in a note furnished to the 
Committee: 

"In 1959, the Calcutta Customs apprehended one Miss Jenni 
@ Jenni Wong on arrival at  Durn Durn Airport from 
Hongkong and 16 tolas of gold were recovered from her. 
On the same night Calcutta Customs also apprehended 
on D .  C. Furlonger, a flight steward of BOAC on arrival 
at Durn Durn Airport and recovered from his person 170 
tolas of gold valued a t  Rs. 17,000;-. The gold recovered 
from both the persons was confiscated. They were prose- 
cuted and convicted to fines of Rs. 1,500/- and Rs. 
3,0001- in default to R.I. for two months and three months 



respectively. A flight engineer of BOAC and 15 kilograms 
of gold was recovered from his person. The gold was ab- 
solutely confiscated and the accused was sentenced to 6 
months' R.I. 

Investigations in the case of Furlonger revealed that he was 
acting as a carrier for a Hongkong smuggling syndicate. 
During the contemporaneous period the BOAC securi- 
ty staff in collaboration with Hongkong police seized in 
Hongkong from the premises of the Ring Leaders of the 
said syndicate certain documents disclosing the complicity 
of certain BOAC crew in imuggling activities. Investiga- 
tions were pursued by the Director of Revenue Intelligence 
and the security staff of the BOAC rendered valuable as- 
sistance in these investigations. The BOAC management 
initiated disciplinary proceedings and eventually dismissed 
90 of their employees." 

2.52. Since the BOAC Traffic Manual specifically provides for 
declaring gold carried through India as such in the manifest, the 
Committee desired to know whether such 'clerical errors' of declar- 
ing the gold as 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar' had come l o  notice in res- 
pect of transport of gold on earlier occasions also or whether the 
gold had been declared in the manifest as 'gold' only, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Traffic Manual. The Ministry of Finance 
(Department of Revenue and Insurance) stated in a written note: 

"The Board in its appellate order has observed that prior to 
November, 1965 when the computerisation was introduced 
for the first time, gold was being carried by BOAC through 
India by declaring it as gold whereas after this period the 
gold has been taken through India by declaring it either 
as metal or metal bar and that the mistake occurred pri- 
marily due to the system obtaining after computerisation." 

2.53. The Committee asked whether BOAC was the only foreign 
carrier found to have indulged in carrying gold either through or 
across India or whether any other carriers were also found to have 
indulged in similar transactions. The Ministry of Finance (Depart- 
ment of Revenue & Insurance) stated in a note: 

"Complete details of the instances when other carriers car- 
ried gold through India are not available. A statement 
showing the particulars of gold and metal in transit mani- 
fested from March, 1967 to August, 1967 and carried 
through Palam is, however, available in the appellate re- 
cord of the Board." 



In this connection, the following particulars were furnished to 
the Committee: 

Name of Flight Descri - Quantity D ~ t i -  Coming 
Detr Air No. tion of  in kgs natlon from 

Companv Bood9 

P 

7-4-67 K.L.M. .K.L. 863 Gold z KTM Karachi 
10-4-67 Air France A.F. 195 Maal 3 PNH Bangkok 

27-4-67 K.L.M. K.L. 863 Fine Gold I KTM Amesterdam. 

19-5-67 K. L. M. K. L. 663 Gold Ban 2 KTM Karachi 

2.54. The Committee desired to know the grounds on which the 
appeal had been allowed by the Board. The Chairman, Central 
Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"I will read out Annexure I1 in this connection. 

Grounds on which the Central Board of Excise and Customs released 
the gold 

The Board agreed with the Collector that the declaration 
of gold in the manifest as 'metal bar' or 'metal' did not 
fully meet the requirements of the Reserve Bank's Noti- 
fication of 8-11-62. The Board, however, did not agree 
with the Collector that this was a case where am- 
endment under Section 30(3) of the Customs Act should 
not be allowed. On consideration of the various legal 
authorities including decisions of the Supreme Court 
and the Privy Council, the Board observed that when the 
manifest is in any way incorrect or incomplete and a 
request for amendment of the manifest is made under 
Section 30(3) of the Customs Act the proper officer has 
to satisfy himself that there was no fraudulent inten- 
tion, but once he is satisfied that there was no manifest 
unless he has good grounds for holding to the contrary. 
In this case, on a detailed examination of the evidence, 
the Board came to the conclusion that there was no 
fraudulent intention involved in the preparation of the 
manifest in question; nor was there any wilful neglect 
or disregard of the Indian Regulations on the subjedt 
of the mistake. There were clear instructions in the 
Traffic Manual of BUAC that for security reasons gold 



should be declared as 'metal', these instructions also 
stated that in So far as India was concerned this prac- 
tice was not permitted for gold in transit. AS such, jt 
could 'not be said that the management of BOAC did 
not bother about the Indian Regulations on the subject. 
According to the Board, the mistake of declaring gold 

'metal' or 'metal bar' in the manifest started as a re- 
sult of the factors essentially arising from the introduc- 
tion of the cornputor system in November, 1965. The 
Board observed that the finding of the Collector that 
the intention of BOAC was to conceal from Indian Cus- 
toms the fact that they were transmitting gold through 
India was not borne out by evidence. There was also no 
evidence on record before the Collector on which he could 
base his findings that the incorrect entry in the manifest 
was not innocent, that the violation was wiiful and deli- 
b,erate and that the case could not be treated as a case of 
incomple!e entry or insufficient description in the mani- 
fest without any fraudulent intention. The Board did 
not find that there was any wilful suppression of facts by 
ROAC or t h a t  there was any intention to deceive or to 
defraud the Customs. The Board also gave a categorical 
finding that there was no intention nor was any attempt 
rnadc to smuggle the gold from the aircraft while the 
same was in India. It also did not find any collusion bet- 
ween thc  consignors and the BOAC. Further, as held by 
the Clollector, the goods were only in transit through India 
and this fact was indicated in the manifest. The Airway 
Bill Nos. were also mentioned in the manifest and in the 
Airway Bills gold Ivas correctly described as gold. 
Those Airway Bills accompanied the consignments and 
were open to inspection by Customs, if they so desir- 
ed. In these circumstances, the Board held that there 
bein!; no good ground for refusing amendment of the 
mnift .st  under Section 39(3) of the Customs Act, the 
same cor.~ld not be refused under the law. It is to be no- 
ted that the BOAC themselves had disclosed the con- 
tent of gold on the morrow of the grounding of the air- 
craft asking for special protection. The Board accord- 
ingly allowed amendment of the manifest, set aside the 
order of the Collector and released the two consign* 
merits for being in transit to Hongkong." 



2.55. The Conunittee asked whether, apart from the Customs 
Act, there was not a violation of the Foreign Exchange Act also in 
this case, and, if so, why no action had been taken by the Directorate 
of Foreign Exchange. The Ministry of Finance (Department of Re- 
venue & Insurance) stated in a written note furnished to the Com- 
mittee: 

"The contravention alleged was of the prohibition imposed 
under Section 8(1) of the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act 
which in terms of Section 23A of the Foreign Exchange 
Regulation Act was deemed to be a prohibition under the 
Customs Act and all the provisions of the Customs Act 
applied as if the prohibition was imposed under the Cus- 
toms Act itself. The Directorate of Enforcement did not 
have jurisdiction to impose a penalty." 

2.56. In reply to another question whether it was not a fact that 
if BOAC had not been allowed to amend the manifest they would 
not have been let off, the Ministry of Finance (Department of Re- 
venue and Insurance) stated in a note: 

"The Board in its appellate order has observed that the dec- 
laration as metal or metal bar was not a sufficient com- 
pliance with the Reserve Bank's Notification of 8-11-62 
and therefore i f  the manifest was not allowed to he am- 
ended, there might have been a contravention of Section 
8(1) of the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. The Soli- 
citor General was, however, not sure whether the decla- 
ration as metal or metal bar was not a sufficient compli- 
ance of the aforesaid Notification." 

2.57. The Committee asked if the plea of misdeclaration in the 
manifest put forth by BOAC constitute an error within the meaning 
of Section 30 of the Act and whether it was a fact that the Board 
themselves had entertained a doubt as to the applicability of Sec- 
tion 30 in this case. The Ministry of Finance (Department of Reve- 
nue and Insurance) stated in a note: 

"The Board in its appellate order did not express c t ~ y  catego- 
rical opinion whether the description in the manifest was 
incorrect or incomplete, but a reading of the order of the 
Board as a whole appears to show that the Board consi- 
dered i t  as a case of incomplete description in the mani- 
fest. There is nothing to indicate that the Board e n t e  
tained any doubt as to the applicability of Section 30 in 



this case. I t  appears that considering the importance of 
the issue, this question was referred to the Attorney Ge- 
neral for opinion who declined to give any advice because 
the ,Board was acting as a quasijudicial authority." 

2.58. The Committee desired to know whether i t  was a fact that 
the British High Commissioner had intervened in the matter prior 
to adjudication. The Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Cus- 
toms stated in evidence that he was not aware that the High Com- 
missioner had intervened, b'ut that there was a letter that this may be 
expedited. The Committee desired to be furnished with a copy of 
this letter and other letters, if any, from the High Commissioner. 
The Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue & Insurance) fur- 
nished copies of three letters from the British High Commissioner 
dated 3rd October, 1967, 19th October, 1967 and 26th April, 1968. 
The Ministry also added that as a matter of courtesy to foreign dip- 
lomatic missions, correspondence with them was not normally pub- 
lished. The High Commissioner had presented the EOAC version 
of the case and had requested for the early release of the gold 
seized, as otherwise the Bank of England, i t  was stated, had to reple- 
nish this gold from its stock, which would affect its reserves. 

2.59. The Committee asked why i t  was that instead of confisca- 
tirig the gold rind making them go to a court of law, the Board had 
yielded the High Commissioner's pressure. The Chairman, Central 
Board of Excise and Customs stated in evidence: 

"I wish to makc it clear or let it go on record that I was not 
in the Board but I was certainly a Joint Secretary in the 
Lkpastment of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, and from 
whatever by personal knowledge at that stage was I can 
say that nobody's influence was allowed in any way to 
hove the final swag one way or the other. I can categori- 
cally tell you that 

The question of confiscating something, which on the face of 
i t  as not liable to confiscation, I do not think should be 
the task of the adjudication officer, though he may play 
safe and send the matter to court. The original order of 
the Collector, to my mind-if I may say so makes no sense. 
If it is liable to confiscation, you jointly well confiscate 
it absolutely, you do not go on imposing fine and clear it. 
I have never heard of such a thing before. 

Even when questions were asked in Parliament, it would 
have been very logical if somebody had asked what this 



Collector had done. If gold had been found as offending 
gold, the market value of which was Rs. 2 crores and the 
oflcial value Rs. 1 crore, you confiscate it; you never im- 
pose a h e .  But here you let it go by imposing a fine of Rs. 
20 lakhs." 

2.60. The Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee (1971-72) 
had also received a memorandum dated 13th March 1972 from one 
Shri Laxman Prabhu, containing, amongst other matters, allegations 
against the BOAC case. The theme of the memorandum was that 
the Government had acted in a malafide manner in disposing of the 
case and that the Board which heard the appeal had sought the ad- 
vice of the Attorney General in settling a point in favour of BOAC. 
In support of this statement, he had furnished an extract of the 
affidavit* filed by Shri Prasad, the then Collector, Central Excise, in 
a writ challenging the seniority list of collectors. 

2.61. In his affidavit. Shri Prasad had, inter ali3, made the fol- 
lowing allegations: 

"During the course of adjudication procetdings, the then Fin- 
ance Secretary started pressurising Shri Prasad to rclcasc 
the gold forthwith, by sending personal messages. 

Shri Prasad was called to the Board by Shri T.  C .  Seth and 
later on by Shri Jasjit Singh who pressurised him to re- 
lease the gold and advised that he could obtain a favour- 
able opinion from the Law Ministry. 

Shri T.  P .  Singh, the then Finance Secretary pressurised 
Shri Prasad to release the gold forthwith and pass :,I? ad- 
judication order favourable to the BOAC. However. Shr i  
Prasad resisted the pressure. 

The Director of Revenue Intelligence withdrcw his first re- 
port and submitted a fresh report as he was also pressu- 
rised to do so." 

2 .62 .  With reference to the earlier comments of the Chairman, 
Central Board of Excise and Customs, the Committee drew hls at- 
tention to Shri Prcrsad's allegations and asked whether it was true 

-- - -. __ _ ____ _ _ _  --- I- 
' A  copy of the affidavrt fumiahed by b e  Ministry of Pinma! (Dcpartmmt of Revnae 

& Iarurana), at thr instance of the Committee, b reproducrd in Appendix VXI. 



that he had made serious allegations against the Board's officials and 
the then Finance Secretary pressuring him in this case and, if so, 
what was the reply fled by Government to these allegafions. The 
Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"Shri Prasad had Aled a writ petition in the Delhi High Court 
on 6th May, 1968 challenging the seniority list of Collec- 
tors. It  was in that connection that he had gone to the 
Court. The single judge dismissed his petition on the 
31st May, 1968. Against this judgement of the single 
judge, Shri Prasad had filed a Letters Patent appeal before 
the Divisional Bench of the High Court. An affidavit in  
reply to the Letters Patent appeal was filed by the Union 
of India; and the matter was heard by the Division Bench 
on 23rd and 24th November 1971; and again on the 20th 
and 21st December 1971. The judgement of the Division 
Bench was delivered on 31st January, 1972. I would 
say how these things had occurred. It  is a very small 
question : 

'A cosiderable time after the judgement was delivered, a copy 
of a document purported to be an affidavit filed by Shri R. 
Prasad on 2nd December 1971 came to our notice. A copy 
of it was not served on the Union of India either directly 
by the petitioner or through the High Court. Since it 
was possible that a copy of it may have been made availa- 
ble to our counsel, we made an attempt to trace these 
things from his file; but even there, it was not available. 

The Litigation Section of the Law Ministry has a file on this 
Letters Patent appeal. This file also did not contain a 
copy of the said affidavit. 

Now, therefore, we deputed our Deputy Secretary to go to 
the court itself and see the file. He has reported that a 
copy of Shri Prasad's affidavit dated the 2nd December. 
1971 was available in the paper book of one of the judges 
who had heard the Letters Patent appeal. 

On inspection of the court's records, it was found that there 
is an order of the judges dated the 23rd November 1971 
permitting the counsel for the Union of India to file an 
additional aPBdavit in respect of certain matters. The 
judges also ordered that a copy of the additional affidavit 
should be made over to the counsel for Shri R. Prasad, so 



that he can fne a reply. Accordingly tbe Govenunent 
counsel Aled an afidovit, affirmed by Shri B. a. Pande, 
the then Finance Secretary, on the 24th November 1971. 

The afEdavit dated the 2nd December, 1971 filed by Shri R. 
Prasad is in reply to this additional affidavit, Ordinarily, 
i t  is not peqissible to Ale a rejoinder to this reply 
aadavit, without a specific order to that effect by the 
court. But the fact is that it came to our notice much 
after the judgement; and that too, at a very late stage'. 

The officer who was present in the court says: 
'I was present in the court on all the days of the hearing 

and I can positively state that the various matters men- 
tioned by Mr. Prasad in this affidavit were not brought 
up during the course of the argument by his counsel. 
Our counsel also did not deal with them during hls 
arguments. The judgement of the Division Bench also 
does not refer to the various matters mentioned in the 
affidavit'." 

2.63. When the Committee observed in this conncction that it, 
therefore, appeared that Shri Prasad's allegations before the Honlb!e 
High Court at Delhi went unrefuted and unchallenged, the Chairman, 
Central Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"They went unrefuted and unchallenged; but this also should 
go on record that I have stated the sequence of events and 
that jt did not come to our notice at any stage. T h ~ s  
afiidavit has come to our notice much later and after a lo t  
of research. Secondly, the ordinary practice is that if one 
side is allowed to have an additional affidavit, the court 
allows a reply to that additional affidavit. You cannot 
have further additional affidavit otherwise." 

2.64. Since this affidavit contained a number of serious allegations 
against the Board's officials and even the Finance Secretary, the 
Committee asked whether these allegations were examined inde- 
pendently by Government once they came to light even though no 
reply had initially been filed by Government in the court and, if so, 
the Ministry were rkquested to furnish a detailed note indicating the 
Government's findings regarding these allegations. The Ministry of 
Finance (Department of Revenue and Insurance) stated in a note: 



"The Letters Patent Appeal of Shri R. Prasad was heard by 
the Division Bench of Delhi High Court on 23rd and 24th 
November 1971 and thereafter from the 20th to 23rd De- 
cember 1971. The judgement of the Division Bench was 
delivered on the 31st January 1972. I t  is understood 
from the official who was present at  the hearing that the 
various allegations made in the supplementary affidavit 
were not brought out by Shri Prasad's counsel nor was 
there any mention of them in the court's judgement. The 
copy of the supplementary affidavit was obtained from 
the High Court's records after the BOAC matter was 
raised in the Public Accounts Committee. I t  may be 
mentioned that some of these allegations were earlier 
made by Shri Madhu Limaye, M.P. in his letters to the 
then Deputy Prime Minister and the Deputy Prime 
Minister in his replies as well as on the floor of the Par- 
liament had refuted those allegations. The correspon- 
dence between Shri Madhu Liimaye and the Deputy 
Prime Minister in this regard was placed on the Table 
of the Lok Sabha. In March 1972 a letter addressed to the 
F.M. was received and this reproduced a portion of Shri 
Prasad's affidavit containing most of the allegations. The 
Government had then also taken the view that the insinucl- 
tion that the Board's decision was taken on extraneous 
considerations and under influence of higher authorities 
was baseless." 

2.65. In reply to another question whether the Board had ap- 
proached the Attorney General for an opinion on an important issue 
prior to the disposal of the appeal and the opinion given by the 
Attorney General, the witness stated: 

"I am informed that during the course of the hearing, the 
Attorney General was approached once or twice; but he 
had refused to give advice. once the hearing had already 
started." 

2.66. The Committee desired to know whether a complaint had 
not been made by the Director of Revenue Intelligence, in the course 
of the appeal proceedings, that the questions addressed to the de- 
partmental witnesses were so loaded as to cause nervousness* whch  
prevented a fair trial. The Chairman. Central Board of Excise and 
 customs stated: 

"It may have been. 1 have not gone into the details. During 
the hearing in the courts, both sides allege various things. 
I t  might have been done." 



2.67. The Committee desired to know who had represented the 
appellants and the Government in the proceedings. The Chair- 
Central Board of Excise and the Customs stated: 

"It will read out the relevant portion of the Order: 

'These appeals were heard by us on 17th and 18th June 
1968, 6th August, 1968 and 18th and 19th September 
1968. BOAC were represented during the hearings by 
Advocates Shri T. N. Sethi and Shri D. P. Sethi 
instructed by Solicitor Shri Bernard Wood. The other 
appellants were represented by Shri A.  K. Rasu, Advo- 
cate, instructed by Shri D. N. Gupta and Shri J .  K. Mehra 
of M/s. Orr Dignam. Solicitors, Shri M. A. Brown and 
Shri T. Bates, Solicitors held a watching brief on behalf 
of insurers of gold. Shri S. K. Srivastava, Director of 
Revenue, Intelligence and Shri C. L. Beri, Assistant 
Collector of Customs and Central Excise, New Delhi, 
appeared on behalf of the Customs'." 

2.68. When the Committee expressed surprise that the Directar 
of Revenue Intelligence and an Assistant Collector should have been 
made to face a galaxy of leading barristers, the witness stated that 
the system of adjudication was that the ad jud~ca t~ng  officer must 
look after the Department. He added: 

"But this is the procedure. Otherwise, if you want to have 
a full-fledged court or a tribunal to discuss the matter. 
then the C~ve rnmen t  can take a separate dec~slon." 

2.69. The Commit:ee asked how the Government couid become 
so complacent as to leave the matter in the hands of ufficinls, however 
competent they might be, when all the parties concerned could think 
it fit to employ leadlng barristers at a colossal cos!. The Chairman, 
Central Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"There 1s no departmental representative at all Sou hear 8 
party and then you are supposed to read all the records 
and give a decision yourself." 

He added tha! so far as the Appellate Board was concerned, thcy 
had impartially decided what was the correct position. H e  statcd 
further: 

"The same thing is there when you take the original aMc. 
The Collectors come across so many infringrmenta. If 
their time is ta be taken up, then they will have to a p  
a regular court and they will censc to function in W 



capacity. They are functioning as quasi-judicial officers. 
If you run i t  as formal tribunal or if you run i t  as a court, 
then, you have to call so many people. For instance, we. 
are enforcing the import trade control r egu la t i ons fo r  
the sake of argument. You have to call so many witnes- 
sess, so many experts, from the CCIE and RBI and so on. 
Now, the Act does not envisage that because it will stand 
in the way. In the case of indirect taxation, the goods are 
lying in the docks. The Act says that the appellate autho- 
rity may af ter  giving an opportunity to the appellant to 
be heard-I believe the Income tax wording is quite 
different because they are appellate and tribunal authori- 
ties a t  the same time-if he so desires, make such further 
enquiries as he may think necessary and pass such orders 
as he thinks fit. This august Committee can certainly 
recommend that these things are becoming outmoded. that 
there should be separate regular courts and that the pro- 
ceedings and appellate actions and all that should he 
separately done. That is a separate issue. But, as at 
present, there is a ready, rough and quick justice which is 
being met. If there are lawyers on both sides, then, it is 
like a court. The customs authorities cannot forget about 
the files, whether it is for the department or for the appel- 
lant. They have to go through each and every file and 
they have to go through whatever facts are on record. 
This is how the system functions. Otherwise, you will 
become bound by a11 sorts of things." 

2 70 The Commlttce dcslrud t o  know how many of the officers 
of the Customs and Central E x c w  Departments, who had tried 
cascs or apptbarcd on behalf of the Department. had legal quallfica- 
lions ant] backgrrwnd The 3lin1s:ry of Fmance (Department of 
Rcvenuc and Insurance) stated In wrl:tt>n note. 

"Legal qualification is not one of the conditions of rerru~tmcnt  
to the varlous scrvices under the Customs and Central 
Excise Dcpartrnent. Some of the officers in the depart- 
ment arc. however, legally qualified." 

2.71. The Finance Sccretury stated in this connection during evi- 
dence : 

"I would only mention that so far as these provisions for appeal: 
etc, are concerned, that is laid down by statute and there 
IS the necessary statutory backing for that purpose. So, I 
thought I was in order :o call these proceedings quasi-jut%- 



5 1  
cia1 I would also mention that we are faced with a com- 
pletely opposite sort of demand by the public. They feel 
that the balance is tilted very much in favour of the depart- 
ment when these quasi-judicial bodies look into the matter 
and there is a constant demand for setting up tribunals on 
the lines of the income-tax tribunals instead of having ap- 
peals and revisions heard by the Board. The argument put 
forward is that these of3cers who hear these appeals are 
o5cers of the Revenue Department and they cannot disso- 
ciate themselves entirely from revenue functions and to 
that extent the public at least feels that the balance is til- 
ted against them and in favour of the department. This 
also I would submit for the consideration of the Committee 
that the officers who were hearing these appeals as Mem- 
bers of the Board, or sometimes the appeals are even heard 
by the Finance Secretary have some knowledge of customs 
law and procedures, and to that extent it is expected that 
they will be much more receptive to the pleadings of ?he 
various parties and would not be that extent require ad\.ice 
and guldance by lawyers. However. if the Public Accounts 
Committee were to feel that in important cascs there 
should be representation of the Government's case b!' 
lawyers. we ~sould certainly welcome such a lccornrncn- 
dation and i t  might be useful.'' 

2.72. The Committee desired to know the nature of the informativn 
system built up by Government regarding smuggling of gold intr.1 
I n d a .  The Chairman, Central Board of. Excise and Customs stated: 

"We have the intelligence cells in the customs houses and 
Central Excise Collecturatc% who may be located at the 
ports or depending upon the importimcc of the area. 
wherever they may be located. Apart from that, we have 
Directorate of Revenue Intelligence which collects infor- 
mation from the various Collectorates and customs housc:~ 
and it has also its own information. Further, it gathers 
information from abroad and as and when necessary, i t  
feeds information to the various units for action in this 
regard or for keeping a watch. That is approximately the 
system we follow." 

2.73. Subsequently. in a wntten note furnished to thc Committee 
explaining the information system built up Government for pre- 
venting smuggling into India and the arrangements for coordmating 
the  efforts of various individuals/organisations, the Ministry of 
Finance (Department of Revenue and Insurance) stated in a written 
note: 



*The Directorate of Revenue Intelligence functions as the 
Central Intelligence Organisation for the coordination of 
all anti-smuggling activities in the country. Its chief 
functibn is the collection, collaltion, dissemination of 
intenigence relating to smuggling and tax evasion. The 
Directorate maintains liaison with allied agencies in India 
and abroad for this purpose. Oversease liaison is main- 
tained directly with the agencies concerned as well as 
through Interpol. This arrangement has contained even 
after the Directorate was placed under the Cabinet Sec- 
retariat (Department of Personnel). 

All the Aeld formations under the Central Board of Excise and 
Customs are required to send intelligence reports in prcs- 
cribed forms in respect of information received by them 
on smuggling, Foreign Exchange Regulation Act viola- 
tions, under-in~voicing/over-invoicing e:c. This intelli- 
gence is properly indexed and pursued by the Directorate 
by issuing prompt instructions to the field formation, 
under the Central Board of Excise and Customs as  ell 
as to their zonal offices. The main sources of information 
to the field formations under Central Board of Excise and 
Customs arc informers, anonymous and pseudonymcus 
sources, reports from other Government agencies (bc:h 
Central and States). 

For coordinating the efforts of the various indi\iduals/nrgani- 
sntions. the post of D.G. (RILQI) was created in 1969 to 
liaise the activities of the three Directorates v i t ,  D.R.I., 
Directorate of Enforcement and Directorate of Inspectisn 
(Income-tax). 

The D~rectorntc also collects useful intclligence through over- 
seas sources and also keep liaison with C.B.I. (EOFY) 
for the purpose. Continuous coordination is also mair?- 
tained with the B.S.F. and Police at the border states for 
collection of information etc. The Ministry of Home 
Affairs and thc D.G., Civil Aviation respectively consul: 
the Directorntc for grant of visas to suspect foreig~ers 
and clearance of persons applying for flying training. The 
Directorate also in turn approaches the passport authori- 
ties far refusal of passport facilities to smugglers and also 
sends their recommendations to the D.G. Shipping regard- 
ing the crew of Indian nationality involved in smuggling 
for cancellation their CDCdRegistration No. etc. 



The Directorate also participates in headquarters and zonal 
coordination committees through which i t  maintains co- 
ordination in respect of various cases. I t  also exchanges 
useful information with the Interpol Secretariat through 
ICPO and ESCAP on matters connected with infringe- 
ment of Customs law etc." 

2.74. The Committee asked what were the reports sent by the 
ofacials posted in London, Kuwait and other places to watch and 
report on the movement of Gold, in 1967, during the relevant period. 
The Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs stated: 

"I do not think that at that stage, these officers were yet 
posted. I have not got the dates. But sometime around 
1970, as far as I can recollect, they got posted abrood. 
There are three places, London, Kuwait and Hong Kong." 

2.75. At the instance of the Committee the Ministry of Fina1:ce 
(Department of Revenue and Insurance) also furnished copies of 
a writ petition and rejoinder filed by the then Director of Revenue 
Intelligence against the Union of India in the matter of his transfer 
from the post of Director of Revenue Intelligence, promotion. The 
petition makes interesting reading, a few extracts from which are 
reproduced in Appendix VIII. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.76. Going through the entire proceedings of what has come to 
be known as the 'BOAC Gold Smuggling Case', the Committee are 
left with the impression that there had been a good deal of effort 
on the part of the high officials in finding out technical arguments 
in favour of BOAC. In the appeal proceedings, evidence was admit- 
ted in the shape of affidavits, bank statements, balance sheets, etc. 
and the Committee find that the appellate proceedings took on almost 
the clour of Original Side proceedings with extensive exami- 
nations and cross-examinations. While there is nothing irregular in 
law about this, because under Section 128 of the Customs Act, the ap- 
pellate authority is not bound to follow the provisions of the Civil 
Procedure Code, the Committee feel that it was rather out of the 
ordinary that such extensive examination was held at the appellate 
stage and that attempts were being made to spot loopholeg in tbe  
departmental evidence. In fact, the Committee are distressed to 
learn that at one stage, the Director of Revenue Intelligence had 
b protest that the cross-examination was making a departmental 

witness nervous. 



277. Prima facie, itr w o d d  appear that in view of tbe publicity 
t he  case had attracted and the requests of the British Government 
t o  expedite the case there had been an enxiety on the part of the 
Central Board of Excise and Customs to And arguments to favour 

6 BOAC, despite the fact that the Director of Revenue Intelligence, 
the Collector of Central Excise, Delhi and the Ministry of Law had 
held that there had been a violation by BOAC of the provisions of 
the Reserve Bank of India notification which prescribe the condi- 
tions under which bullion can be carried in transit through India. 
The Committee find tbat the Joint Secretary of the Ministry of Law 
was even positive in his mind that no court would give the benefit 
of doubt to BOAC. 

2.78. The Committee are also of the opinion that the Board of 
Appeal had not properly appreciated the ratio of the judgement of 
the Supreme Court in the case of 'State of Maharashtra Vs. Mayor 
Hans George' reported in A I R  1965 as SC-722. This was an impor- 
tant judgclncnt in  whi,.ll thc notification issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India under Stwtir)!~ U(1) of th:. Foreign Exchange Regula- 
tions Act had come i n  for  judicial scrutiny. In that case, the Corn- 
niittee find that one of the important judgments on the doctrine of 
absolute or strict li:ihili(y w a s  pronou~rccd. The Supreme Court 
had held that, vvrn i f  t i ~ c * ; ~  h:i.- heen all unintrntional violation of 
the Reservr Bank oZ I r r t l i ; ~  r~*yu!:ttion~, s u c h  a violation would he 
punishat~le and a plt:a of lack of fraudulant intention would not 
prcvriil. Thr Comnit1c.t: are, however, di!.tressed to note that, in 
the BOAC case, this pcjint h!ld h:.cn rornpletely sidetracked in the 
Board's nppc~llate order \vht.n i t  wid th:~t that case was distinguish- 
ahlc on facts from the BOAC rnsc. 

2.79. It is also not very clear to the Committee whether Section 
30(3) of the CII ,+om\ .2rt rc.Iatinc: to the production of manifest fnr  
imported :rood, would iipply at all to a violation of the Foreign 
Euchangc~ 1iegul:itiorw Art. 'rhr Committee also find that Section 30 
of the Act deal4 with the delivery of import manifest and docs not 
dcal with trnrl4iipmcnt tnunife*t, while the Reserve Bank of India 
notification den14 w it11 tranihipment manifest. Therefore. e \  en 
assuming that the provisious of the Customs Act could be invoked 
for dcnling with n caw under the Foreign Eschange Regulations 
Act. the Con~mittce ilre inrliat*d to take the view that Section 3n(3) 
of the Customs Act wuuld not bc appropriatr in the circumstances 
of this cosc. Infuct, tho Bonrd in it5 uppellate order did not also 
express m y  ratcgoricrrl opinion whether the description in the mani- 
fest was incorrect or incomplctc. The Committee feel that the appli- 
cability of Section 30 of the Customs Act to this case should be exn. 



mined afresh in consultation wlth the Attorney Qeneral and a 
further report submitted to the Committee in this regard. 

2.80. The Committee also find from the evidence that no proper 
request had been made by the local offlcer of the BOAC for amending 
the manifest. Only a casual enquiry appears to have been made t o  
the Customs officials at Palam Airport which, at the time of hearing 
by the adjudication officer, was sought to be interpreted as a reqnegt 
for amendment of the manifest. When the Board considered the  
appeal, the position was curiously improved by taking a fresh am- 
davit on this point. 

2.81. The BOAC case had raised the following interesting ques- 
tions at the time of investigations by the Directorate of Revei~ue 
Intelligence: (a)  whether BOAC was carrying on a rq t - l a r  activity 
of smuggling gold in collusion with South African parties or bullion 
brokers of London; (b)  if BOAC was not itself engaged in smilggling. 
did it aid and abet the London bullion brokers or any othcr party 
in smuggling gold into India? and (c) the identity of the legal owners 
of the gold, particularly of the consignment destined to Macao, since 
the consignors were stated to be only bullion brokers atid the con~ig- 
nee was also a company in which the consignor had 40 per cent inte- 
rest. 

2.82. The Committee, however, find that though the Director of 
Revenue Intelligence had wanted to proceed abroad with n view to 
establishing the true ownership of the gold, this hnd not been con- 
sidered necessary. Such an investigation, in the opinion of thc Coin- 
rnittee, could have provided clues to the various missing links in the 
case. The invtstigation proposed by the Director of Rcvenur Intclli- 
gence assumed greater irnportancc in view of the significant fact ?hilt 
BOAC had been carrying large quantities of gold from 1,ondon 
through India, in the bdse  of 'Metal I" or 'Metal bar V '  to t!ongkong. 
which is a vulnerable spot in the East for smuggling ac t iv i tk ,  spcb- 
cially gold for illegal entry into India, and that hetwccu ,lpril and 
August 1967, as large a quantity as 5,382 kilograms of gold had pnswd 
through Indm. 

2.83. Besides, a number of ernployecs of BOAC had alro hecn ap- 
prehended prior to this seizure in 1967 carrying contruhrrnd gold 
into India and the investigations of these cases had rcsdted in the 
dismissal of 90 employees. Tbe Committee are inclined to think that 
it would have been difficult for so many employees of BOAC ,to have 
indulged in smuggling of gold into India without the tacit support of 
people in very high positions. In this context, it should also be home 
in view that smuggling rackets are organised in the mast dubious 



ways and that there is always more to i t  than what meeta the eye.. 
The Committee are, therefore, unable to understand why the Diredor- 
of Revenue Intelligence had not been permitted to pursue hi line of 
investigations. This needs to be explained. 

2.84. Under these circumstances, the Committee are inclined tc? 
take the view that the appellate decision was a matter dictated bj 
expediency. Otherwise, the Committee are unable to understand the 
reasons for Government not testing the decision in a court of law 
which could have resolved a number of legal doubts thrown up in 
this case. No attempts had also been made to consider the case in 
revision under Section 131(3) of the Customs Act. Now that the 
period of one year from the date of the appellate order prescrihed for 
revision is over, the matter will necessarily have to be treated as 
closed. The Committee are, however, extremely dissatisfied with the 
manner in which this case has heen handled by the Central Board 
ol Excise & Customs. The Committee desire that responsibility should 
be fixed under advice to them. 

2.85. Apart from the legal aspects of this particular case. one as- 
pect of tlic case compels the immediate consideration of the Cornrnit- 
tcc: Admittedly gold has been flown from London to Macao. It is 
not unlikely that the practice still continues. Since Macao is only 
a smull islct, the Co~nmittcr are certain that it would not be in a 
position to absorb c\cn a fraction of the gold that is being regularly 
flown into thc territory. The ohvious inferelice that the Committee 
cnn draw i s  that Macao is n ncrve centrc for smuggling operations 
and lhcre is every likelihood of the gold bars being melted into 
small biscuits and hmufiglcd mainly into India. In this contcst the 
C'onimittue also understand that China itself makes large purchaser; 
of gold in the London bullion market and the Chinese price of gold 
was not nttractivr cno~:gh lor gold smugglers. Therefore, the poesi- 
bility of most of thc gold that goes to Macao coming back to India 
throrlgh vnriou.; illepttl channels cannot at all be ruled out. Thc 
Cornrnittee would likc to know what concrete steps have been take11 
b y  Government to arrest such smuggling and what arrangements 
cxht  to prevcnt the illicit transport of gold from Macao to India. 

286. An offshoot of this question is the adequacy of our organi- 
sution for gatliering intelligrncc abroad. Considcring the vulurnp 
of under-invoicing, ovcr-invoicing, sm~+ggling and other econoniic 
evils ihnt go on in the country, the Committee are strongly nf the 
view thnt at important ports and nerve centres of smuggling ahroad. 
the Government shotlld build up an effective organisation to gather 



intelligence on these evils on sufficient incentive basis. The Com- 
mittee feel that merely by posting a handful of oScern at London 
s r  Kuwait or maintaining Liaison with overseas organisations with- 
ou t  corresponding results wodd not serve the objective the Com- 
mittee have in view. The Committee desire that this should he 
examined by Government immediately and positive steps taken to 
build a soud intelligence net work abroad. 

2.87. Yet another surprising feature that has come to the notice of 
.the Committee is that even in an important case like this one, Cov- 
ernment had not considered it  fit to utilise the services of qualified 
lawyers to present the Department's case. For instance, in the 
BOAC case, the Director of Revenue Intelligence and an Assistant 
Collector of Customs had been pitted against some of the Choicest 
legal talents in the country and abroad which, to say the least, 
is cruel on the part of the officers concerned. Though this is not, 
in any way intended to cast a doubt on the competence of the officers, 
the Committee feel that this is an extremely unsatisfactory arrnnge- 
ment. While the Comlnittec. take note of the fact that the system of 
adjudication requires that the adjudicating officer must look alter 
the Department, the Committee would, however, recommend that, 
a t  lcast in important cases, Government should he represented t ? ~  
competent legal experts. The Committee desire that this recommen- 
d?:i?n should b pro:t.ssed e-:pcditiously a r~d  necessary action taken 
to adequately safeguard the Governme:?t's interests. The CGm- 
mittee would await a further report in this regard. 

2.88. Jncide;z!nll:+.. a disconcerting fact that has been brought to 
the notice of the Committee during their examination of the case i s  
of topical interest and causes grave concern to the CommittcBe. The 
Cwnmittee find from a writ petition filed by the then Director of 
Revenue Intelligence against the Union of India in the matter of 
his promotion, etc. In the High Court of Delhi that his transfer from 
the post of Director of Revenue Intelligence had become the 'tahle- 
talk amongst smugglers.' The Committee are most distressed to 
note the manner in which the officer had been made to hand over 
charge of the post at  the airport. The writ petition also contains 
startling disclosures about the complicity of Government officihls with 
smugglers. 

2.89. Considering the far-reaching implications and serious nature 
af the allegations made by a responsible official of the Government, 
A& Committee desire that the various allegations contained in the 



writ petition should be investigated into immediately by an inde 
pendont agency and suitable action taken. The investigation now 
proposed by the Committee assumes particular importance in the 
context of the MISA operations now in force against the smugglers. 
The outcome of the investigation should be reported to the Com- 
mittee. 

NEW DELHI; JYOTIRMOY BOSU, 

April 26th, 1975 
Vaisakha 5,  1897 (S) 

Chairman, 

Public Accoutrts Committee. 



APPENDIX I 

Note on results of investigations in the case regc:,climl skitlire 
of go!d j r o ~ n  B.O.A.C. aircraft G-APKX on 15-6-1967 

Investpaticns in the above case have also been made by the 
Officers of the Collectorate of Customs and Central Excise, Delhi. A 
report on these investigations has been received in this Directorate. 
In order to avoid duplication, the results of investigations made by 
this Directorate are being summarised with reference to the report 
of investigation by the officers of the afore-mentioned Collectnrate. 

2. The following conclusions recorded in the investigation report 
of the officers of the Delhi Collectorate are endorsed by the Direc- 
torate. 

(i) The possibility of the aircraft having returned to Palam 
due to a genuine engine trouble cannot be ruled out; 

(ii) The possibility of aircraft returning due to uneven loading 
has to be ruled out;  

(iii) The seizure gold was not meant for Indian market. The 
possibility of this gold getting converted at Macall :nto 
bars of smaller sizes for being smuggled into 1ndl:i r i l p r c ~ t ,  

however, be ruled out; and 

(iv) The theory that the seized gold was intended fnr an air- 
dropping somewhere around Palam Airport is ~mterab le .  

3. With regard to the legal position about the grounds on which 
the gold can be alleged to have been smuggled into India. a r d  on 
few other legal issues the findings of the Directorate are as under:- 

(a) I t  cannot be held that the transit of cargo through Irdin 
to  Macau is banned under the Import and Expcrt (Control) 
Act; 

(b) The gold cannot be held to have been imported into India 
from South Africa. I t  cannot, therefore, be held that the 
importation of gold into India was prohibited on account of 
a ban on the importation of goods of South African origin 
into India; 



I may add that the conclusions referred to in  (a) and ( 5 )  
above have been reached in consultation with the Minis- 
try of Law and other authorities. 

(c) The gold appears to have been imported into India in 
contravention of the prohibition imposed under S x t i o n  
8(1) of the F.E.R.A. read with Notification No. 12(11)F. 11 
48, dated 25-8-1948 (as amended) and the Notification No. 
FERA. 208/62-RB dated 8-11-1962. Under the aforesaid 
Section and the no'tifica:ions the gold cannot he brnught 
lntn I n c h  c\ it11 fo! the purpcse of trazshipment or transit 
without being landed horn the carrying aircraft, unlesf: 
i t  is declared in the manifest for transit as same bottom 
cargo or as transhipment cargo. 

It  has to be determined whether the seized gold had bee? de- 
clared in the manifest lor transit on as for transhipment cargo. 

M/s. B. 0. A.  C. appear to argue that the seized gold had been 
declared in the manifest as 'Metal-V'. For determining whether this 
declaration in the manifest would amount to the dec la ra t i c~  of 
gold therein, i t  was examined whether M/s. B.O.A.C. and/or any 
other airline had at any time prior to the day on which the subject 
gold had been seized, informed the Customs authorities that if they 
found contents of any consignment included in th'e manifest de- 
clared ns 'Metal-V', they should understand that the con ten:^ are 
gold. It has been ascertained from :hc Airports at  Bombay. Cal- 
cutta, Madras and Delhi that the Customs Officers were never made 
aware oi the ahresnid position and thnz they were not in a pnsi:ion 
to conclude. on perusal of the declaration of 'Metal-V' jn any manifcst 
that this description Lvas referring to 'goid'. The literal meaning of 
'Metal-V' will have therefore to bc taken into account for conc!udi~~g 
whether the gold had been dcclarecl i,i the manifest. The  conclusion 
that the description 'Metal-V' on acccynt of its literal i n t e r p r e t ~ ~ i c n  
cannot be said to amount to dc!clxntic~n of goid is unavoidable in t!w 
light of certain instruciions contsiucd in thc Traffic Manual of AT/<. 
B.O.A.C. The relevant instructions lay donm that in the case of -.hip- 
ments of gold consigned to or in transit through India, gold should 
not be declared as 'Metal. These instructions imply that so far 
as the manifests for India are  concerned the description 'Metal V' 
therein will not cover gold. 

In the light of the above position, i t  is not surprising that some of 
the employees of MIS. B.O.A.C. themselves are  found stating that it 
could not be possible for them to  conclude upon perusal of the  descrip- 



tion 'Metal V' that gold was being carried in the aircraft. In this 
connection, attention is invited to the ktatements of S/Shri R.. K. 
Sobti, N. S. P u . .  . . . ., A. K. Sharma. E. D. Khemchand, V. C. Allagh 
and V. K. Chopra. These statements form enclosure to the investiga- 
tion report of the ofticers of the Delhi Collectorate. 

From the investigation report of the officers of the Delhi Collecto- 
rate, i t  further appears that MIS. B.O.A.C. applied for transhipment 
of one of the consignments of gold and that Appraiser Shri M. J. 
Nambiar permitted'transhipment. The transhipment was not permis- 
sible in the light of the provisions of the Section and notifications 
referred to in paragraph 3 above. The Appraiser Shri M. J. Nambiar 
has explained that he allowed transhipment of one of the consign- 
ments of gold under the impression that the contents of the consign- 
ment were metal other than gold. The conduct and the explanation 
of Shri Nambiar establish that the Customs Officers were at No.. . . 
that the description 'Metal-V' could cover gold in a manifesc delivered 
to the authorities in India. 

The investigations reveal that the representatives of M/s. B.O.A.C. 
would not have brought it to the notice of the Customs authorities 

that gold was being carried in the aircraft if they had not felt the 
necessity for approaching the Customs authorities for arranging a 
.guard for the aircraft. In this context, an extract of the statement of 
Shri K. Santhanam, assumes significance. This extract is quoted 
below: 

"At about 06.00 hours on 15-9-1967 I was advised on telephone 
that there was metal on board by D/O Smith and I told him 
immedately to go on board and ensure that the metal was 

. intact and arrange for suitable guard and that I was procee- 
ding to the Airport immediately. I did not adi:ise him to 
let Customs know as myself was coming to the Alrpnrt to 
deal with the matter." 

Tlhe above extract reveals that Mr. I<. Santhanam was conscious 
that from the words 'Metal-V' appearing in the manifest Cus!oms 
could not come to the conclusion that there was gold on board. 

It  is difficult to come to the conclusion that the gold was described 
a s  'Metal-V' in the case of this particular aircraft through a clerical 
error. At no time in the years 1966 and 1967 any consignmen! from 
London is declared to be consignment of gold in the manifest. I t  
is not the case of MIS. B. 0. A. C. that in the years 1966 and 1967 
no gold was lifted from London by the aircraft of M/s. B. 0. A. C 
Something which is found to have been a regular practice during 
a period of two years will defeat the contention that in a particular 



case, i t  should be held to be a clerical error. There is no evidence 
that any authority in M/s. B. 0. A. C. had objected to the regular 
practice, although it was inconsistent with the instructions in the 
Traffic Manual. 

At no stage during the investigations by the Directorate any 
attempt was found being made by M/s. B. 0. A. C, to request for 
amendment of the manifest on the ground that there has been an 
obvious clerical error. Perhaps, the legal advice to M/s. B. 0. A. C., 
whose attorney flew from London, was against making of a request 
for the amendment of the manifest. The fact that M/s. B. 0. -4. C.'s 
contention is that the description 'Metal-V' should be considered to 
be declaration for gold also leads to the conclusion that clerical 
error was not responsible for the description in the relevant manifest. 

It  is difficult to impute any motive for the non-declaration of gold, 
as explained above, in the relevant manifest. Motive, however, is 
not essential for determining whether the gold has been imported 
into the country in contravention of prohibition in force. The con- 
clusion that the aforesaid prohibition has been contravened appears 
to be inescapable. The absence of motive can be only a consideration 
in the matter of determining the quantum of fine and penalty. I t  
cannot be a criterion for determining whether offence itself has been 
committed. 

The plea that for security reasom gold was being declared as 
'Metal-V' is also untenable. Some of the Air Companies have been 
found to be declaring gold as gold in the manifest. Security con- 
siderations should have weighed with these Air Companies also. 
Further, MIS. B. 0. A. C. have stated after the seizure of the gold 
that they have now decided to declare gold in their manifests me- 
pective of the country where the manifests may have to be de!ivered 
to the Customs authorities. If the security reasons were weighty, 
there appears to have been no justifi,ation for MIS. B. 0. A. C. chang- 
ing their time-honoured practice. 

(d) Since in the circumstances mentioned hereinabove, the gold 
is held to have been imported into India in contravention o f  the 
prohibition under the I?. E. Regulations its export out of India even 
in the shape of transhipment would require the permission of the 
Reserve Bank of India. The export of the seized gold without such 
permission would be banned under Section 8(2) of the F.E.R. Act. 
If the Adjudicating OfRcer decided that the gold should be allowed 
to be taken to Hong Kong (in transit to Maccau) he should inlpose 
the condition that the permission would be accorded on production 
of permission of the Reserve Bank of India. 



(e) Since, in view of the foregoing reasons, it appears that the 
gold has been made liable to confiscat~oil on account of ai; act bf 

M/s. B.O.A.C., viz.. the non-declarat~on oi: gold in the manifest, 
they alone should be liable to personal penalty under Section 112(1; 
of the Customs Act. 1962. There appears to be no justification for 
imposing penalty on any other person under the Section. 

(f) In the aforesaid circumstances, the axcraft  is to be held to 
have been used in the transport of gold liable to confiscatiori The 
aircraft, therefore, appcars to be liable to confiscation under S ~ d i o n  
115(2) of the Customs Act. 1962. 

(g) Before t h e  gold was detected, the aircraft had taken  off from 
palam for its nes t  destination, B:lnglcok. An a t m n p t  to csport the 
gold ~r-ithout the permission of the R.B.I. appears therrfore tn h a w  
been made. The gold therefow is liable to confiscation under Seclion 
113(d) of the Customs Act, 1962, and M/s. B.0.A.C are liable to 
penalty under Section 114 of the Customs Act, 1962. 

4. Other points 

(i) The gold was seized from M/s. B.O.A.C. and for all material 
purposes, therefore, M/s. B.O.A.C. are to be deemed the owners of the 
gold. Any other person who wants to makc any claim in respec? of 
the  seized gold should do so only through M/s. B.O.A.C. Howciw-, 
a n  intimation to such other persons who appear to be interested in  
t h e  gold, can be sent so that if they so desire, they can also make 
submissions against the confiscation of the  gold by the Customs 
authorities in India. 

(ii) In the course of investigations by the Directorate, i t  appeared 
to be a material point whether the ownership of the gold at the inate- 
rial time it had been seized vested in a Macau firm. It  was contended 
that at  the aforesaid material time M/s. Mocat~a & Goldsmid Ltd, 
were the owners of the gold and that the gold was get to  bc sold to 
the  Macau Party. The weight of the evidence appears to be in favour 
of the conclusion that the Macau part'y had b w ~ r n c  thtx owner of the 
gold a t  the time of its seizure. The coriclusion is based un the fact 
that before the  gold was exported from England M/s. Mocatta & 
Goldsmid Co Ltd. had made declaration in a statutory form to the 
effect that to the h s t  of their knowlcdge the owners of the gold were 
M/s. Campanhin Dt: Desen\wlvimento Commercial, Macau. Since 
however, i t  is not material for the purposes of adjudication to dcter- 
mine whether the ownership has been transferred to the Macau firm, 
this point is not being dealt with at' length. 



(iii) The Directorate disagrees with the conclusion that the rep- 
resentative of M/s. B.O.A.C. revealed to the Customs authorities that 
there was gold on board the aircraft only at the time of making ap- 
plication for transhipment of gold. The facts disclose that the reve- 
lation was made to the Customs authorities much earlier. The true 
facts appear to have been stated in the report made soon after the 
seizure. 

( iv) In  a day or 'two, the Directorate would be fo rward~d  a show 
cause notice for the cnnsiderlition of the Collector or Customs and 
Central  Excise, Delhi. He may kindly issue suitable instructims so 
tha t  the vetting and the issue of the show causc notices are attended 
to  p ro~np t lg .  

Sd/- S. K. SRIVASTAVA, 
Director. 



APPENDIX I1 
Copy of order passed by the Collector of Central Excitia, Delhi 

CENTRAL EXCISE COLLECTORATE, DELHI 
C. No. VIII (Hqrs) 10/24/67/1037 New Delhi, 15th Feb., 1968 
PASSED BY SHRI R. PRASAD, COLLECTOR OF CUSTOMS AND 

CENTRAL EXCISE, NEW DELHI 

ORDW (ORIGINAL) NO. 2/68 DATED 15-2-1960 

This copv is granted free of charge for the private use of the per- 
son to whom it is issued. 

2. An appeal against this order lies to the Central Board of Excise 
and Customs, New h l h i  within three months of its date. The appeal 
should bear a Court Fee Stamp of Rs. 4/- (Rupees four only) and 
must be accompanied by:- 

(a) this copv or another copy of this order bearing a Court Fee 
Stamp of 50 paisa as plpscribed under Schedule I .  item 6 
of the Court Fee Act, 1870; and 

(b) a copy of the appeal. 

3. Any person desirous of appealing against this decision or order, 
shall, pending the appeal deposit the duty demanded or the penalty 
levied therein and produce proof of such payment alongwith the 
appeal, failing which the appeal is liable to be rejected for non-compli. 
ance with the pmvfsions of section 129 of the Customs Act, 1962. 

SUBJBCT:--Seizure of Gold Bullion from B.O.A.C. Aircraft: Contw- 
ven8ion of provisions of Customs Act and Foretgn Ex- 
change Regulation Act: 

I. Briq' facts of tke case: 

B.O.A.C. h rc ra f t  (GAPFK) arrived at Palsm Airport on its 
routine flight from Landon on 14th September, 1967 at about 10.35 
hours (local time). After the usual ground half and after disembark- 
ing the passengers and cargo for Delhi, the plane took off for Bang- 
kok the next port of call, a t  about 11.20 hours. The Aircraft returned 
back Co Palam at about 13.30 hours with reported engine trouble. 011 
arrival at Palam, it was taken to bay No. 33 for checking and repairs 
by the engineering staff of MIS. B.O.A.C. It remained there througk- 
out the night. 



2. On 15th September, 1967, MIS. B.O.AC., finding that the aircraft 
would not be in a position to leave early, started making alternate 
arrangements for the passengers and cargo on board the aircraft. At 
about 11 00  hours Shri K. Santhanam, Acting Airport Manager of M/s. 
B.O.A.C. at  Palam approachd the Assistant Collector, Customs, 
Palam and the Inspector on duty for making suitable arrangements 
to guard the aircraft as i t  was carrying a large quantity of Gold. 
The concerned Customs Officers thereupon checked the manifest of 
the aircraft. They discovered that there was no mention of any 
'Gold' in the manifest. 

3. On enquiry, the officials of M/s. B.O.A.C. explaimd that the 
term 'Metal V' and 'Metal Bar V' appearing in the Transit Manifest 
stood for 'Gold'. However, they could not quote any authority. per- 
mission or order of the Government of India allowlng them to declare 
'Gold' in their manifest as 'Mf.tal V' or 'Metal Bar V'. Even the 
B.O.A.C. Traffic Manual contains a clear directive (based on Gov. 
ernment of India's instructions) that Gold should he manifested as 
'Gold' and not as 'Metal' when it is consigned to or is in transit 
through India. I t  has also been clearly mentioned in the B.O.A.C. 
Manual that declaration of 'Gold' as 'Metal' is not permitted by the 
Customs Authorities in India. 

TI. Seizure 4 3 e- 

4. Bringing of gold bullion into India without a permit from the 
Reserve Bank of India from any place outside India is prohibited 
under Section 8(1) of Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. 1947 read 
with Notification No. 12 (11) F 1/48, dated 25th August. 1948, as am- 
ended, and read with explanation No. 8 ( i )  of Foreign Exchange Regu- 
Iat~on Act. I-Iuwc\w, in Government of India's Notification No. 2081 
62-RB dated 8th November, 1962, transit of. gold through India i s  
permissible subject to the following conditions:- 

(i) provided that gold in question is not removed from the 
ship or conveyance in which it is being carried except for 
the purpose of transhipment; and 

(ii) provided further that it is declared in the manifest for 
transit as same bottom cargo or as transhipment cal-go. 

5. According to the manifest uresented bv M,'s. R.O.A.C., the 
aforementioned aircraft had the following two consignments on board 
which had been declared as 'Nletal V' and 'Memi Bar V!. ---- _- _ . _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ ~ - - .  I . - .  

S1. No. Air unp Bill NO. No. of Nstvr-e of goods 
p e w -  



The consignment a t  Serial No. 1 consisted of 96 gold bars. Each 
bar bore Serial Numbers as also the name of the South 
African refinery (Rand Refinery Ltd ) .  Thc fineness of 
the gold 9951-9960 was marked on each bar. Each bar  
also bore the inscript!on 'hlocatta and Goldsmid Ltd., 
London Bullion brokers". 

The cnnsip~ment  ;1t Se:.ial Number 2 consistecl of I!) liars of 
gold of one Kg. each. Each bar bare markings "Engclhard". 
Its purity n.as marked ns 999.0. 

6. Brin5:ir.p in of this gold into India. tvithoil: rnar~ifesting i t  as 
'Goid'. bvc:!'ed ~'lol2:ion c.f th!: prcqjsions of F;,tifications issued 
under Section S ( l i  3f Foreicn E\ :chnge I{cpl; t t i :~n Act. 1947, re- 
ferred to aboiTe Attempt to :;:L;c> i i t l !  this gold from I:'alam ( l n d ~ a j  
on 14th September. 1967 aiso ~ r i \~ l i . c .d  violation of the pro\*isions P! 

section 8(-3\ of Foreign Exchange Regulation Ac!. 19.1; as no gcncr;d 
or special permission of the R e s e r ~ . ~  Bank of India had been obtained 
in  respect of t h e  aforesaid gold. Thcse 1.iolations sttraoted the  pro- 
visions of Section 11 of thc Customs Act. 1962, read w i t h  Sections 
23A and 23B of Foreign Exchange Repulation Act, 1947. In view 
of these ~ o n t r a ~ ~ c n t i o n s ,  the aforementioned consignments of gold 
were seized by Palam Custnms for action under Customs Law. 

7. The aircraft carrying the aforesaid consicnmcl~ts of gold bullion 
was also liable to confiscation under the  provisions of the Custom? 
Act. 1962. However. it was a l l o ~ ~ d  to proceed to destination on M/s. 
B.O.A.C. undertaking to execute a bond as required by the  adjudicat- 
ing authority. 

111 Investigation: 

8 Investigat~ons pertaming to the  gold se~zeci and the a ~ r c r a f t  
were made by the ~ t a f f  of Pnlam Customs Invesrlgatlon; In this case 
were also conduc:t.d hs the IJm~ctora tc  of Rei'enuc l n t e l l l~encc  
These lnvestlgatlons revealed the followng -- 

(2) M/s.  E.0.A.C. had deliberately supprc.o:;r;cd the fact of the 
presence of such a large q u n n t i t v  of Gnld c:n b0:rrd ~ h c  air- 
craft  in question, They did not mention enythiny: about 
the l , ~ ~ ~ ~ n ~ e  Ci~ld bullicrn c ~ n  thc :lirtrzfr to  P a h m  Cus- 
toms nn 14th September, 1967 c i th t r  whcn the aircraft  
arrived or \vhen it took off on its schcdulcd onward flight. 



Even on the return of the aircraft to Palam, with reported 
engine trouble, the fact of Gold being on board was not dis- 
closed to any Customs Officer. 

( 5 )  They approached the Customs Officers L r  Palam only when 
thcrc was no eicape When they found that transhlpment 
was ~nevltablc and when they reallserf that in the process 
of transhipmcnt the presence of 'Gold' o n  board the alrcraft 
was  bollnd t o  hc  :liwovcrcd, they dlscl )ced the presence of 
gold to Customs 

(4) M/s. I3.CI.A C. hnd no intention whatsoever of disclosing to 
Palam Clustoms the prcscnct of Cold on board :he aircraft. 
But for  t h o  abnvrmentioned unexpc~ctcd developme~t;  the 
gold would Iia'ic! :::jne out of India. i n  contr:lvanticin of the 
cauntrp'~, regulations referred to above and without the 
knowledge of Indian Customs. 

(5) The aircraft in question actually took of7 from Falam for 
Bangkok with this said gold on board. I t  would have gone 
to its destination but for the engine trouble, M/s. BOAC 
did not declare this gold to Customs till 15th September, 
1967, under the impression that the same aircraft may 
still proceed on its flight after repairs. 

(6) Significance of the terms 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V' appear- 
ing in the manifests was neither explained to Customs nor 
was it known to them. Palam was the only Indian Port  
touched by this aircraft. Once the aircraft took off from 
Palam there was no possibility of Indian Custom; even 
knowing the fact of transit of gold through India. 

IV. Issue of show cause notice: 
9 In view of the above, M/s.  R.O.A.C. were asked to show cause, 

vide this office letter C. No. VIII (Hqrs) 10/24/67/2893--98, dated 28th 
November. 1967 as to wh!. the seized gold should not be coofiscated 
under Section 111 of the Customs Act. 1961, Thry u w c  afso asked 
to show cause as to  why the aircraft, which carri18.l :he snid gold, be 
not confiscated under Scction 115(9 )  ibid. They were fxrther asked 
t o  as to wh!. I ~ c ~ n a l t y  sholtld not bc imposed on them under 
Section 112 ( i )  and 114 (i) of the Customs A c t ,  1962. In  the Show 
Cause Memo t h e  w r c  ;)Isn asked to prodi~rc 811 evidence in support 
of their defence. 

10 The consignment cons~stinp cif 9ti b ~ r s  of goid was consigned 
by M/s. Mocetta & Goldsmid I.td Bulliun Brokers. London to MIS. 
Commercial Investment Co Hongkong fnr onward transm.;sion to 
M 's Companhia be 1)cscnvolvimcnto Cc~mmrzcinl. Macau. The 
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other consignment of 10 Kgs. of guld was consigned by the Bank of 
Neva Ccotia, Toronto (Canada) to the Bank of Ryukus, Okinawa 
(Japan). Since all these parties were concerned, in some way or the 
other, with the gold seized, copies of Show Cause Memo, issued to 
M/s. B.O.A.C., New Delhi, were also endorsed to them. They were 
asked to submit their explanations with regard to the seized gold, if 
t h y  so desired. 

V. Reply to show cause Memo by M l s .  B.O.A.4 
11. In their reply dated 11th Decem4ber, 1967 to the Show Cause 

Memo issued to them, M/s. B.O.A.C. took up the following defence: - 
(1) The cargo on the aircraft is covered by two documents vir. 

(i)  manifest and (ii)  Consignment Note. Manifest is a 
summarised list whereas the Consignment Note contains 
full details of the cargo. In the consignment notes in res- 
pect of both the shipments, the cargo was mentioned as 
'Gold'. The details of the gold were available in the Air- 
way Bill. They had no mcrlafide intention. 

(2) Letter 'V' stands for "Valuable'. The Customs should be 
aware of it. In case there was any do!~bt they (B.O -4.C.) 
should have been asked to explain its true significance. 

(3) The expression 'Metal' has been used by MIS. B.O.A.C. for 
'Gold' for some time past. Similar manifests had been 
scrutinized bv the Customs earlier. 

(4) Since November. 1965. the manifests are prepared on tabu- 
lator machines. The officers responsible for preparing the 
manifest? were not familiar with the details of B.O.A.C. 
Traffic Manual. The failure was not wilful. Before intro- 
duction of cornputor system in their London office, they 
used to show 'Gold' in their manifests as 'Gold'. This 
practice is still in existence in respect of manifests in the 
preparation of which cornputors are not used. 

(5) The ownership of 96 bars of gold seized vested i n  MIS. 
Mbcatta and Goldsmid Ltd.. London. M/s. Companhia de 
Desenvolvimento Commercial, Macau, are not the owners. 
Sale is finalised a t  Hongkong only after the arrivai of the 
gold and a t  an agreed price on the date of sale. 

(6) The gold and aircraft were not liable 1.0 cc~nf i~a t ion  simply 
because of inadequate description of the 'gold' as 'Metal V' 
or  '&fetal Bar V' jn the manifest. B.0.A.C. should have 
b w n  given the benefit of Section 30(3) of Cusbms Act, 
1582, the gold being in transit a5 same huttom cargo. They 



should have been allowed to amend lhls manifests as re- 
quested by their Airport Manager, Shri K. Santhanam. 
They requested release of the gold and the arcraft; after 
amending the manifests suitably. 

(7 )  MIS. B.O.A.C. have, for all these years been very co-~pera- 
tive with the Indian Crovernment autiioritie; in general, 
and in particular they have been corporating in preventing 
and investigating the liiicit entry of gold into India. 

(8) They requested that the Show Cause Memo bc discharged, 
the gold seized be released and the Security Bond furnish- 
ed by them for the production of the ajrcraft be cancelled. 

VI. Replies to Show Cause Memo by other parties: 

12. As stated earlier, copies of Show Cause Memo were endorsed 
to the two consignees in the East. A copy of the same was also en- 
dorsed to the Macau party, MIS. Companhia dc 1)esenvolvimento 
Commercial for whom the consignment consisting of 93 bars of gold 
was meant. All the parties acknowledged receipt of the Show Cause 
Memo. These acknowledgements were obtained with the help of M/s. 
B.O.A.C. 

13. In respect of the larger consignment MIS. ?,lacat:n & Goldsmid, 
London Bullion Brokers, claimed oxnership. It upas explained that 
the ownership of this gold could not be passed on to Hongkong or 
Macau firm until its arri\-a1 at  Hongkong. The two firms at Hong- 
kong and Macau did not say anything. They only acknowledged re- 
ceipt of the copy of the Show Cause Memo sent tc them. 

14. With regard to the smaller consignmcni oE I<gs of gold it 
was a bank to bank transaction. This transact~on hc,s been confirmed 
bv copirks of correspondence filed by hlls. B.0.A C 
VII. Arguinents advatzed during personal hearing: 

15. Opportunity for personal hearing was granted to hVs. B.0..4.C. 
During the hearing, they reiterated what they had already submitted 
in their reply to the Show Cause Memo. They particularly emphasis- 
ed the following points:- 

(1) The description of gold as 'Metal V' in the manifest should 
not be considered as misdeclaration but as inccmplete des- 
cription. All the detail. of the mnsigvnents were avail- 
able in the consignment notes. This omission was through 
inadvertance and error. I t  was because of cornputorisation 
of the manifests in their London Ofllce. 



(2) The was not described as 'gold' in the manifest for 
security reasons. This practice is prevalent throughout 
the world except in respect of consignmetlts meant for  
India. B.O.A.C. Traffic Manual clearlv provides that con- 
signments of gold for India should be described as 'gold' 
in the manifests. 

(3) The mistake was not such as to imply any avoidance of 
Government Revenue or loss of Custon~s duty.  The mis- 
take was purely technical. It was quite unitentional. 
There would have been no hinderance had the gold been 
described as 'gold'. 

(4) The B.O.A.C.'s past record in dealinq with Delhi Customs 
has been without any blemish. They have al l  along been 
co-operating with the Customs. They have also been com- 
plying with the Custom regulations strictly. They h a w  
already suffered considerable damage. The loss suffered by 
them is much more than what they rhould have sufi'ered 
for a genuine mistake. 

(5) Section 115(2) of the Customs Act. 1962 is not exclus~ve of 
Section 115 (1) .  In Section 115 (1) the circumstances in 
which a vehicle can be confiscated h3t.e been mentioned. 
Section 115(2) should he read with Sub-section (a) .  (b) .  
(c) and (d)  of Section 115(1). This section has tr, bc read 
as a whole and not in parts. 

(6) In para 12 of the Show Cause Notice, i t  ha; been emphasis- 
ed that according to Notification dated 8th November, 
1962 issued by the Reserve Bank of I n d i ~  i t  was necessary 
for B.O.A.C. to declarr the consignment uf  go!d in t h e  mani- 
fest as 'transit cargo' or 'same bottorn cargri'. It is clear 
that transit of go!d through India is permissibl? provided 
it is declared in the manifest as 'same bottom cargo' or 
'transit cargo'. In this case consignment was shown in the 
manifest. as 'same bottom cargo' in transit through India. 
Hence, the requirements of the Notification of the Reserve 
Bank of India dated 8th November, 1962 were mainly com- 
plied with. The consignment was declared in the manifest. 
The origin and destination were also mentioned. I t  was 
also clear from the  manifest that it was same bottom cargo 
intended for  transit through India. The cons ipment  was 
not meant for India. 



(7) B.O.A.C. sincerely regret the unintentional non-compliance 
with the country's regulations. B.O.A.C. hsve had every 
intention and they have taken adequate safeguards to en- 
sure proper compliance with the Customs regulations. In 
fact, they can do no better than to rcgret the mistake. 
Since this case, they have even gone tq the extcn: of am- 
ending treir own regulations for ccn.:ignrnent of gold des- 
patched to other parts of thc world. According to the 
amended regulations, all consignments ol gold are now be- 
ing shown in the manifests as 'gold', regardless oi destina- 
tion and the countries through vchich !hey arc transited. 
Hitherto, 'Gold' was described as '?Jclill V' for security 
reasons. 

(8)  B.0 .A .C .  are worldwide carriers and large number of 
consignments of gold are transited by them to difieren* 
countries of the world. The computnr was designed to 
deal with the rule rather than as expeption. Description 
gold as 'gold' was an exception for India only. The mi;- 
take was purely un-intentional. It is correctly attribut- 
able to the cornputor system. It is w r y  much regretted. 
Five copies of the manifest pertaining to the  year 1965 ori- 
ginating from London office have been filed. In all these 
manifests gold has been described as 'Gold' even thnugh 
it was in  transit throggh India. This i.: because at that 
time computor system had not been introduced in :he 
B.O.A.C.'s office. At the end of 1965, when computor sy+ 
tem was introduced gold was described in t h e  manifest as 
'Metal V' for all countries of the uvrld.  Indi?, should have 
been an exception but unfortunately it was  nor treated 
differently. 

VIII. Discussion: 

16. The main charge against I v l  s. B.O.A.C. is that they imported 
'Go!d' into India in contravention of the prohibition imposed mder 
Section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962 and Section S ( 1 )  of Foreign Ex. 
change Regulation Act, 1947 read with Notification No. 208/62 R.B. 
dated 8-11-1962, They are also charged with attempt t o  export the 
seized gold in contravention of the prohibition imposed under Sec- 
tion 8(2) of Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947 and Section 11 
of the Customs Act, 1M2. 

17. The charge is based on the fact that particulars given in the 
two manifests, relating to the two consignments of gold did not mect 
the requirements of Notification No. 208162-R.B, dated &11-62 issued 



b y  the Reserve Bank of India under Section 8(1) of the Foreign Ex- 
change Regulation Act, 1947. This Notification permits subject to the 
conditions mentioned therein, the bringing in of gold bullion into 
India when it is on through transit to a place outside the territory 
of  India, provided that i t  is not removed from the ship or the conw- 
yance in which it is being carried except for the purpose of trnnship- 
ment and providcd further that i t  is declared in the manifest fnr 
transit as same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo. In the case of 
both the consignments in question, the description recorded in the 
manifests was 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V' and ~ o t  as 'Gold', 

18. The plea put forth by M/s. B.O.A.C. that misdeclaration of 
gold in the manifest as 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V' in violation of 
Reserce Bank of Indla Notification was due to security reasons acd 
on account of introduction,of computors in their London Office is not 
tenable. T h ~ s  omission cannot be atributed to a clerical error. It is 
clear that the organisation of M/s. B.O.AC. was quite conversant 
with the requirements of the law of the country. The instructions 
contained in the B.O.A.C. Cargo Traffic Manual are  quite clear on 
o n  this point. 

19. It is strange that 'Security" factor weighed more with the 
B.O.A.C. than companliance of the law of the country. The 'Security' 
ground is not a cogent ground as all other Airlines, under similar cir- 
cumstances, have been complying with the requirements of Indm 
Law. They have been describing gold transited through India as 
'Gold' in their manifests. Compliance of the  pruvisio:;~ of the la:?' 
of the country in this case should not h a w  been subordinated by 
MIS. B.O.A.C. to the 'Security' factor. M!s. B . 0 .  .4 . C ,  state that thcv 
have now issued instructions to nlanifest go:d as 'Goid' in resptr!! Of 
ail con;ipmcnts transiting through all countries. 

This could have easily been dvne by them ear!jer. 

20. I find i t  hard to accept the plea that this was a clerical error 
due to the introduc~ion of computor system in their London office. I t  
was imperative on the part of MIS. B.O.A.C, to so arrange the r3m- 
pilation of the manifests that the requirements of the law of the 
country were not made secondary to any other consideration. Z do 
+-.-#t a--e;lt their contention that this was an unintentioal irregularity 
-or that i t  was a clarical error arising from cornputorisation of their 
cargo despatches from London office. 

21. With regard to misdgclaration, the evidence on record clearly 
indicates that at no time MIS. B. 0. A. C, thought it A t  to intimate 
to the Indian Customs authorities the significance of the terms 
'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V' appearing in their manifests. Even ln 



the present case, M s .  B. 0. A. C. came up with the explanation only 
on 15-9-1967, when they knew that the Customs were bound to find 
out the fact that gold was on board. 

22. It is significant that M,'s. B.O.A.C. never spoke a word about 
the presence of the gold in the aircraft, when it landed with gold on 
14-9-1967 and took off for Bangkoj Bankok after the usual ground 
halt. Rut for its return to Palam with engine trouble the gold 
would have been carried to its destination in contravention of the 
law of the country. The terms 'Metal V' or 'Metal Bar V' are  not 
being used exclusively for 'gold' as contended by M/s. B.O.A.C. 
In  the same manifest, in which contraband gold was described as 
'Metal V' a consignment of platinum was also manifested as 'Metal 
V'. I t  is clear that MIS. B. 0. A. C. describe any precious metal as 
'Metal V' in their manifests. Such declaration is not confined to 
gold alone as has been contended by them. 

23. M/s. B.O.A.C. have also contended that the manifest con- 
tains only brief description of goods carried and that the details are 
available in the relevant consignment notes which can be obtained 
on request. For consignments in transit the Air-lines fde only the 
manifests with the Customs. The consignment notes a r e  not made 
available to the Customs. Even in the instant case, as per evidence 
on record, the consignment notes were produced only when Palam 
Customs, had discovered that the gold had not been properly mani- 
fested as 'gold', as required by the regulations in force for consign- 
ments in transit through India. Their contention that the Customs 
authorities would have reasonably enquired if the exact meanings 
of the letters 'Metal' or 'V' were not clear to them and the?; would 
have then csplained their true significance to Customs is not accep- 
table. The manifests presented should be clear and complete. 
They should conform to the pi'cscribed regulations of the country. 
The l a ~ v  (loo!: riot pro\-ide for wrong or incorrect maniCcstation 
to bth fc!llonpc.ri t>y :in csp1an:)tion on dcm::nd. The cm?~.:;nn~e:!t 
notcs :ts nlrcndy s:nl!lr!. are not mad<> nvni1;ihlr t ; i  the  Customs 7.3 
a matter of routi:?e n: id  :IS s:lrh no rcliancc can I x  placed on them 
by the Dcpnrtmcnt 

24. The contel~t io~l  of h:/s. 2. 0. A.  C. that accorckng to the 
Notification dated 8-11-1962 issut?d by tile Reserve Bank of India it 
was necessary for Xl/s. B. 0. A. C. only to declare the consignment 
of gold in the ~nilnifcst as 'transit cargo' or 'same bottom cargo' js 
not tenable. A plain reading of the Notification indicates that gold 
has to be declared in the manifest as 'gold' and it cannot be d e c k e d  
as anything else. Mention of gold in the  manifest either as 'Metal V' 
or 'Metal Bar V' will not tentamount to compliance with the re- 
601 LS--8 



quirements of the Reserve Bank of India Notification. This is 
particularly significant when even consignments of Platinum and 
other metals are described in the manifest as 'Metal V'. Wilh 
regard to this matter, I hold that M/s. B. 0. A. C. did not comply 
with the  requirements of the Restrve Bank of India Notification 
dated 8-11-1962. 

25. Regarding their plea that there was no mal-intention on 
their part and that they did not knowingly-infringe the law of the 
country "mens rea" is not an essential ingredient of the offences 
under Section 8(1) of Foreigr. Eschange Regulation Act, 1947. I 
reply in this case on the SuprLnie Court Judgment in case of Ststt? 
of Maharashtra (appellant) Vs. Mayor Hans George (Respondent) 
reported as A.I.R. 1965-Supreme Court 722. In this case, Their 
Lordships held: 

"Mens rea" in the sense of actual know~cdge that act done is 
contrary to law is not an  essential ingredient of the 
offence under S. 8(1) read with S. 23(IA) of the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act, 1947". 

26. It  also do not accept their contention that as best the case 
could be treated as a case'of incomple~e manifestation or insuffi- 
cient description without any fraudulent intention. I reject their 
plea that the case should be treated as a casc falling undcr Sub- 
clause (3 )  of Section 30 of the Customs Act, 1962 and an-iendrn~:nt 
to the manifest be allowed. The c\.idence on record indicatca ' h a t  
it is a clear case of deiiberate mis-declaration c, i  a Ilui?,r. qicdi ,  1 i 

of gold in transit through India, in contravention of the p r o v l s i o ~ ~  
of Kotification KO. 208162-R.B. dated 8-11-62 issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India under Section 8(1) of Foreign Exchange Regulatrcn 
Act, 1947: read with Section 23A 2nd Section I1 ,of the Custom., 
Act, 1962. By attempting to esport this gold on 14-9-1967 from 
Palam (India) without permission from the Reserve Bank of India. 
M/s. B. 0. A. C. contravened the provisions of Scctwn t i ( 2 )  o f  
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947 read with Sections 23A and 
23B ibid and Section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962. 

27. With regard to the aircraft carrying the gold, the liability of 
confisca!iun of the said aircraft has been contested by MIS. B. 0. A. C. 
They have referred to the provisions of Section 115 of the Customs 
Act, 1962. I do not accept their plea that Section 115(2) is not 
exclusive of Section 115(1) ibid and that this Section has to be 
read as a whole and not as a part. The provisions of this Section 
make a mention of different situations under which a conveyance 
can he confiscated. Section 115(2) lays down the conditions under 



which any conveyance or animal used as a means of transportation 
in the smuggling of goods or in the  carriage of smuggled goods 
shall be liable to confiscation. The term smuggling is defined in 
the same Act as "Smuggling in relation to any goods means any 
act or omission which will render such goods liable to confiscation 
under Section 111 or 113 of the Customs Act, 1962". This being so, 
the aircraft carrying 'gold' in contravention of the provisions of 
Notification No. 208/62-H.B. dated 8-11-1962 is liable to confiscation. 

28. A firm of repute and starding of M/s. B. 0. A. C. enjoying 
iliternational status, is not expected and could not violate its own 
regulations. This wilful violation not only of the Customs Law of 
our country, but also of their own instructions contained in !heir 
Traffic Manual ,  goes against them. Incorrect manifestation. I am 
ccnv~nced, was not innocent. I carinqt accept the plea that this 
is :I case o i  an unitentionnl cblerical error. M/s. B. 0. A. C.  I hold, 
had full knowlcdgc of what they were doing. Their intention was 
to conceal from Indian Customs the fact that they were t r~ns i t ing  
gold from London to Hongkong in contravention of the India law. 

29 It i ~ ;  significant that M/s. B. 0 A. C have been transporting 
large q u n n t ~ t ~ c s  of gold from London through I n d ~ a  to Hongknng 
under g u ~ s e  of 'Metal V' or '9leial Bar V' Hongkong is a vulnerable 
spot in the East for smugglinq of gold as \sell a i  other commodities. 
Details of six consiglinwnts so trnn:~sted from London to Hongkong 
zva Indla diising five months from April to August, 1967 are given 
below:- 

-.- - 
30. Transport of over 5,000 Kgs. of gold valued a t  over Rs. 10 

crores in a short period of 5 months from London to Hongkong n n  
India describing it  as 'V-Metal' or 'V-Metal Bar' is quite significant. 
Shipments of gold through India under the guise of 'Metal' have 
been facilitated by M/s. B. 0. A. C. 



IX. FINDINGS 

31. In view of the aforesaid discussion, I held that MIS. B. 0. A. C. 
a re  liable to punishment under Sect,ion 112(i) of the Customs Act, 
1962 for contravention of provisions of Section 8(1) of the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act, 1947 read with Section 11 of the Customs 
Act, 1962 for not complying with the requirements of Notification 
No. 208162-R.B. dated 8-11-1962 issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

32. I also hold that MIS. B. 0. A. C. attempted to take out of 
India Gold on 14-9-1967 without any permission from the Reserve 
Bank of India after it had been imported into India in contravention 
of Section 8(1) of Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947. This 
act of MIS. B. 0. A. C, is in contravention of provisions of Section 
8(2)  read with Section 23B of Foreign Ekchange Regulation Act, 
1947 and read with Section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962. They are, 
therefore, liable to punishment under Section 114(1) of Customs 
Act, 1962 for the violation of the above said provisions. 

33. I also hold that the gold seized is liable to confiscation under 
Section l l l ( d )  of the Customs Act, 1962. 

34. The aircraft which carried the contraband gold is also liable 
to confiscation under Section 115(2) of the Customs Act, 1962. 

35. It  may apparently appear that this is a case mere technical 
breach of the law of the counlry pertaining to manifestation of 
gold in transit through India. This could be so if the case is viewed 
i ~ ?  isola+,ion. The facts. houever,  tell a different tale. Undernrlted 
accentuating circumstances have also to be given due consideralion:- 

(1) This was not a solitary instance. Similar \,iolations of 
the 1nd;an Law wcre committed l iy  M/s,  R. 0, A. C. on 
numerous occasions In the past. 

(2) The viola~lon ivas \jsilful, hljs.  13. 0. A. C. had iull ltn3~v- 
ledge of the law of t hc  country a n d  the viol:it:o~~:, wcrc 
deliberate. 

( 3 )  Purpose of Rcsc.ri,tl Bank of India Noti1ica:lon N o .  2uP62-  
R.B. dated b-ll-1962 \+a:, completely d(:fcatc.d by pcrsis- 
tant defial-ice of its proc is i r~ns  !,y MIS. B. 0. A. C. 

(4) M/s. B. 0 A. C, d:d not want Indian Customs tr, know 
that 'Gold' was belcg translsted through India as 'Metal'. 
They tried to conceal this fact from Indian Customs till 
the  very last minute. 

(5) Gold was transited through India from London to places 
like HONCKONG and MACAU which are  vulnerable 



from the point of view of smuggling. The quantities were 
huge. Movements were 'frequent. They were on the 
increase. This could not be attributed to an inadvertant 
clerical error. 

(6) MIS. B.O.A.C. had scant regard for the law of the country 
and this cannot he treated lightly. 

36. I n  view of the above considerations i t  is not possible either 
to treat this matter as a case of mere :ethnical violation or. to view 
these continued violations leniently and I pass the following orders: 

X. ORDER . . . .  
37 .  1 order that the  two consignments of gold, one of 96 gold bars 

(12U3.599 Kgs.) and the second of 10 goid bars (1U Kgs.) shall be 
cmfiscated under section l l l (d)  of the Customs Act, 1962 for contra- 
\.elltion of Section 8 (1)  and Section f i ( 2 )  of Foreign Exchange Regu- 
lation Act, 1947 read with Section 23A ibid, and Section 11 of the 
Customs Act, 1962. 

38. The confiscated gold is, howtli.er, allowed to be released by 
the lawful owners on payment of tt redemption fine of Rs. 25 lakhs 
(Rupees 'I'wenty-fi\.e lakhs only.) in respect of 96 bars of gold 
( 1  208.599 Kgs.) and Hs. 25,00t)/- (Rupees Twenty-five thousand only) 
ill respect of 1U bars of gold (10 Kgs.).  If redeemed, the gold shall 
bc released to its lawful oivners on production uf a written permis- 
sion fronl the Reserve Bank of India as rcqulred under Socltion 8(2) 
of E'owiyn Exchange H.egulation Act. 1.947 As the gold Jvas in 
transit th~mugh India and w+ meant for another country an  option 
to it*dct.m the same has been allowed by me. 

39. I aino impose a penalty of Rs. 5 lakhs (Rupees five lakhs only) 
an hl.!s. B.O.A.C. ulldtlr Sections 112(1) and 114(1) of the Customs 
Act. for contr;i\.en:ion of the pro\.isions of Sections 8(1) and 8(2)  
of Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. 1947 read with Section 11 of 
the  Customs Act. 1962. 

40. 1 also order. confiscation of the Aircraft (No. G-ApFK) 
undctr Section 115(2) of Custon~s Act. 1962. I. however. gi1.e an 
option to M's. B.O.A.C. to redeem the alrcraft payment of a re- 
dcrnption fine of Rs. 10 lakhs (Rupees Ten lakhs only). The aircraft 
was released pending decision of the case against a bond executed by 
M/s. H.O.A.C. The bond executed by M/s. B.O.A.C. shall be treated 
as cancelled after payment of the  redemption fine. 

Sd;- R. PRASAD I 

15-248. 
Collector. 

M,s.  British Oversens Airways Corporation. 
New Delhi. 



APPENDIX 111 

Copy of Appellate order of the l'oclrd 

CENTRAL BOARD OF EXCISE AND C U S ~ O M S  
New Lklhi, the 3Y-d ~ M a w i r ,  1969. 

fl.B. No further appeal lies against this appellate order. Under 
Section 131 of the Customs Act, 1962, however, any person 
aggrieved by the order can prefer a revision application to the 
Central Government within 6 months from the date of communi- 
cation ,of the order. Any such application should be addressed 
to the Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Finance 
(Department of Revenue). Keiv Delhi. The application should 
be accompanied by :- 

(a) a copy of this order, bearing Court Fee Stamp of 0.50P. 
only. prescribed under Schedule 1, item 6 of the Court 
Fees Act, 1870 and 

(b) a spare copy of the application for revision. 

Subject: Appeals-Contravention of Foreign Excliangc Regulation 
Act and Customs Act; Import of gold-Confiscation, fine 
and penalties. 

READ: Three appeals 

dated 13-5-68, 16-4-68 and 1-5-68. 
from (1) W s .  British Overseas Airways Corporation 

New Delhi. 

(2)  hl/s Mocatta and Goldsmid Limited, London. 

(3) Bank of Xova Scotia, Toronto and Shinichi 
Kina of Kaha. Okinawa. 

against Order No. 2/68 
dated 15-2-1968. 

passed by the Collector of Customs and Central Excise, 
New Delhi. 



These are three appeals against Order No. 2/68 dated 15th Feb- 
ruary, 1968 passed by the Collector of Customs and Central Excise, 
New Delhi. One appeal has been filed by the British Overseas Air- 
ways Corporation, New Delhi (hereinafter referred to as B.O.A.C.) 

The second appeal is from MIS. Mocatta and Goldsmid Limited, 
London (hereinafter referred to as Mocatta Goldsmid) and the 
third appeal has been filed by Bank of Nova Scotia, Toronto and 
Shinichi Kina of Naha, Okinawa. The latter two parties have 
filed a combined appeal. Since these appeals raise common ques- 
tion of fact and law, this consolidated order is being passed. . 

2. These appeals were heard by us on 17th and 18th June, 1968, 
6th August, 1968 and 18th and 19th September, 1968. B.O.A.C. were 
represented during the hearings by Advocates Shri T. N. Sethi and 
Shri D. P. Sethi instructed by solicitor Shri  Bermard Wood. The 
other appellants were representatived by Shri A. K. Basu, Advocate 
instructed b!. Shri D. N. Gupta and Shri J .  I;. Mehra of M, s. Orr 
Dignani, Solicitors. Shri M. A. Brown and Shri T. Bates, Solicitors 
held a watching brief on behalf of insurers of gold. Shri  S. K. 
Srivastava, Director of Revenue Intelligence and Shri C. L. Beri, 
Assistant Collector of Customs and Central Excise, New Delhi 
appeard on behalf of the Customs. 

3. Under Section 128(2) of the Customs Act, 1962 the Appellate 
Authority may make such further inquiry as may be necessary. 
Requests were made to us by the appellants that since the Collector 
had not appreciated the facts correctly they may be permitted to 
adduce ci*idence at  the appeal stage under section 128(2) of the 
Custorns Act. We also folt that some further enquiry was necessary 
for  a proper determination of the issues involved. We. accordingly 
permitted the appellants as well as the Customs to produce witness, 
and to adduce further decumentary el?idence. The witnesses 
esamined by B.O.A.C. at Palam, at  the relevant time, and Shri 
T.A.C. Cooper, Supervisor, Cargo Reservations B.O.A.C.. London. 
These t\vo witnesses also filed affida17it ~vhich are on record 'I'he 
C i ~ s f n m s  esa!ninect Shri S .  ?r'. Karkhanis. Assistant Collector of 
Customs, Palam Airport and Shri K.  Ramschandra, Air Customs 
Inspector, Palam Airport. On behalf of Mocatta Goldsmid, Shri 
E. E, Mocntta, Managing Director of the Conlpany appeared as .: 
wvitness. All the abo\,e witnesses were cross-esamined by the 
opposite side. Shri Bates explained the general practice regarding 
the system of open covers and the method of dealing with insurance 
claims. In  addition, B.O.A.C. flled two amdavits one given by Shri 



G .  H. Sommer, Project Officer, Cargo Unit B.O.A.C., London and 
the other given by Shri Keith Granville, Deputy Chairman Deputy 
Chief Executive of B.O.A.C. Moccatta Goldsmid also produced an  
affida\it from Shri Ian Macdonald Bovie, Chartered Accountant 
and partner In the firm o'f Peat, Marwick, Mitchell and Co., 
Charterrd .A(wunt.ants. London, and an affidavit of Shri Peter 
John Grlftiths of MIS. Wilkinson and Grist of Hongkong, a firm of 
Solicitors. In the course of hearings we desired certain further 
information to be furnished for which Mocatta Goldsmid wanted 
some time. Consequently, they furnished three affidavits after the 
hearings v w e  consulted. one from Shri Ian Francis Clumy 
Macpherson. Assistant Director of Commerce and Industry of the 
Hongkong Go\,ernnlent, the second from Shri Keneth Andrew 
Miller. partner of M s. Losve Bingham an3 Matthews, Chartered 
.4ccountants and authorised Auditors undt~r  the Companies Ordi- 
nance in Hongkong and t h ~  third from Shri Jose Correia Monte- 
nogre. Chief of the provincial Department of Economic Services of 
Macao. 

4 In  addition. various other documents were also furnished on 
behalf of each side. The following documents \\.ere produced on 
behalf of B.O.AC.: 

( 1 )  T ~ v o  punch Cards 

( 2 )  Copy of the reply by the Deputy Prlme Minister of India 
to Parliament Question No. 4256 of 24th December. 1967. 

( 3 )  Copy of h.Iemorandum of Director General of Civil Avia- 
tion Nu. 4 43 64-IR dated 14th April, 1%7. 

14) Correspondence 1~1th B0.A.C.  Manager Far Ess! in 
Hongkong concerning the manner in which written ack- 
nowledgements of the "show cause notlce" were obtained 
from commercial investment Co Ltd., Hongkong, and 
Companhia De Desenvolviments Commercial, Macau. 

( 5 )  Summary of B.O.A.C. services to Hongkong in  winter 
of 196748. 

(6i  Job  descriptions of Export Service Offkers (o thewisc  
known as Flight Allocation Officers) and Punched Card 
Opera tors. 

(7 )  Various letters written from time to time by the succes- 
sive Directors of Revenue Intelligence and other o5cials 
of the Government of India appreciating the services of 
B.O.A.C. in anti-smuggling measures. 



(8) Letter from Chief of Security B.O.A.C. to Dci. 1ty Sec- 
retary solicitor B.O.A.C, dated 2 r d  August, 19fi::. 

The documents produced on behalf of Mocatta Goldsmid were:- 

(1) Photostat oc~py of the letter dated 16th August, 1968 from 
MIS. Wilkinstrn and Grist with enclosures, such as letter 
from Exchange Controller of Hongkong to the 111gh Com- 
nl~ssiun of Inr l~a .  

( 2 )  Two original s h c ~ t s  from the accoun:s of MocatLa Gold- 
m i d  c.1 ~vering tiic period from 18-4-f? to 23-1-68. 

(3 )  Fivc slips So .  061921. 062085. ocl2ulN. (161466 and 093126 

(4)  Export 11ceni.t (ph(1' tat c s c ) t T  ) of Hrlngkong Government 
N o  014139 dated 16-1-1W. 

(5 )  Hongkong ( ; o ~ ~ r r n m e n t  Import Licence Nos. 800380 of 
9-1 4%. 

(6 )  Macau Go\ t ~ r n ~ n e n t  lmpvrt L~c~twcs No 148. 149 and 
154 of 1968 (all photosta! copies) 

( 7 )  I'twtostat (, j l 'y of the Insurance Policy of Orion Insurance 
Co~npany iiitted 12th Octubcr. 1967 and the Insurance 
cover. 

( I ; )  Copy of the \taterl~t.nt of accounts for t h ~  yeas ended 31st 
March. 1967 of 57,'s Cornrnerc~nl In\ , rs tment  Co Lmited,  
Hongkong. 

(10) ( 'ot~y o f  the  baiancr shcet of thtk Mocatta Goldsmid a t  
J l s l  March, 1967. 

(11) Photostat copy o f  the Resolutions of Disrctors of commer- 
c ~ a l  Investment Co Lid. d a t 4  1st August. 1950 and 
of the Extract of thci M!nutes of a Directors' h l e t i n g  held 
on 20th November, 1950 

(12) File A consisting of documents in relation to the im- 
portation into Hongkong of 38,671.651 fine ounces of gold 
comprising (a )  Import Declaration (b) Duplicate Import 
Declaration ( c )  Import Licence (d )  B.O.A.C. Airway Bill. 



(13) File B consisting of (a) Re-export Declaration, (b) Dupli- 
cate Re-export Declaration (c) Export licence (d) Con- 
signment note issued by the Hongkong Macau Hydrofoil 
Company Limited and (e) Duplicate Macau Import 
Licences for 19,341.321 fine ounces of gold and evidence 
of delivery to Macau. 

(14) File C consisting of (a) Re-export Declaration, (b) 
Duplicate Re-export declaration, (c) Export Licence, (d)  
Consigninent Note issued by the Hongkong hlacau Hydro- 
foil Company Limited. (e)  Duplicate Macau Import 
Licences for 19330,330 fine ounct-j of gold and evidence 

of dellvery to Macau. 

(15) Fi!c D consisting of do cum en!^ in relation to the importa- 
tion into Hongkong of 38,723.257 fine ounces of gold 
comprising ( a )  Import Dwlaration. (b)  Duplicate Import ' 

Declaration. (c) Impor! Licencc and (d)  B.O.A.C. Air\vay 
Bill. 

(16) F ~ l c  E cansrst~ng o i  ( a )  Ro-export Declarat~on. ( b )  Dupli- 
cate Re-export Dcclnrat~on. (c )  Export Liccncr. ( d )  Con- 
signment Note issued by the Hongkong Macau Hydrofoil 
Co L i m ~ t e d  and ( e )  Duphcatc Macau Import L.lcenccs fos 
19,385.48.1 fine oxnces of gold and evidtmce oi d c l ~ \ . e l  to  
3Iacsu 

(17) F ~ l e  F conslst~ng of ( a )  Re-export Dc~laration. (b) Dup:~-  
cate RL export I)eclarat~on. ( c )  Export L~ccnce. ( d )  
Col.i i~r.ment X,stc l\sucd h\ H o n ~ k o n g  Macau H y d ~ f o i l  
Co L t d ,  and (e )  Duplicate Llarau Import Licences foi 
19 385 453 fine ounccs of gold and evidence of delc\.cry to 
to Macau 

5 .  Along with the m r m o  of  appl2;lls also certain docuincrits wcrc 
filed as enclo:.l;res With :hc ?pi) ,  a1 of R 0 . A . C  thchrc! u.crct t i vo  
anne:.ures t : l : i :  of which u ~ ) I C S  of Trafic !iI:inl~itl Cargo 
Regulations. M'lth :he appc;l. U L  :.locatta ( io ldsm~d,  ijcsldcs thc 
cop. of the show cause nr~ticc, the reply of the I3UO.A.C. and thc 
order of the Collector, certain other documents wcrr also erlcloscd. 
These were: 

(1)  Applicatic~n to the Bank of England da!ed 12th September 
1968 in Form 'X'. 

(2) Letter from Bank of England dated 19th March, 1968. 

(3) Affidavit of Shri  E. E. Mocatta. 



(4) Airway Bill of B.O.A.C. 

(5) Shipping Bill submitted for export of gold in U.K. 

(6) Certificate 'C' with the permission to export gold from 
U.K. 

Along with the appeals of Bank of Nova Scotia, Toronto and 
Shinichi Kina, in addition to the copies of the show cause notice 
reply and the order, three other documents were enclosed. These 
were:- 

(1) Cable from Bank of Ryukyus. 

(2 )  Airway Bill of B.0.A.C 

(3 )  Commercial Invoice regarding sale of gold issued by Bank 
of Nova Scotia. 

On behalf of the Customs. Shri Beri furnished ::I! the documents 
which were already on record at  the orjginal stage. Ir, addition to 
thcsc, he aha furnished the copy of show cause notice which was 
sent to Companhia dc Desenvolvimcnto Commercial. Macau 
(hereinafter referred to as Companhia. hlacau) with the envelope 
which indicated that the  same was returncd to t h ?  sender as undeli- 
yered. Shri Sriwstava. the Director of Revenue Intelligence. Kew 
Delhi (hereinafter r e f e r r d  to as DRI) also produced copy of his 
letter dated 25th September, 1967 to Macatt. Goldsmid, the 
replies dated 9th October. 1967 and 13th October, 196'7, from 
Mocatta Goldsmid, the letter dated 12th October. 1967 from 
the Bank of England, a copy of the Notice to Authbrisd Banks and 
Authorised Dealers in Gold [EC (General) 62). a photosht copy 
(,I Certificate 'C', copic!s of certain cnblc;, the consik~ment  note and 
weight list of the Rank of England. The DRI :11sn pxduced ti:e en- 
vclope containing copy nf his letter dated 25th September, 1%; nd- 
dressed to Companhin h!?cnu which was returned as undelivered. 
The DRI also furnishrd n copy of thc Trnflic hlnnual of B O.A.C. 
contnininji extract recnrdlnji South African goods. 

6. During tfw hearings \vc had sskcd the DRI and  the Assis:ani 
Collector of Customs and Ccntral Excise, Shri RCi.i ti1 sc ru t~~? isc  thc 
manifest of various Air Cumpnnics filed nt Palarn :'l:lpor.t iuring the 
last six months and preparc $1 stntemcn; of' the <'lit ire v'hert. dec1ar.1- 
tions of gold of metal or metal bar appeared. Accurdinglg, a state- 
ment was prepared and furnished to us. Copies of this statement 
were supplied to all the appcllnnts. No party raised any objection 
about the accuracy of this statement. 



7. We have gone through all the above evidence, oral and docu- 
mentary, in detail and shall advert to the same in our. order at appro- 
priate stages 

8. Briefly slated, the facts of the case are as inilr\vs: 

9. Thc aircraft was carrying two conignments of gold total weigh- 
Lng 1218 T$B k p n  and valued s! a p p n ~ x ~ m a t d r  Hn 1.03 cmrr st the 
international rate. 



(i)  24 packages containing 96 bars weighing 120;1.599 kg. con- 
signed by Mocatta Goldsmid, London to M/s. Commercial 
Investment Company, Hongkong (hereinaftr::. referred to 
as C.I.C. Hongkonk) for onward transmission to hVs. Com- 
panhia De Desenvolvimento Commerciai, Macau (herein- 
after referred to as Companhia Macau). Each bar bore 
serial Nos. as also the name of the South African Refinery 
(Rand Refinery Ltd.) .  The fineness of the gold 9951-9960 
was marked on each bar. Each bar also bort? the inscrip- 
tion "Mocatta and Goldsmid Ltd.. London Euliion Brokers". 

(i i)  One package containing 10 bars of gold weighing 10 Kg. 
consigned by the Bank of Nova Scotis. Toronto (Canada) 
to the Bank of Ryukyus, Okinawa (Japarl). The latter 
Bank was acting as agents for one Shrinichi Kina of Naha, 
Okinawa, who was the actual consignee of this consign- 
ment. 

10. In the manifest of the aircraft the following entries appeared:- 

Akwry  Rill N,. of Nature of For use by owner or For ofhcid 
No. pockngm e d s  operator only uu only 

11 Scctlon (1)  of t t w  I'orci<n Eschatlge I i r ' < c ~ l , i l l , ~ ~  Act, ld47 
(hereinafter refcrrrd to us E'ERA), ~rttt 'r-c111n. p:.o\.~des that  \he Cen- 
tral Govcrnmmt may, by notification in the 0ffic:al Gazette Order 
that, subject to such excrnptlon, ~f tiny, as may be contalned in the 
notification, no person shall, except with the general or special per- 
mission of the Reserve Bonk, bring or send into India any gold. The 
Explanation t o  this rub-section makes it clear that even goo& in 



transit are  deemed to be goods brought into I n d a  for the purpose of 
Section 8(1) of the F.E.RA. 

12. By Notification No. 12(II)-F.L748 dated 25th August, 1948, 
amended, the Central Government directed that, except with the 
general or special permission of the Reserve Bank, no person shall 
bring or send into India from any place outside India, in ter -ah  any 
gold coin, gold bullion, gold sheets or gold ingot, whether refined or 
not. This notification was issued under Section 8(1) of the F.E.R.A. 

13. In  pursuance of the said notification of 25tn August, 1948 the 
Reserve Bank issued notification No. F.E.R A.208 62 R .  B ,  dated 8th 
N o v e m k ~ .  1962 giving general permission for bringin: of gold bullion 
etc. subject to certain cond~:lons. The noilfication of 8th Novcnitier, 
1962 reads as fo!lows:- 

In pursuance of the Notification of the G o w r n m e n :  of India in 
the Ministry of Fi!iance So.  12(II)-F1/48 dated the  25:h 
August. 1948 and in supcrsession of thc Rcserve Bank of 
India ru'otification So. FERA 62/48-R.B. dated thc ? ~ t h  
August. 1948. as amended from time tc, time. the Reser1.e 
Bank cf India hereby gives general permission to the bring- 
ing or sending of any of the followinz articles, namely:- 

( a )  any gold coin. cold bulllon, gold 3 h r c . ~ -  r r  gold ~nqo! 
whether refined cjr not: or 

(b) any silver bulliol~. any silver sheets r:r pln:es which ha1.e 
undergone nc, process of manufacture subscqucnt t c  rcl- 
ling, or any 

into any port of place in !rbd,a ~ v ! ~ m  sut'h article :s , ~ r l  t h r ~ ~ f i h  
transit :o a place ~vhict: is c;u!.;ide t hc  tcrli!ory of Incl~a. 

Provided that such article is not rernovc~l ircr:n thc ship or 
conveyance in ~vhich it is k i n g  car:.;~:d t'sccpt fr:r t h e  
purpose of transhipment; 

P r o ~ i d e d  further that i t  is declared In the manifest for transit 
as same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo. 

14. I t  may be seen that the Notification of 8th November, 1962 has 
two provisos. In the case in question the two consignments nf gold 
were in transit through India and they were also not removed on the 
conveyance in which they were being carried except for the purpose 



of t r a n ~ h i p n ~ m t .  Therefore, t he  first proviso was  satisfied. T h e  
question, however, arose whether the second proviso was  satisfied or 
not? According to the  Collector of Customs, who adjudicated the 
matter ,  the  second proviso was not satisfied since the consignments 
were  not declared in the manifest as gold. 

15. The Collector confiscated the two consignments of gold under  
Section IIII(d) Cuctoms Act for contravention of Section 11 Customs 
Act. Hc,  further,  directed that the confiscated gold he allcwed to be 
redeemed by lawful owners on payment of lines of Rs. 26 lakhs and 
Rs. 25 thousand respectively. If redeemed the go!d slia!! be released 
to lawful owners on production of s written perrr,i:sion from ;he 
R e s e n v  Rank of India as required under Sectiun % ( 2 )  F.E.R."i. ?'he 
Collector imposed a penalty of Rs. 5 lakhs on B.O.2i.C. under Section 
112 and Section 114(1) of the C ~ ~ s t o m s  Act. Htz ;.ks confiscated the 
aircraft undvr Section 115(2)  of thc Customs Act anti ilnprised a fine 
01 Rs. 10 lakh in licu of confiscation. 

16. Against this order of the Col!cctor, the parties concerned nave 
filed appeals to us. As ment~oned  above, one appeal has  been filed 
by B.0.A.C as carriers of gold. They a re  aggrieved since a penalty c'f  
Rs. 5 lakhs and a fine of Hs. 10 lakhs have bern impasxi on them. 
The second appeal 1s from Mocatta Goldsmid, ivno are  the  eonsigners 
of the hig lot of gold namely the 24 packages cc~r:inir?~n; fir;!d bars. 
Thcy feel aggrieved since, according to them, thc property in this big 
consignment of gold contiriucd to remain i n  t!le!n and,  therefore. 
t.hcy were the lav.7ful nkvncrs of the  same and conmiuently,  the I~a 'c i -  
lity for payment of the fine of Rs. 25 lakhs in lieu of cor.5scation cf 
gold dcvolvt~s on  t h e m  Thc third :i;~penl has Scei: fil(  d by the b3:'l'r; 
of Nova Scotia, Toronto and Shinichi Kiua cf ?;aI;?. :he consigner 
ant]  the consignee rci;pc>ctivc]y of thc sma i r i r  r!n!?sigr!lni.n: or' gs!d. 
They arc also aperievcd against confiscati~,n o: :5i. 13 ha:-: o i  gold. 
The case of hlocntta C;oldsmid and of the R3nk c ~ f  ?;>>\.a Swt ia  and  
Shinchia Kina was argued by Shri  A. I<. nnsu and the 1.1'":ts P:': f o r th  
on their bchn l f  lvcrc identical. 

17. Bcforc coming to the main issues invclvcj  in theic appcal.; i t  
appears to be neccssary to dispose of a prcliminnr?. objcction raise3 
on hchalf of the  Customs. It was contcndcd that l l o c o t t ~  Goldsmid 
were not the owners of the  first consignment of goid and,  as such, 
they had no right to file an appeal against the ordc:. of  thc Collector. 
In suppnrt of this proposition, reliancc was placed an three facts. 

(i)  In  the  X form submitted by Mocatta Cnldsmid to the  Bank 
of England, they had declared that  !he owner of the big 
Consignment of gold was  Companhia, Macau. 



(ii) The i&,,ption on the bars showed Mocattas as t.,aers 
and brokers could not be owners of the gold. 

(iii) There was no denial from CIC. Hongkong or Companhia, 
Macau that they were not the owners'of the gold. 

It was contended that. except for the statement of Shri E.E. Mocatta, 
there was no o:hcr evidence to show that ownership of the gold 
veskd in Mocatta Goldsrnid and that the statement made in a statu- 
t o ~ y  declaration should be given preference to thc) subsequent state- 
men of Shri Mocatta. 

18. I t  msy be relevant to mention that in the declaration form X 
which Mocatta Goldsrnid submitted to the Exch3~ge  Control Depart- 
ment of the Bank of England on 12th September, 1967, they made a 
declaration as follows:- 

"I/We declare from facts known to me/us or from enquiries 
I/we have made that to the best of my/our belief the 
owner(s) of the item(s) mentioned overleaf islare--Corn- 
panhia de Desenvolvirnento Commercial, Macau". 

At the hottom of this declaration there is a note "In the case of gold 
evidence of ownership must be furnished". 

19. Shri Mocatta, in his statement, clarified that when they first 
started this business in 1954, they b l d  the Bank of England the full 
arrangement under which the gold was to be expwted to Macau via 
Hongkong. They had explained to the Bank qf England that they 
were sending the gold to CIC Hongkong on consiffnment basis and 
CIC Hongkong kept the gold on their behalf till they purchased !he 
same. CIC Hongkong. in turn, transferred the gold to Companhi:~, 
Macau. The Bank of England knwving the  f u l l  fat!-, allo\\'cd them 
to makc the d ~ ~ i a r a t i o n  ir. this manner. In supnort of 111s s t a ~ n m c i ~ t ,  
he  referred to two ietterj; nrrittcn hv the Bank of England ~ ~ i t h  rcfe- 
rencf l o  the big c,>n;ig:ln?c,nt of in question. Tile first letter is 
dated 12th Octc,bcr. 1967 2nd thc second letter is da ted  19th I ' r l r~rch, 
1968. Both these letters were addressed to Mocatta Goldsmid. A 
copy of the letter dated 12th October, 19Gi  was sent by Mocatta Gold- 
smid to DRI also. A copy of the letter dated 19th March, 1968 iras 
cncloscd with the  appeal. These letters read as follows:-- 

Letter dated 12th October, 1967 

"I write with reference to your request for assistance from the 
-in order to enable you to reply to the letter from the Di- 
rector, Revenue Intelligence. New Delhi. reference DRI 



F. No. 1666/74/67 of the 25th September, a copy of which 
has been forwarded to the Bank. 

I have first to say that the Bank of England are content for 
this letter or the attached copy thereof to be forwarded by 
you to the Director of Revenue Intelligence in New7 Delhi 
together with your own replies to  the questions asked. I 
have also to confirm that the transactions in question were 
perfectly normal and complied with the United Kingdom 
Exchange Control Regulations in every w a g ~ a  copy of the 
Bank's Notice to Banks and Bankers on this subject. E.C. 
(General) 62, is attached for reference as may bc required. 

As you arc aware, the import of gold bullion into the United 
Kingdom is on Open General Licence. Thc Bank of Eng- 
land are not, therefore, in a position tc, produce any docu- 
ments relating to the import of gold into the United King- 
dom nor relating to its deposit in the Bank of England nor 
its clcarancc by Customs on importat!on into the U n i t d  
Kingdom. The Bank regret that thev cannot specify the 
period during which the gold had been held at the Bank 
prior to its sale to your country. Thev arc, however- pre- 
pared to state that the gold in question forn~ed part of ccn- 
tinuing consignments of gold received over a period of 
many years, that i t  was purchased by the Bank of England, 
that it was subsequent sold to Mocatta and Goldsnlid Ltd. 
and that it was then retained in the Bank for a further 
period before being delivered up to your company. The 
bars were not assayed by the Bank of England. The parti- 
culars of melter and assayer appear on t ~ e  bars themselves: 
thr number appearing on the Bank's \veight l ~ s t s  (which 
give the weights and fine ounce content; of the bars as 
established by weighing and calculation by the Rank) are 
merely reference numbers representing the name ot the 
melter and assayer." 

Letter datcd 19th March. 1968- 
Gold confiscated in India 

"I write with reference to the question raised about the method 
of completion of Forms X. 

Under the provisions of the Notice to A~lihoriscd Banks and 
Authorised Denlers in Gold issued by the Bank of England 
under the Exchange Control Act, 1947 rclnting to dcalings 
in gold, Authoriscd Dealers in Gold (which include your 



company) a re  permitted to sell gold, sul>,iect to certain con- 
ditions, to persons resident outside the Schedult?d Territor- 
ies. Gold so sold may be exported from the U.R. and 
Authorised Dealers in Gold arc  a u t h o r i ~ c l  to ~.;suc the 
necessary certificates C to enable cxpol-t to bc. r r t ' cc td  
through N. M. Custon~s .  In these circuins~nnc~cr. Au tho~ i s -  
ed dealers in Gold a re  required to submit the  relative Form 
X to tht. Bnak of England. In many CJW.;, including that 
of your company's export under reference X768i72,  the  
gold is in course of sale with settlement and conseqi~ent 
change of beneficial ownership to take place upon dclivcry 
in an  overseas centre. In thcse cases the H m k  of England 
export the  Authorised Dealer in Gold to sho\v thc namc and 
address of the  ultimate overseas purchnscs in the spacc set 
aside normally for the particulars of  thc I~noAcia l  o\r.nt>r. 
I t  is. of course, undersiood that. pending dt.!i\.el-y alrd wt- 
tlement the gold remains in the  beneficial o\\.ncl.:,hli; nT !he 
esporter-in this case. \.our company." 

I t  was argued on behalf of hlncatta Goldsmid that thew i t t t rcs  
clearly indicated that the o \~nt . rship ,  at the timt. 1111> qn!d \va.. seized 
in India. vested in them. 

20. Mocatta Goirismid alqi~ produced I \ vo  pacr.i f I W ~ I  :hcmir s!c>:-k 
Ledger showing th(s gold s rwk  hcld iry thcm ( 1 .  .In t i t i i t s  11) 1 1 1 1 ~  ~n 
Hongkong. and \.ar!ous post in^ slips \vhich rrwrr:i thr  ~ n t l l v i d u ~ l  
transactions which arc  ix)stetl in !he Lcdgcr. In t i - , ,  I ,r.Jgt~s thrrt. arc 
colurnnc for Date. Particlnrs. \.slut, 1)atc. 1)vbit. C r r r ! ~ '  and Halancc.. 
When gold is serit from 1,nndon to I ~ o n g k O l ' ~ ~ .  t h ~ ?  s21nch is c l ~ ~ l ~ l ~ d  
from the London Stock. When gold rcachcd Hor~<koll;r 1' i.: added 
to the balance of gold hcld by hlocatta Gnldsrnid i!i I !ongktrn~ stock. 
When out of Hongkong stock of Mocatta (;ol31niri ~)art iculnr quati- 
t i t \  of gold is purchased CIC Hongkong. that c { ~ ~ ; , i . ~ l i t i .  i. ho \u : r~  
in the ledger of  Mocatta Goldsmid t , ,  the credit rrl (.'IC I . lon~kong 
and a frpsh t?alancc of Mocatta's l<ongknng gold stock is clrnir'n. 
When gold sent from L,ondon t o  Iinngkong. Mor-;ttt;: (;ol(lsmid i w c 3  
a slip titled "RECEIVE". It 1.; addressed to CIC I.!on!!kon:: a n d  s;l>'> 
"You will rpct.ive for  our account" a particular ylliint~:?, of gold 11iC':)- 

tioned in the slip When out of t h c ~ r  Hongkong stock thcv still some 
gold to CIC Hongkong, they ~ssuc. a slip titled "ACTION COPY 
SAIE''. In this slip the quanti ty anti value of p l d  ant1 nwthod of 



subject  m a t t e r  of these proceedings. This  slip which is  addressed 
t o  CIC Hongkong says  "You will  RECEIVE for  o u r  accc;unt by order  
of London Gold Stock-96 b a r s  Gold Fl ight :  DA 916/13th September ,  
A/W Bill 4861185 CZS. 38693.055 fine gold". This  quant i ty  of gold 
is also shown in the Ledger  as  debited against London stocli on  12th 
September .  B u t  this gold has not been credited in t h c  Ledger  to  the 
account  nf  CIC Hongkong nor  a n y  'SALE'  s l ip  h a s  hcen issued. It i s  
sccn f rom these accounts   hat gold is t aken  to Hungkong  f r o m  
London on t h e  account of Mocatta Goldsmid and cont in~tes  to  remain  
on their account in  I longkong stock till CIC Hongkon:: purchase t h e  
same.  T h e  gold in question w a s  a!so going !(I Hongkong f r o m  
London ,  like o ther  despatches, on the  accnunl  of Mocatta Goldsmid 
a n d  the. fact tha t  in t h c  l e d ~ c r  of Mocatta Goldsmid thls  gold h a s  not  
I m n  cwdi ted  to the  account of' CIC Hongkong appca1.5 to  show tha t  
this  gold had not been sold to CIC Hongkong by IG'h Septcmher,  1967 
when the same w a s  seized in India .  

s 

21. In suppor t ,  a n  afficI;i\.it g i i m  t ~ y  Shr i  Ian I\;~ccir;nalrl Bowic. 
Char tc rcd  Accountant .  a partnel,  111 the f i rm of  peat. l l a r \ v i ~ \ ~  
hlitchell 6 Co.. Char te red  Accountants  a n d  Auditors of Mocatta 
Goldsmid.  w a s  also furnished.  I t  is s ta ted  In t h r  rt%da\-i: t h a t  gold 
in q u w : i o ~ i  \VitS p u r c h : ~ s e d  h~ Mr~ca t ta  Goldqm~rl  fsorr! t!lc Bank  of  
E:nr;r!antl f o r  rhcir own i l ~ ~ o u n t  on 9th Augus t ,  l o C 7  ?: i?  i ~ ~ r t i t ~ r  
5t;lted that  t h ~  prnccciurc of salc to CIC Hflngkon;: \v:I:, that  gold first 
s!iippcd 111 Ilongkoni: \ f .hcrr  it t ras  held unticr tilc control o f  ClC 
Honqkorig u.hr.) nctcd 0.; i i ~ c n t s  fo r  Xlocatta L;olr!s!i~iti CIC I iong-  
k o n ~ ,  at  ;I c o n ~ m i e n t  t ime to llicbm. ptr t~l i ; tscd quiintitic-s of this gold 

; I I I ~ . ~  l i l c , ~ i  ; ~ p p r o p r ~ ~ ; v ( l  tlic' co:d 111 thcvnscl!.c~s. Thv <ci l t l  In cjilestior~ 
LV;IS s c n r i r  ( ( I  I lc~ngkong.  ~rncic~r. thi5 p r o w d u r c  T h i s  p ) s i ! i ( ~  5 i . a ~  r<,- 
af l i rmtd t)y S h r i  E. E, hlocatta in hi.: vral statclllcn:. On  t h e  basis 
of  1I1(* afr)rcsnid tr\.idenw. i t  u*:t.s i~rgurcl  that  Mocnt t ;~  (;nlrlsmiti wclrr 
thp o w n c r s  of the gold I t  u.n< also c-ontcnilcd tha t  5lora:t;i Golcisnlid 
had 10 Iwr c'cnt >flare; i l l  C l C  I longko~rg  and  S h r i  h ioca t t :~  himsc'if 
\:,;IS ;I I l i r t~c tor  o f  CIC l f o n ~ k o n g .  thcr r fnrc .  tlc ~ O I I ; ~  spt.il!i on br'half 
of C1C t i o n g k o n ~  ; ~ l s c ~  As s\lr.h, thc rc  w a s  no point i ~ :  nrg~iin:, as thr 
~ , l s t ~ ) l l l s  don,,, that  sincr, CIC 1longk:)ng had not denled t h i r  
otvnrl.stilp, hl(~~;i t t ; l  (;trldsmid cmuld not he t r c a t t 4  as owner? .  0 1 1  

lh(: othtlt  h:inrl. t h r  f ; ~ r t  tha t  n c i t h r r  CIC Hongkong 1101. Con?panl~in 
hlncilLl c l i ~ i m e d  cnvrlcl.ship of  goid s h o n ~ ~ i  that thv prOl!Wt!. in the  
gold hilci ~ 1 0 t  pics<rd to then1 and RIocattn (;olcisrn!,.l: con tmued  10 re- 

a s  owners, 11 \\'us fLll.ther ~ o n t c n d ~ d  that  i f  ? . l ~ ~ ; \ t t ; l  Goldsmid 
wc,rc L,fflo nrcly t t ~ c  crrt.nclr~? The. Customs had  not 
indicutct l  a n y  ot \ icr  nnl1lc'. Tllc, argilrncnt,  that  tht' inX'l'll)tlol: on the 
Ilnrs sllor,,inG M ( l ~ n t [ i l  (';o]dsn>id as bl-okrrs indicated t k i r  lack of 
o,\ ,ncrstl i l , ,  rppcllltld o n  ttlc g lwtnd  t i n t  thcrc' n 'as c n ( w h  



evidence on record to establish that Mocatta Goldsmicl had actually 
purchased this gold on their own account from the Bank of England, 
after making payment to the said Bank. In any case, it was urged 
that Mocatta Goldsmid would have no objection if the gold was re- 
leased to B.O.A.C. as their carriers. 

22. From the aforesaid evidence, we find that tIit. gold in question 
was purchased on their oMrn account by Mociltta Goldsmid from the 
Bank of England. This fact is also corroborated hy the entries in the 
accounts of Mocatta Goldsmid. The entries in the accounts and the 
other evidence referred to above also shows that even after the goid 
reached Hongkong, it remains the property of Mocatta Goldsmid for 
sometime, till CIC Hongkong purchase it by paying for it and till then 
CIC Hongkong kccp custody of the gold in Hongkong on behalf of 
Mocatta Coldsmid. Therc is no evidence that for the gold in question 
CIC Hongkong or Companhia Macau have already made payment to 
Mocatta Goldsmid. Also, neither of them are claimin2 ownership of 
the gold. It  is true that the declaration by Mocatta Goldsmid in farm 
X, by itself, goes against their claim of ownership. But, then, thc 
same has to be read in the context of the clarificat~ons provided by 
the  Bank of England, and if so read there is no inconsistency betwccn 
the declaration in form X and the claim of ownership as made by 
Mocatta Goldsmid. In these circumstances. it would bc rcason;i\)le to 
hold that the gold belongs to Mocatta Goldsmid. It  is. however, not 
necessary for us to give a categorical finding on this question. The 
purpose of this enquiry was only to And out whcthcr Mocatta Coldc- 
mid had any right to file an appeal against the impr~gnccl order. 
Under Section 128 of the Customs Act, any person nggrieveii i,. any 
decision or order map appeal against the said derision or order. Can 
Mocatta Chldsmid be considered as a person agjiric\wI by the im- 
punged order? If Mocatta Goldsmid arc the owncr; of the gold, then 
surely they can bc aggrieved by thc confiscation oi the gold in qucs- 
tion. Even assuming that there was s o w  doubt about their claim 
ownership of the pdd .  the fact remains that Mocattn Coldsmid wcrc 
admittedly consigners of the gold and B.O.A.C. were carrying gold 
on their behalf and under their instructions. That being so. they 
could be legitimately aggrieved by the order of confiscation of gold. 
We, therefore, do  not find any substance in the preliminary objection 
that Mocatta Gold-mid had no right to file this appeal. 

23, Coming to thp main issues involvcd in thcsr aplwals, the stand 
taken by B.O.A.C is reflected in the following extracts from their 
reply to the show cause notice issued herore adjlldiralion by Collec- 
tor, the grounds of appeal and the contentions raised at thc time of 
the heating before us. 



"(i) It is not disputed that the term 'Metal V' is an incomplete 
and insufficient description of gold. I t  is alsu agreed that 
many staff in B.O.A.C. would not know that the term 
'Metal V' implied 'gold'. [Reply to 4 (x) of show cause 
notice]. 

(ii) "No permission oif Reserve Bank or India was necessary 
for the gold in question. It was covered by the general 
permission". (reply to p a  10 ~f the show cause 
notice). 

(iii) " .  . . . the  respondent admits and regrets that there was a 
formal, unintentional and consignments were insufficiently 
described in the manifest. However, the manifesr made i t  
very clear that the consignments were k i n g  carried on in  
CAPFK throughout. In effect the ma~:ifcst made it very 
clear that these goods were for transit as same bottom 
cargo". . . .Full description of lack of such description in 
the manifest is in essence a formal and tcchnlcal error". 
(Reply to paras 12-14 of show cause notice). 

(iv) "The manifest made it clear that the consignments were 
transisting India as s;lme bottom cargo". (Reply to para 
17-19 of show cause notice). 

(v )  "It is further submitted in conclusion that the present posi- 
tion is n result of an unfortunate but bonalidc mistake in 
the preparation of the manifest. The bonalides of the res- 
pondent, howcvcr, arc absolu tcly e v i d e ~ ~  and, therefore, it 
is requested that as requested by Mr. Santhanam already 
the manifest mny be allowcd ti) be corrcctcd so as to con- 
form strictly to thc rcg,ul;lt~ons". (Last para of reply 10 
show cause notice). 

(vi) "That the Learned Collector should have hold that the 
alleged misdescription or incomplete description in the 
cargo manifest was not due to any fraudulent intention and 
that he should accordingly have allowed the cargo manifest 
to be amended or supplemented under Section 30(3) oi the 
customs Act, 1962, as was requested on behali of the ap- 
pellant a t  the time". [Ground (B) (6) of the appeal]. 

(vi i )  "That the Learned Collector was wrong in holding that the 
description of the gold in the cargo manifest was a misdec- 
1araLion and contravc?ntion of the Foreign Exchange Regu- 
lation Act, 1947 and the Notification made thereunder or of 
the Customs Act, 1962". [Ground (B) (9) of the appeau. 



(viii) "That the cargo manifest clearly indicated that these 
consignments were in the course of being carried to Hang- 
kong and Chinawa respectively and were, therefore, only 
in transit through Indla, and that  in the circumstances the 
consignments were sufficiently described in thp manifest 
as "the same bottom cargo or  transhipment cargo" so ns 
to fall within notification No. F.E.R.A. 208162--RB d a t d  
8th November, 1962". (Group (B) (10) of the appeal). 

( I X )  "Metal 'I"' was incomplete description for the  gold 
Mistake In the manifest \\a!: not actulatcd by any fraud, 
dishonesty or m.dnfidesW. (Record of hearing on 17-6-68]. 

(x )  "Metal was not one article but ;I nature of article." (Hecord 
of hearing on 18-6-68). 

(xi)  " .  . . . . I  do admit my mistake. Here it is so and that is \\.h!. 
the amendment ( ~ f  the  manifest is requrstcd for.  . . . . 'i'he 
manifest niay be allowed tu be corrected SO as to conform 
stricily to the  regulations. .  . . . .Even 11' it is incorrcct and 
my submission \leas ~t was on complete. . . . . "  (IIecord 0 1  

hearing on 19-9-68). 

24. Section 30(3) of the Custunls Act, 1962 reads: 

"If the  proper officer 1s satisfied that the  ~ m p o r t  manifest 01 

import report 1s in an! way 1t;corrcct or incomplctc and 
that  there was no fraudulent Intcntlon, hc m,ly perm11 ~t t" 
tje amended or  supplemented " 

25, It was  contended on behalf of 13.O.A.C. that though "Metal 
V" or  "Metal bar I"' was an insufficient description for gc,ltl anti 
metal was not one article but a n a t u i ~  of arii:,le and thcrc u.:ts also 
no' definite evidence to show that  Customs knew that these csprc.s- 
sions meant gold the use of these expressions should tia\.c ;it least 
put Customs on notice and they were reasonably c x p ~ ~ t c d  to makv 
enquiries a s  to what that description included and in pnrticular 
whether the same included gold. On 14th when thc  plane came for  
the first t ime and was allowed to leave, i f  the Custr~ms had any 
doubt, they would not have passed the consignmcnt. I t  was also 
urged that consignment notes which described the goods as golrl 
were shr,wn to the Customs immediately on being ilskcd. I t  wirs next 
ccmtendrd that  the  mistake in the manifest was bonafide and \rras 
not actuated by any f raud,  dishonesty or  malufidcs. The was 
not as a result of circumstances designed by them. I t  wos strf*ssed 
that B.Q.A.C. had nothing to gain by this miadesrril)tion onti, as 



such, there could be no motive in making a wrong declara. 
tion The counsel for B.O.A.C. regretted for the wrong declara- 
tion; he pleaded that the cause oi the mistake were factors inciden- 
tal to computorisation of the system of manifest preparation intro- 
duced in the year 1965 and not any evil design on the part of the 
BOAC. In support of this plea, the counsel relied upon the various 
affidavits and the statements of the witnesses produced on their 
behalf'. 

26. Shri Sethi, tllc counscl for UOAC further argued that if he 
could prove the bonafides of BOAC and that t h e  never acted mala- 
ficle 01,- in other words, that there was no fraudulent ~ntention or, 
their part, they would be entitled to get the benefit of sub-section 
(3 )  of section 30 of the Customs Act. He stated that the amendment 
of the manifest could not be refused unless there was fraudulen. :n- 
tention. He also stated that fraudulent intention mentioned in sub- 
section ( 3 )  of Section 30 refers to fraudulent intention ~vhich had 
a bearing on tht! \\.rung manifestation of the goods and fraudulent 
intention in any other r c s p v t  u-ould be irrelevant for  the purposes 
of Scction 30(3)  d the Customs Act. He, hou.ever, urged that in scl 
far  G, BOAC Lverc roncernecl, t!~t>rc ivas no question of a n  fraudu- 
lent ~ n t l ~ n t ~ o n  In any respccr \vhat su ever. They have always been 
cooperating \vtt!i Custoni. in thcir anti-srnugglmg operations. Shri 
Sethi pt~~~ciucrd a Ilurnbcr ,,f Ioitcrs ivritten by the successi~.e Direc- 
tors of R w w u c  Intc1lligenc.e. Neu. Delhl and \.arious uthcr Officers 
of the (hvwnmcnt  of Ind~ir apprwiating their servic2s in anti- 
s m u ~ ~ l i n g  dri \<e.  Tllc :irgument ( , f  S111'1 Sethi was that how could 
i t  ~ n f t ~ r r e d  that HOAC \ v h i  were su coopcrati\.e with the Customs 
in ;inti-stni~ggling c~pc-~.;ction~ woulci !lave any fraudulent intention 
in ~w~p;rt . ing :I \\*rorig manifwt, Their conduct throughout has been 
\,on:~fdc a n d  ns suc11 there ivas n~ matct.ial to impute malafides to 
them. 

27. Shri Scthi iilso contcnd(d that thcy had made a request for 
amcndmcnt of the miinifrst a t  :)I1 possible stages. Thp moment Shri 
Si~nthi~rlam was told hy Slui Karkhanis ns well as by Shri Rama- 
c,hi~ndr;~n \hat rlwrr tvab a 111lsinkr in the manifest. he shoncd then] 
thc  B.C).A.C.'b triifHc manual and m a d r  a request to allow amend- 
ment of the manifest. This rcqucst \vas rejected b!. the Asstt. Cal- 
lector of Ctistt~tns. So, whcn the next stage came i . ~ .  the moment 
thr sllnw cause notire cam? to them, a prayer \vas madr in reply 
l o  thc show causc notice for amendment of t h r  rnanifcst. Again, the 
request ]\iis brcn rcpcated in  the mcmv of the appeal. The argument 
of the rounscl, thcwfore,  wiis that thc rcqucst for anlcndment of the 
manifest was not nn iilter--thought and was made at even. available 
opportunity, He also added that, under Section 30(3)  of the Customs 



Act, for applying for the amendment of the manifest, no procedure 
is ~rpvided ,  no form is provided and no limitation is laid down. He 
mentioned that the statement of Shri Karkhanis showed that amend- 
ment of the manifest could be allowed even on an oral q u e s t .  

28. In substance the argument of Shri Sethi was that under Sec- 
tion 30(3) of the Customs Act, it was incumbent on the Customs to 
allow amendment of the manifest if there was no fraudulent inten- 
tion. Here, there was no fraudulent intention on the part of the 
BOAC and they had also made a request for the amendment of the 
manifest at the first available stage, As such, the manifest may be 
allowed to be amended so as to conform strictly to the regulations. 
He also contended that once the amendment of the manifest is 
allowed, it would take effect from the date of representation 
in other words, it would be deemed as if the amended mani- 
fest was originally presented to the Customs. In support of this 
proposition, he relied upon the decisions reported in AIR 1936 Ran- 
goon 508. AIR 1938 Patna 205, Air 1914 Lahore 263, AIR 1925 Madras 
487, ILR 19 Bombay 320 (1894 AIR 1933 Madras 153). 

29. Lastly, it was argued by Shri Sethi that so far as transit goods 
were concerned much weight was not given regarding the dcscrip- 
tion of the goods in the preparation of thc manifest. In this connec- 
tion he invited reference to be recommendation of International 
Civil Aviation Organisation. He pointed out that one of the rccorn- 
mendations, which though not accepted by Government of India, 
was that the description of transit goods need not be given in the 
manifest. In this connection Shri Sethi invited attention to ground 
B(10) of the grounds of appeal which has already been reproduced 
at Sub-clause (viii) in para 23 above. Since the cargo manifest 
c lea~ly  indicated that these consignments were in the course of being 
carried to Honkong and Okinawa respectively and were, thcreforc, 
only in transit through India, it was argued that in thc circumstanc- 
es, the consignments were sufficiently described in the manifest as 
"the same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo" so as to fall within 
the Notificatmn of 8th Nov. 1962. 

30. Shri Sethi also invited reference to the Supreme Court de- 
cision in the case of State of Maharastra Vs. Hans George Mayer 
reported in AIR 1965 Supreme Court 722, He distinguished this 
decision of the Supreme Court and urged that the same was not 
relevant to the fact and circumstances of this particular case. 111 

the Supreme Court decision, the passenger concerned had not made 
any declaration in the manifest with result the Supreme C O W  had 
not to consider the question whether the amendment of the mani- 



fest could be allowed or not. Here, BOAC have made a declaration 
which is now doubt incomplete and for considering whether the 
amendment could be allowed or  not, the question of intention was 
material in terms of Section 30(3) of the Customs Act. 

31. The appeals filed on behalf of Mocatta Goldsmid and the 
Bank of Nova Scotia and Shincihi Kina raise identical points. Their 
main contentions can be summed up as follows:- 

(i)  The appellants delivered the gold to BOAC in London 
together with copies of the consignment note (Airway 
Bill) which properly and accurately, described the gold as 
such. The consignment note was prepared by the Forward- 
ing Agents on behalf of the appellants. They also paid 
freight at  a specially high rate for commodities of a very 
high value such as gold. In addition the Fo~ward ing  Agents 
on their behalf prepared a shipping bill and a 'C' certi- 
ficate for the purpose of U.K. Export requirements which 
also properly and accurately described the gold as SUCR 
and which were only duly lodged with the U.K. authorities. 
Thus. so far as the appellants were concerned, a true 
and proper declaration of the gold was gi\.en at the time 
the same was delivered to B.0.iZ.C. 

( 1 1 )  Although frorn the order uf the Collector it now appears 
that B 0 .A C. l~s ted  the gold as "Metal V" in their manifest, 
the appellants irere not aware until these proceed~ngs 
that this ivas or \vas even l~ke ly  to be done The said mani- 
fest was not prepared by the appellants but by BOAC for 
t h e ~ r  own purposes in London and they were not awarc 
of thc posltlun They were, howevel: aware that a copy 
o f  tht. consignment note would accompany the gold on the 
alrcraft and u ~ ~ ~ l d  thus provide a proper and accurate 
record of thc nature of the goods bemg c a r r ~ e d  by B.O.A.C. 

(iii) It was a term of the Contract of carriage made by the 
nppcllants with BOAC that the latter would carry the 
gold subject to all applicable laws and to the rules laid 
down in the Convention fo r  the Unification of certain 
Rules rclating to International Carriage by Air, signed at 
Warsaw, Oct. 12. 1929 as amended by the Hague Protocol 
in 1955. Thus, the appellants had, so far as they were able, 
imposed upon BOAC a duty to act in conformity with the 
Law. However, by reason and the terms of the aforesaid 
Convention. BOAC rnav well be entitled to limit their 
liability to the applla*ts to the sun of about f 7 Per kilo 



and that accordingly the appellants may not well be able 
to obtain full redress from BOAC, Indeed, BOAC had 
liability for the loss. 

The tindings of the Collector in  the order point to the 
responsibility of BOAC and the Collector has made no 
finding that the appellants were in any way party to any 
breach of the law. The Collector erred in not taking ink:, 
account the fact that neithelG by word, deed, conduct nor. 
intention did the appellants infringe or attempt tn infringe 
the law. In  fact, if the appellants had any ulterior moti\~e, 
they could have aiVoided the route through India. 

The Collector erred in failing to apply the fundamental 
principles of criminal jurisprudence which have been held 
to be applicable to such cases as the present by the Sup- 
reme Court in AIR 1961 SC. 264. 

In the absence of any fraudulent intention, amendment af 
the manifest under Section 30(3) of the Customs Act 
could not be refused. The word 'may' in Section 30(3) 
has the force of "shall". For this the appellants rcpl! up012 
a decision of the Prit.- Council reported in AIR 1923 P.C. 
138. 

In the facts of this case the proper Sec t~on  which could 
be applicable was I l l  (0). By approving the manifest in  
the first instance when the aircraft tvas allowed to take 
off, the proper officer had sanctioned the non-observani.~ 
of the condition regarding declaldaiion specified in the 
Notification of the Reserve Bank. The Preventive Ofticer 
who approved the manifest should haire been presented 
for cross-examination. 

(siii) A transit manifest is necessary only fur the article men- 
tioned in the Notification of the Reserve Bank dated 13th 
Nov. 1962 and no transit manifest is required to be filrd 
for other articles. 

32. The case of the Customs, In the first place, is that the second 
proviso of the Reserve Bank of India Notification of 8-11-62 requires 
that gold must be declared as gold and further,  that the same 1s for 
transit as same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo. The declaration 
that 'metai bar' or 'metal' was for transit as same bottom cargo was, 
therefolw, not sufficient compl~ance with the second proviso of the 
aforesaid Notification, In this connection, on the basis of the extracts 



f r o m  t h e  rep ly  to t h e  s h o w  cause n o t ~ c e  cited I n  Clause (I )  a n d  (v)  
of para  23 above, i t  is contcnded t h a t  t h e r e  is a c lear  a d m i s s ~ o n  on  
t h e  p a r t  of BOAC t h a t  t h e  breach of the  Notification h a s  t aken  
place. 

33. T h e  second content ion of the Custom is t h a t  in this case n o  
application Was nl& i n  t e r m s  of s e c t i o n  30('3); w h a t  S h r i  San tha-  
n u n  m a d c  w a s  a casual  q u c r y  only.  So f a r  a s  Cus toms  Officer5 ivcrc 
concerned,  t h e w  w s  n o  ap~,)li:.rttion c l thcr  oral  0 1 .  in  wr i t ing  at  a n y  
time: for  t h e  a m e n d m e n t  ol  the  mani fes t .  T h e  pcr.scjn to nrllom appl i -  
c:ltion IS m a d c  should  know t h a t  the application h a s  been rnade. I i  
i t  is m a d e  in a n  ambiguous  language.  it cannot  be said to  be at1 
appl icat ion.  I t  is. fu r ther .  con tended  that  thcw is c i rcumstant ial  
c\.itlence also which  shmvs tha t  S h r i  S a n t h a n a m ' s  q u e r y  could not 
be  :in npplication- T h e r e  w a s  no quest ion of h ~ s  makinq  a n  applicilt,c;i 
w h e n  he  took it for  grar11t.d that  'mcla l '  or 'mctal  bar '  w a s  a correc.; 
descr ipt ion.  F u r t h e r ,  if i t  \vets a n  application. BOAC u.ould have  
pursucd thtl m a t t e r  u.1tt1 t h e  higher  authori t ies .  I f  they w e r e  so 
oaji1.r ahout t!lis a p l ~ i i r a t i o n ,  \vhy did t!icY not t ake  t!le m a t t e r  to 
t h e  Collectos They  w e r e  being advised counscl.  va r lq )us  type5 
of  recluvsts \vc.rc nirtde; c8ven ;t requcs:  Ivas m a d e  a i  one s tage ;hat  
gold I K ~  alio\vt,d to  be  taken  back on  a Bank g u a r a n t e e  o r  some sort 
01  g t~a~.ar l toc. .  I3ut no highcr  vfficw u.d.; app!.oaciled a1 a n y  s:ag!e. v tth 
t h e  ~ ~ q u c ~ s t  t h a t  thc,!, should be allon~cci to a m e n d  t h e  maniles:. 

34. T!lc t!iirtl content ion of t h e  Cus toms  is tha t  e v e n  assuming  
~ v i t h o u t  admi t t ing  that  tlic!rc \\.:is 211 appl icat iun,  on  meri ts ,  amencl- 
m c n t  of  maniftbst is not justified. Acco!ding to them. f raudulen t  in-  
tontion c o ~ l l d  not 1 1 ~  1 ~ 1 i ~ i  ~ I L I ~ . :  !I: f';ic:. it i s  asser tcd tha t  t h e r e  w a s  
a  f r a u d u l e n t  in tcn t ic~n .  In  this ~ , o n n c c t i o n  refcrence \{'as inviteti  ti, 
tlic folloiving passage 111 \ h e  Trnfic. hlan:~al  of BOAC: 

I t  \vas argucad that  t!w in.;triictions vcAr! clearly sho\v that .  in  t h e  
mind BOAC, ttitrir s t a t c  of  a p p r e c ~ a t i o n  of la\\  \vas tha t  goods of 
S o u t h  Africa origin not be !rnrlb~tt,d th rough  India .  T h e  gold 
in qucs t ion  \\.:IS ,,f &iuth Afr ican  origin a n d  it \\.as being t a k e n  
th rough  India. They did n,,t want  i l ~ p  Cus toms  Clfficers to knoir tha t  
~ o l t i  of S o ~ ~ t h  Afr ican  o ~ i g i n  w a s  twing taken. If  the Cus toms  OFficers 



knew that the gold was of South African origin then the same would 
have been seized. As such, to avoid such a possibility, the declaration 
was made in this misleading manner. There was, thus, fraudulent 
mtention behind the incorrect manifestation. I t  was also argued that 
n o  person in BOAC took care to see that Indian laws were conlplied 
with for a period of about two years; not only that, they flouted their 
own instructions in their manual for declaring gold as gold. I t  was 
also .contended that malafides need not be on the part of the person 
preparing the manifest. In these circumstances, i t  was urged that the 
amendment of the manifest should not be allowed. 

35. Next, it was argued on behalf of Customs that neither the No- 
tification of 8-11-1962 nor any other pro~~is ion of the FERA permits 
amendment of manifest. As such, for  the purpose of Notification either 
the requisite declaration has been made o r  not made. The scope of 
the provision for amendment of the menifest under Section 30@) 
Customs Act is limited to the amendments for the purposes or the 
Customs Act only and can have no application to the declaration re- 
quired to be made under the said Notification of 8-11-1962. The pur- 
poses of manifesting under the two Acts namely the Customs Act 
and the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act are  different and i f  the 
purpose of one .4ct does not permit amendment, it will not be com- 
petent for any authority to allow that amendment. Under the said 
Nutifcation! declaration in the manifest is required in respect of few 
commodities only whereas provision for manifest under Section 30 
is ivith reference to all goods imported. The argument, therefore, 
was that for the purpose o f  the said Notification, the unamended 
manifest original filed will be relevant, and if the declaration made 
is not in term of the said Notification, the gold ivill he liable to con- 
fisc_arion. The amendment of the manifest will not take away the 
liability of gold to confiscation. 

36. On the other hand, the counsel for BOAC contended that Sec- 
tion 23A FERA deems the restrictions imposed by Section 8(1) of 
FERA to be restrictions by or undcr Section 11 of the Customs Act 
and further provides that all the provisions of the Customs Act will 
have effect accordingly. By this deeming provision, the offence is 
under the Customs Act, the is under the Customs Act 
and, therefore, provisions of Section 30(3) will apply to the dcclara- 
tion in the manifest made in pursuance of Notification of 8-1 1-1982. 

37. Having regard to the rival points of view mentioned earlier, 
in detail, the following issues arise fo r  consideration:- 

(1) Whether on the facts of this case provisions of section 
l l l ( o )  of the C U S ~ J ~ S  Act have any applicatiun a s  conten- 
ded un behalf of Mocatta Goldsmid; 



(2) Whether in a case where the article being carried in tran- 
sit is declared for transit as some bottom cargo or tranship- 
ment  cargo, but the nature of the article is insufficiently 
described, there is a breach of the Notification of the Re- 
serve Bank dated 8-11-62; 

(3) Whether the decision of the Supreme Court reported in 
AIR 1965 SC 722 is distinguishable from the facts of this 
case as contended by BOAC. 

(4)  Whether the declaration made in the manifcst in pursuanre 
of the Notification of 8-11-62 can be allowed to be amended 
under the provision of Section 30(3) ol the Customs Act; 

(5) If the amendment of the manifest is allowtd under Section 
30(3) of the  Customs Act. would such amendment take 
effect as if i t  existed in the manifest right from the date 
of i ts  first presentation and if so, would the amendment 
have the effect of satisfying the proviso of  the Xotl- 
fication of 8-11-62 

(6) Whether an  the basis of the cvidence on record, i f  car: 
be stated that a request for  amendment of tnc manifcst 
was mad? If  so, at  what stage: 

(7)  With regard to 'fraudulent ~ntcnt ion '  mdntloncci In sue- 
Sectlcm ( 3 )  nf Section 30 doc:, i t  refer to frdululent inten- 
t ~ o n  which has a bearlnS on the incompleteness or the in- 
correctness of the manicst cr fraudulent intention in any 
other respect can be taken :nto conslderatlm for the pur- 
pose of conslderlng amendment of thc man~fes t :  

(8) Whether the facts on r e v r d  disclose an! fraudulent inttln- 
t ~ o n  either on thc part of  BOAC or on the part of conslgners 
which had any bearing on tho declaration of gold as 'metal' 
or 'metal bar' In the manifest; 

(9) Whether in the circumstances of this case amendment of 
the manifest should be allo~ved or not; 

(10) Whether i n  thc circumstances of this case the gold \\,as 
liable to confiscation undcr Sec t~on  I l l ( d )  Customs Act 
for contravention of Section 8(1) FERA read \vith Section 
23A of the  FERA and Section 11 of the Customs Act and 
whether there was justification far levy of a penalty on 
BOAC under scction 112 and Section 114(1) of the  Customs 
Act; 

(11)  Whether the aircraft in quc-stion w a s  liahlr to confiscation 
undcr Scction 115(2) of th r  Customs Art;  and 



(12) Whether the  fines and penalties imposed in this case arc 
warranted on the  facts of this case. 

38. We now deal with each of these issues in the same order in 
which they have been mentioned in para 37 aove. 

39. ISSUE No. (1) 

In our vle\v. the prmrislons of Section l l l ( u )  of the Customs Act 
can have no application to 1 : ~  fac t s  of thls l a x  Scctlon 111(u) 
reads:- 

"Any goods esempted.  suh~ec t  to any  condition, from duty or 
any prohibition in respect of the import thereof under this 
. k t  or any other la\\. for thc time being in f$;rce. in respect 
of iv:l~ich the  condition is r.ot obscr\,ed unlcss the ncin-ob- 
scrrqancc of the condit1o.1 \\.as sanctiantd by the pr'clpcr 
officer." 

One of the essen!~nl r rqu~rc rnc !~ t s  for the  applicst~!m ( t i '   his sub. 
section is that the goods ~hoki ld  ha\.c hg2c1: v?;cmprt.d froni dl['!. or 
an\- prohibition i n  rt>ipe.*t r,f thc Import thc.reof. Chid is ~ i i ~ t  csrmpt 
from du!y nor,  in our op.121on. is i t  expect f w m  ~ ) r o h i l ~ i . ~ ~ i n  111 ~ ' c s l , cc~  
of the import thereof. The contention IT1:ic on behal: o f  hloc:~tt;i 
Goldsm~d (referred :o In par,, : l l ( \ . ~ i )  n i~o \ . c~)  1.. h ~ s t d  ,1:1 t h i ,  ~~nl,l!c!u 
assumpticm that the genrra! !wrm:+.; 1 1 f  ;hc K e - c ~ ~ c .  Bank i ~ r l t i c l ~  No- 
tification 8-11-62 nrnoiln? ! ( I  c:\:t,mpt frc~ni p r i ~ h ~ i ) ~ t ~ o n  I n  r e y ~ ' ~ ' 1  ( , I  
impor: of goid This as.:il~!>p:~c~n I \  nr~t  cr11 r ~ t .  A rt.;~ci:~,g c r t  S c c . ~ , o ~ l  
8 t l )  FERA itself ~ . o u i d  m a k c  clear !hilt the  said s t ~ t . c ~ ~ :  t i - (> '  th, 
expel'sslons 'esemprio;~'  and 'pt:.mlss!l~~i' 111 1\\.0 d~fTc!,c!:l >c'!>s~*s. 
S c t i o n  E ( 1 )  FERA r.eads:-- 

It mav  be seen ihat t ~ s e ~ n p t . ~ ! ~ .  i f  anv .  is  to Ire. givt::: on]!. 1): the 
Central Governmen! and 1s !(I t i r -  inc,orpciri~:cd in thc: Nr~t i f i r ; i t iu~~ 
prohihitinq import of ctrld. whc~rc~as the gtxn(.!ijl pcrmlssion cm he 
given ,,nly by t h e  Rrscrve Ehnk Thf notificatiorr \ \ .h ich  has h:cn 
issued by tile Crcntral C;ovcrnmc:nt in pii!.su;!ncr of S w t ~ o n  U ( 1 )  FERA 
prohibitinq ~rnpor t  of ~rold docs not c-ontirin ally c x e r n p t ~ o ~ ~  fro111 the 
said prohit~ition. On thr! ,,!her h a n d  t h ~  nr~tific,irticrn tl:ctid 8-1142 



issued by the Reserve Bank deals only with the general permission of 
the Reserve Bank and not with any exemption from prohibition. 
Thus, gold has not been exempted from the prohibition under Section 
8(1) FERA in respect of import thereof. That being so, sub-section 
I l l ( o )  can have no application to this case and the question of sanc- 
tioning non-observance of any condition referred to in the said sub- 
section docs not arise. Even otherwise, no Customs Officer had power 
to sanction non-observance of the ~~cquisemcnis  of the Reserve Ear~k 's  
Notification of 8-11-62 (and, as such, he could not have granted any 
such sanction as alleged. Therefore, the contention of Mocatta Golds- 
mid that the proper penal sub-section here was l l l ( o )  anti not I l l ( d )  
under which action has been taken in without substance, 

40. l SSUE NO.  (2 )  

The second qucstion f u r  cc~nsidcration is whether there would be 
an? breach of the Notification of the Reserve Bank dated 8-11-62 if  
the naturc of the al 't~cle is not sufficiently described in the manifest. 
though there is a de:lnration regarding its transit as same bottom 
cargo or. transhipmcnt cargo. One ( ~ f  the gruunds taken in the rnemll 
of appeal by BOAC is thnt the cargo manifest clearly indicate t h ~ t  
these consignments ;\.eri! in the course of being carried to Hong K o n ~  
and Okinatrn and trcre, therefores only in transit through India, and 
that. in thtb clrcurn.i tanr.~~~, the consignments ivere sufficien:li. des- 
cribcd in the rnanlf(>st as "the samp bottcrm cargo or transhipment 
cargo" s:r ;ci to f 111 ir.itiiln the Reser\.e B a n k ' s  Nl~tifiration of 8-11-62. 

N'tl ha\,c c.art~full\. lead the decisiw~ of the Sup~*emc Court rcs- 
ported in AIX 19(i5 S.C 722. I n  thc case hc!i)re the Supreme Court. 
the passenger u o n c e r ~ ~ e d  h i d  not made any declaration in the mani- 
fest and the C w r t  was r~o t  required to ct~nsider the qllestion whether 
n~nendmcnt  of the man~fcs t  undcr Section N ( 3 )  of the Customs Act 
could br allowed or not anti how fo r  tile esistcnce or otherwise of 
fraudulent intention was r.rlc\.;~nt for considering that  question. 
f.Iere, in the rase 1lnde.r consideration. BOAC did mrtke a declaration 
in thr-1 nliir~ifcst h u t  the silmr W;IS insufficient and,  accordingly, they 



want amendment of the manifest. For considering whether amend- 
ment should be allowed or not, the question of intention is material 
in terms of Section 30(3) of the Customs Act, Thus, in our op i~ ion ,  
the said decision of the Supreme Court is clearly distinguishable 
f r j m  the present case. 
42. ISSUE NO. (4) 

The next issue 1s whether the declaration made in the manifest jn 
pursuance of the Notification of 8.11.62 can be allowed to  be amend 
under the ~rovisions of Section 30 (3) of the Customs Act. The con- 
tentions of both sides with regard to this point have already been men- 
tioned in paras 35 and 36 above. In order to have a proper apprecia- 
tion of this issue. it appears necessary to examine some of the relevant 
provisions of the FERA and the Customs Act. Section R I I )  of the 
FERA empowers the Central Government to order, by means of a noti- 
fication, that no person shall, except with the general or special permis- 
sion of the Reserve Bank bring or send into India any geld or silver 
or any currency notes or bank notes or coin whether Indian or foreign 
By Notification dated 25th August, 1948, as amended, issued under Sec- 
tion 8(1) FERA, the Central Government has directed that, except 
with the general or special permission of the Reserve Rank, no per- 
son shall bring or send into India f.rom anv place outside India. 
inter alia, gold bullion. By a Notification of the Reserve Bank 
dated 8-11-62, which has been issued in pursuance of :he 
Central Government's Notification of 25th August. 1948. general 
permission to transit through India, inter-alia, gold has been 
given subject to two provisos. Both these notifications. thus, 
deal with the scope of the restrictions imposed by section 
8(1) FERA. Under section 23A FERA, restrictions imposed by 
Sub-section (1) of Section 8 F.E.R.A. are deemed to !\eve been im- 
posed under Section 11 of the Customs Act and all the provisions 
of the Customs Act have effect accordingly. Therefore, the position 
is that, by virtue of the provisions of Section 23A F.E.R.A., the re- 
strictions imposed by Section 8(1) F.E.R.A, i t ,  inter-a!ia, those im- 
posed by the notification of 25th August. 1948 and the Reserve 
Bank's Notification of 8.11.62, have to be deemed to have been im- 
posed under Section 11 of the Customs Act. In other words, the 
requirement of a declaration in the manifest under the section pro- 
viso of the Reserve Bank's Notification of 8-11-62. becomes a require  
ment of the Customs Act and all the provisions of the Ctlstoms Act 
have effect accordingly. The provisions of Section 30(3) of the  
Customs Act would, therefore, apply to a declaration in thc mani- 
fest made under the Reserve Bank's Notification of 8.11.62 in the 
same manner and to the same extent as they apply to entry made in 
the manifest in pursuance of the  pro\'isions of ~ e ~ t i o n  30(11 of 



Customs Act. We are, therefore, of the view that the declaration 
made in the manifest in pursuance of the Notification of 8.11.62 can 
be allowed to be amended under the provisions of Section W(3) 02 
the Customs Act. 

53. ISSUE No. (5) 

The question for consideration is that if the amendment of the 
manifest is allowed under Section 30(3) of the Customs Act, from 
which date such amendment would take effect. In our opinion, 
the amendment of the manifest takes effect right f.ruiii the date of 
its first presentation. The object of amending the manifest is evid- 
ently to set right the position and to remove the incorrectness or 
incompleteness of :he manifest which existed prior to its amendment. 
If  the amcndrnent or supplcmentation of the manifest is not able 
to cure the defect in the manifest and to eIirninnk the evil conse- 
qucnces u.hiuh ~ u u l d  hai.t, iiou.;.d from tlw incorrectness or the 
~ncumplctcncss of thc manifest. thew noyld hardly be any purpose 
111 arncnrling tht. manifest and tlie prov;sion to amend the  manifest 
ivould imome an empty fo1-nia!ity. The counsel for n .0 .A.C.  in- 
vited :tur :~ttenr:or? to  111c riccisi:ms rcpi~rted i n  .4IR 1936 Rangoon 
508 :iiii :938 Parn:: ?!I:. .LAIR 1914 I ~ i i ~ , ) r ~ .  1 6 3 ,  AIR 1925 hladras 
487, AIE 19 ~ I ? - ! ' ! . ~ . I > ~  32 '1  ( : k!,;) >,nd AIR l c 1 3  l i :? jr :s  153 in supoort 
of  his p!ca tha: t i ~ c  ;:mc!:?cil:ic;:; o i  i i : ~  rn::!lifcst ix:o;~l:', t ake  effect 
as i f  t)-,c same cv:;.tpd in :hi. n~nriiic>::r ri;!:' i:, :li t ? i .  cintc of its 
fiisl pl.c>::nt;rtiu::. lye i:il\-c car.efi.~l!y cmsidcrcd these decisions. 
Tl!t'se rlcrisions : . t . f ~ k :  ti., 1:)7(, cfyec: of, : i i L  i?mc:?d~:er;: of pleading 
un!ier O~.rtc?r 6 Hi:ic 1': of thc Civii Procedii:-c Codc ai1.i are, there- 
fore. not dirc,c!ly in pn:ni.  But the dicta hi:! down in these auth- 
orities to support the contention that amendment of thc manifest 
should kkr cflcct from the date of its first presentat.ird7 We con- 
sider that the very purpose of amending a manifest wollld be lost 
if the amendment does not take effect from the date of its first 
presentation. 

44. ISSUE No. (6) 
The next point which falls for our consideration is whether o n  

the basis ob the evidence on record it can be stated that a request 
for amendment of the manifest was made and if so a t  what stage. 
The rival contentions on thls point have already been rmmrnarised 
in paras 27 and 33 above. There is no dispute that under Section 
M(8) of the Cusbma Act no procedure is prodded, there is no form 



of the application and there is a h  no prlal of llmitrtton laitbin 
whkh the request for amendment has to be made. In fact, it h 
comnmn ground that a request for amendment of the manifest may 
be in Writing or oral. Shri S N. Karkhanis, the Assistant Collector 
of Customs, Incharge at Palam in reply to a specific question, "Do 
you accept verbal applications or request for amendment of the 
manifest", has stated "In some cases we do accept". He has, how- 
ever, further added that in that case it is not in the form of a 
query and "it is allowed on the regular request which is floowed by 
a subsequent action for amending the manifest". During the arg'd- 
ments, the DRI conceded that the application could be made orally 
but he argued that at  least the person to whom the a;qlication is 
made should know that such an application has been made. It  is, 
therefore, necessary to recount the evidence in this regald, in some 
detail. 

45. Shri Santhanam has stated in his affidavit:- 

"At approximate 1645 on 15th Sept. I asked the Customs 
Inspector Mr. Ramachandaran for transhipment facility. 
He asked to see the consi,gnment note which was duly 
produced to him. When he examined the consignment 
note he noticed that it had been incorrectly manifested 
i.e, described as "metal and not L'gold" on the cargo 
manifest. He stated that he would have to hrinq ,this to 
the notice of his Astt. Collector. I expln~ncd to qi ln i +nr  
this was clearly an error and that I would makc: an 
application to make an amendment to 'the manifest and 
would pay the usual amendmeni fee. The 1nspect.s:. re- 
fused to accept the application until he had discussed the 
matter with the Assistan,t Collector. I went along with 
him to the Assistant Collector's Office and explained to 
the Asstt. Collector why it was desirable for us to 
manifest the shipmen,t as metal and that this was a 
BOAC Regulation to ensure safeguarding. I showed 
him the relevant instructions in cargo manual Regulations 
on safeguarding and also pointed out that the descriiption 
of the goods on the consignment note was in fact correct. 
Ha appreciated my explanation but regretted he muld 
not do anything until he  referred the matter ta higher 
authorities as the ~ O U &  of gold was af a huge quantity 
and 'acboMfng to Yrn we had violabd thF h V f 4  of 
land". 



In his oral statement beQon rur, Shri Santhanam stated that he 
told Shri RamachanQan that the incomplete description of the manifest w a s  purely due to error and that  he be allowed to amend 
the manifest. This request was not accepted. During the croas- 
examination Shri Santhanam was asked a question, "Did you make 
any request for amendment of the manifest to the Collector", Shri 
Santhanam replied- 

"No. In this case the Asstt. Collector did not refuse my 
request. All that he said was that he would consult 
higher, authorities. But thereafter the whole thing ex- 
ploded and the things moved on so rapidly that I could 
not even coherently think about the course of action. 
My manager being new was not very well conversant 
with these things." 

Shri Karkhanis has stated- 

"I scrutinised the manifest and found that it was not declared. 
Mr. Santhanam at  that time also said that what can be 
done wi:h regnrrl to amending of the manifest. He was 
told that at thls point of time the gold was liahlc to con- 
fiscation and nothing can be done." 

During his cross examination mc p ~ l t  a specific qucstion to Shri 
Karkhanis 'Did Mr. Santh.innrn rcqut.:;: you  th,i, hc s l~o~ul t l  he ailo- 
wed to amend the m:mi!'cst"? Tlic reply of Shri  Kar'rhanis was 
"At t h a t  point of timc he did say well \xjhy can't wc arncnci thz 
manifest. I told his that a t  this point of time the ?old was liable 
for confiscation". Another question put to Shri Karkhanis was 
"Did he tell you that there scems to be a mistake in the manifest 
and that i t  is properly declared in the consignment notes and,  there- 
fore, please amend the marlifest"? The answer given was, "No, 
he  did say why can't we amend the manifest". Again in reply to 
anot,her quclstion, Shri Kxkhanis  stated ''Xe told me as far  as 'l 
remember not in the office but at the counter that this is their prac- 
tice to describe gold as "metal" and why can't he amexl  the mani- 
fest". Shri Ramachanaran, the Air Customs Inspector on duty a t  
Palam, a t  the relevant time, stated before us- 

"I told Mr. Santhanam that our Notification on the subject 
was very clear and that  the gold which was being trans- 
ferred through India should be declared as gold and by 
no other term. Since the gold was not mentioned as gold 
in the manifest, the same was ,liable to confiscation. 
Then Mr. Smithanam thought over a while and  asked 



what could be done and whether I would permit mend- 
ment of the I told Lim that the queetion did 
not arise at that stage". 

However, in amwer to a specific question "Was any application 
made to you for permission to amend the manifest?" Shri Rama- 
chandran replied "No Sir". He was further asked "Was m y  such 
application made in your presence to the Asstt. Collector oraljy or 
in writing"? Then answer was "Not to my knowledge". When 
Shri Ramachandran was asked "We thought an oral request was 
made by Mr Santhanam", the reply was "Mr. Santhansm said what 
could be done; if the manifest could be amended. I said no". Ag- 
ain the question put to him was "So you did not take i t  as an appli- 
cation". He gave the answer "No Sir. It was a casual query; not 
an  application." A specific question was put to Shri Ramachand- 
ran whether he asked Shri Santhanam to make any npplication in 
writing. Shri Ramachnndran replied "No, I did not, since he only 
made a query". The answer lo two other questions are also rele- 
vant. Question-"You mentioned tha t  for  the first time i t  was at  
about 3 0' clock t11:it Mr. S:in:i!nnam d i d  you whether anicnd- 
ment could be permitted. Is i t  so''? Answer: "That ;s so Sir". 
Question-"You told him that it could no1 Le permiled". Answer: 
"Yes Sir". 

46. In the reply to the show cause notice HO;1C s:::tecl i l i  Sub- 
para (4)  of para 17-19 "Whc:: the c;.rol, ~i.,ts riissccvevtd RIIl-. Siin- 
thanam B.O.A.C.'s Act,ing Airport hIatl:ly,t\~ &,'i \.c:!:al! request 
pern~ission to make such ::a r u n c n d ~ n e n ~  to t i x  rnardcst". In the 
end of their reply, they h:ive fur lher  st::tcd "The i~onai~des of the 
Respondent, however, arc absolutely evident and, tlicrefore, i t  is 
requested that as rcrluested by Mr. Santhanam. already, the mani- 
fest may be allowed to be corrected so as to conform strjctly to  the 
Regulations" We also find that during the personal henring before 
the Collector they had again made a specific request for permission 
to ge,t the manifest suitably amended under Section 30(3)  of the 
Customs Act. During the hearing they also invited attention to 
the  request made verbally by Shri Santhavam to Palam Customs 
and the request made in their reply to the show cause notice. In  
fact, in his order, the Collector while summing up the defence of 
B.O.A.C., has observed that one of the points taken by them was- 

''The gold and aircraft were not liable to confiscation simply 
because of inadequate description of the "gold" as "metal 
V" or "metal bar V" in  the manifest. B.O.A.C. should 
have been given the benefit of Section M(3) of Custot~i8 
Act, 1062, the goldbeing in transit as same bottom cargo, 



they should have been allowed to amend the manifests as 
requested by their Airport Manager, SM K. Santhanam. 
They requested release of the gold and the aircraft after 
amending the manifest suitably." 

The finding of the Collector in this regard is- 

"I also do not accept their contention that at  best the case 
could be treated as a case of incomplete manifestation 
or insufficient description without any fraudulent inten- 
tion. I reject their pleas that the case should be treated 
as a case falling under sub-clause (3) of Section 30 of 
the Customs Act, 1962 and amendment to the manifest 
be allowed". 

47. From the aforesaid evidence, it appears to us that a repres- 
entative of B.O.A.C, had asked for the amendment of the manifest 
but the same was not permitted because the officers on the spot 
seemed to have taken the view that since gold had not been dec- 
lared as gold but as metal o: metal bar, the same was liable to 
confiscation and, as such, amendment of the manifest could not be 
permitted. We consider that the request made by the representa- 
tive of B.O.A.C. was not a mere query but ,an oral request for 
the amendment of the manifest. In any case, a request in writing 
was made in their reply to the shw cause notice as well as during 
the personal hearing before the Collector. The Collector has spe- 
cifically rejected the request in his order. We, therefore, hold that 
a request for amendment of the manifest in terms of Section 30(3) 
of the Customs Act was made by BOAC as soon as the mistake was 
noticed and also at  relevant subsequent stages. 

48. ISSUE NO. (7) 

We have no doubt in our mind that for considering the question 
whether amendement of the manifest should be allowed or not, 
what the proper officer has to satisfy himself is whether there was 
any fraudulent intention which had any bearing on the incomp 
leteness or the incorrectness of the manifest. Intention of the par- 
ties in any othep respect which could not have any bearing on the 
preparation of the manifest would be irrelevant in this context. 
As such, in this case what we are required to consider is whether 
t h e  was any fraudulent intention either on the part of B.O.A.C. 
or of Mocatta Goldsmid in rn- the declaration in the mtrnifest 
in the manner in wNch it has etcthally been made in the relevant 
atrim of the manifest. 
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49. ISSUE NO. (8) 

The next question for consideration is whether the facts on re- 
cord disclose any fraudulent intention either on the parF of B.O.A.C. 
or on the part of consignors which had any bearing on the declaration 
of gold as "metal" or "metal bar" in the manifest. In order to find 
out  whether there was any fraudulent intention or not, we have, 
therefore, to examine the circumstances in which the declaration 
"metal" or "metal bar" was made in the manifest, the conduct of 
BOAC in genenal and in particular with regard to these two con- 
signments, the full facts from the time the plane arrived in India 
for the first time upto the seizure of gold, the likely advantage or 
gain which could accrue to BOAC by declaring the gold as "metal" 
or "metal bar" the possibility of collusion hctween B.0.A.C and 
the consigners, the conduct of the consignors throughout with re- 
gard to them two consignments and other allied factors. 

50. The Traffic Manual Cargo Regulations of BOAC had at  the 
relevant time following instructions- 

"Gold Bull~on must Le additionally protected as follows: 
I )  The use of the terms "gold" and "bulliod' mus! be 

avoided. Such shipments must be refcrrc~d to in corr- 
espondence and shown on Manifests and other docu- 
ments as "metal" except for shipments consigned to or 
in transit through India, where such practice is not 
permitted by the Customs authorities". 

From these instructions, which were in force at the relevant 
time, i t  would appear that BOAC had taken care to issue instruc- 
tions to their staff that for India declaration of gold as "metal" 
was not permissible. The affidavit given by Shri Keith Granville, 
Deputy Chairman ,and Deputy Chief Executive of BOAC throws 
light on the history of how the instructions that gold should be des- 
cribed as metal came to be issued. Enclosed to the said affidavit is 
a copy of "Hand-Book of Instiructions and general information" 
published by Imperial Airways, a predecessor Company of B.0 A.C. 
These instructions were issued in 1935. Paragmph 11 of the Sec- 
tion dealing with precious cargo reads as follows:- 

Documentation 

"Gold (coin or bullion), silver, platinum, jwellery etc., 
should be described on consignment notes labels and 
manifests as "METAL" and should be referred to the 
"METAL" in conversation". 
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la hir roldpvid, Sbp.1 Keith Granville has stated- 

"In my early years of Airlines service, I was frequently 
concerned with the Preparation of aircraft documenta- 
tion and I recall that as long ago as 1934 it was our prac- 
tice to describe gold as "Metal" in documentation which 
we prepare. I believe that this practice bas continued, 
firstly in Imperial Airways and then in BOAC since that 
time. The purpose is and always has been the avoidance 
of theft, the dangers of which have increased !rather than 
decreased over the years. Nevertheless, it has never 
been B.O.A.C.'s intention that security interests should 
take precedence over the requirements of Natlonal laws 
and I greatly regret that as has become apparent from 
the incident out uf which these proceedings arose; our 
procedures have allowed for important provisions in our 
own regulations to be overlooked. B.O.A.C. values its 
reput3tion for integrity in all its dealings, and in parti- 
cular its dealiyg with soverign Govt., and would not 
deliberately seek to evade its lawful responsibilities." 

51 Shri T. A. A. Cooper, Supervisor, Cargo Reservations BO.  
A.C. in his iffidallit has given the detailed procedure regarding the 
preparation of the manifest prior to and after 1965. He says-- 

"In June, 196 B.O.A.C.'s cargo handling arrangements at  
London Airport underwent a w r y  great reorganisation 
and expansion and I was promoted An important part 
of the new improved system was the introduction of elec- 
tronic data processing systems to replace functions prev- 
iously carried out manually; In the organisation 1 was 
called a Manifest Production Officer and my duties in- 
volved the supervision of staff and also the responsibil- 
itv for the programming of IBM 444 Tabulator machines. 
Until Nov. 1965 the preparation of the cargo manifest 
was dealt with manually bv a Flight Allocation Officer 
and a clerk who typed out' the manifest. Flight Alloca- 
tion officer would pass to the clerk the consignment notes 
in batches of destination and the clerk would then type 
particulars from them into the cargo manifest. During 
their training Flight Allocation Offlcelrs would have been 
told of the Traffic Manual Cargo Regulations and should 
have been aware of the provision in Section A 3 regard- 

. ing the safeguarfing of gold and the need to use the yC$ 
'metal' instead of 'gold'. They should also have been 
awaTe of the exception regarding India. Before Novem- 



k r ,  IW, the l%&t Wocation Ofher would have en- 
aved that the exception concernirzg Lndia was noted and 
would have instructed the clerk to insert "Gold" and not 
to use the term 'Metal'. Many of the clerks as a result 
of experience would have noted this without being told 
although through pressure of work or some other distr- 
action, one cannot be absolutely certain that even before 
November, 1965 the exception was noted in each and every 
caw.'' 

52. Regarding the new system, Shri Cooper says- 

"In B.O.A.C.'s Cargo Terminal a t  London Airport there is a 
long room known as the pre-flight documerltation room. 
After the consignment n o t e  and invoices have t e n  che- 
cked in one section of the room where punch card op- 
erators are working on IBM 26 Printing Card Punch 
Machines. These machines contain punch card blanks and 
each card blank is capable of having punched into it de- 
tails of each consignment. The or>er,ator has a key board 
bearing certain characters. He checks the details from 
the consignment note and translates this informatilm on 
to a card. Because the card has only 14 character spaces, 
the operator has to abbreviate descriptions of certain 
goods. Among the details punched on to the card ii: the 
destination of the goods, the consignment note No., the 
number of pieces, the nature of the goods, the weight, the 
place of original departure and the plan of ultimate des- 
tination. This operator is concerned only with the de- 
tails to be punched on the card and he is punching cards 
in  respect of consignments which are going on various 
flights ,and not just one particular flight. Thus although 
the operator is aware of the place to which the goods are 
to be taken, he is not aware of the en-route stops 
Each day on average approximately 1400 consignment are 
dealt with in this system. The operator of the card 
punch machines is aware from his instructions that for 
security reasons BOAC's general practice is to describe 
gold as 'metal' and in punching cards he would so des- 
cribe the consignments of gold. I produce as exhibit "A" 
reproductions of the two punched cards actually made 
in respect of the two consignments which are the sub- 
ject matter of these proceedings. The operators, when 
they were trained by BOAC to.operate card punch mach- 



insq would not have been instructed that when adopting 
thh security dwription, there was an exception in the 
case of gold consigned to or in transit though India. 
The standarctisation of procedure as part of the moderni- 
eation procesg meant that individual cases receivd less 
personal attention, particularly $n view of the greatly 
inoreased volume of traffic. Having punched the details 
on the card relating to the particular consignment, the 
cards is then placed between the copy of the consignment 
notes which remains at the cargo terminal and the copy 
and the mvolces which go on with the goods to their 
destination. The two parts of t h +  consignment note and 
the involces and the punched card are then passed on to 
progress clerks tor sorting. If the booking sheet of the 
aircraft on which cargo is to travel has been received 
from Skyload, the conslgninent notes are tlcked off the 
booking sheet and placed underneath it to awfait collec- 
tion by the Flight Allocation Officer. If the booking 
sheet has not been received the consignment notes will 
be pigeon-holed until the book sheet is received." 

Shri Cooper then desyribes the functions of the light Allocation 
Oficer. Dealing furth!.r with the process of manifestation Shri 
Cooper say* 

"The punched cards are then passed to the operator of the  
IBM 441 Tabulator which runs off the preliminary cargo, 
manifest required to be passed to load despatch at the 
warehouse in order to prepare the load for the flight. 
There is fed into this Tabulator a card to show the carrier, 
a card for the Flight Number, a card for the destination 
and a card for the cargo leading together with the migi- 
nal punched card for each consignment. These cards are, 
fed in the right; order according to the destination of the 
goods to be shown in the cargo manifest. The operator. 
then presses the necessary buttons and switches. The 
tabulator then reproduces on to the cargo manifest the 
necessary information extracted from those cards and in 
the first place reproduces the preliminary cargo manifest. 
This is in stencil form and can be reproduced by dupli- 
cators. The preliminary cargo manifest is then despatched 
in the air tube to the cargo warehouse, one copy going 
to each department where the goods are located, inclu- 
ding one in the strong room and a copy goes to the Cust- 
tams watcher. Ln the carga warehouse various consign- 
ments are collected into one area trum their position& 



in the warehouse &r the control of a deqpatcher and 
the two conaipmenta of gold were removed from the 
strong room under security and taken to aircraft side. 
The Flight Allocation Ofacer makes a f b l  check on the 
load on board and then prepares with the use of the Tab- 
ulator the final cargo manifest which is then reproduced 
in a number of copies." 

53. During his examination before us, Shri Cooper stated that 
prior to 1965 when the computer system was not installed, barring 
some cases of error, they were making declaration as gold. Subse- 
quently, the declaration made was 'metal V'. 'Metal V' included 
gold? silver, platinum and radium. He also mentioned that the 
punch card operators in London would not, at the time of punc- 
hing the cards, know of the route hy which the plane was to fly 
with the result t h ~ . ~  could not take steps to declare gold in the 
punch cards as gold in cases of transit through India. He explained 
that the only difference between the two periods has. been that 
during the earlier period the manifests we:e being prepared by 
human beings whcri~as in  :h(. subsequent period the Tabulating Mach- 
ine prepares the manifest from the punched card. The experience 
of thc Flight, illioc~ifiun Officers remained the same during both 
the periods. Rut, because of the mass production of the manifests 
after cornputorisation, the time available to thc Flight Allocation 
Officer was not the same and was very much reduced. There was 
also pa.ucity of staff in U.K. Therefore, with increased producti- 
vity, with the increase of speed and with much lessel; time av'ailable 
far checking, the Flight Allocatiop Officers should not bother about 
Indian Regulations. The consignment notes were prepared on be- 
half of the consignors by the MIT Transport Agency. If the con- 
signers wanted to avoid India, they could have booked by some 
other Flight. Normally, B.O.A.C. are honour bound to take by the 
flight specified by the consigor but they do not guarantee. 

54. Shri G. H. Somner, Senior Project Officer Cargo Unit, B.O. 
A.C., has stated in his affidavid: 

"(a) As the officer largely responsible for introducing the 
system, I was awr:.c of the requirements in th,e Traffic 
Manual. I was also aware that under the existing pro- 
cedures, the Flight Allocation Officers were or ought to 
have been aware of this requirement and that in the course 
of their duties, they should have ensured its compliance. 

( b )  The function of the Flight Allocation Oflicers under the 
new System was basically the same as under the old sys- 
tem-the chief difference'being that a new and more 

I . .  sophisticat;Pd.tool had been tntroduced into the system. 



(c) It waa not possible t~ build into this 'tool' m y  automatic 
procedure whereby the machine itself could pick up any 
exception such as applies in the case of the carriage of 
guld through India The machine con only do what it Is 
instructed to do by the punched card. Although, the IBM 
444 machine is capable of producing documentatiw in- 
finitely faster than its human counterpart, i t  is neverthe- 
less not a very advanced piece of machinery in compara- 
tive terms. I t  is not a computor and has no memory in 
that, it cannot be programmed in advance to take into ac- 
count certain given rules or exceptions. 

(d) It  was, therefore,, necessary to continue to rely on the 
human checks provided by Flight Allocation Officers. We 
did not, however, really foresee the extent to which the 
pressures on the Flight Allocation Officers under the 
new system would increase as they in fact did. The in- 
crease in pressure was partly due to thc fact that they no 
longer had the assistance of the clerk/typist (who pre- 
vlously typed the manifest) and partly because of the in- 
crease in work arising from the introduction of aircraft 
wlth much greatcr capacity dnd to the gcncml lncrease in 
E.O.A.C.'s cargo business." 

52. The evidence of these two witnesses shows that prior tc, 
November, 1965 the cargo manifests were being prepared by clerks/ 
typists. During this period, by and large, L3.O.A.C. were declaring 
in their manifests gold in transist through India as 'gold'. In Nov- 
ember, 1965, a new system for the manifest preparation namely the 
Unit Record System was introduced. This involved the use of an 
IBM 026 Printing Card Punch Machine and an IBM 441 Tabulator. 
After the introduction of the new system, the consiqnments of gold 
passing through India have been declared as 'metal' or ' m e t 4  Bar'. 
During both these periods the responsibility for ensuring tha t  the 
manifest was correct and complied with Customs Regulations was 
that of the Flight Allocation Officers. It  has been urged by B.O.A.C. 
that in the post November, 1965 period the pressure of the work in 
the Flight Allocation Officers increased considerably partly due to 
the fact that they no longer had the assistance of the clerkitypist 
(who previously typed the manifests) and partly because of the in- 
crease in work arising from the introduction of aircraft with much 
greater capacity and to the general increase in B.O.A.C.'s cargo 
business, It has also come in  evidence that between London apd 
kongkong there weGe three routes qn which B.O.A,C's services, ope- 
rdted out of wliich only or& pa&d through ~ndia ,  and that all'these 



three routes were used to cam, intm-clli~, consignments of gold in 
the normal course. The deposition of %ti Cooper before us at the 
time of hearing has also brought out the fact that at  the time nf 
punching the cards, the punch card operators were not aware of the 
r0,ut.e of the flight and, as such, according to the general practice of 
B.O.A.C., they were punching gold as 'metal' only. Further, as stated 
by Shri Cooper, the standardisation of procedures as part of the 
mdernisation process and the mass production of manifests meant 
that individual cases received less personal attention, particularly in 
view of the greatly increased vqlurne of traffic. To sum up, the 
factors responsible for the declaration of gold In transit through 
India as 'metal' or 'metal bar' instead of goid in the manifest in the 
post November, 1965 period appear to be: (i) the absence of the 
human check and the individual attention which was being provided 
by the exlvrienced clerks typists who .were preparing the manifest 
prior to November, 1965 without the aid of machines, (ii) at the 
time of punching the cards, since the punch card operators did not 
know as to which gold consignments would pass t,hrough India, they 
could not punch the same as 'gold' (the general practice of B.O.A.C. 
for security reasons being to punch as 'metal' or 'metal bar ') ,  (iii) 
increased volume of traffic due to the general increase in the 
B.O.A.C's cargo business and the increased work arising from the 
introduction of aircraft with much great,er capacity, (iv) the stand- 
ardisation of procedures resulting from the computor system and 
the mass production of manifests meant that individual cases rece~ved 
less personal attention, (v) the consequent increase in the pressure 
of work on the Flight Allocation Oflicers under t,he new system. It 
appears that the machines caused some complacency in the minds of 
persons responsible for manifest preparation. The facts that prior t o  
November, 1965, with the exception of stray cases, gold was being, 
declared as 'gold' when in transit through India whereas after Nov- 
ember, 1965 till September, 1967 the same has been consistently dec- 
lared as 'metal' or 'metal bar', also indicate that the m i s t a b  in the 
manifest started as a result of the factors arising from the introdm- 

, tion of the new system and not due to any evil design or dishonest 
motives on the part of the B.O.A.C. I t  could nut be that under the 
old system the intentians of B.O.A.C. were honafide and immediately 
with the introduction of the new system they became mala we.. 
Further, i t  so happened, that from November, 1965 until this case the 
mistake was neither noticed by B.O.A.C. nor by the Customs with the 
result the same .persisted throughout this period. We, accordingly, 
do not agree with the Collector that this was a case of deliberate mis- 
decka t ion  or that the mistake was Qeliber&ly repeated. This could. 
be ~mlp if the mistake had bcm earlier noticed either b y  



B.O.AC. or by the Customs and in spite of that the same was repeated 
It is also relevant to mention that the instructions in the B.0.A.C .'s 
Traffic Manual (reproduced in para 50) to the effect that the general 
practice of B.O.A.C. declaring 'gold' as 'metal' was not permitted in 
India, have been there both before and after November 1965 without 
any change. Thus, in so far as  the higher management of B.O.A.C. 
was concerned, i t  cannot be said that they did not bother for the 
Indian Regulation on the subject as contended by the Customs. There 
certainly has been some human failure as a result of too much de- 
pendence on mechanisation, but we do not discern in the evidence 
either any fraudulent intention or any intention to disregard Indian 
Regulations or any wilful neglect or any conscious or deliberate re- 
petition of the mistake. 

5G. The evidence regarding the events that happened at Delhi 
consists of the affidavit and the statement of Shri  Santhnnarn, Acting 
Airport Manager of B.O.A.C. a t  the relevant time, the statelnents of 
various members of the staff of B.O.A.C. taken immediately aftor the 
seizure of these consignrncnts 2nd the sI:>tcrlletit: ol  l h c  Asstt. Col- 
lector or Customs, Shrl Karlihanis and Air Cus ;o~~ i s  Inspector, Shri 
Rarnadlanrlrnn. 

57. This evidence discloses the f u l l ~ u ' i n ~ : ,  1;icta:- 

P, O..\.C s c 1 7 . i ~ ~  1'3.4 Olti \vas :;ilir.: ib!l!:i ! )  ar;ivi7 n l  X'.i1:11n 
a! 0415 I A C ; ~  'I'rrnt' (LTj on ' ! t r ,  ; , i , i ,  C,t..!j!l.c!!!!!~cr ' 1 ' 1 ~  SCY- 

vice \v.s, ~II~J!,v~! ;ct., (:p?r:!!i!i:; !,(:'I!: , , :  act! I ( . * ~ ' : ' ; ~ T  ; 11:; ; I ( : ~ U ; J I ~ J '  
came in a t  1040 LT 011 14!h Sr.p!crnl~ 2 1 .  ;In(/  1c:Ct i ~ t  I 1  !!I LT 
o ~ ?  14111 Scpte~nh-r .  Tilt. n i l  ).:,I'; ! . : ~ ! ~ ! ; . r ~ c , d  a! nppraximale- 
ly 1300 LT because of engini: t im~! ) l c .  

A signal was ~ w e l v e d  In the duty room of EOAC a t  P a l m  
at approxlrnately 18.15 LT on tllc 13th September. This 
signal read as follows:- 

"TO 168 

QU FMFFEBE BKKAPBA HKGAPBA NDHKDBA 
LHPF'EBA 131227 DG 
FE27413 AT IN SECURITY BA316'13 AWE 861185 
2411227 KGS METAL OPEN HOLD STOWAGE 
20 HOLD ONE 4 HOLD 3 SAFEGUARD." 

The teleprinter operator, Shri Kulkarni put the signal in 
the trip file without taking any further action. Duty 
Wker S M  R. D. Sdth saw the taip file but neither in- 



la 
formed his relievin8 duty ot8cer Shri Pujji who came on 
duty in the morning of 14th at about 6715 LT nor the odtlce 
of Shri Santhanam. 

(3) Duty OfBcer, Shri Pujji remained on duty from 5715 LT 
to 1600 LT on 14th September. According to his statement 
he was not informed by anybody that  there was gold on  
board. The Captain also did not inform him. Therefore, 
on 14th September when the plane arrived for the first 
time or when i t  came back again for the  second 
time Shri  Pujj i  was not aware that gold was on board. 
He categorically says that duty officer Shri Smith did not 
inform him abo,ut this gold cargo. He had also not. seen 
the signal receivcd on the earlier day. Traffic Asstt. Shr i  
R. K. Sobti ar.J Traffic Clerk, Shri A .  K. Sharma also came 
on duty jn the morning of 14111 Septem'wr  whereas Shri 
Sharma came on duty a t  0800 LT on 14th. According to 
the statement of Shri Sobti he had golie through the signals 
ptrlamng to this ilight inlmediately on his arrival cn duty 
and distr~buted the same amongst the stnf'f for action. He 
took it for granted t l~n t  t h e  tlut\- o!Ecer must have seen 
tho signal: as such hc did not col~sider i t  necessary t:, in- 
form either the outgoing or the i n c o m i n ~  Duty Officer, 
namely Shri Smith or Shri Pujji.  Sllri Sobti.  further says 
that he  passed on thc si,gpal 'to S ~ J , I  Sharruia w h o  .v js  
attending to the loading on that day.  13cs:dc; pa5s.n;; on 
the  signal he did not give him I ~nstruclicns. Shri 
Sobti further says tha t  there is ria specla1 s a f e p a r d s  to 
be taken for the valuable 2 d t . g ~ .  l f ~  r o ~ l l d  n o t  make out 
from the signal as to  what sr~icguclr.:i was lo  be taken and  
also did no$ enquire the same from the Duty Oificcr. Ac- 
cording to Shri Sobti ? ~ y  the wn:A 'Flet:ll V' cppearing on 
the manifest and safeguard inslruclions which were rc- 
ceivcd by the signal. he  could not make out ihat  gold was 
on board. I t  could be any valuabl? 'metal'. Even Shri  
Sharma who had been entrusted the job of safeguarding 
the 'metal' did nolt inform him that  there was gold on 
board. Shri  Sharma confirms the  statement of Shri  Sobti. 
He  says that he  received signal. He got an  impression 
from t h e  signal that  there was something special o n  the  
aircraft which required safeguard. He  proceeded to the  
aircraft and took care to see that  nothing that  was not  con- 
signed to, Delhi was off-loaded. He did no t  go into the 
holds nor did h e  verify the  articles covered by the  signal. 
He did  not 3nroiw that ,the sigaal could . . -  p,wmy . , . .  refer to 
gold. 



(4) According to the statement and affidavit of Shri Santha- 
nam, on 14th September he was not informed by anyone 
that the aircraft had gold c n  board. He has further 
stated that at 1415 LT he was ndv~sed that aircraft would 
be delayed over night w ~ h  a provls~nnal est~inated t ~ m e  
of departure of 0130 LT on 15th September and that the  
aircraft was being reposlt~oned to runway 33 under the 
~nstructions of Air Trafic  Control At approximately 16 
hours he asked Duty Officer Shri 17u]ji whether thme 
were anv shipments on board wh~ch  rccluircd specla1 
handling. He replled in the nc:ativc c s c c ~ ) t  for I~ve-  
stuck shipment which had becn olT-loLlcior! , ~ n t i  brought 
into the duty room He rema~ncrl ,it thc fill port until 
ayproxmately 1730 LT befotc Icav~n,: o r  t t ~ c  A s h o h  
Hotcl to ensure that the passengers were being well 
looked after 

(5) A approximately 11100 LT 0.1 the   lit;^ St:ptcrnt~cr the  fol- 
lowing signal was l,ece,td in the d u t v  r.ooln:--- 

This signal was also n o t  :j.~(;:,i.rl on 1 > S h r i  Snn thanCili-!. 
The teleprinter operator mci.t:;y n i . i ~ k u d  i t  to t!-re Duty 
Oficer Shri Bali for action. Shr i  L j r l l i  was on duty t i l l  
0400 LT on 15th Seplemher hu t  in the mcanwhilc at 
0230 LT Duty Officer Shri Smith was called to handle 
trsnsfer of passengers fro,m E3ii 316 to PA flight 002. Ac- 
cording to the statement of Shri Zali he c;me on duty 
a t  1900 LT on 14th September 1967. He saw the signal 
and could make out that he was to ensure that the pre- 
cious cargo, viz., 'metal' should be safeguarded. On see- 
ing the signal, he could infer that the consignment which 
was recorded as 'metal' in the message was 'gold' because 
in the past on one 0" two occasions on receipt of similar 
message, the consignment on verification was found to be 
gold. On such occasions he had notified the same to the  
Customs OfXicew on dub esither personally or through 

. . 



122 
the loading clerk. In this particular case he was umer 
the bqnafMe belief hat the flight having arrived a t  Palam 
Airport a t  about 1000 LT on 14th September, 1967 and 
having relanded a t  1300 LT, this f a d  would have been 
notified to the Customs. Shri Bali does not say that he 
informed Shri Santhanarn about the  presence of gold on 
the aircraft. 

1 6 )  According to the statement of Shri 1:. B. Smith, Duty 
m c e r ,  he was recalled to the Airport on Friday morning 
(i.e. on 15th) a t  0230 LT to deal with the proposed de- 
parture of the plane a t  0330 LT. Hn says that he was m- 
formed that precious cargo was on board and as baggage 
had been moved from the holds he was anxious to check 
that all was still on board. He, therefore, checked with 
the manifests and realisecl t,hnl the consignment was 
very large. He went to the aircnif? and personalty check- 
ed the holds approsimately n?  0500 t o  0530. All t.he mmi-  
fcsted metal was thclrc. Hc pr~sunred Customs knew nf 
the! exihtence of this cold as t!~(.:: h ~ c l  ,.hc m:~nifcbts given 
to then] a t  first transit. He also s t ~ y s  that  he was con- 
cerned at the pro,b!eln of r;:~l'i>l:~:c~rci,in;~ t!~c cnrqo and, 
therefore, phoned 5hr.i  So : i+h ,~n: \~n  a t , ,~u t  O(iO9 Friday 
Sepiemlxr  15ii1, a-;li y what c,tt.p:. sho~: ld  be taken. 

( 7 )  -4cc,mll,1. t o  Z 1 l 1 : i  S m t  h:tnam i' u ' & ~ s  I'ol the first lime fit 
approximntclv 0607 hnllrs on 15th Scpttlmber :hat he came 
to I i n u ~ v  t!-lnt t i~e rc  n-us gold on b I ~ Y I  BA 016. Prior to 
t h a t  h c  c i ~ d  ~ C W W  at all ;\1xiut, UIC gold. He reach- 
ed Aircraf~ , ~ t  ap~~r .os imnfc?y  0715 LT and was engaged 
until approsimatclv 0915 LT in helpin? the passengers 
from B.4 916 who were being transferred to BA 718. The 
moment hc became free he asked the Oficer in charge of 
safeguarding the consignments of gold. The Immigration 
Officer told him that he was unable to do so. Next a t  about 
0945 LT he approached the Asstt. Collector of Customs, 
Shri Karkhanis to request his permission to off-load the 
consignment of gold and bring it to the Customs warehouse 
for safeguarding. According to Shri Santhanam as well as 
according to the statement of Shri Karkhanis, Shri ICar- 
khanis was unwilling to do this as he felt his warehouse 
was not secure enough for such a large quantity of gold. 
He suggested to Shri Santhanam to arrange for armed 
guard. Thereafter, according to Shri Santhanarn, arrange- 
ments were made for police guard which turned up &s late 
as approximately 1730 LT on 15th September. 



(8) Both according to the statements of Shri Ramachandran as 
well as of Shri Santhanam, Shri Santhanam approached 
Shri Ramachandran sometime on the 15th for his permis- 
sion to transfer four boxes of gold from hold three itno hold 
one where the other 20 packages were stowed so that only 
one hold nccd be guarded. Hc agreed 211d the transfer was 
made under Customs supervision. Hold one was then 
sealed by Customs and one of the B.0.A C's clcrical staff 
and a lnader remalned to guard it. 

(9) At approximately 1000 LT on 15th September, B.O.A.C. 
duty room received a signal from Hongkong requesting 
them to transfer one consignment of gold BA 916 to BA 920. 
This request was with reference t(, the bigger consignment 
of gold. B.O.A.C. Delhi then asked Londcn to release 
space on the BA 920 for this purpose. 

(10) On 15th September at  about 1230 LT  or so B.O.A.C. reprr- 
sentative presented two transhipmcnt permits No. 35110/15th 
September, 1967 and 3589/15th September, 1967 t,o the Ap- 
praiser at Palam Shri Nambiar. These tranfihipment per- 
mits lx2late to various consignments on boarcl BA 916. 
Along with the transhipment permits copics of the cargo 
manifests were attachcd. In thcse maniSe.<ts the  small  con- 
signment of gold covcred by consignment note No. 
0614961690 was also included. According to Shri Nambiar, 
it was  not brought to his notice then that this actually was 
a consignment of gold. He accordin& passed the tran- 
shipment permits leaving it to the Prrventive OfIicer on 
duty to check and packages and supervise the tranship- 
ment. 

(11) According to Shri  Santhanam, at  apprnximately 1645 LS, 
he  saw the Air Customs Inspector Shri Ramachandran. 
According to Shri  Ramachandran, this time was 3 P.M. 
Shri Santhanam has stated that he asked Shri Ramachan- 
dran for transhipment facility. Thri Ramachandran asked 
to see the consignment note whi,.h war; duly produced to 
him. When he  examined the condgnment note he  noticed 
%at i t  had been incorrectly manifested, i.e. described as 
'metal' and not 'gold' on the cargo manifest. Shri Rama- 
chandran stated that h e  would have to bring thls to the 
notice of his Asstt. Collector. Thereafter, the matter was 
taken up to the Asstt. Collector. There is not much of 
difference in the statements of Shri Santhanam, Shr i  Rama- 
&andran and Shrf. S. N. Karkhanis about what  actually 
transpired during this meeting. We have already referred 

the same earlier and we need not repeat i t  here. 



(12) These consignments were seized sometime d t e r  0730 LT 
on the 18th September. 

58. From the aforesaid evidence, i t  appears :$at Shri Santhanam 
himself was not aware of the presence of gold till the morning of 15th 
when the Duty OfHcer Shri Smith informed him. The Duty Ofacers 
themselves were under some misapprehension. In fact, till Shri San- 
thanam came to know of the existence of gold, no proper security ar- 
rangements were made by the B.0.A.C about the same on the 14th 
night even though a signal had been received as early as on 13th 
night for safeguarding the 'mekal' on the aircraft. Surely, if Shri 
Santhanam or the senior officials of B.O.A.C. werli aware of the exis- 
tence of such a huge quantity of gold in the aircraft prior to 15th 
morning, they would have taken proper security precautions particu- 
larly when the gold was to remain overnight in the aircraft. The 
absence of such precautions itself indicates that no senior officer was 
aware of the existence of gold on board till 15th morning. 

59. We have also tried to find out whether the previous consign- 
ments of gold which were also declared as 'metal' in the manifest did 
reach Macau or not and further what was the nature of the dealings 
between Mocatta Goldsmid and CIC Hongkong on the one hand and 
bet wee^ CIC Hongkong and Companhia Macau on the other. On this 
point, we have the statement of Shri E. E. Mocatta, the Managing 
Director of Mocatta Goldsmid and documentary evidence including 
some affidavits to which we have already referred in the beginning 
of this order. According to the statement of Shri Mocatta, Mocatta 
Goldsmid started their business in the year 1964; at that time it was 
a parhership family concern. The partnership became a limited 
cornpa-iy in 1957. They have been having business with CIC Hong- 
kong was that they would ship gold from anywhere in the world to 
Hongkong. When the CIC Hongkong had a demand for gold from 
Macau, they would cable Mocatta Goldsmid that they had bought so 
much of their gold and Would pay them in the United States Dollars 
equivalent of the sales price. CIC Hongkong used to receive daily 
closing mice from London. They were entitled to bug from Mocatta 
Goldsmid's stock of gold with them a t  this price. The freight and 
insurance was to the account of CIC Hongkong. Shri Mocatta also 
stated that  Mocatta Goldsmid had 40 per cent shares in CIC Hong- 
kong. He also stated that Companhia Macau was a wholly owned 
subzidiary of CIC Hongkong. Mocatta Goldsmid do not ensure the 
novement 01 gold from Hongkong to Macau and they believe the 
statement of CIC Hongkong that gold reaches Macau. Shri Mocatta 
also stated 'that there was only one firm in Macau by the name of 
Wong on Kong which was entitled to get import licences from the 



Government of h k a u .  But there was a restriction that this firm 
wOng on Hang could import gold only from another Mncau Corn- 
PanY. Companhia Macau was, therefore, brought into existence the 
comply with this regulation of the Macau Government; CIC Hang- 
kong not being a Macau Company could not directly sell gold to 
Wong on Hong. Under the Hongkong Exchange Control Regulations 
gold is only in transit in Hongkong and during the period the gold 
remains in Hongkong it is under the custody of the Hongkong Cus- 
toms authorities. When the gold is exported from Hongkong to 
Macau, the same is done under an export licence issued by the Honp  
kong Government in the name of CIC Hongkong. The import jn 
Macau is made on the basis of import licences issued to Wong on 
Hong. From Hongkong to Macau, the gold is carried by a hydrofoil 
and it takes about an hour for the gold to reach Macau. Re has, fur- 
ther, stated that after the gold reaches Macau, an endorsement is 
made by the Macau authorities on the back of the import licence that 
gold has reached Macau. This copy of the import licence duly en- 
dorsed is submitted to the Hongkong Exchange Control Authorities. 
In answer to a specific question, Shri Mocatta replied that they send 
gold to CIC Hongkong on consignment basis; property in the gold 
remains with them till CIC Hongkong have found a buyer and re- 
ceived payment. Till then gold remains in their account but it is 
kept in the warehouse of CIC Hongkong and is supervised by the 
Hongkong Customs Authorities. It  is only when the gold is sold 
that Mocatta Goldsmid lose title to it. In this connection, Shri 
Mocatta produced two original sheets from the accounts of Mocatta 
Goldsmid covering the period from 18th April, 1967 tc 23rd January, 
1968. He also produced five slips which showed the credit and debit 
entries in the accounts of CIC Hongkong. We have already referred 
to these earlier in this Order. He also produced Hongkong Govern- 
ment import licences, Hongkong Government export licences and 
Macau Government import licences on support of his statWnent. 
Shri Mocatta also mentioned that he was a Director of CIC Hang- 
kong since 1963. He also stated that the Bank of England was aware 
of the nature of their dealings with CIC Hon~kong a d  Com~anhia 
Macau. 

60. Regarding the existence of the Macau subsidiary, a number of 
questions were put to Shri Mocatta. It  was also brought to his notice 
that  the letter which the DRI sent to Companhia Macau and also the 
copy of the show cause notice, which the Collector of Customs and 
Central Excise, New Delhi sent to Conpanhia Macau, came undeli- 
vesed as the addressee was not known to the postal authorities. The 
attempt of the Collector of Customs and Central Excise, New Delhi 



to trace this Ann through Macau Postal Authorities was also of no 
avail. Shri Mocatta, however, maintained that Companhia Macau 
have got a sign board and postal authorities might have committed 
mistake. Shri Mocatta pointed out that the letters and the notices 
were sent by the DRI and the Collector without giving full address 
of Companhia Macau. According to him, the correct address was 
given in the export licence issued by the Hongkong authorities. Shri 
Mocatta also produced an affidavit given by one Shri Peter John 
Griffiths of M/s. Milkinson and Grist of Hongkong, Solicitors. In his 
affidavit Shri GrifTiths has stated that on 23rd day of July, I968 he 
went to Macau and instructed Dr. Alberto Pacheco Jorge, Notary 
Public practising in Macau to obtain a certificate from the Treasury 
Department of Cacau as to the establishment of the firm Compan- 
hia Macau. The original certificate given by Treasury Secretary cf 
the Country Borough of Macau has been furnished along with the 
affldavit. The Treasury Secretary has certified that-- 

"Jn going through the Records of Industrial Tax and other per- 
taining documents, kept in this department, there is men- 
tioned that the firm "Companhia de Desevolvimento Com- 
m'ercial FUNG CHEONG (Fung Cheong Commercial In- 
vestment Company), estabdished at Number cne hundred 
and forty-two Avenida Almeida Ribeiro, is registered 
under Number Seven thousand eight hundred and eighty- 
seven, carrying on the import and export of many varieties 
of merchandise, and its taxes are paid till the end of the 
current year.'' 

61. One Shri Kenneth Andrew Miller of Hongkong, a partner of 
Mjs. Lowe Bingharn and Matthews, Chartered Accountants and 
authorised auditors under the Companies Ordinance in Hongkong has 
also given an affidavit. Shri Miller has certified the audited accounts 
of CIC Hongkong for the year ending 31st March, 1967. He has fur- 
ther certified that Companhia Macau is a Trading Corporation estab- 
lished in Macau. The Chinese name which is used alternatively or  
additionally to the Portuguese title is Fung Cheong. As Fung Cheong 
is not a limited liability company whose shares are owned by Com- 
me,rcial Investment Company Limited but a Trading Corporation 
wholly owned by Commercial Investment Co. Ltd., no special refer- 
ence to i t  is made in the accounts but all trading carried by i t  has 
been taken into account in preparing the profit and loss figures of 
Commel=cial Investment Co. Ltd. and the profit on gold transactions 
of Commercial Investment Co. includes the profits in respect of gold 



sold through Fung Cheong. Along with his aWdarit he has also pro- 
duced a copy of the Resolution of Directors of CIC Hongkong dated 
1st August, 1950. This Resolution say- 

"Resolved that all future gold transactions outside the Colony 
conducted under the name of Messrs "Companhia de Des- 
envolvimento Commercial" (Fung Cheong) of Macau and 
that all resulting profits or losses on these transactions will 
be exclusively for the account of Messrs Commercial In- 
vestment Company Limited. All documents pertaining to 
these transactions shall only he valM if signed by a Direc- 
tor of the Commercial Investment Corapany Limited." 

With the affidavit extract of the Minutes of a Director's meeting held 
on Monday 20th November, 1950 in which the trade name "Cornpanhis 
de Desenvolvimento Commercial (Fung Cheong)" was approved is 
also enclosed. 

62. Mocatta Goldsmid have also furnished an affidavit from Inn 
Francis Cluny Macpherson, Asstt. Director of Commerce and Indus- 
try,  Hongkong Government. Shri Macpherson has testified that  
under the "Importation of gold prohibition order 1947", prior appro- 
val of the Exchange Controller, Hongkong is required to import gold 
bullion, coins or articles made wholly or partly cf gold. The import 
of btullion is authorised only in transit to a dcstimtion outside the 
scheduled territories. Under the Exportation of gold (prohibition) 
Order 1947, export of gold bullion requires the prior permission of 
the Exchange Csntroller, Hongkong. Thcn Shri Macpherson has des- 
cribed the procedure regarding gold consigned to CIC. He says such 
gold is only allowed to be imported in transit an? is accordingly held 
in the custody of the preventive service of the Cornmercc and Indus- 
try Department in Hongkong pending re-exportation. On production 
of a valid import licence issued bv the Macau Governmcnr, the Pre- 
ventive service release the gold and supervise its shipment on to a 
vessel bound for Macau. The gold is usually carried un board a hy- 
drofoil owned by-the Hongkong Macau Hydrofoil Company Limited 
which Company operates a number of daily services between Hong- 
kong and Macau carrying passengers and some cargo. The voyage 
is of approximately one hour's duration. The Department of Com- 
merce and Industry holds all records pertainirig to import and' re- 
export including a copy of the Macau import licence duly endorsed by 
the Preventive service with the name of the vessel carrying the gold 
t o  Macau, Shri Macpherson has then produced, for various consign- 
ments of gold, the import declaration, duplicate import declaration, 
5mwd licence, BOAC Airway Bill, reexport  declaration, duplicate 



re4JrPort declaration, export licence, c o n s i m n t  note by the 
HoWkong Macau Hydrofoil Co. Ltd. and duplicate Macau Import 
Licences evidendng delivqy of gold to Macau. Each of these dup- 
licate import licences of the Macau Government have an endore- 
ment. "This fs to certify that.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o ~ m s  of gold under 
this import licence have landed in Macau on date.. . . . .per (name 
of the veasel. . . . . . . .signed) ." This type of evidcnce has been fur- 
nished for import into Hongkong of two consignments of gold weigh- 
ing 38671.651 and 38723.257 ounces of gold and export of four con- 
signments by which the aforesaid gold was exported from Hongkong 
to Macau. These consignments figure in the accounts of Mocatta 
Goldsmid. At the end of this affidavit Shri Macpherson has stated 
"to the, best of my information and belief this shipmenr would have 
been held in Hongkong under the supervision of the preventive ser- 
vice and re-exported to Macau in the same way and with the same 
documentation as all previous consignments and in particular in the 
same manner as those in respect of which the above documentatien 
has been exhibited." M/s. Mocatta Goldsmid have also furnished an 
affidavit from Shri Peter John Griffiths of a firm of Solicitor; in 
Hongkong. Shri Griffiths has simply affirmed the genuineness of the 
certificates issued by Shri Jose Correia Montenegro, Chief of the Pro- 
vincial Department of Economic Services of Macau. In this certifi- 
cate it has been stated that the firm of Wong on Hong is authorised 
by the Government of Macau to do the importation of gold by 
means of "Certificates of Importation" issued by the Provincial De- 
partment during the years of 1967 and 1968. It is further stated in 
the certificate that this imported in the 1067 four consignments of 
gold from Hongkong. These consignments are the same as referred to  
in the affidavit of Shri Macpherson. 

63. In the foregoing paras, we have summed up the entire evi- 
dence which could have a bearing on the question of fradulent inten- 
tion. The question for consideration, now, is on the part of B.O.A.C. 
or that of the consignors in preparing the manifest Does this show 
any intent to defraud or deceive anyone? Does this given any indi- 
cation that the declaration of gold as 'metal' or 'metal bar' in the 
manifest was with a view to facilitate smuggling of gold from the 
aircraft when tbe same was in India. Can i t  be said that B.O.A.C. 
were.in conspiracy with the consignors in preparing the wrong mani- 
fest; were B.O.A.C. to gain anything by declaring gold as 'metal' or 
'metal har' in the manifest or would they have suffered some-loss or 
inconvenience in declaring the gold as 'gold'? Lastly, is there any- 
thing else in evidence on the basis of which an inference of 'fradlt- 



lent intention wuId be drawn? %%em ui perbnt  aspects for de- 
ciding whether thcn was any hdulent W t k a J  iq teW of k- 
tion M(3) of the Customs Act. + - i 

64- We have already observed in para 53 that & regani- 
ing the ckhra t ion  of gold as 'metal' or 'metal bus  was r. ? result of the circumstances created by the introduction of & m- 
P*br s Y s m  and was not due to any fradulent intention or any 
wilful or deliberate neglect. In the earlier paras, we have also indi- 
cated the evidence regarding the events that happened in Delhi with 
regard to these two consignments of gold in detail, From that evi& 
ence we did not And that there was any deliberate supersession of 
any material fact by B.0A.C. to the Customs; nor was there any false 
suggestion or misrepresentation. In fact, we found that some of the 
lower officials of the B.O.A.C. themselves could not make out either 
from the declaration in the manifest or from the signals received 
from Landan that there was a huge quantity of gold on board. The 
Duty OfRcers were also under some misapprehension. Until 15th 
morning the Duty Officers not only did not inform the Customs, thev 
did not inform even their Head Office in Delhi about the presence of 
gold. Nor did they take any special precaution regarding safety of 
the gold. The evidence further indicated that Shri Santhanam, Act- 
ing Airport Manager of B.O.A.C. at Palam, came to know of the pre- 
sence of gold on the aircraft only on the 15th morning and on the 
same day in the morning he approached Customs for permission to 
off-load the gold and make arangements for lts security and in the 
afternoon he approached them for allowing the transhipment of 
gold. Therefore, in the conduct of B.O.A.C. personnel tlt  elh hi, there 

J@ nothing which could give rise even to  a suspicion, much less to a 
belief that there was any deliberate intention to suppress facts or to 
deceive or defraud Customs. We accordingly do not agree with 
finding of the Collector that the intention of the B.0.A.C was con- 
ceal from India Customs the fact that they were transitting gold 
through India. 

65. Does the evidence, then, show that the declaration of gold, 
in the manifest as 'metal' or 'metal bar' was made with a view to 
facilitate smuggling of gold into India from the aircraft? In our view, 
the evidence on record unmistakeably points to the conclusion that 
there was no intention or attempt to smuggle gold into India from 
the aircraft. As mentioned earlier, the aircraft for the first time 
arrived at  Palam on 14th Sept., a t  about W.30 A.M. and took off 
for Bangkok after a halt of about 50 minutes. The aircraft was,  
not to halt anywhere else in India. Therefore, it there had been 
no engine trouble, the aircraft in the normal course would have 



left India with the gold it was carrying. Once the aircraft took 
off from Palam the gold could not be taken out of the aricraft and 
left in India. I t  wm all the more so since the waft was a 
passenger aircraft and the possibility of its landing a t  an unscheduled 
place in India and somehow ejecting the gold out of the aircraft 
was remote. Apart from the fact that there is nothing in evidence 
to indicate so, on one has even suggested that during the 50 minutes 
halt of the aircraft at Palam any attempt was made to take the 
gold out of the aircraft. Therefore, if there had been no engine 
trouble, there is no doubt that the aircraft would have in the normal 
course gone out of India with the gold in question. It is purely 
incidental that the aircraft developed engine trouble after it left 
Palam. That there was actually an engine trouble and the sircratt 
had to return to Palam for genuine reasons is clearly borne out by 
the statements of Shri W. D. Cartwright, Co-Pilot, Shri Hadley, 
Captain, Shri A. W. Robothan, Shri Frank Edwerd Bills, Flight 
Engineer and Shri A. G. Reminan, Station Maintenance Engineer 
of B.O.A.C. B.O.A.C. also forwarded to the DRI a copy of the 
defect investigation report issued by Rolls Royce Limited which 
supports the above statements. Thus if the aircraft was compelled 
to return to Palam owing to genuine engine trouble and hut for 
this emergency would have left India with gold, there can be no 
room for any allegation that there was any intention to smuggle 
gold from the aircraft while the same was in India. In fact, the 
Collector has himself categorically stated in his order that but for 
the engine trouble the gold would have gone out of India though 
of course he has added that the same would have been in contra- 
vention of Reserve Bank's Notification of '3-11-62. Even during the 
hearing before us no suggestion was made on behalf of Customs that 
the gold was intended to be smuggled from the aircraft into India. 
I t  is significant to mention that after the aircraft came back to Palarn 
owing to engine trouble, for the whole of the afternoon and the night 
of the 14th the gold was in the aircraft and except for the men who 
happened to be engaged in the repa& of the engine and a loader, 
there were no security arrangements for the gold. There is, how- 
ever, no evidence to show that any attempt was made at any time 
either a t  the time of first arrival at  Palam or after it had returned 
to Palam owing to engine trouble to take the gold out of the air- 
craft. The evidence produced by Mocatta Goldsmid also shows 
that the previous consignments of gold which were also carried by 
B.O.A.C. and were declared in the manifest as 'metal' or 'metal bar' 
reached Hongkong and thereafter Macau. The presumption, there- 
fore, would be that in the same way both these consignments would 
have also reached their destinations. The Collector has observed 



in his order "Gold was transitted through India from London to 
places like Hongkong and Macau which are vulnerable from the 
point of view of smuggling." I t  is likely that Macau may not be 
importing this much quantity of gold for its own internal consump- 
tion. This aspect, however, in our opinion, could have no bearing on 
the declaration of gold as 'metal bar' in the mainfest for two reasons. 
In the first place, the consignment which was going to Japan was 
also declared as 'metal' and secondly, even if gold had been declared 
as 'gold' and taken through India to Macau, the Customs could take 
no objection to the transit of gold through India merely on the 
asuumption that Hongking and Macau were vulnerable from the 
point of view of smuggling. The evidence is, therefore, complutt.ly 
lacking for drawing any inference that declaration of gold in the 
manifest as 'metal' or 'metal bar' was made with a view to facilitate 
the smuggliing of gold from the aircraft while the same was In 
India. 

66. Another relevant aspect to be conside~.ed is whether B.O.A.C. 
made this declaration in the manifest on their own or on the instruc- 
tions of the consignors? Only if they made it on the instructions of 
the consignors that the question of the consignor's frndulent inten- 
tion could a~isc .  It may be stated at  the outset that in the conslgri- 
m$nt notes prepared on behalf of the consignors by their Forwarding 
Agents and which are carried with the goods and particulars of 
whlch are also mentioned in the Manifest, the gold was properly 
desribed as 'gold'. There are no instructions in the consignments 
notes that in the manifest gold should be declared as 'metal' or 
'metal bar'. On the contrary, the terms of the contract of Carriage 
between the consignors and B.O.A.C. stipulate that B.O.A.C. will 

comply with the laws oi the countries through which the flight takcs 
place. No evidence has been produced by anyone that the 
consignors' gave B.O.A.C. any instructions regarding the manner in 
which gold should he declared in the manifest. There is nothing 
in evidence to indicate any collusion between the comignors and the 
B.O.A.C. in this respect. It may be relevant to mention that in so 
far as the smaller consignment of gold was concerned, the consignor 
and the consignee-both were Banks and, they could not have any 
motive in getting gold declared as 'metal' in the manifest. Even 
for the bigger consignment there is no evidence that, Mocatta Golds- 
mid asked B.O.A.C. to declare gold as 'metal bar' in the manifest. 
B.O.A.C. have also not even in their own defence, advanced any 
plea that they were instructed by the consignors to declare the gold 
as 'metal' or 'metal bar'. B.O.A.C. take upon themselves the full 
responsibility for the declaration as 'metal' or 'metal bar' and they 
concede that this was a mistake and was contrary to their own 



manual ins twt ion~ .  But the justification advanced is that thio 
mistake occurred through inadvertence and pressure of work afkr 
compuk,risation and not on account of any evil design on their pert. 

67. If B.O.AC. did not declare gold as 'metal' or 'metal (bar' in the 
manifest on the instructions of the consignore, as we have seen 
above, what motive could they have in making this type of declara- 
tion? Were they to 'gain anything by it? We do not see what 
beneflt could accrue to them. On the other hand, they incurred a 
risk. I t  is no one's case that they were to gain financially or other- 
wise in any respect by making this type of declaration. Conversely, 
were B0.A.C. to lose anything if they had declared gold as gold? 
Now here, the consignors themselves had declared gold as gold in 
the consignment notes and, therefore, B.O.A.C. could not have lost 
this business by declaring gold in the manifest. Incidentally, 
B.O.A.C. have a number of flights to Hongkong which do not pass 
through India and they have been carrying gold through those routes. 
They could have done the same here also. If B.O.A.C. had nothing 
to gain by declaring gold as 'metal' nor to lose anything by declaring 
gold as 'gold', we do not see what fraudulent intention they could 
have in making the type of declaration they have actually made in 
the manifest. No prudent man will take any deliberate and calcuis- 
ted risk unless by doing so he was to be benefitted in some way. 

68. Earlier, in para 34, we have referred to the contention of 
the Customs regarding existence of 'fradulent intention'; 
they have argued that a particular. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . of B.O.A.C. 
which has been reproduced. . . . . .'fraudulent intention' on the part 
of B.O.A.C. It has been contended that gold was declared as 'metal' 
or 'Metal bar' so that the Customs would not know that gold was 
of South African origin. 

69. It is indeed unfortunate that a Company of B.O.A.C.'s repu- 
a t i o n  should have a passage of this kind in their Traffic Manual. 
B.O.A.C. have, however, expressed regrets for this and we were 
informed during the hearing that they have since deleted the parti- 
cular passage from their Manual. B.O.A.C. have also furnished a 
number of letters sent to them over a period of last ten years by 
the Directors and other officers of the Directcrate of Revenue Intelli- 
gence, New Delhi and, also, by one by the Central Board of Revenue, 
appreciating the help and cooperation rendered by them to the 
Indian Customs Authorities in the prevention of smuggling. The 
conduct of B.O.A.C. has, therefore, to be judged on the basis of their 
general performance as a whole and not on the basis of the said 
passage in the Traffic Manual in isolation. 



70. The question for consideration is whether this passage in the 
TrafFk Manual had, or could have, any bearing on the declaration of 
'gold' as 'metal' or 'metal bar' in the manifest for the two consign- 
ments which form the subject matter of these proceedings? If it 
had, there might be some justification for imputing fradulent inten- 
tion to B.O.AC. in making the said declaration. But if i t  could not 
have any hearing on the nature of the declaration made, the allega- 
tion of 'fradulent intention' on the basis of the said passage would 
be without any substance. 

71. I t  may be stated at the outset that there was no allegation 
in the show cause notice to the effect that the declaration 'metal' or 
'metal bar' was made with a view to suppress the fact that the gold 
was of South African origin. Nor is it a factor mentioned in the 
order of the Collector. It is for the first time at the hearing before 
us at the appeal stage that it has been alleged by the Customs that 
gold was declared as 'metal' or 'metal bar' so that the customs would 
not know that it was of South African origin. This inference has 
been drawn solely from the particular passage in the Traffic Manual 
cited above and there is nothing else in evidence to corroborate this 
allegation. Further, the said passage in the Traffic Manual does not 
refer to the goods of South African origin as such; it says that goods 
destined to or from South Africa are not permitted to transit India. 
Here, the gold consignment in question were neither destined to, nor 
destined from, South Africa. They were sent from U.K. and one 
consignment was going to Macau and the other to Japan. Therefore, 
the said passage in the Traffic Manual could have no application to 
the facts of this case. It may also be mentioned that at the relevant 
time there was no prohibition on the transit of goods of South 
African origin through India. It was contended on behalf of Customs 
that though the legal position was so, the said passage in the Manual 
indicated that in the mind of B.O.A.C. their appreciation of law was 
that goods of South African origin could not be permitted to transit 
India and, therefore, it1 order that Customs may not know that gold 
in . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . was of South African origin, they declared that 
the same as 'metal' or 'metal bar'. This contention is without any 
force since, as already mentioned by us, the said passage in the 
Manual merely refers to the goods destined from or to, South Africa 
and not to goods of South African Origin destined from or to, any 
other country. Accordingly, there is no ground for assuming that 
B.O.A.C. had any such erronems appreciation of law as alleged on 
the basis of the said passage. 

72. Thus, we find that there is no evidene indicating any intent 
to deceive or defraud the Customs or to smuggle the gold from the 



aircraft while in India, nor is there anything to indicate any deli- 
berate suppression of material facts from the Customs. Accordingly, 
we hold that there was no fradulent intention whatsoever involved 
in the preparation of the manifest in question. The Collector in his 
mder  has given the following findings-(1) Incorrect manifestation 
was not innocent (ii) Intention of B.O.A.C. was to conceal from 
Indian Customs the fact that they were transitting gold from London 
to Hon'gkong in contravention of the Indian law; they tried to conceal 
this fact from Indian Customs till the very last minute, (iii) the 
violation was wilful and deliberate, and B.O.A.C. had scant regard 
for the law of the country, (iv) the case could not be treated as a 
case of incomplete manifestation or insufficient description without 
any fradulent intention. For the reasons stated in paras 55, 65, 66 
and 67 we do not agree with the findings (i) and (iii) ; for the reasons 
stated in paras 57, 58 and 64 we do not agree with the finding (ii) 
w e  do not agree wit,h the finding (iv) albove. We do not consider 
that  there was any evidence on record before the Collector on which 
he could base these findings. 

Issue No. (9) 

73. The next question for consideration is whether, on the facts 
and circumstances of this case, amendment of the manifest should be 
allowed or not. Here. there is no doubt that the import manifest 
is incomplete or incorrect in the sense that the gold is described by 
the generic term 'metal' or 'metal bar' and not specifically as gold. 
We have already held that there was no fradulent intention either 
.on the part of B.O.A.C. or on that of the consignors in declaring the 
gold as 'metal' or 'metal bar' in the manifest. Thus, the two coridi- 
tions precedent for the application of Section 30(3) of the Customs 
Act are present. That being so, the point for consideration is 
whether amendment of the manifest should be allowed or not. We 
have already arrived at the finding that B.O.A.C. made a request for 
amendment of the manifest as soon as the mistake was noticed and 
subsequently at  relevant stages. It  was contended on behalf of the 
appelants that, in the absence of any fradulent intention, amendment 
of the manifest under Section 30(3) of the Customs Act could not 
be refused. For this, they placed reliance upon a decision of the 
Privy Council reported in AIR 1923 PC 138. In the said decision, 
the Privy Council has observed "And as the Learned Counsel for  
the respondent rightly urged 'may' does not mean 'shall'. Neither 
are the words 'it shall be lawful' those of compulsion. Only the 
capacity or power is given to the Authority. But when a capacity 
or power is given t o  a public authority, there may be circumstances 



whih couple with the power a duty to exercise it. To use the. 
language of Lord Cairns in the case of Julius v.  Bishop of Oxford: 

"There may be something in the nature of the thing empowered 
to be done, something in the object for which it is to be 
done, something in the conditions under which it is to be 
done, somethinlg in the title of the person for whose benefit 
the power is to be exercised, which may couple the power 
with a duty, and make it the duty of the person in whom 
the power is reposed to exercise it when called upon to 
do so." 

The following passage from Maxwdl on Interpretation of Statutes 
is also pertinent- 

"Following the decision of the House of Lords in Julius v. 
Oxford (Bp) i t  was said that from the nature of the 
English language the word 'may' can never mean 'must' 
that it is only potential and when it is employed there is 
another question to be decided vit., whether there is 
anything that makes it the duty of the person on whom 
the power is conferred to exewise that power. If not, the 
exercise is discretionary. But when the power is coupled 
with a duty oi the person to whom it is given to exercise 
it, then it is imperative." 

In the case of Sardar Govind Rao and others vs. State of Madhya 
Pradesh reported in AIR 1965 Supreme Court 1222, the Supreme 
Court has quoted with approval the following passage from Maxwell 
on the Interpretation of States:- 

"Statutes which authorise persons to do acts for the benefit 
of others, or, as it is sometimes said, for the public good 
or the advancement of justice, have often given rise to 
controversy when conferring the authority in terms simply 
enabling and not mandatory. In enacting that they 'may' 
or 'shall, if they thing fit', or 'shall have power', or that 
'it shall be lawful' for them to do such acts a statute 
appears to use the language of mere permission, but it has 
been so often decided as to have become an axiom that in 
such cases such expressions may have-to say the l e a s t a  
compulsory force and so would seem to be modified by  
judicial exposition." 



The Supreme Court while interpreting the word 'may' as used in 
'Sectlon S(3) of the Central Provinces and Berar Revocation of Land 
Revenue Exemption Act, 1948 has, in the above case, observed- 

"The word 'may' in sub-section (3) has, however, a different 
purport. Under that subsection, Government must if it 
is satisfied that an institutionor service must be continued 
or that there is a descendant of a former ruling Chief 
grant moncy or pension to the Institution or service or to 
to the descendant of the former Ruling Chief, as the case 
may be. Of course, it need not make a grant if the person 
claiming js not a descendant of a former Ruling Chief or 
there is other reasonable ground not to grant money or 
pension. But except in those cases where there are good 
grounds for not granting the pension, Government is 
bound to make a grant to those who fulfil the required 
condition and the word 'may' in the third subsection 
though apparently discretionary has to be read as 'must'." 

74. Having regard tc the above priniples, we are of the view that 
when the manifest is in any way incorrect or incomplete and a 
request for the amendment of the manifest is made under Section 
30(3) of the Customs Act, the proper offlcers has to satisfy himself 
that there was no fradulent intention. Once he is satisfled that there 
was no fradulent intention, he bound to permit amendment of the 
manifest unless he has 'good grounds' for not allowing the amend- 
ment. 

75. A reading of the Collector's order shows that the Collector 
did not treat this case 2s one falling under sub-clause (3) of Section 
30 of the Customs Act on the ground that according to him B.O.A.C. 
had fradulent intention in declaring a huge quantity of gold in 
transit through India as 'metal' or 'metal bar'. We have, however, 
already held that this finding of the collector in our opinion, was not 
based on evidence and was incorrect. 

76. Having come to the conclusion that there was no fradulent 
btention in this case, and that a request for amendment of the 
manifest was made by B.O.A.C., unless there are any 'good grounds' 
for holding to the ccntrary, amendment of the manifest ought to be 
permitted. 

77. On behalf of thc Customs, two grounds were urged for not 
allowia, amendment: (i) there was fradulent intention, and (ii) 
no person on B.O.A.C. bothered to see that the Indian laws were 
complied with for a period of about two years; not only that, they 



flouted tbeir own instructions in their Trafac Manual for declaring 
gold as 'gold'. We have exhaustively dealt with both these aspects 
in paras 49 to 72 while cons idehg Issue No. 8, and have given a 
categorical Anding that there was no fradulent intention whatso- 
ever involved in the preparation of the manifest in question; nor 
was there any wilful neglect or disregard of the Indian regulations 
on the subject or of the instruction in their Manual regarding 
declaration of gold in transit through India as 'gold'. As stated by 
us in para 55, the mistake of declaring gold as 'metal' or 'metal bar' in 
the manifest started as result of the factors essentially arising 
from the intmduction of the computor system in November, 1985. 
Some of these factors were: absence of the human check and the 
individual attention which was being provided by the clerksttypists 
who were preparing the manifest prior to Nov. 1965; the. .  . . . . . . . . . . 
not knowing, at the time of punching the . .  . . . . . . . . the particular 
consignments would be carried through India; the increase in speed 
under the new system; the increase in work arising from the intro- 
duction of aircraft with much 'greater capacity and to general 
increase in B.O.A.C.'s cargo business and the consequent increase in 
pressure on the Flight Allocation Officers; the paucity of staff, the 
ma :s production of manifests; the standardisation of procedures 
resulting from the computor system which meant that individual 
cases received less personal attention; and the complacency caused 
by mechanisation. We, have also pointed out that the mistake was 
not noticed  by either B.O.A.C. or by the Customs until this case 
with the result the same got repeated on several occasions. Further, 
as already mentioned by us, the instructions in the B.O.A.C.'s Trafflc 
Manual, that the general practice of B.O.A.C. of declaring gold as 
'metal' wr. not permitted in India, have been there both before and 
after November 1965 without any change. Thus, in so far as the 
higher management of B.O.A.C. was concerned, it cannot be said 
that they did not bother about the Indian Regulation on the subject 
as contended by Customs. According to it, there certainly has been 
some human failure as n result of too much dependence on mechani- 
sation, but there was no fradulent intention nor any intention to 
disregard Indian Regulations nor any wilful neglect nor any cons- 
cious or delfberate repetition of the mistake. This finding is also 
reinforced by the fact that B.O.A.C. had nothing to gain by declaring 
gold as 'metal' or 'metal bar' nor would they have suffered any loss 
or  inconvenience if they had declared gold as gold in the manifest. 
Further, we  have already held (Para 64) that we did not And in the 
conduct of B.O.A.C. personnel at  Delhi anything which could give 
rise even to a suspicion, much less to a belief, that there was any 
deliberate intention to suppress facts or to deceive or to defraud 



Customs. We have also held (para 65) that there was no intention 
nor was any attempt made to smuggIe the gold from the aircraft 
while the same was in India. We have also given a &ding (para 
66) that there was no evidence to indicate any collusion between the 
consignors and the B.O.A.C. regardi'ng declaration in the manifest. 
I t  is also significant to mention that in the manifest these two con- 
signments are shown for transit as same bottom cargo. The Air- 
way Bill Number8 (consignment notes) are also mentioned in the 
manifest and in the Airway Bills the gold is correctly described as 
'gold'. The Airway Bills accompanied the consignments and were 
open to inspection by Customs, if they so desired. Therefore, the 
provisions of the Reserve Bank's Notification of 8-11-62 were comp- 
lied with in all respects except that the nature of the article was 
not described specifically but by a generic term On the principle 
laid down by the Supreme court,  in the case cited earlier, once 
we are satisfied that there was no fradulent intention and there 
are no other 'good grounds' for refusing amendment, the amendment, 
If asked for has to be allowed. Here, in this case, we do not see 
any good ground for refusing amendment of the manifest. On the 
other hand. a4i indicated above, there are several 'good grounds', in 
addition to the absence cf fradulent intention, for permitting amend- 
ment of the manifest. We, accordinglv, allow amendment of the 
manifest. 

Issues No. lo! 11 & 12. 

78. As already held by us, amendment to the manifest 
takes effect from the date of the initial presentation of the 
manifest and also that such an amendment equally applies to the 
declaration made in the maifest in pursuance of the Reserve Bank's 
Notification of 8-11-62. That being so, the declaration in the mani- 
fest for the purpose ol Reserve Bank's Notification of 8-11-1962 would 
be the declaration us amended and consequently the two consign- 
ments of gold in question would be covered by the general permission 
of the Reserve Bank to carry gold in transit through India. The two 
consignments of gold are, thus, not liable to confiscation under 
Section I l l  (d) of t h e  Customs Act for contravention of Section 8 (1) 
+F.E.R.A. read with Section 23A of the F.E.R:A: and Section 11 of 
the Customs Act. Since the consignments of go!d are not liable to 
confiscation, B.0 . A  .(C, me not liable to a penal cy under Section 112 
and Section 114(1) of the Customs Act which in terms are attracted 
only when certai? goods are liable Lo co;lfisxtion. For the same 
reason, the aircraft is .llso not lia blt  to confisc~tic n under Section 
115 (2) of the Customs Act. 



79. In view of the findings given above, we allow the appeah 
and direct that these two consignments of gold to be released to 
B.O.A.C. for being carried in transit to Hon'gkong. We also direct 
that penalty, if paid, Le refunded. We also set aside the confiscation 
of aircraft No. G-APFK and direct that fine in lieu of confiscation, 
if paid, be refunded. 

Chairman, Central Bwrd of 
Excise and Customs. 

Sd/- 
M. G. A B R 0 4  
3-3-69 

Membert Central Board of Excise and Custom. 

Sd/- 
S. P. KAMPANI, 

3-3-69 
Member, Central Boavd of Excise and Customs. 

F. No. 2/53-55168-Gust. IIA New Delhi, dated 6th March, 1969. 



APPENDIX N 
Opinion given by the  Ministry of External Affairs 

The Ministry of Finance (Deptt. of Revenue Intelligence) have 
sought a clarification regarding the application of the Order No. 9/67 
notified by the Ministry of Commerce, prohibiting the export to or 
import from Portugal. The question posed is whether exports to 
and imports from Macao and other portuguese overseas territories 
which Portugal co~lsidcrs as her "provinces" would also attract the 
ban imposed under the above order. 

2. The question has risen in the context of a seizure of gold 
destined for Macao by the Customs authorities at Palam Airport 
some weeks ago. While preparing the case in justification, the 
Ministry of Finance were exploring the possibility of quoting the 
violation of yet another Government of India order in order to 
strengthen their reasons for the seizure of the gold. 

3. There is background to the issue of the Order No. 9/67. It 
was a UN Resolution adopted by the General Assembly on the 25th 
lanuary, 1966 which urged the member States to boycott all trade 
with Portugal which inspired the issue of the said Order. At that 
time, when this resolution was under consideration, the question 
whether the ban should apply to Portuguese overseas territories was 
considered in detail in the Ministry and in the Ministry of Commerce. 
On account of the large volume of our trade with Mozambique and 
other Portuguese colonial territories in Africa, it would not 
have been expedient to include these territories within the 
scope of this ban. Besides the reason of expediencv, we 
could not possibly accept the Portuguese thesis that here overseas 
territories are a part of Portugal. By extending the application of 
this ban to these territories, we would, in fact be accepting the 
Portuguese thesis. Again, it has always been our principle that the 
boycott of a colonial power should not make the economy of the 
indigenous people of the colonial territory suffer. In view of these 
considerations, a decision was taken at Foreign Secretary's level that 
the above Order would not apply in respect of our trade with 
Mozambique, Angola and other Portuguese territories in Africa. 

4. At that time, however, the question of Macao as a distinct 
unit, was not raised nor considered. We have no direct trade with 



141 
Macao, although there is illegal traffic in gold, narcotics, etc. between 
India and Macao. To that extent, banning trade with Macao would 
be in Government's interest. While in ase of Angola, Mozambique 
and Portuguese Guniea, there are organised Freedom Movements 
which we have publicly supported, such tendencies in Macao are 
naturally for unification with the mainland of China, of which we 
have not publicly taken note. Again while any ban on our trade with 
Portuguese African territories would affect the indigenous economy 
and cause hardship to the local people for whom we have expressed 
sympathy, ban on trade with Macao is not likely to have the same 
repercussions. Nevertheless any ban on trade with Macao will to 
some extent imply conceding the Portuguese thesis that Macao is 
a part of Portugal. Further the issue of an order at  this juncture 
may not help the Ministry of Finance in their present predicament, 
as it probably cannot be applied with retrospective effect. 

5. Ministry of Finance may consult the Ministry of Commerce 
if necessary. 

V. H. COELHO, 
Joint Secretary. 

[Ministry of Finance (Deptt, of Rcv. & Ins.-Shri T. C. Seth) 
. . - - - - - -- - - . - - . - -. - -- - . . - . . - 

Min. of E.A. U.O. ~ 0 . - - ~ 1 7 1 2 5 ' ( 5 ) / 6 6  dt.-20-.11:67] 



APPENDIX V 

Record of discussion with the Solicitor-General of India on 21-11-1967. 
b 

There was a meeting in the chamber of the Solicitor-General of 
India Shri Niren Dc to discuss whether gold brought into India in 
transit and not removed from the conveyance was liable to confis- 
cation under Section I l l  (d) of the Customs Act, 1962 for contraven- 
tion of the provisions of Forei'gn Exchange Regulation Act, 1947 and 
the Imports & Exports (Control) Act, 1947. Shri R. M. Mehta, Joint 
Secretary Law, Shri T. C. Seth, Member Control Board of Excise 
and Customs and Shri S. K. Srivastava DRI participated in the dis- 
cussions. I was also present. 

2. It was brought to the notice of the Solicitor General that 
Section 8(1) of the FERA empowers the Central Government to o d e r  
that no person shall, except with the general or special permission of 
the Reserve Bank, bring or send into India any gold. The explana- 
tion to the section makes it clear that the bringing or sending into 
any port or place in India of gold intended to be taken out of India 
without being remcved from the conveyance in which it is being 
carried shall nonetlicless be deemed to be a bringing into India of 
gold for the purpose of the said Sectilon. The notification issued 
under Section 8(1)  of the FERA gives general permission to bring 
gold into India in transit provided the gold is not removed from the 
conveyance and a declaration is made in the manner provided in the 
notification. I t  was explained to the Solicitor-General that in the 
case under consideration (BOAC gold case) the gold was declared 
as 'metal' and not as 'gold' and, therefore, the declaration was not as 
required under the said notification. In that view of the matter 
the benefit of the qeneral permission was not available and the bring- 
ing of the gold into India was in contravention of the provisions of 
Section 8(1) of the FERA. By virtue of the provisions of Section 
23-A of the FERA, the restrictions imposed by sub-section (1) of 
section 8 of the said act, are deemed to have been imposed under 
Section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962. The contravention of the 
restrictions imposed under Section 8(1) of the FERA, 47, therefore, 
attract the provisions of Section I l l  (d) of the Customs Act 1962 
under which the gold can be confiscated. After carefully examining 
the relevant provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 and the FERA, 1947 



the Solicitor General agreed that the Customs authorities would be 
competent to proceed on the above lines. 

3. The second question discussed with the Solicitor-General 
related to the provisions of the Imports & Exports (Control) Act, 
1947. Section 2 of the said Act provides that 'Import' and 'Export' 
means respectively bringing into and taking out of India by Sea, land 
or air. Section 3(1 )  of the Act empowers the Central Government 
inter-alia to prohibit and restrict: 

(a) the import, export, carriage coastwise or shipment as 
ships stores of goods of any specifled description. 

(b) the bringing into any port or place of India of goods of 
any specified description intended to be taken out of India 
without being removed from the ship or conveyance in 
which they are being carried. 

In exercise of the powers conferred by section 3 of the said Act, 
the Central Government by o ~ d e r  9/67 dated 1st August, 1967 pro- 
hibited the import and export of all goods, whether directly or 
indirectly into or. from any port or place in India, from or in any 
place in Portugal. 

4. Two questions arose for consideration:- 

(i) Whether order 9/67 was issued in terms of clause (a) of 
sub-section 1 of the section 3 of the Import & Exports 
(Control) Act or could it be taken also to have been issued 
in terms of clause (b) of the said section? 

(ii) Whether the scope of clause (a) was much enough to 
include the situations contemplated by clause (b) and if 
so, whether as a natural corollary, the words "import" and 
"export1' would include bringing into India in the manner 
as described in clause (b) 2.e. bringing into India of goods 
intended to be taken out of India without being removed 
from the conveyance? 

5. On the first point the Solicitor General was of the view that 
order 9/67 was clearly issued under clause (a) and not under clause 
(b), On the second question two points of view were brought to the 
notice of the Solicitor General. One view was that the term 



''knport" as used in clause (a) would not include bringing into 
India fn the manner as describdd in clause (b) and that any other 
view would make the provisions of clause (b) as redundant. The 
other point of view as that 'import' as defined in the Imports & 
Exports (Control) Act would include bringing into India of the 
goods in the manner as described in clause tb) also. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause (a) were wide enough to include (b). I t  
was stated that clause (b) was intended to provide for these types 
of cases where Government did not want to impose any prohibition 
on the import of goods into India as such but wanted to prohibit 
the 'goods in transit from being taken out to some enemy country. 
In other words, clause (b) was inserted to facilitate the Government 
to prohibit imports in a particular sense only. As against this, it 
was mentioned that if the idea in inserting clause (b) was only, it 
could well be achieved by issuing an order prohibiting imports in 
a limited sense and for that alone there was no need for the legis- 

. lature to insert a separ.ate clause of the type (b) in the Act itself. 

6. After having carefully considered both the points of view and 
also having gone through the definitions of the 'import' and 'export' 
in the Imports & Exports (Control) Act, 1947, the Customs Act, 1962, 
the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947, the Arms Act and the 
start Dangerous Drugs Act, the Solicitor General was of the opinion 
that the provisions of Clause (a) were not wide enough to include 
situations covered by clause (b) and further that the expressions 
'import' and 'export' as used in clause (a) were not wide enough 
to include situations covered by clause (b) and further that the 
expressions 'import and 'export' as used in clause (a) would not 
include bringing into India in the manner described in clause (b). 
The opinion of the Silicitor General was based on two considere 
tions : - 

(i) The fact that the legislature had made a separate pro- 
vision for entry of goods into India which were only in 
transit and which were to be taken out of India in the 
same vessel or aircraft or other conveyance shows that 
such bringing into India was not covered by the term 
'import'. 

(ii) wherever the legislature intended that such entry of 
goods into Indian as aforesaid was to be iniluded within 
the connotation of the word 'import' it has expressly 



stated so (for example Explanation to Section 8(1) of 
the F.E.R. Act and Section 2(i) of the Dangerous Drugs 
Act, 1930 etc.). In the absence of any such provision 
in the Imports & Exports (Control) Act, 1947, the normal 
presumption would be that for the purposes of the said 
Act, the term 'import' does not include bringing into 
India of goods in transit intended to be taken out of 
India without being removed from the conveyance. 

[This has been seen by Shri S. K. Srivastava, D.R.I. and M(CX- 
S) I. 

Sd/- L. P. ASTHANA, 
22-1 1-1967. 

Min, of Law (Shri Mehta). 

t 

MINISTRY OF LAW 
DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS 

ADV.(F) SEC. 

The above note is an accurate summing up of the discussion 
which we had with the Solicitor General except as regards the 
reference to the notification under S. 8(1) in paragraph 2. I would 
like to add that when the attention of the Solicitor General was 
invited to the express language used in that notification, he not 
feel quite certain w!lcther the declaration of the gold as 'metal' 
would not have been a sufficient compliance with that notification. 
He was also not very sure as to the precise nature of the declara- 
tion required under the Notification issued under S. 8(i) of the 
F.E.R.A. He, therefore, did not express any category opinion on 
this point. He, however, generally agreed that if the Customs 
authorities thought that the declaration was not in accordance with 
the. notification they would be competent to take action for contra- 
vention of s. 8(1) of the F.E.R.A. 

Sd/- R. M. MEHTA, 
Joint Secretary and Legal Adviser. 
Tel. No. 32688, dt. 24-11-67. 



APPENDIX VI 
Copy of D.R.I's Note and Ministry of Law's opinion (on the margin) 

Points on which the advice of the Ministry 9f Law is required:- 

The gold in question was part of the same bottom cargo of the air- 
craft. Can it be said that even though it was same bottom cargo, the 
more fact that the aircraft transited through India mounted to the 
importation of gold into India in the sence that i t  was brought into 
India. 

In answering the above point, the following may be taken into 
account :- 

(a) The word 'import' has been defiined by Section 2 (23) of the 
Customs Act, 1962. The definition is the following:-. 

" 'import', with its gramatical variations and cognate expres- 
sions, means bringing into India from a place outside 
India." 

(b) Under Notification No. 12(11)-F. 1/48 dated 25th August, 
1948 (as amended) issued under section 8 (1) of the Foreign 
Exchange Regulations Act, 1947, the Ccntral Government 
directed that "except with the general or special permis- 
sion of the Reserve Bank, no person shall bring or send 
into India from any place outside India" various goods, 
which includes gold. 

(c) Under Notification No. F.E.R.A. 208/62-RUB, dated 8th Nov- 
ember, 1962, the Reserve Bank of India gave "general per- 
mission to the bringing or sending of any of the" articles 
enumerated in the notification, which includes gold", into 
any part or place in India when such article is on through 
transit to a place, which is outside the territory of India." 

The wordings of the Notifications referred to in (b) and (c) above 
make it evident that in the circumstances referred to in the question, 
the gold has to be hold to have been brought into India within the 
meaning of the notification referred to in (b) above and it can also be 
held to have been imported into India within the definitior! of the 
word 'import' under the Customs Act, 1962. 



(d) Chapter VUI of the Customs Act, 1963 deals with "goods 
in transit". No definition of the words "goods in transit" 
has been given in the Act, Section 53 of the Customs Act, 
1962 is worded as under: 

"Subject to the provisions of Section 11, any goods import- 
ed in a vessel or aircraft and mentioned in the import 
manifest as for transit in the same vessel or aircraft to 
any port or airport outside India or any customs port or 
customs airport may be allowed to be so transited with- 
out payment of duty." 

The above wrodings make it evident goods in transit are in fact 
imported into India. These wordings, therefore, lead to the conclu- 
sion that in the circumstances referred to in the question, the gold 
had in fact been imported into India. 

In the aforesaid circumstances it appears to be evident that the 
gold should be held to have been imported into India. Thi: conclu- 
sion, if right, may be confirmed. 

In connection with the above conclusion, attention is invited also 
to the case of BERNARD0 STEENHOG ULTRICH Vs. Collector of 
Customs. Cochin (AIR 1960 Kerala 170). In this casc the facts were 
that the petitioner was travelling on board the ship from Colombo 
to Genoa with car on board the ship. The ship entered port of 
Cochin en route. The petitioner was asked by the customs authori- 
ties to make a declaration in the prescribed form rs  to the currency, 
foreign and India, he was carrying with him. He accordingly made 
the declaration that he had a certain amount of both currencies. The 
amount was found on his person. On a search bajng made of his car, 
a great deal of Indian and US. currency was found concealed in :i 

secret chamber of the car. This amount was not declared. The ship 
was about to leave Cochin within a few hours and there was no in- 
tention the part of the petitioner to land at  Cochin. I t  was, however, 
held that there was import and export of currency on the part of the 
petitioner. The petitioner imported and exported foreign currency 
in  contravention of Section 19 of the Sea Customs Act and relevant 
notifications. The petitioner, therefore, was guilty under paras ( I ) ,  
(2) and (4) of item (8) u/s 167 of the Sea Customs Act. 

The above interpretation was given a t  a time when there was 
no legislation defining the meanings of the words 'import' and 
$export1. The existing IegisIation in  the form of the Customs Act, 
1962 defines these words and within the scope of the definitions under 



the aforesaid Act there appears to be no doubt that the correct con- 
clusion is as indicated earlier. 

At the material time the subject gold was brought as on through 
transit gold. Was its importation into India prohibited? 

The answer to the above question will depend on the following 
factors: 

(a) The existence of notifications No. FERA. 12 (ll)F.l/4,8 date 
25th August, 1948 (as amended) and FERA. 208162-RB 
8th November, 1962. 

In terms of the aforesaid notifications, the general permission 
given by the Reserve Bank of India for bringing into India gold from 
a place outside the territory of India can be taken advantage of only 
if the gold is declared in the manifest for transit as same bottom 
cargo or as transhjpment cargo. 

The question arises whether in the circumstances of this case it 
can be hold that the gold had been declared in the manifest "for 
transit as same bottom cargo or transhipment cargo". The conten- 
tion of the Customs Officers is that the gold had not becn declared in 
the manifest at all. In the manifest there is declaration of 'metal 
bars'. The Customs authorities contend that such declaration does 
not amount to the declaration of gold in the manifest presented to 
them. In support of their contention they assert: 

(i) that they had never been informed by the carriers that i t  
was their practice to declare in their manifest gold as 
'metal' or 'metal bars'. 

(ii) that the Traffic Manual of MIS. B.O.A.C. supports the con- 
clusions that the description 'metal' 3r 'metal bars' in the 
manifest presented by them in India cannot refer to gold. 
The said Manual contains the gold. The said Manual con- 
tains the instructions to the effect that the practice of dec- 
laring gold, and bullion as metal is not to be followed in 
the case of "shipments consigned to or in transit through 
India where such practice is not permitted by the customs 
authorities.". 

The above state of knowledge of India Law in the minds of 
M/s. B.0.A.C explains why they did not inform the customs autho- 
rities at  any m,aterial time that gold was being declared, in the mani- 



fests submitted India, as 'metal' or 'metal bars' in the m d s t  pse- 
sented in India by M/s. B.O.A.C. cannot refer to gold. 

In connection with the above conclusion it is also to be noted that.  
in the material manifest in which the subject gold was described as 
'metal bars', platinum was also described as 'metal'. The descrip- 
tion 'metal' or 'metal bars', therefore, are ambiguous terms, which 
rightly are not interpreted by the customs authorities to refer to gold. 
In the aforesaid circumstances, it appears, that even judicial autho- 
rities would find it impossible to reach the conclusion that the des- 
criptions 'metal' or 'metal bars' in the manifests should be interpret- 
ed to refer to gold. It appears that is no case even for extending 
benefit of doubt to MIS. B.O.A.. This conclusion, if right, may be 
confirmed. 

From the foregoing it emerges that the subject gold had not been 
declared in the manifest for transit as same bottom cargo or tranship- 
ment cargo and accordingly its importation into I n d ~ a  was prohibited. 

(b) The existence of Notification No. 135/Customs dated 3rd Octo- 
ber, 1964. Under this notification, issued U/s. 11 of the Customs Act, 
1962, the Central Government "prohibits the expor,t; to and imports 
from the Republic of South Africa of all goods." 

The above notification does not, however, apply to "cargo tran- 
shipped at Indian ports for places other than in tho Republic of South 
Africa by non-Indian and non-South Africa, which may or may not 
touch ports in the Republic of South Africa in the course of their 
voyage." 

From the foregoing it emerges that the subject gold had not been 
declared in the manifest for transit as same bottom cargo or tranship- 
ment cargo and accordingly its importation into India was prohibited. 

(b) The existence of notification No. 135/Customs dated 3rd Octo- 
ber, 1964. Under this notification, issued U/s. 11 of the Customs Act, 
1962, the Central Government "prohibits the exports to and imports 
from the Republic of South Africa of all goods". 

The above notification does not, however, apply to "cargo tranr 
shipped at  Indian ports for places other than in the Republic of South 
Africa by non-Indian and non-South African ships proceeding to 
countries other than South Africa, which may or may not touch ports 
in the Republic of South Africa in the course of their voyage". 

The gold is of South Africa origin. This fact is proved by the 
markings on the gold. I t  was, however loaded on the aircraft at 



h x i o n .  It was exported from London by MIS. MOCATTA S; 
GOLDSMID LTD. after obtaining a Certificate 'C' from thr Exchange 
Control Department of the Bank of England. P.pplicatlon for the 
issue of this certificate was made in Farm 'XI en 12th September, 
1967. While making the application, the exporters made the decla- 
ration "We declare from the facts known to us or from enquiries 
we have made that to the best of our belief, the owners of the 
items mentioned overlead are COMPANIA DE DESENVOLVIMEIJ- 
TO COMMERCIAL, MACAO". The goods which were mentioned 
overlead comprised the seized gold of South African origin. It  ap- 
pears that it was necessary for obtaining Form 'C' that the gold was 
owned by a party in Macao and not be a party within the United 
Kingdom, The name of M/s. MOCATTA & GOJdI)SMID LTD. is in- 
scribed on the gold bars also. Their status is also inscribed on the 
gold b a s  and that is that of brokers only. They therefore, could 
not be the sellers of the gold. The persons who supplied the gold 
from South Africa were also evidently not the owners of gold at  the 
material time. The application was made on 12th September, 1967, 
the owners at that time were a Company in Macao. The ownership 
must have been acquired by them prior to 12th September, 1967. 
There is no evidence that while the gold was lying in U.K., any per- 
son had acquired its ownership prior to 12th September, 1967. The 
ownership can be presumed, in the light of the existing evidence, to 
have vested only in the Macao firm all through the time the gold 
was laying in U.K. If so, it would follow that the gold was brought 
by the Macao firm into England only on its way to Macao. In this 
sence, the gold can be said to have been importcd into India from 
South Africa via U.K. and the gold cannot be said to have been im- 
ported into India from U.K. If so, the importation of gold Into India 
would be deemed to be prohibited in terms of the Notification No. 
135/Customs dated 3rd October, 1964. The prohibition is relaxed 
only in the case of cargo transhipped at  Indian ports in ships. It  is 
not relaxed if the cargo is to be transhipped by air. The Customs 
Act, 1962 specifically deals with the mode of transport i.e., by land, 
by sea or by air. If it does not specify any particular mode of trans- 
port in connection with certain provisions, these provisions will be 
applied to all modes of transport but if any of the modes of transport 
are specified, such provisions would apply to the specified modes of 
transport only. 

In view of the foregoing i t  appears that the subject gold had been 
imported into India from South Africa and its importation is prohibi- 
ted under Notification No. 135/Customs dated 3rd October, 1964. 



Prohibition under the  notification under FER Act is applicable. 
Prohibition under notification 135-Customs of 3rd October, 1964 could 
be applicable subject to proof by Customs that the gold was exported 
from South Africa to Macao via U.K. and that no intermediate 
acquisition by ownership of that gold in U.K. by anv one. 

Sd/- H.M. 

If having regard to the foregoing, it is conclwkd that thc impor- 
tation of the subject gold was prohibited, this p ~ s i t i o ~ ~  may bc con- 
firmed and i t  may further be clarified whether the prohibition im- 
posed under both the notifications v iz ,  under thc Foreign Eschange 
Regulations Act and the Customs Act. 1962 is app!icabk or only pro- 
hibition under one of these notifications is applicable and if so, which 
is the notification under which it is applicable. 

Whether in view of the language of Section 53 of the Customs Act, 
1962, the goods can be permitted to be transited? 

(a) the opening words of Section 53 are: "subject t l j  thc pro- 
visions of Section 11". 

These words appear to imply that if the impnrcatloli of goods 1s 
prohibited, its transit cannot be permissible under sectinn 53 of ihc 
Customs Act, 1962. The wordings of this section, which have been 
quoted earlier, appear to imply that even if the importation is not 
prohibitcd u ' s  11 of the Customs Act, 1962, the transit without 
payment of duty may not be permitted. Having regard to this 
provision, i t  appears only reasonable that the customs authorities 
should be stopped not from permit transit of those goods which in 
the course of their journey prior to the reaching of their destination 
have to be imported into India in contravention of some provision. 

Confirmed 

It  appears that even if the subject gold is deemed to be hit by 
prohibition under one of the notifications only, its transit cannot he 
permitted b,y the customs authorities because there is no provjsion 
for permitting transit of such goods. 

(b) Permission to allow the gold to be transited will involve 
exportation of the gold which has been imported into India. 
No permission would have been required for the export 
of the subject gold if all the conditions under the notifica- 
tion had been fulfilled-All these conditions have obvious- 



ly not been fulfilled in vicw of the fact that the gold was 
not manifested as required under the said notificatim. 

[ The export involved, therefore, would be prohibited under 
Yes ( section 8(2) of the Foreign Exchange Regulations Act, 

1947, in the absence of the general or special permission 
of the Reserve Bank or a written permission of a person 
authorised in this behalf by the Reserve Bank. 

(c) Under Order No. 9/67 dated 1st August, 1967, "import and 
export of all goods, whether directly or indirectly, into cr 
from anv port or place in India, from or to any place in 
~ o r t u ~ a l "  has been prohibited. 

Subject to confirmation by the E.A. Ministry that export to Macao 
is export to Portugal, this is agreed to. 

Sd/- R.M. 

The word 'Portugal' represents a political cntlty. This word can 
include territories which arc commonly known as Portugal and also 
territories outside it.  It has becn confirmed by the Ministry of Ex- 
ternal Affairs that Portugal treats all her possessions as her provinces. 
Macao is, therefore, a province of Portugal and as such a part of 
Portugal. Macao, therefore, is also Portugal and e x ~ o r t s  of any goods 
from India to Macao would be hit by the prohibitiun under Order No. 
9/67. In vicw of this prohibition, even if it is stated that the import 
of gold is not prohibited, its export would be prohibited and in view 
of this prohibition, the authorities in India would not be competent 
to allow the transit of gold to Macao. 

The provisions of Section 53 of Customs Act, 1962 would also be 
invoked. In view of the provisions of Section 3(2)  of Imports and 
Exports (Control) Act, 1947 prohibition imposed under Order No. 
9/67 dated 1st August, 1967, would be deemed to be prohibition under 
section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962. I t  would, therefore, follow that 
in view of the prohibition on export of goods to Portugal, which is 
imposed ups u/s 11 of the Customs Act, 1962, it would not be permi:- 
sible to permit the transiting of the subject gold. 

From the foregoing it would appear that the subject gold cannot 
be permitted to be exported to Macao in view of: 

*Subject to confirmation as above. Sd/- P.M. (i) Order No. 
9/67 dated 1st August, 1967; 



(ii) The importation being prohibited; and 

(iii) Absence of geneal or special permission of YES 
the Reserve Bank of India or of m y  person 
authorised by the Reserve Bank of India 
in this behalf to export the said gold. - 

If the above conclusion is correct, i t  may please be con5rmcd. 

In connection with the above, it may also be roletl that Order N o .  
9/67 dated 1st August, 1967 prohibits export of all goods to any place 
in Portugal, whether directly or indirectly". The export of the sub- 
ject gold constitutes certainly indirect export from India to  Portugal. 



APPENDIX VU 
Copy of Affidavit filed hy Director of Revenue Intelligence 

IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELHI 

CIVIL APPELLATE JURISDICTION 

L.P.A. NO. 46 O F  1968. 

In the matter of 

SHRI R. PRASAD, COLLECTOR O F  CUSTOMS 
AND CENTRAL EXCISE. DELHT-NEW DELHI . . APPELLANT 

VERSUS 
UNION OF INDIA AND 7 OTHERS RESPONDENTS 

Reply Affidavit of the Appellant in oppositim tn the Additional 
Affidavit of Shri B, D. Pande, Secretary to the Governmrnt of India, 
Ministry of Financc (Department of Revenue and Insurance), North 
Block, New Dclhi, filed on behalf of Respondentc; Yo. 1 to 3 in the 
above-said appeal. 

I, R. Prasad, S/o Pandit Dwarka Prasad, aged 57 ycars resident 
of C-1116, Dr. Zakir Hussain Road, New Dclhi, do hereby solemnly 
affirm and state as under: 

1. I am the Appellant in thc above-said case. I am conversant 
with the facts of the case and an competent to  swear this Affidavit. 

2. I have read the Additional Affidavit of Shri B. D. Pande, SW- 
retary to the Government of India, Ministry of Financc (Department 
of Revenue and Insurance). North Block, New Delhi. filed on behalf 
of Respondents No. 1 to 3 (hereinafter referred to as tht. 'Additional 
Afidavit') and h a w  understood its contents. Being conversant with 
the facts of the casr, I depose as under:- 

3. That by the aforesaid Additional Affidavit, thc Respondents 
have sought to introduce and place on the record certain develop- 
ments which are purported to have taken place since the decision of 
the Hon'ble Single Judge dated the 31st March, 1968 on the ground 
that the said developments are relevant for the  purpose of deciding 
the controversy forming the subject matter of the above said appeal. 
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4. Before giving reply to the various averments raised in the Addi- 
tional Mdavi t ,  i t  will be necessary to state the background and bring 
certain relevent facts already on record to the notice of this Hon'ble 
Court. I !  

5. Appellant belongs to the erstwhile Indian Central Excise Ser- 
vice. The Appellant was directly recruited as Superintendent (Gaz- 
etted) in 1938. The Appellant was selected to the Indian Police 
Service and was in the I.P.S. for a period of about 5 years from 1950 
to 1954. As an officer of the Indian Police Service, the Appellant 
was given the year of allotment as 1942,. In 1954 the Appellant came 
back to his parent Department i.e. the Central Escise. Thc Appel- 
lant was confirmed as a Collector of Central Ewis? in the grade of 
Rs. 16W-1800 on 15th August. 1957. 

6. In the year 1956, Central Excise SCSV~L'E  as formed after a 
good deal of struggle. In 1959, the merger oi  the 1r:dlnn Central 
Excisc Service and the Indian Custon~s Service took place. As a 
result of the merger of the two Services, n comhirwd Seniority List 
was published in January. IQoO. 

7. Thc Appellant was t h ~  President of the Central Excisc OAicers' 
Association while Shri D. P. Anand, .he present Chairman of the 
Central Board of Excise and Customs, was the thcu Prrsidrnt of the 
Indian Customs Service Officer's Association. As President of the 
Customs Service Association Shri D. P. Anand hurt ;I grudge against 
the senior officers of the Central Excise Service generally against 
the Appellant particularly as the Appellant was the pivotal force 
in the Central Excise Service. 

8. In the year 1963, the Central Board of Revenue was bifurcated 
Shri D. P. Anand, the present Chairman of the Central Board of 
Excise and Customs, were constituted. Shri B. N. Banerjec. became 
the first Chairman of the Central Board of Excise and Customs and 
Shri D. P. Anand, the present Chairman of the Cevtral Board of 
&cisc and Customs was thc second Member of the Central Board 
of Excise and Customs. 

9. At the time of publication of the combined seniority list in  
January, 1960, i t  was solemnly declared by the Government of India 
that the said List was final. According to the said list, the Appellant 
was senior to the Respondents No. 5 to 8. ~ f t e r - t h e  ~ p p e l l a n t  Sar- 
v a f i  D. R. Kohli and A. K. Roy of the Central Excise were placed 
in the combined seniority list immediately above the Respondents 
No. 5 to 8. 

10. Certain representations were made on behalf of the members 
of both the Services against the aforesaid seniority list. By the said 
601 -11. 



list, the junior OPEcem of the Central R c k  Service d e r e d  a great 
deal of disadvantage vis-a-vis the Members of the Indian CU~~OILL(I 
Service, i t  will be relevant to state here that the Indian Cuttoms 
Service conehted of a handful of of8cer-s in comparison to the large 
number of officers of the Central Excise Service. The revenue from 
the Central Excises is at present four tim more than that of the 
Cuatorns. 

11. As the Board was dominated by the Members of the erst- 
while Customs Service, it, in the year 1966, tried to revise the 1960 
seniority list with the Iaimary and solo object of making Respon- 
dents No. to 8 as senior to the Appellant and the two other senior 
o!Ykers of the Central Excise Senrice. 

12. A ju ln '  meeting of the representatives of both the Service 
Associations u,as called by the then Finance Secretary to obtain the 
concurrence to the revision of the 1960 seniority list. the minutes of 
the meeting were wrongly recorded by the Respondent No. 3 with 
the ulterio~ motive and design of giving the proposed 1966 seniority 
list a tolour of agreement by the representatives of the two Services. 
Strong protests were lodged by the Central Zxcise Officers Associa- 
tion against the wrong recording of the minutes and against the 
high handed acts of the Customs dominated Board. 

13. A tentative seniority list was published and circylated to both 
the Associations. The Central Excise Officers' Association whe- 
mently protested against the arbitrary revision of the seniority list 
and against the high-handedness and vindictive attitude of the 
Customs dominated Board. Thereupon a further meeting was call- 
ed by the then Secretary to the Government of India (Shri R. C. 
Dutt).  The Central Excise Officers' Association did not attend the 
meeting as there was no response to their earlier protests made in 
this behalf. At the instance of the senior Customs Service Officers, 
the then Finance Secretary ignored the protests of the Central Ex- 
cise Omcers' Association with the remark that he would see to it 
that the senior Central Excise Officers are taught a proper lesson 
for not attending the meeting and they are made junior to the Cus- 
toms Oficers even on merits. 

14. In April, 1!%8 a second oopnbined seniority list was published 
for the grade of Collectors only with the ulterior design and motive 
of making the Appellant, Shri D. R. Kohli, and Shri A. K. Roy as 
juniors to Respondents No. 5 to 8. I t  is this seniority list which is 
under challenge and is the subject matter d the present appeal. 



15. In 1982, Chinese aggremion took place. The Appellant was 
ambodied to the Army and rendered useful Parice to the country. 

16. In 1967, Shri B. N. Banerjee, became the Chairman of the 
Tarifl Commission and in his place Shri D. P. Anand was made the 
Chairman of the Central M d  of Excise and Customs. Shri D. P. 
Anand continues to be the ChPirman of the said Board of Excise and 
Customs till date. Ever since Shri D. P. h a n d  assumed charge as 
Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs, a reign of victimi- 
za t~on was started by the customs dominated Board against the 
senior officers of the Central Excise generally and the Appellant 
particularly. A systematic, calculated and an organized campaign 
of vilification was launched against the Appellant ptrsonally as 
would be amply borne out by the facts stated hereinafter. 

17. By the promotion of Shri D. P. Anand as Chairman, a vacancy 
occurred in the Central Board of Excise and Customs. The case of 
the Appellant (Central Excise) and that of Shri M. G. Abrol (Cus- 
toms) was considered fc,r selection and appointment as Member, 
Central Board of Excise and Customs by the Establishment Board 
of the Government of India and thereafter by the Cabinet Commit- 
tee on Appointments. The Appellant alongwith Shri M. G. Abrol 
was selected for appointment as Members, Central Board of Excise 
and Customs. On the basis of better service record and seniority 
the Appellant was placed above Shri M. G. Abrol The selection 
of the Appellant for the post of Member, Central Board of Excise 
and Customs was also aproved by the Prime Minister of India in 
March, 1967. 

18. Shri D. P. Anand, the present Chairman of the Central Board 
of Excise and Custcrms, did not reconcile himself with the selection 
of the Appellant to the post of Member, Central Board of Excise and 
Customs and made up his mind to see to it that the Appellant did not 
take charge of the post of Member, Central Board of Excise and 
Customs and his appointment to the paid post was withheld or with- 
drawn on one excuse or the other. He launched an all orut attack 
against the Appellant and thereby poisoned the entire atmosphere 
against the Appellant. The then Finance Secretary and then Dy. 
Prime Mjnister (Shri Morarji Desai) who was also Finance Minis- 
ter at that time were completely turned hostile towards the Appel- 
lant by the Customs dominated Board. Thereafter when the Ap- 
pellant was about tq take charge as Member, Central Board of Excise 
and Customs, certain complaints were manoeuvred against the 
Appellant solely with the ulterior motive and designs of preventing 
the Appellant from becoming Member, Central Board of Excise and 
Customs. 
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19. The Appellant was given to understand that the strategy of 
the Customs dominated Bawd was somehow or the other b pull the 
Appellant down and see to it that he  did hot take charge of the post 
of Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs by organizing a 
systematic campaign of vilification. As a result of this campaign 
the Appellant was ultimately denied the post of Member. Central 
Board of Excise and Customs while Shri M. C,. Abrol was appointed 
as Member of the Board sometime in November, 1967. The ap- 
pointment of the Appellant was arbitrarily, malafide a d  illegally 
wjthheld by the Respondent No. 3 and the then Financc Secretary 
and the then Finance Minister. I t  is submitted that the Financc 
Minister was not competent in law to withhold the appointment of 
the  Appellant which had been approved by the Cabinet Committee 
and the Prime Minister. 

N. In ordcr to justify the withholding of the appointment of the 
Appellant to the post of Member, Central Board of Excise and Cus- 
ton~s ,  the Respondents No. 1 to 3 started diggmg out  some material 
against the Appellant. Adjudication orders 2.nd various other Ad- 
ministrativc order passed by the Appellant were subjected to close 
scrutiny. IVhen the Customs dominated Bo:ird failed to get. any- 
thing agains! the  Appellant they came out with a lame excuse that 
the i~ppel lant  had treated one Jai Kishan Das a gold dealer licensee 
leniently in his quasi-jitdicial capacity and had imposed a lesser 
penalty ~vithout giving reasons for the same and on that account 
displeasule of Government of India was communicated to the Ap- 
pellant. Et4ore communicating the displeasure, the Appellant was 
sent for and told by the Chairman personally that this displeasure 
would not stand against the future prospects and promotion of the 
Appellant and that the same would not form par t  of hi; confidential 
character roll., It is sublnitted that the real reason for conveying 
the displeasure of the Government was not the case of Jai Kishan 
Das but something else. 

2. On 15th September, 1967, foreign marked gold of the value of 
more than Rs.  2 crores was seized by the sub-ordinates of the Ap- 
pellant from an aircraft belonging to the BOAC a t  the Palam Air- 
port which gold was brought to India in contravention of the Cus- 
toms Law and the Rules and Regulations then in force. After the 
seizure of gold, adjudicatiw proceedings took place and a show 
cause notice was issued by the Appellant to  the BOAC to show 
cause as to why the gold and the aircraft in which gold was being 
carried be not confiscated and penalty imposed upon the persons 
concerned in t h e  offence 



.S. During the course d the adjudication proceedings, the then 
Finaace Secretary, namely, Shri  T. P. Singh started pressurising the 
Appellant to release the gold forthwith by sending personnl mes- 
sages. The Appellant did not pay anv heed to the personal mes- 
sages of the then Finance S e c r e t q .  The Appellant was called to 
t h e  Board by Shri T. C. Seth, the then Member, Central Board of 
Excise and Custgms and was apprised of the decision of thr  Finance 
Secretary to release the gold. Later on the Appellant was again 
sent for and in the presence of Shri Jasjit Singh, the present Mem- 
ber of Central Board of Excise and Customs required the Appellant 
to release the gold forthwith. Shri Jasjit Singh, who was the Gold 
Control Administrator a t  that time remarked that if the hppellant 
felt any difficulty in releasing the gold, he could obtain for the 
Appellant a favourable cpinion from Law Ministry. The Appellant 
did not submit to thls undue pressure and tool; up the stand that he 
would see as to what could judicially be done in the matter. 

23. The then Finance Secretary (Shri T. P. Singh) personally 
told the Appellant several times to release the gold forthwith with- 
oltt any further delay and pass an adjudication order favourable and 
compliment.ary to thtx ROAC. He went cvcn to dictate the Adjudi- 
cation order. The Appellant v e q  humbly submitted that he would 
considcr the mnttcr and pass his adjudication order according to  
law. 

2 * 

24. Thc il-ivestigation of this case was entrusted to the then 
Directw of Revenue Intelligence. The lhen Director, Revenue In- 
telllgence, was also prcssurised and made to submit another in\,est, - 
gation leport. He went personally to thc Appellant and asked for 
the earlier investigation report and halldud over to the Appell;rnt 
the subsequent investigation report. The Appellant handed over t,he 
earlier report to the lhen Director, Hevcnuc Intelligence. and kept 
the  new report on the file. After this the Appellant was again called 
by the then Finance Secretary and told to pass the adjudicatio~l 
older in favour of BOAC releasing the foreign marked gold. The Ap- 
pe,\ant again refused to sumit to this undue and illegal pressure. 
Thei then Finance Secretary a t  that time observed that the Deputy 
Prime Minister ho was also the then Flnance Minister was interest- 
ed in the matter and that i t  was in the fitness of affairs that the Ap- 
pelliint should pass an adjudication order in favour of BOAC. 

25. T h e  Appellant sniffmg something in the matter came out of 
the  room of t h e  Secretary and sought for the  personal advice and 
guidance of the  then Minister of State for Department of Revenue 
and Expenditure. The then Minister of S t a t  for Department of 
Revenue and Expenditure advised the  Appellant to pass the adjudi- 



cation order wxodbq to law and in accordance with t& cvidsaea 
on recotd. The then Mbbter of S h k  abo apprired the Appellant 
of the h t i l e  pppolpade going on against the Appellant in the 
hig5er echelons of the Finance bfhirtry. 

28. The Appellant was ttrmed as an OfBcer belonging to the 
Rime Minister's group. It may be stated here that the displeasure 
of the Govenvhent was conveyed to the Appellant on 7th February, 
1988 when the Appellant refused to submit to the illegal pressure. 
The adjudication order in the BOAC Gold case was passed by the 
Appellant on 15th February, 1068. I t  in submitted that this was the 
primary reaeon behind the conveying of the displeasure of the Gov- 
ernment and not the case of Jai Kishan Das which was apparently 
made the ground for conveying the displeasure. 

27. After the release of the gold by the Central Board of Excise 
and Customs by setting aside the order of adjudication a discussion 
took place in the Parliament. During the course of discussion a 
reference was also made to the changing of the Investigation Report 
to which no reply was forthcoming on behalf of the Government. 
Shri Moraji Desai, the then Deputy Prime Minister went to the 
extent of branding the Appellant as 'Wrong Man". The Appellant 
vehemently protested to this and conveyed his injured sentiments 
and wounded feelings to the then Finance Secretary. The Appel- 
lant also brought to the notice of the then Finance Secretary the 
injustice done to the members of the Central Excise service during 
the regime of Shri Mora rji Desai. A request was also made to him 
(O convey these feelings to the Hon'ble Deputy Prime Minister. 

28. It may be stated here that lb th  Shri T. P. Singh and Shri D. 
P. Anand were averse to Central Ekcise Officers generally, because 
they were oposing vehemently the unfair and under-hand machina- 
tions of the Custcnns dominated Board. They were particularly 
against the Appellant, because he was the moving spirit in offering 
resistance to the injustices committed by the Central Board of 
Excise and Custoans and the Ministry of Finance. 

29. When the turn of the Appellant for being considered for the 
post of Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs again came, 
it was pointed out to the then Finance Secretary that it would not 
be fair to ignore the Appellant. The then Finance Secretary Shri 
T, P. Singh remarked that he had to consolidate his position with 
the Deputy Prime Minister (Shri Mwarji Desai) and that he want- 
ed ofacers oi his complete coddence m the Board Since SM 



Xorarji Desai and the then Finance Secretary, Shri T. P. Singh 
were hoetile towards the Appellant as he had not obliged them in 
tile W A C  gold caoe he was completely ignored. 

30. Since the Appellant as the senior most Collector and in the 
normal course could not be ignored from being considered by the 
Establishment Board and the Cabint Committee on Appointment a 
novel method was devised by the Customs dominated Board and the 
then F~nance Secretary with the blessings of the then Finance 
Minister (Shri Morarj i Desai) of sponsoring a departmental candi- 
date and forwarding his name to the Establishment Board and the 
Cabinet Committee on Appointment. This novel method of spon- 
soring the departmental candidate was primarily desimed with the 
ulterior motive and designs of preventing the Appellant from being 
considered by the Cabinet Committee on Appointment as the then 
Finance Secretary and the Finance MiIlister were certain in their 
m i ~ d  that if once the rime of the Appellant was placed before the 
Cabinet Committee on Appointment for being considered for the 
post of Member of Central Board of Excise and Customs, he would 
certainly be selected and appointed to the post. This is how the 
Board and the higher afficers of the Finance Ministry have been 
able to prevent the name of the Appellant from being considered by 
the Cabinet Committee on Appointment. 

31. Having arbitrarily and rnalafide denied the Appellant the 
post of Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs, the Respon- 
dents introduced and started the above said device of sponsoring a 
Departmental candidate for the post of Member, Central Board of 
Excise and Customs. This action of the Respondents in sponsoring 
a Departmental candidate for the post of Member, Central Boslrd 
of Excise and Customs is abritrary, rnalafide, discrimipatory and 
violative of Articles 14 and 16 of the Constitution. The name of the 
Respondent No. 7 was sponsored by Rapondent Nq, 3 as a Depart- 
mental candidate. To the best of the knowledge of the Appellant, 
the case of the Appellant was not forwarded to the Establishment 
Board and to the Cabinet Committee on Appointment; for its con- 
sideration. 

32. Aggrieved by that and by the revised seniority list published 
in April, 1968, the Appellant challenged the said seniority list, the 
selection and appointment of Respondent No. 5 and selection of Res- 
pondent No. 7 to the past of Member, Central Board of Excise and 
Customs. 1 



33. With respect to Paragraph 4 of the Addritional Adidavit, 1 
ray and submit that the post of Member Central Board of Excise and 
Customs, though being a selection post and outside the cadre of 
Service has all along been filled by Members of the Indian Customs 
and Central Excise Service, in order of seniority except the Appel- 
lant, who as already stated hereinabove, has arbitrarily, malaflde 
and illegally been denied the post of Member, Central Board of 
Excise and Customs ever since the inception and constitution of the 
present Central Board of Excise and Customs. In other words, 
seniority in the Indian Customs and Central Excise Service has al- 
ways been taken into consideration as a major and very important 
factor for making selections for the post of Member, Central Board 
of Excise and Customs. That is the precise reason that Charmon 
and the cther Members of the Customs Service manoeuvred and 
brought out a revised seniority list In r ipr~l ,  1968 according to whlch 
the Respondent Nos. 5 to 8 have been shown as senior to the A p  
pellant, and other senior Central Excise Officers. 

' 34. With respect toi Paragraph 5 of the Additional Affidavit, 1 say 
and submit that since Shri Jasjit Singh was already a Joint Sec- 
retary to the Government of India and as such could be appointed 
as Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs, there as no neces- 
sity of his case being sponsored for selection. The case of the  -4p- 
pellant though examintd by the Finance Minister was nat sponsur- 
ed and the name of Shri Jasjit Singh was duly sponsored for 
appointment to the newly created post. The case of the Appellant 
was not considered at  all by the Cabinet Committee since i t  was not 
put up before it. In other words, the Appellant has not been consi- 
dered for selection and appointment to the post of Member, Central 
Board of Excise and Customs and his Fundamental Rights as gua- 
ranteed by Articles 14 and 16 of the Constitution of India have been 
arbitrarily infringed and violated. 

35. With regard to the Paragraph 6 of the Additional Affidavit 
the name of the Appellant was admittedly not sponsored nor i t  was 
considered by the Cabinet Committee for selection and appointment 
to the post of Joint Secretary and Gold C m t r d  Administrator in the 
Department of &venue and Insurance. The non-consideration of 
the name of the Appellant for appintment  to the said post violates 
the Fundamental Rights of the Appellant as guaranteed undtr Arti- 
cles 14 and 16 qf the Constitution. I t  is submitted that the Finance 



Minister and the Board had no right, p w e r  or authority tr, sponsor 
the name of Shri M. A. Rangaswamy and to arbitrarily withhold the  
name of the  Appellant from being considered by the Cabinet Com- 
mittee for the post of Joint Secretary and Gold Control Adminis- 
trator. The Appointment Committee of the Cabinet which is the  
selecting authority, did not a t  all consider the case and in fact had no 
occasion to consider the case of the Petitioner as the name of only 
one person namely Shri M. A. Rangaswamy had been sponsored by 
the Finance Ministry. The action of the Finance Mmister and the 
Board in spocsoring the candidature of Shri M. A. Rangaswamy and 
not forwarding the case of the Appellant for consideration before 
the  Appointment Committee of the Cabinet is discriminatory. arbi- 
trary and malafide and is vidative of the Fundnrnen~nl Rights of 
the Appellant guaranteed by Articles 14 and 16 of the Constitution 
of India. 

36. With respect to Paragraph 7 of the Additional Affidavit it is 
submitted that again the nnme of the Appellant was not coilsidered 
by the Appointment Committee of the Cabinet as it was lint spon- 
sored by thc Respondent No, 3 and the Finance Ministttr while the  
name of Shri B. Sen, another Officer of the Indian Customs Service 
was sponsured. Similarly, the nnme id Shri D. N. Kohli, who is 
junior to the Appellant in the grade. of Collector of Central Excise 
and Customs was sponsored by thc Respondent No. 3 and the 
Finance Mi~fs te r .  The Appointment Conhi t t ee  of the Cabinet did 
not consider and exarl~irie the case of the Appellan: for promotion. 
It  is suhmjtted that the Appellant has the right to bc considered by 
the selecting authority which is the Cabinet CommiQec and that. 
right has arbitrarily been denied to thc Appellant. The appeal of 
the Appellant is liable l o  be a lhwed on this ground alone. Under 
the instructions and the decision of tho Government of India, it is 
the Appointment Committee of the Cabinet which is entrusted ?vith 
the job of m.aking selection of the  various officers to the p .,t of 
Member, Central Board of Excise and Cust,oms or to the cost of Joint 
Secretary to the Gwernrnent of India and not the Finance Minister. 
The Finance Minister and the Board have no right, power or autho- 
rity i~ law to withhold the  name and thereby prevent the Appellant 
from 'being considered by the Appointment Committte of the Cabi- 
net. Had the Appointment Committee of the Cabinet considered 
t h e  name of the Appellants, the  Appellant would have been selected 
and appointed to the  post of Member, C e u r a l  Board of Excise and 
Customs. 

37. With regard to Paragraph 8 of the Additional f f i d a v i t ,  it is 
denied that th t  name of the Appellant has been considered for ap- 



paintment aa Member, Central Board of Ekcise and Cuabms and 
Jofnt Secretary to the Govenunent of India on every occasion from 
1968 onwards. Hb name has admittedly been considered by the 
Finance Mi~~Lter but not by the Appointment Committee of the 
Cabinet which is the only competent body entrusted with the job 
of selecting the officers for senior appointmenb and for the post of 
Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs. The Appointment 
Committee of the Cabinet consists of not only the Finance Minister 
but other Cabinet misters including the Home Minister and the 
Prime Minister. It has been wrongly averred in the Paragraph 
under reply that the Appellant has been considered for appointment 
as Member, Central Board of Excise and Customs in accordance 
with Law 

38. With respect to Paragraph 9 of the Additional Mdavi t ,  I 
say and submit that it is correct that the Appellant is holding the 
highest grade in the Indian Customs and Central Excise Service. It 
is submitted that by virtue of the Appellant being the senior-most 
among the Collectors and by virtue of his service record the Appe- 
llant had the right to be considered by the Appointment Committee 
of the Cabinet in all the 5 vacancies filled up after March, 1967. The 
perusal of the Additional AfRdavit itself shows that the name of the 
Appellant was not considered by the Appointment Committee of the 
Cabinet at any time nor sponsored by the Ministry. The Funda- 
mental Rights of the Appellant as guaranteed under Articles 14 and 
16 of the Constitution have been volated and infringed. The action 
of the Respondent being discriminatory, arbitrary, malafide and 
capricious, is liable to be quashed by this Hon'ble Court in the pre- 
sent appeal. 

39. Your Appellant states and submits that according to the prac- 
tice of the Government of India-the post of Joint Secretary which 
is an ex-cadre post is filled up in the various Ministries through 
nominations received from the various Ministries Departments. So 
far only the Customs M c e r s  have been nominated by the Custom 
dominated Central Board of Excise and Customs for the post of Joint 
Secretaries in other Ministries. Officers of the erstwhile Central 
Excise Service have not been sponsored and as such have been dis- 
criminated against even on this score. 

40. It may be stated here that the Appellant has got the highest 
regard and full confidence and faith in Shri B. D. Pande, Secretary 
to the Cjovernment of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Re- 



venue and Innuu~ce. The Appellant hrs got absolutely no griaw;~~w 
against him. 

DEPONENT 

I, R. Prasad, above named do solemnly a r m  and state that the 
facts stated In Paragraph 1 to 40 of the above Affidavit are true to 
my knowledge while the remaining contents of the above said AfB- 
davit are by way of submissions to the Hon'ble Court. No part of 
it is false and nothing has been concealed. 

Sworn by me thb 2nd day of December, 1971. 

DEPONENT 



APPENDIX WI 

Extrats jrmn the W3rt Petition field in the High Court of Delhi in 
Januuty, 1071, by Shri S. K .  Srivastava, now Collector of Central 

Excise, H~derabad, 
* * * * 

(3) That your petitioner served various assignments as Assistant 
Colllector of Customs, Deputy Collector and ~lss is tant  Director of 
Inspection (Vigilance), Additional Collector of Customs, Officer on 
Special Duty in the grade of Collector of Customs and also as Deputy 
Director Revenue Intelligence and Collector of Central Exclse and 
Customs in the Various Collectorates under the Central Board of 
Revenue and the Central Board of Excise and Customs, forming part 
of the Ministry of Finance, Government of India, New Delhi, here- 
inafter referred to for the sake of brevity as "the Board", before be- 
ing selected and appointed in September, 1967 as Director, Revenue 
Intelligence in the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence a t  New Delhi. 

* * * * 
(25) That in the month of July 1970, your petitioner was investi- 

gating into smuggling rackets of Prime importance a t  Bombay- 
rnckets which had caused a lot of damage to national economy. Your 
petitioner had recorded or caused to be recorded, during the said 
investigations, statements of important members of the said smugg- 
ling rackets, disclosing startling facls as to the new modes of 
smuggling as also the sources in India which were privy to the said 
operations of and directly or indirectly assisting the said r x k c t s .  
These sources, unfortunately, included some of those who V. ere 
directly and/or indirectly entrusted with anti-smuggling and prcven- 
tive operations of t.his young Republic. 

These investigations had been going on for qui.e some time and 
had reached a new tempo by July, 1970. 

(26) That on the 21st July,  1970, your petitioner was attending 
the Bombay High Court, to assist the Counsel engaged by the Gov- 
ernment, in connection with a bail application of one Mastan, a noto- 
rious alleged smuggler from Bombay, operating smuggling rackets 
in various parts of the country. After the hearing of t.he said bail ap- 
plication of said Mastan was adjourned on that day, i .e .  the 21st 
July,  1970, one of the associates of Mastan consulted the said Mas- 



tan in tbe open court, within the hearing of your petitioner and 
other$ that he (mastan) did not need worry as orders for your 
petitioner's transfer from the post of the Director of Rcvenue Inte- 
lligence were going to be issued very soon. The said disclosure 
naturally intrigued your petitioner. 

(27) That on the 24th of July 1970, while your petitioner was in 
Bombay, your petitioner was informed by sources believed to be 
close to the smugglers that the smugglers had confidentIy and wide- 
l y  pronounced in Bombay that orders removing your petitioner from 
the post of the Director, Revenue Intelligence, had been passed. 

(28) That as the said news was bound to I~rcak thc nmrnl of 
sources, close to the smugglers, who wcrc assisting your pctltioner 
In collection of ~ n t e l l l g e n r ~  and (>\ldence against the said rackets. 
your petlt~oncr came t o  Dclhl on *he 25th July 1970, and ~mmedidtely 
called upon the officers In his l > l r c c t o r ~ ' ~ ~  and also contectrd some 
of h ~ s  colleagues in the Central Boa-d of i h c i s c  and  Custom; to 
i ~ r l f q '  the correctness and truth of the afore-mentloncd rutnours 
To hour pet~tloners' astonishment, however, each one of the sard 
pi2r son5 t b ~ 1 \ l  c.>srd complete lgnorancc about an) kt~owlcdgc~ a h  to 
an> such cirders having been passrd or being tuntctnpldtcd 

(29)  That your petltlonci, thereupon, on thr snnrc! day, wrote a 
top-serret note and saw the Lllrector-Grncral, Reirc*nuc Intelligence 
and i n v e s t ~ g ~ > t ~ o n  wl:h thc s d ~ d  note, npprlslng hlm of the s a d  
rumours The sald Director-General carefully went through the 
said note and heard your petltlnncr but did not stdtc thut any such 
orders werc contemplated nor that any such orders had been passed. 

(30) That at 10 AM on the 27th J u l j ,  1970, your petitioner was 
summoned to the office of the Director-General, Hei'onue Intel11- 
gence and Investigat~on, In the North Block of the Central Sec- 
retariat of the Government of Indla, New Delhi, where he was 
served wlth order No. 110170, dated 27th of July,  1970, a t  ahout 
110.10 A.M. 

Annexure 'G' (not printed) is a true copy of the said order, 
which is purported to have been signed by one Shri T. Ramaswamy. 
an Under Secretary to the Government of India, in the Ministry of 
Finance, Department of Revenue and Insurance. By the said order, 
your petitioner was informed that the President had been pleased 
to order the petitioner's transfer with immediate effect, and that 
your petitioner had been posted as Collector of Customs, Calcutta, 
vice Shri A. K. Bandopadhyaya. The said order directed that Shri 
M. G. Wagh, the  afore-mentioned, Director General, (Revenue 



Intelligence md InvertigaUon) would hold charge of tbe rrrLd post 
of Director of Revenue Intelligence until further orders, and that 
odera  for posting of Shri A K. Bandopadhyaya would be issued 
separately later. The said order is hereinafter referred to rn tbe 
impugned order dated the 27th July 1870. The said order would 
go to show that it was made and communicated with unusual haste, 
without w e n  making alternative arrangements for appointment 
to the said post of Director Revenue Intelligence and without assign- 
ing a posting to Shri Bandopadhyaya and that the whole order is 
and was shrouded in mystery. 

(31) That after the ~ e p i t  of the said impugned order dated 
27th of July 1970, your petitioner along with Shri M. G. Wagh, the 
aforcmcntioned Director-General, called on Shri D. P. h a n d ,  
Chairman of the Board, Respondent No. 2 to the petition, and ex- 
plained to him the risks involved in hading over charge merely by 
signing a charge report, without going through the normal pro- 
cedure of physical handing over of important and vital documents 
in the said Directorate of Revenue Intelligence, to his successor, and 
without taking a receipt for the same and also without giving to 
the successor a note about important pending matters in the 
Directorate of Revenue Intelligence. I t  was explained to the 
Chairman that proper lists of documents at Bombay alone would 
take a few days and that documents at Delhi also required to be 
listed. 

(32) That the meeting with the Chairman took place at  about 
11.00 A.M. and lated fo,r about half an hour. At the said meeting 
your petitioner informed the said Chairman that cerCin urgent 
matters pertaining to the Directorate, and consultations fixed for 
the same night with one of Counsel in Bombay regarding Mastan's 
case, were also to be attended to, a t  Bombay. 

(33) That your petitioner waa then directed to proceed to 
Bombay for the aforestated purposes of attending to the urgent 
matters and consultation fixed with the Counsel, and for preparation 
of the list of documents to be handed over at  Bombay. The Chair- 
man also agreed at  the said meeting that your petitioner should 
prepare the necessary lists for handing over charge at Bombay and 
Delhi before handing over the charge. 

(34) That thereafter your petitioner left the ofice of the Chair- 
man to leave for Bombay by plane scheduled to leave Palam Airport, 
New Delhi, a t  about 1.15 P.M. 



(35) That when your petitioner reached Palam ALrport a t  about 
0.45 PY. to tmpLone far Bombay, your petitioner was informed that 
there warr s telephone message for him, directing him to contact 
Respondent No. 2 the Chairman of the Central Board of Excise and 
Customs, on telephone. Your petitioner, in obedience to the said 
orders, contacted the Chairman on telephone. To your petitioner's 
utter surprise, and contrary to the directions issued by the Chairman, 
during the afore-staW conference, your petitioner was directed 
that before flying to Bombay, he should sign a handing over report 
in respect of his charge as Director of Revenue Intelligence. He 
was also informed that further instructions would be conveyed to 
him at  Bombay after consulting Shri H. Lal, a Secretary to the 
Government of India, in the Ministry of Home Affairs. Your peti- 
tioner was further informed that Shri M. G. Wagh, Director-General, 
was on his way to Palam with the requisite forms for handing over 
and taking over of the chkrge, and that if the said Shri M. G. Wagh 
did not arrive at  Palam by the time the flight took off, your peti- 
tioner should write out a handing over charge report on an ordinary 
paper and leave it with the Palam Customs for onward delivery 
to Shri M, G. Wagh. 

(36) That although the mystery behind subjecting your peti- 
tioner to the said most humiliating manner of handing over charge 
of such an important office was incomprehensible to him, he obeyed 
to orders of the Chairman and wrote out a handing over charge on 
a sheet of paper. While he was about to hand-over the same to the 
Palam Customs staff, Shri M. G. Wagh aforenamed, arrived on the 
scene with the printed handing over and taking over charge forms 
which were also signed by your petitioner and handed over along- 
with the earlier written charge handing report to Shri M. G. Wagh. 

(37) That on reaching Bombay your petitioner received advice 
from Shri M. G. Wagh, the aforementioned Director-General, a t  
about 6.30 on trunk telephone, informing him that he was permitted 
to attend the Conference with the Ccunsel fixed for the same 
evening and that it was desired that he should extend his help to 
the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence in all matters wherever he 
was required to & so. 

(38) That your petitioner remained busy in Bombay from 27th 
of July till 1st of August, 1970, attending to such work as w w  
ossigned to him by Shri M. G. Wagh, who visited Bombay for the 
purpose on the 28th of July, 1970. Your petitioner also started 
preparing list of records at  Bombay, to be handed over. 



(39) That your petitioner returned to Delhi on the 2nd August, 
1970 and had again to go to Bombay on the 3rd August, 1970, along 
with Shri M. G .  Wagh, to attend to matters pertaining to the 
D~rectorate of Revenue Intelligence, as per his directions. Your 
petitioner remained in Bombay till the 8th of August, 1970, and 
returned to Delhi on the 9th of August 1970. 

(40) That on 30th of July, 1970, your petitioner wrote a letter to 
Shri D. P. Anand, Chairman, Central Board of Excise and Customs, 
New Delhi, Respondent No. 2 bringing to his notice the afore- 
mentioned facts pertaining to the mode of his removal from the post 
of Director of Revenue Intelligence and other matters. The peti- 
tioner is not annexing a copy of the said letter with this petition as 
i t  contains various matters which are of a highly secret nature. 
Your petitioner would, however, request t h e  1-lon'ble Court to call for 
this letter and peruse thc contents therebf 

(41) That during his stay at Bombay your petitioner received 
information, through sources believed to be close to smugglers, 
which wore both shocking and depressing. Your petitioner was 
reported to have beconlc "thc table talk" amongst smugglers, who 
were reported to be openly publicising their strength and means, 
and rejoining. 

(42) That the aforementioned impugned orders dated 27th of 
July 1970, completely broke the petitioner particularly in the back- 
ground and by the mode in which the said orders were made and 
communicated. Your petitioner availed of leave, applied for by 
him earlier with effect from t.he 10th August 1970, and remained 
confined to bed, at Delhi, for over two weeks about a week after 
his return from Bombay on the 8th of August, 1970. 

(44) That on the 9th day of November, 1970 your petitioner 
called on the Chairman of the Board, Respondent No. 2 and re- 
quested him to apprise him of the reasons that had led to his remo- 
val from the post of Director, Revenue Intelligence, and his posting 
to Calcutta as Collector of Customs. The Chairman did not give any 
reason, whatsoever, to y y r  petitioner for the said orders. Your 
petitioner again saw the Chairman on the 27th of November, 1970, 
in the same connection but to no avail. Your petitioner also 
handed over a written request to the Chairman for being apprised 
of the reasons for his removal from the post of Director Revenue 
Intelligence. 

* * * * 
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(46) That in the afternoon of the 8th of December, 1970 during 
the lunch break, while your petitioner werr attending the Collector's 
conference a t  Deb, and hopmg for r e h  of the wrong done to 
him, your petitioner was served with ano tha  order being order 
No. 196/70--hereinafter referred to for the sake of brevity as the 
impugned order dated 8th of December, l s 7 ~ i g a e d  by the atore- 
named Shri T. Ramaswamy, Under Secretary to the Government 
of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Revenue and 
Insurance, whereby the petitioner was informed that the impugned 
order dated 27th of July 1970 made by the Ministry of Finance, 
posting the petitioner as Collector of Customs, Calcutta, had been 
cancelled and that orders giving him another posting would be 
issued separately. In the same order it waa stated, that as the earned 
leave granted to the petitioner had expired on the 7th of December, 
1970, the period from the 8th of December, 1970, to the date of issue 
of the fresh posting order would be suitably adjusted if necessary 
by extending the joining time admissible tn the petitioner. 
Annexure 'H' (not printed) hereto is a true copy of the said order 
dated 8th of December, 1970. 

* * * 
(47) That in the evening of the 17th of December 1970, at about 

6.03 P.M. your petitioner was served with another order heing 
order No. 202/70, dated 16th of December, 1970. The order was 
served through a special messenger and it was signed by Shri T. 
Ramaswamy, the aforementioned under Secretary in the Ministry 
of Finance, Department of Revenue and Insurance, Government of' 
Indla. By this order your petitioner was informed that the Presi- 
dent was pleased to order your petitioner's posting as Collector of 
Central Excise, Hyderabad vice Shri M. L. Routh due to retire in 
the afternoon of the 31st of December, 1970. The said order is here- 
inafter referred to, for the sake of brevity, as the impugned order 
dated the 16th December, 1970-true copy whereof is Annexure 'I' 
(not printed) hereto. 

* * * 
(49) That your petitioner went to the office of the Director 

Revenue Intelligence, on three or four occasions prior to 26-11-50. 
He did so in connection with his own personal matters, for example 
to make enquiry about the delay in the payment of his leave salary 
(which was paid only on 20-1-1971) and also to render some assis- 
tance in official matters, which he was asked to render. Unidentified 
vested interests, apparently felt disturbed by these visits of the peti- 
tioner to the said office of the Director of Revenue Intelligence. 
They misguided even a r t a i n  Members of Parliament one of whom, 
601 LS-12. 



Shubi Bhumhen rtrted on the floor of the &k Sabh aa 
2511-1970, that yoor petitioner had visited the o l b  allegedly to 
hush up a gold smuggling case, in which ICanti Desai, son of 
M o s m  DQIlri dm fonlm I'bnCe Hintrter of the COvemm#lt of 
India war involved allegedly carrying smuggled gold on 24-11-1070, 
in bin own car from M e e ~ t .  When your petitfoner read about the 
said statement in the Newspapers, he submitted to the Chairman of 
the Board on 28-11-1970 a petition addressed to the Speaker of the 
Lok Sahha, and requested Mm to forward it to the Speaker of the 
Lok Sabha, whmin your petitioner vehemently refuted the all alle- 
gations and submitted inter alia that the matter be referred to a 
Parliamentary Committee to pass a verdict on your petitioner's 
submisdons, contained therein. The other affected parties also 
refuted the allegations through the press and in the Parliament. 
Your petitioner is informed and verily believes that the Govern- 
ment had soon after 26-11-1970, caused extensive enquiries to be 
made, alrd found that the alleged incident had not taken place 
and that the statement made in the Lok Sabha by the Honourable 
Member was not correct. Nonetheless, on receipt of an alleged 
anonymous letter, the Board did not rule out further enquiry and 
contemplated enquiry by the C. B. I. The petitioner submits that 
even taking cognisance of the alleged anonymous letter, particularly 
so in the aforesaid background, apart from being patiently mlafide 
is contrary to the Board's and Government's general practice in 
regard to anonymous and pseudonymous complaints and to the 
policy decision on the subject of handling of such comptaints which 
Uecision was given wide publicity on 7th April, 1965 by the Board, 
through the Directorate of Inspection, Customs and Central Excise 
(Vigilance Wing). 

(50) That faced with the said situation, which displayed that 
there was no ray of hope left for your petitioner and that your 
petitioner was victimised with renewed vigour, instead of being 
'dealt justice, your petitioner submitted a Memorandum to the 
President of India, being his Memorandum dated 28thI29th Decem- 
ber, 1970, whereby he specially brought it to the notice of the 
President of India that your petitioner had become a victim of an 
Organised villiflcation compaign and the petitioner prayed for 
revocation of order of the petitjoners removal from the post of 
Director Revenue Intelligence, and of his posting as Collector of 
Central Excise, Hyderabad. The petitioner has not received justice 
so far. 



~ o ~ r p ~ ~ ~ h 8 g h h t J 8 d ~ ~ h t ~ ~ h -  
bdll~sag, Your p e t i b w c  rmrtes bqld to my t&t the Dinctoreb 
of hvemm IabUigene bas @-awn with the petittonee. The pati- 
tiortsr her beca mapmsible for unrrthtag powerful and eatnm&d 
gsuiga of aswggka in the country, who have, many a ttme enjoyed 
tk patronage of sonv of those emtrusted with the e d m c ~ m e n t  of 
anti-amuggling laws aad preventive operatings of the nation. Your 
petitianer has spored no means in the matter of unesrthing these 
gangs and their patrons, helpers and sympathisers, whatever be 
their status in life, sauce and support. The petitioner submits 
that the confidential Government records, bear a strong testimony 
to the assert~on of your Petitioner. Annexure 'N' (not printed) 
hereto u a very short account of some of the achievements to your 
petitloner's credit in the field of specialised work for which the 
Director of Revenue Intelligence was set up and which merited and 
resulted in his appointment as Director of Revenue Intelligence. 

Your petitioner is informed by sources, who ought to know, and 
verily believes that his removal from the post of Director Revenue 
Intelligence, is the direct result of the influence and efforts, of these 
whom your petitioner has exposed and particularly so during the 
last few months of his office as Director Revenue Intelligence. 
Your petitioner submits that the unusual haste and hurry with 
which the impugned order dated 27th July, 1970 was made and the 
uncalled for an unusual anxiety and interest shown in making 
your petitioner handover charge at the Airport, as detailed herein- 
before, points to the obvious. 

Your petitioner submits that the apparent malafides behind your 
petitioner's removal from the office of the Director Revenue Intelli- 
gence, will be apparent, if the Court summons the various statements 
recorded or caused to be recorded by your petitioner during the 
course of his investigations at Bombay, particularly between July 
1969 and August, 1970, and in particular the statements of Shri 
Y. A. Pate1 Shri Pravin Thaper, Shri Mohammad Hussain Lighwalls 
and others, whose names, if disclosed in open court, would cause 
grave risks to the lives of the unnamed deponents. Your petitioner 
has not disclosed the contents of the said statements and the names 
and particulars of the persons disclosed to be involved in the said 
smuggling rackets as the same at this stage are matters of a secret 
nature and your petitioner is prevented not only by his official 
status but by his status as a Citizen from disclosing the same in 
public interest. Your petitioner is advised and he believes that the 



bnn'ble Court can, bowever, summon tba said statQlrcmb .ad peruse 
for i h l f  the background of your @timer's nmovd fram the 
o h  of the Director Revenue Intelligtoce. Your petitioner further 
submits that his r ~ m o v d  from tha post at a time when the preven- 
tive and detecting and investigating aspects of antismuggling work 
and of work relating to the burrting of Mutntlol and entrenched 
smuggling had reached a new tempo, k obviowly the result of 
sinister designs on the part of these as are advenely dTected by 
and1 or had otherwise involved themselves in circumventing and 
sabotaging the economic Abre of the country and who had of ncces- 
sity to commit themselves to sabotaging the honest activitim of 
the Director of Revenue Intelligence and of other agencies against 
smugglers and their aiders and abetters. The importance of the 
operations and the crucial stage thereof is evidenced by the fact that 
even after your petitioner was made to hand over charge in the 
most humiliating, mysterious and dramatic, manner, refreshed to in 
detail hereinbefore, he was directed to proceed to Bombay twice in 
order to be available for further consultations in connection with 
proceeding operations, though denied opportunity to develop the 
same further. 



&tracts from Rejoinder afidavit jiled in the High Court of Dclhi in 
April, 1911 by Shti S. K. Sritwtava, new Collector of bntral 
E w i h ,  Hyderabad. 

Smuggling rackets are organised in the most dubious way and 
operated with utmost secrecy and by methods of gansterism like the 
mafia of the USA. It is impossible for any person who dedicates 
himself to do anything useful in exposing these rackets to achieve 
anything without going to the battle front and directly and/or 
indirectly but ostensibly associating himself with these who nre 
directly or indirectly connected with these rackets, although such an 
enterprise is attended by grave risks to the personal safety of such 
officer and of those whose assistance he seeks. There is no other 
magic formula to achieve the desired result than ostensibly associat- 
ing with one or more of such persons and seeking their confidence, 
if anything worthwhile is to be achieved. The petitioner in his zest 
for his job and out of love for the mission he was assigned to chose 
this grave and riskly path-risky to himself, and slowly and steadily 
'gained the confidence of some of such persons. 

One of the said persons was at one time very actively associated 
with such rackets, though only as early as in 1955, and he thereafter 
reformed himself as to become a useful prone of the Directorate to 
gather information about the old timers in smuggling. The other 
one, amongst such persons, had valuable information with regard to 
the several gangs of very important smugglers and was reported to 
have been buying solver on their behalf on a very big scale to pay 
for the gold illicitly imported into India, by the said operators again 
on a very big scale to pay for the gold illicitly imported into India, 
by the said operators again on a very large scale. The petitioner's 
resulted in very useful information which let to valuable clues as 
regards the & opcrandi of these rackets and the particulars and 
whereabouts of the principal operators 'and their collaborators. 

To cloak the intercoume between the petitioner and one of these 
two person8 in particulars, and to continue to get information and 



a t  the same t h e  to ensure that the operators do not get a scent of 
the k t  that the a i d  person was supplying information to the peti- 
tioner, the petitioner osteMibly , d e y a l H  friendly relations with 
one of them whose residence was made the rendezvous f a  d l e t i n g  
-on. 

Unfortunately as the racketeers got exposed and/or started 
getting exposed and were apprehended, and/or getting apprehended 
their counter-espionage appeared to have revealed to them roles of 
infomners exposing both these valuable cooperators who were thus 
exposed to grave dsks. The authorities are aware that in November, 
1969, one of the said co-operators was companjon succumbed to the 
injuries received by him. This happened despite a note of warning 
sent by the petitioner to the Government and to the Commissioner 
of police of the area concerned as early as in July, 1969, pertaining 
k, the imminent possibility of an attempt being made by racketeers 
on his life. 

Despite the murderous attack, the said cooperator became still 
more cooperative resulting in his furnishing more valuable clues 
and some positive evidence. 

Unfortunately your petitioner's investigations exposed a good 
number of offlcers in the Government who came to be known to be 
actively associated with these rackets. The desparate device that 
was adopted by these affected was the earnest attempt to have the 
petitioner removed from the post and to that and they did many a 
things, including the attempt to terrorise the petitioner and starting 
a campaign of villification of the petitioner of which also timely 
notes of warning were sent to the Government from time to time. 

When the petitioner was ridin'g the crest of wave of cooperation, 
resulting in successes in collecting clues against the racketeers and 
their collaborators, in May 1930, he was shown by Shri M. G. Wagh, 
the Director General of Revenue Intelligence and Investigation a 
telegram which named the two collaborators of the petitioner and 
his family had been staying with one of the cc:laborators and that 
the petitioner had h e n  favouring the other co-operator in his personal 
matters. The petitioner is not disclosing the names of the cooperatars 
or the exact language of the telegram and prays that the same be 
called by the Hon'ble Court. 

The Director General of Revenue Intelligence and Investigations 
told the petitioner that the Chairman of the board-Respondent No. 2 



The Phtitbmm b e e  faced on ane hand with the evenZudity bf 
having to didom the real recret relations and i n t e t l o c b g  of the 
petitioner with the said gentlemen, and on the other hand wfth his 
sacred duty to the country in maintaining these telations and conti- 
nuing to gather information through such co-operators against 
smugglers, a t  the same time safeguarding the personal safety of such 
cooperators penned down and handed over a brief note to the 
Director General of Revenue Intelligence and Investigations, admit- 
ting briefly that he had his family did stay with one of the named 
gentlemen. The petitioner only referred to one of the spccial 
circumstances in which his family had come to Bombay, and stayed 
w ~ t h  one of the said gentlemen, but as in duty bound did not disclose 
the real purpose behind this story. The petitioner did so in deference 
to the sacred duty which he owed to himself as the Director 01 
Revenue Intelligence of the Government of India and to that gentle- 
man, by way of ensuring his safety, as the petitioner was fully aware 
of the motive behind the telegram. The petitioner also sanguinely 
hoped that the Chairman of the Board knowing the petitioner, his 
background, and his mtegrity could and would not want the pcti- 
tioner to offer any explanation for his relations with a one time 
known smuggler. The petitioner could not even dream much less 
visualise, that no less a person than the Chairman of the Board 
could not visualise the truth and would fall a prey to the well known 
methods and tactics of racketeer and the corrupt office~s who had 
been exposed by the petitioner to the Chairman's knowledge. How- 
ever, as the name and the role of the other co-operator was already 
well known to the Government because of notes of warning sent 
by the petitioner about the imminent attack on hie life and about 
his role in exposing the smugglers, ofllcers and others in the 
high places who had been collabocating with the smugglers, the 
petitioner dealt with the allegations about this co-operator in a 
more lucid though brief manner and repudiated the allegations 
furnishing proof 'per se' of the absurdity of the allegations. 

The petitioner never heard from the Government on the subject 
thereafter, nor was the matter ever brough up at any meetings bet- 
ween the petitioner and the Chairman or the Director General of 
Revenue Intelligence and Investigations or any m e m b r  of the Board 
o r  a n y s n e  else till the 9th November, 1970, when the petitioner was 



rummoacd to tbe Cbsharmk morn and put certain questions a b u t  
thb my witb one of the clforedd two ~03)parton. Thrt wpr tbe 
&st rrd tbc last timc tbrt the subject ru broached with the peti- 
Cioner after the petitioner's note on the satd telegram in May, 1970, 

l'h m d t k  was never Lrforard about U)J other complrhrt 
& ~ & k s o ~ i ~ d y . i r r t h b , N ~ ~ * r h & ~ e v e r & l h t -  
p d  in raktion te any incident or .my perso0 whtravar. 

b 0 0 0 

Likewise, the annoaymow complain., received in the Board about 
the alleged incident of smuggling of gold by the son of Shri Morarji 
Desal, after petitioner's removal from the post of Director of Revenue 
Intelligence, and the petitioner's alleged attempt to hush up the 
game and the Government's decision to have the same inquired into 
by the C.B.I. with regard to the petitioner's role therein, also found 
Its way from the Board's office to outsiders. Likewise, the peti- 
tioner's written note to the 2nd Respondent submitted on the 30th 
day of July, 1970, to the effect that a very important smuggling case, 
which has proved to be one of the biggest and most comlicated of 
the matters under investigation about smuggling offences, had been 
attempted to be scuttled at an earlier stage by a Deputy Secretary 
in the Board, and that if it had not been taken out of his hands, the 
startling disclosures revealed during investigations would have never 
come to light, also failed to evince any interest of the Board or the 
2nd Respondent. 

25. The Petitioner oubmits that he can furnish sumcient data to 
establfsh that the villifaction campaign, through complaints despat- 
ched to Government in April, 1970, was intended by vested interests, 
some of whom can be identified, to remove him from the post of the 
Director, Revenue Intelligence, to prevent utmost and most effective 
exploitation of certain clues. The petitioner submits that the vested 
interests included not only  smuggle^^ but also gazetted and non- 
gazetted omcera anb others, still more highly placed. The petitioner 
submits that i! the complaints relied upon by the respondents had 
been shown to him and his explanation or elucidation sought, he 
would have furnished to the authorities in suitable manner all the 
relevant information which would have exposed the untruth of the 
insinuations implied In the contents of these alleged complaints, like- 
ly inspires of such complaints, the specific interests betraved by 
the contents of such complainte etc. etc. The petitioner would wish 
at this stage to refrain from exposing in open court the particulars 
of indivfduab who had reasonable cause to be frightened by the 
continuance of the petitioner tn tht post of Director of Revenue 
Intelligent!. The petitioner oubrnits that certain Government orgo- 
&ations also had reaeonable muse to be frighteneci of exposure a s  



a r d t  of invmtigaticm conducted by md or under the petitioner, 
The petitioner would wirh, at thk stage, to refrain from making ex- 
prnure in open court about these agencies ah. 

Tbe ptitioaer volunteers and prays to the Government, through 
thio Hon'ble Court, that tbe alleged complaints agaimt the petitioner 
be referred to a secret high powered adainistrative committee of two 
or more Hon'ble histera  oi the Govt. of India, with known legal 
acumen, which our present Cabinet abounis in, so that the petitioner 
may furnish all relevant information to them, most of which is of 
top secret nature. The petitioner would abide by the verdict of the 
said high powered Committee, after the petitioner ig afforded the 
opportunity of placing his case before them, in the light of the con- 
tents of the alleged complaints against the petitioner and various 
other matters of great public importance and of highly secret nature. 

The petioner submits that the foregoing would disclose the extent 
of confidence and trust which the public have at all times, and even 
after July 27, 1970 reposed in the petitioner, and which the petitioner 
has been able to inspire in the pubilc. No other offlcer has been able 
to match the petitioner in the above respect. The petitioner's ability 
to persuade members of public, even at the risk of jeopardising 
their own personal interests and safety, to cooperate with the Gov- 
ernment would also be found matchless. This ability fosters on the. 
confidence created in the public about the integrity in widest sense 
of the possessor of such ability. Against the positive indications of 
the public reaction to the petitioner, reliance has been placed on 
undisclo~ed alleged complaints from vested quarbers for removal of 
the petitiona &om the post of Director of Revenue Intelligence, 
casting, stimma on the petitioner, and that without any opportunity 
to the petitioner to show cause against the same. 

The petitioner auhmitted that he has succeeded in investigations 
of certain matters in a manner which astonished and shocked certain 
agencies of the Government, mainly because he was able to inspire 
in the members of public the feeling that the petitioner would treat 
them as normal human beings, although he would act according to 
legal advice in respect of their illegal acts. It is known among the 
honest citizens and the accused alike that, in his official realings 
with them and/or otherwise, the petitioner would not &a1 with 
them in any manner, other than that indicated to them wither h p l i -  
dely or expressly. The petitioner is known for his qualities of ex- 
tending no f a h  hopes, making no false promises, and refraining 
from exploiting clues, furnished by citizens guilty and not guilty, 
for his own peraonalmds. 

7 -  1 1 :  1 , L -. 8 * 
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26. That ar to paragraph of the afIidavit in reply deny that the 
petftloner's part in the invedigations which were in pro- 
gress in Bombay in the month of July 1970, have no rele- 
vance to the alleged transfer of the petitioner from the post of 
Pirector of Revenue Intelligence, I rafterate, more particulduly in the 
light of the contents of the return on affidavit, that the ternpo which 
the Investigations had reached in July 1970 was a relevant factor 
which had precipitated the transfer of the petitioner which is alleged 
to have been under the consideration of the Government, since May 
1970. The petitioner submits that the sudden decision, allegedly 
taken late on 25-7-70 which was a Saturday, mode of its communica- 
tion, involving denial of opportunity to the petitioner even to visit 
his office between the time of passing of the order and its communi- 
cation, absence of any convincing explanation for the delay about 
finalising the alleged tentative decision approved by the Minister 
in May, 1970, and by Prime Minister, as the Finance Minister, in 
June 1970, the smugglers being kept informed about the matter of 
the transfer about which the petitioner himself as also the offlcers of 
the Directorate were meticulously kept in dark, requiring the peti- 
tioner to hand over merely bv the process of signing the charge 
report, posting the petitioner a t  Calcutta, which according to the 
2nd Respondent is equally sensitive and important post, as the post 
of Director of Revenue Intelligence-indicate that there was some- 
thing more behind the alleged transfer of the petitioner from the post 
of Director of Revenue Intellipence, than what has been disclosed by 
the 2nd Respondent. The petitioner is not in a without divulging 
highly secret matters, to refer to further facts which contradict the 
2nd Respondent's averments. Reference to some of these facts was 
made-Jy the petitioner in his note dated 25th July, 1970, which was 
submitted to Shri M. G. Wagh, the Director General, and in the peti- 
tioner's letter dated 29th December, 1970, which was submitted to 
the 2nd Respondent. These are Top Secret Communications, which 
the petitioner is not in a position to disclose at  this stage. The peti- 
tioner prays that the Hon'ble Court may a l l  for and scrutinize the 
same. The petitioner begs to point out that whereas in the affidavit, 
dated 22-2-71 of Shri P. B. Rajagopalan the deponent averred that the 
petitioner was transferred for good and sufficient administrative 
reasons only, in paragraph 26 of the return on affidavit the 2nd , 

Respondent has averted that the transfer is due to "administrative 
and other reasons?' 

* * * * 
I submit that the very fact that the alleged earlier decision was 

taken in May, 1970 and not implemented till 27th July, 1970 and that 
on the said later date the petitioner wps served the ransfer order 2 



mly after he bad met tbe Director General on the 25th July, 1970 
rad 1- ht proteat against the information circulating amongot 
smugglers in Bombay, and the fact that he was made to sign the 
Charge Report a t  the Airport, go to show that the order was corn 
municated and implemented with undue haste and motivated by 
reasons other than those mentioned in paragraph 2 of the amdavit 
in reply. I further reiterate that the impugned order could not have 
been made for the reasons stated in para 2 of the affidavit in reply 
without affording the ptitioner an opportunity to show cause against 
the same, in accordance with the prevalent statutory rules and the 
mandatory provisions contained in Article 311 of the Constitution of 
India. I submit that it has been reaffirmed by the Hon'ble Supreme 
Court time and again, as has been stated in the case of A. K. Kraipak 
vrs. Union of India and others, reported as AIR 1970 Supreme Court 
page 150 that principles of natural justice will apply even to admin- 
istrative authorities, the aim of both quasi judicial as well as admin- 
istrative inquiries being to arrive at a just decision. 

The petitioner again craves leave to refer to  his averments that 
he had seen the Director General of Revenue Intrlligence and Inves- 
tigation on the afternoon of 25th July, 1970 (After 3.00 P.?I.) and 
stated to him the fact that it was widely given out by ~mugglers in 
Bombay that the petitioner had been removed from the post of Direc- 
tor of Revenue Intelligence and further that the Director General 
expressed complete ignorance about the same. It has been clearly 
stated in para 2 of the Annexure R-VI to the affidavit in reply that 
when the final decision to allegedly transfer the petitioner from the 
post of DRI was taken on 25th July, 1970. It  was already late on that 
day and that the orders could only be executad on Monday with im- 
mediate effect. The petitioner affirms that the apparent malafides of 
the transfer are evident by the fact that even though the decision to 
allegedly transfer the petitioner from the said "sensitive" post was 
allegedly taken on 25th May, 1970, the ptitioner was allowed to cork 
tinue on the said post till he protested against the rumours spread 
by ~rn~ugglers in the afternoon of 25th July, 1070. The petitioner will 
make detailed submissions in this regard orally in the court. 

'Ihe petitioner submits that the second respondent has knowingly 
.and falsely blamed the petitioner for the situation which led to the 
signing a t  the Pdam Aerodrome of the charge handing over report 
by the petitioners. The 2nd respondent has tde3  to controvert the 
main farts recorded in paragraphs 30 to 40 of the petition by reference 



to two of his notes-one dated 28/29th July, 1.970 a d  o k  d M  
38th July, 1970. It appears from Annerure RIV ta the return m 
rllldavit that the note dated 28/29th July, 1sM wm seen by only two 
other ofkrn, viz. the Finance Secretary Shri Govindan Nair and the 
Member Shri M. C. Abrol. The other n o t  appears to have been 
seen by the aforesaid two ofacers and by the Minister Shri V. C. 
Shukla and Shri M. C. Wagh. In the first note there is no reference 
at all to the discussions with the second respondent, and in his room, 
which the petitioner and Shri M. G. Wagh had soon after the impugn- 
ed order dated 27th July, 1970 was served on the petitioner in the 
room of Shri M. G. Wagh. It appears that the Finance Secretary 
was deliberately not informed by the second respondent of the rea- 
sons due to which the petitioner and Shri M. G. Wagh did not sign 
charge report before the petitioner left the North Block for the 
Palam Aerodrome via his residence. Jn the report dated 28th July, 
1970 there fs reference to the discussions in paragraph 3 of the note, 
but there is no reference in this paragraph and in the note to the 
Chairman's decision about the postponing the handing over by a few 
days. 

The Chairman's alleged notes, disclosed in Annexure R-VI, were 
written behind the back of the petitioner. As against these notes, 
which the petitioner has been, for first time, made aware of only 
after 31st March, 1971 the petitioner has recorded the facts, including 
the Chairman's discusdons for the deferment of the handing over, 
in  paragraph 7 to 11 of a letter dated December 29, 1970, that is more 
than a month before the petition fled his petition. The second res- 
pondent did not controvert the facts recorded in the said paragraph 
7 to 11 at any time before filing his return on affidavit. The second 
respondent has meticulously avoided to refer to this letter. 

On perusal of Annexure R. VI to the return of amdavit it Is 
again evident that the seed respondent has taken meticulous care 
to ensure that the notes conveyed tq the Finance Secretary and the 
Minieter that the 2nd Respondent did not controvert the facts record- 
ed in the said paragraphs 7 to 11 at any time before filing his at8- 
davit in reply. The second respondent has ncticulously avoided to 
refer to this letter. 

On perusal of annexure R-IV tq the return an affidavit, it is 
again evident that the second respondent has taken the meticulous 
care to ensure that the notes conveyed to the Finance Secretary and 
the Minister that the second respondent took po decision on his own 
on any of the points which the petitioner Shri M. G. Wagh had 
discusad with the second respondent. The notes don't even record' 



thot the petitioner went to Aetodrome only after the 2nd respond- 
e n t  had permitted and asked him to do so. Tbe note dated 28th 
July, 70 is capable of conveying that Shri H. Lal had been contacted 
before the pet i thm left for Bombay and that petitioner had been 
briefed in  Delhi itself before leaving for Bombay, about the duties 
which the petitioner was to carry out at  Bombay. I t  would also 
imply that the petitioner was allowed ta go to Bombay only after 
Shri H. La1 had concurred that the petitioner should be permitted 
to go to Bombay. After the Minister h d  seen the note on 4th 
August, 1970, the 2nd respondent allegedly recorded another brief 
note on 5th August, 1970 clarifying that Shri La1 was contacted only 
after the petitioner had left Delhi and Palam for Bombay. This 
note dated 5th August, 1970 was not put up to the Finance Scc re  
tary and the Minister. It  appears that the 2nd Respondent did not 
wi:h the Minister and the Finance Secretary to know that he had 
taken certain decision without consulting Shri H. Lal. 

The petitioner submits that signing of the handing over charge 
report constitutes an even of ordinary occurance only if the mode of 
signing the said report and the actual handing over, which such 
signing signifies, arc normal. The normal procedures of handing 
over would have invzlved serving of the order in the petitioner's 
office, signing of the forms in the petitioner's office after compliance 
with the instructions contained in the Board's Secret letter F. No. 
14/23/61 0 & M dated the 1st August, 1961 on the subject of "Hand- 
ing over charge by heads of Departments-Notes to be prepared on 
administrative, vigilance and technical control. 

* 0 

The petitioner submits that it is highly significant that the 2nd 
Respondent has meticulously avoided to refer to the petitioner's 
letter dated 29th December, 1970 which was handed over to the 2nd 
Respondent on that day by the petitioner himself. This is a top 
secret letter, and the petitioner is, therefore, not in a position to 
disclose i t  to the Court. The 2nd Respondent may be called upon 
to  place it before the Honourable Court. Paragraph 7 to 12 record 
the facts, which are relevant in connection with the matters relating 
to the serving of the impugned order dated the 27th July, 1970 and 
the events soon after the service of this order. 

In  the said paragraph No. 49 of the Writ Petition, the petitioner 
has unequivocally stated that he had gone to the offke of D.R.1, in 
connection with his leave salary and also to render assistance in  



~dalmPtkrrwMEhbew~uksdtoMndermdthrtinLlmtikwr 
\test& fntcresb m t l y  felt dfrtorkd by the vfdt of the pati- 
tfmer to the mid bfflce and misguided even Members of the Parti& 
mtnt Uks SbrJ Shnsh: Bhushan, M. P., who made the aHe@hn on 
the floor of the How.  The petitioner has further avsrred thrt the 
petltdona, after readfng about the said statement in News papcn 
submitted to the 2nd respondent on 28-11-70, a petition addmsed to 
the Speaker of the Lok Sabha and requested him ta forward the 
same to the Speaker of Lok Sebha, in which petition the petitioner 
had sought the verdict of the concerned Parliamentary Committee 
on the allegations made in the House. The other affected parties 
also refuted the allegations vehemently denied the same through 
the Press and in the Parliament. The Government also, soon after 
26-11-70, when the said allegation was levelled in the House, caused 
extensive enquiries to be made and found that the alleged incident 
had not taken place and tha t  the statement made in the Lok Sabha 
by the Hon'ble Member was not correct. None of these averments 
have been refuted by any of the respondents in their detailed affi- 
davits before the learned Court. Nevertheless, on receipt of the 
alleged anonymous letter, on the same subject, the Board referred 
the matter for inquiry against the petitioner to the C.B.I. 

The petitioner submits that apart from the aforementioned 
aspects of the case, it wouId be apparent that the allegation in the 
Lok Sabha was made by a Member of the New Congress against 
Shri Kanti Desaf, son of Shri Morarji Desai, Ex-Deputy Prime 
Minister and Finance Minister to the Government of India, who was 
at the relevant time in the Opposition Congress and the leader 
thereof in the Lok Sabha. Neither the aforementioned facts nor 
even the absolute prima facie absurdity of the allegation that the 
said Shri Kanti Desai himself smuggled gold in his own Car from 
Meerut to Delhi, an enquiry was sought to be conducted by the* 
C.B.I. against the petitioner, whose alleged role was that he had 
gone to the oflce of the revenue Intelligence to help white wash the 
matter that was again prima facie baseless. 

The achievements of the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence 
during the steward~hip of the petitioner, have been of an outstand- 
ing quality and exemplary all through, including during the seven 
months of 1970 and during and after April 1970 to July 1970, the 
most relevant period, and constitute the most glorious achievements 
in the history of the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (or for that 
matter of any other organisation) in the matter of seizures and 
exposures of notorious smugglers, as a1,o in the matter of unravel- 



ling of deeply root& mrruptiai in the Customs and Central Excise 
Sarvicr itself oad elsewhue: in vuious Government Agencies 
entrusted with the eniorcement of laws of the National pertaining 
to Anti-ranug@@ laws. I submit that the clues which had been 
cdlected by the Directorate, espacidly through the stewardship and 
effort of the petitioner, in the course of investigations during 1970, 
if properly prgcessed, could lead to exposure of corruption at  still 
higher levels, apprehension of still more notorious smugglers and 
exposure of still mnre of smuggling rackets. The petitioner verily 
believes that his removal from the post of Director of Revenue 
Intelligence was the unfortunate result of his zest and zeal to dis- 
charge his functions as Director of Revenue Intelligence unbiased 
and undaunted by the fould atmosphere which he found around him 
the services itself. The petitioner's various secret notes to t he  
Government, and particularly those submitted in July 1970 and 
before on and after the 25th day of July, 1970 the fateful day, in 
the late evening of which the Anal orders to remove the petitioner 
forthwith from the said post were allegedly taken, would go to 
establish the absolute malafides of the impugned orders. The 
petitioner makes bold to assert that as a result of his removal from 
the post of Director of Revenue Intelligence the temp of the acti- 
vities in the Directorate has slackened, and that there has been an 
all round set-back in the performance of this organisation, and that 
the vested interests appear to have achieved their objective to a 
certain extent already by having the petitioner removed from the 
post of Director of Revenue Intelli'gence. The petitioner is informed 
and verily believes that ever since his removal from the post of 
Director of Revenue Intelligence, smugglers and other vested interests 
have actively started demoralising and intimidating witnesses and 
those who had offered valuable clues during the petitioner's tenure 
as Director of Revenue Intelligence. The petitioner submits that 
it is unfortunate that because of his duty of secrecy, and 'ihe secret 
character of the notes which he submitted to the Government from 
time to time containing vital information, he cannot disclose identity 
of the vested interests. to the court. The petitioner, however, sub- 
mits that if these notes and the statements referred to hereinabefore 
are summoned and perused by the Court the obvious will be 
established. 



APPENDIX IX 

- - - - --- --A - 
S. No. Para No. Ministry /I>eptt. concerned Conclusions/Rec~mmendations 

-- -- . - - 
1 2 3 4 

- - 
I I .23 Mlo Commerce The Committee note that a United Nations Resolution boycotting 

trade with Portugal was implemented by the Government of India by 
cl 

a formal notification cnly after a lapse of nearly twenty months. It 8 
is surprising that the Kinistry of Commerce sught to accomplish a 
ban on trade with Portugal by the issue of 'top secret' instructions 
in order to avoid pubzicity. 

2 1.24 Mlo Commerce The Committee find that even though the instructions had been 
,, Finance (Deprt. of issued by the Ministry of Commerce in November 1886, neither the 

Revenue & Insurance) Customs authorities nor the licensing authorities were expected to 
do anything positive to stop imports from Portugal. Admittedly, the 
licensing authorities were to continue to issue import licences in the 
normal course, without indicating anything on the licencea about the 
ban on trade with Pol tiigal. On the other hand. the Customs authori- 
ties had been informed that even though licences might continue to 
be issued without a ~pecific endorsement to the effect that it war not 



valid for imports horn Portugal, no imports would actually take 
place as the Reserve Bank had been advised to issue instructions to 
the authorised dealers in foreign exchange prohibiting remittances 
to Portugal. The Reserve Bank had, however, taken the view that 
so long as import licences continued to be issued and remained 
in circulation. and these licences were vaild for imports from the 
General Currency Area, which included Portugal, the prohibition 
of remittances could not be brought about until a valid notification 
was issued under the lmport and Export Trade Control Act, which 
was not done for 20 months. 

Do. The net result of all this was that, even after the issue of instruc- 
tions by the Ministry of Commerce in November 1966, there was no 
effective ban on trade with Portugal and five imports valued at Rs. 
1.31 lakhs had takec place. The Committee fail to understand, in 
these circumstances, the objective sought to be achieved by the 
issue of such executive instructions. If the intention was indeed to 
bring about an effective ban, the Committee feel that a proper notiti- 
cation should have heen issued instead of executive instructions. 
That this was not done till August 1967 would indicate that a serious- 
ness of purpose was totally lacking in implementing an international 
agreement, particularly when we ourselves were in conflict with 
Portugal on Goa issue In the opinion of the Committee, this is most 
regrettable. 

4 1.26 Do. The Committee, however, feel that the contention of the Ministry 
that the Reserve Bank should have stopped remittances and that the 

. - 



Customs had no responsibility in the matter is not tenable. If that 
b? the view and if the Customs authorities were not to take any 
action. there was no need for the issue of the instructions in December 
1966. Further, the wording of the circular issued in pursuance of 
the UN Resolution imposing a ban on trade would indicate that this 
had been issued only pending a decision on the question whethet- 
the ban should be brought out through a formal notification. The 
Committee consider that this would tantamount to a de facto ban. 

5 I .27 M '0 Finance (Deptt. of 
lievenue & Insurance) From the circumstances of the case. it would appear that Govern- g 

ment had considered that ban by executive instructions would be Ot 

sufficient and enforcible. Otherwise. the ~ o r n m x t e e  are unable to 
understand the leason for the preamble to the Notification No. 9/67 
dated 1st August, 1967 which states 'whereas there is no export to 
and import from Portugal, and whereas i t  is considered necessary to 
continue the ban on export to or import from Portugal, etc.' It 
would therefore, be evident that the notification had been issued only 
in continuation of the executive instructions and that the ban was 
effective form December 1966 itself. If this was not so, the Commit- 
tee see no valid reasons whatsoever for the delay in the issue 01 
notification till August 1967, especially when Government had ample 
time from December 1966 before announcing the policy of import 
for 1967-68. 



6 I .28 M 'o Financc : Deptt. of Rev. The Committee are, therefore. not at all satisfied with the manner 
& Ins.) & M C~(mmerce in which the entire case has been handled. Since the decision to 

impose a ban had been taken in pursuance of an international reso- 
lution to which India had also been a signatory, the Government 
should have been more purposeful in their approach. The Com- 
mittee can only sincerely hope that such instances will not recur 
in future and would urge Government to ensure that decisions 
affecting our international relat'ons are given effect to with the 
utmost promptitude. 

-, 1 .30 ,\I 0 Finance (Dep't. 21' The Committee also note that in the case of m e  import from 
& In%! Portugal that took place after 1st August, 1967, the goods had been 

released on a mere warning. When the provisions of Sections 111 
and 112 are amply clear in th's regard and a valid ban by notifica- 
tion was also in force on the day the consignment touched ,Indian 'O 

shores, the reasons for this special treatment in this case give rise 
to serious suspicion. The Committee desire that the circumstances 
leading to the release of goods on warning should be investigated into 
immediately with s view to ensuring that no malafides are involved 
and respcnsibility fixed. The Committee would await a further 
report in this regard. 

Going through the entire proceedings of what has come to be 
known as the 'B.O.A.C. Gold Smuggling Case', the Committee are 
left with the impression that there had been a good deal of effort 
on the part of the High officials in finding out technical arguments 
in favour of B.0.A C. In the appeal proceedings, evidence was 



admitted in the shape of affidavits. bank statements. balance sheets, 
etc. and the Committee find that the appellate proceedin@ took on 
almost the colour of Original Side proceedings with extensive exami- 
nations and cross-examinations. While there is nothing irregular 
in law about this, because under Section 128 of the Customs Act, the 
appellate authority is not bound to follow the provisions of the 
Civil Procedure Code. the Committee feel that it was rather out of 
the ordinary that such extensive examination was held at the 
appellate stage and that attempts were being made to spot loopholes 
in the departmental evidence. In fact, the Committee are distressed 
to learn that a t  one stage, the Director of Revenue Intelligence had 
to protest that the cross-examination was making a departmental 3 
witness nervous. 

9. 2-77 M,'o Finance [Deptt. of Rev. Prima facie, it would appear that in view of the publicity the 
& Ins.) case had attracted and the requests of the British Government to 

expedite the case there had been an anxiety on the part of the 
Central Board of Excise and Customs to find arguments to favour 
B.O.A.C., despite the fact that the Director of Revenue Intelligence, 
the Collector of Central Excise, Delhi and the Ministry of Law had 
held that there had been a violation by B.O.A.C. of the provisions 
of the Reserve Bank of India notification which prescribe the condi- 
tions under which bullion can be carried in transit through India. 



ro. 2.78 

The Committee find that the Joint Secretary of the Ministry of 
Law was wen  positive in his mind that no court would give the 
benefit of doubt to B.O.A.C. 

The Committee are also of the opinion that the Board of Appeal 
had not properly appreciated the ratio of the judgement of the 
Supreme Court in the case of 'State of Maharashtra Vs. Mayor Hans 
George' reported in A!R 1965 as SC-722. This was an important 
judgement in which the notification issued lby the Reserve Bank of 
India under Section 8 (1) of the Foreign Exchange Regulations Act 
had come in for judicial scrutiny. In that case, the Committee And 
that one of the important judgements on the doctrine of absolute or 
strict liability was pronounced. The Supreme Court had held that. 
even if there has her. an unintentional violation of the Reserve " '0, Bank of India regulations, such a violation would be punishable and 
a plea of lack of fraudulent intention would not prevail. The Com- 
mittee are, however. distressed to note that, in the BOAC case, this 
mint  h ~ d  been completely sidetracked in the Board's appellate order 
when it said that that case was distinguishable on facts from the 
BOAC case. 

It is also not very clear to the Committee whether Section 30(3) 
of the Customs Act relating to the production of manifest for imported 
goods would apply at all to a violation of the Foreign Exchange 
R e ~ l a t i o n s  Act. mc Committee also find that Section 30 of the Ad 
deals with the delivery of import manifest and does not deal with 
transhipment manifest while the Reserve Bank of India notification 

-ppp-.--p- - --- 



---- -- -- ----- 
deals with transhipment manifest. Therefore. even assuming that 
the provisions of the Customs Act could be invoked for dealing with 
a case under the Fcreign Exchange Regulations Act, the Committee 
are inclined k, take the view that Section 30 (3) of the Customs Act 
would not be appropriate in the circumstances of thls case. In fact, 
the Board in its appellate order did not also express any categorical ' 

opinion whether the description in the manifest was incorrect or 
incomplete. The Committee feel that the applicability of Section 
30 of the Custom; Act to this case should be examined afresh in 
consultation with the Attorney General and a further report sub- . 
mitted to the Committe in this regard. ii 

12. 2.83 (Deptt, Rev. The Committee plso find from the evidence that no proper request - 
& Ins.) had been made by the local officer of the B.O.A.C. for amending the 

manifest. Only a casual enquiry appears to have been made to the 
Customs officials a? Palam airpart which. a t  the time of hearing by 
the adjudication officer, was sought to-be interpreted as a request for 
amendment of the manifest. When the Board considered the appeal. 
the position was curiously improved by taking a fresh affidavit on 
this point. 

no. The B.O.A.C. case had raised the following interesting questions 
at the time of investigations by the Directorate of Revenue Intelli- 
gence: (a) whether B.0A.C. was carrying on a regular activity of 
smuggling gold in collusion with South African parties or bullion 
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brokers of London; (b) if B.O.A.C. was not itself engaged in smug- 
gling, did it aid an3 abet the London bullion brokers or any other 
party in smuggling gold into India? and (c) the identity of the legal 
owners of the gold, particularly of the consignment destined to 
Macao, since the cnnsignors were stated to be only bullion #brokers 
and the consignee was also a company in which the consignor had 
40 per cent interest. 

The Committee, however, find that though the Director of Revenue 
Intelligence had wanted to proceed abroad with a view to establish- 
ing the true ownership of the gold, this had not been considered 
necessary. Such an investigation. in the opinion of the Committee, 
could have provided ciues to the various missing links in the case. 
The investigation proposed by the Director of Revenue Intelligence 

W assumed greater importance in view of the significant fact that 
B.O.A.C. had been carrying large quantities of gold from London 
through India, in the guise of 'Metal V' or 'Metal bar V' to Hongkong, 
which is a vulnerable spot in the  East for smuggling activities, 
specially gold for illegal entry into India. and that between April and 
August 1967, as large a quantity as 5.382 kilograms of gold had 
passed through India. 

Do. Besides, a number ot employees of B.O.A.C. had also been appre- 
hended prior to this seizure in 1967 carrying contraband , o l d  intc. 
India and the investigations of these cases had resulted in the dis- 
missal of 90 employees. The Committee are inclined to think that i t  
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would have been difficult for so many employees of B.O.A.C. to have 
indulged in smuggling of gold into India without the tacit support 
of people in very high positions. In this context, it should also be 
borne in view that smuggling rackets are organised in the most 
dubious ways and that there i, always more to it than what meets 
the eye. The Committee are, therefore. unable to understand why 
the Director of Revenue Intelligence had not been permitted to 
pursue his line of investigations. This needs to be explained. 

16 2.84 Mjo Finance (Deptt. of Under these circumstances, the Committee are inclined to take the Revenue & I nsuraace j view that the appellate decision was a matter dictated by expediency. 
Otherwise, the Conirnittee are unable to understand the reasons 
for Government not testing the decision in a court of law which 
could have resolved a number of legal doubts thrown up in this 
case. No attempts had also been made to consider the case in revision 
mder Section 131(3) of the Customs Act. Now tha: the p:riod of 
one year from the date of the appellate order prescribed for revision 
is over, the matter will necessarily have to be treated as closed. The 
Committee are, howelrer. extremely dissatisfied with the manner in 
which this case has been handled by the Central Board of Excise 
& Customs. The Committee desire that responsibility should be fixed 
under advice to them. 

Apart from the legal aspects of this particular case, one aspect of 
the case compels the immediate consideration of the Committee. 

Do. 



Admittedly, gold has been flown from London to Macao. It is not 
unlikely that the practice still continues. Since Macao is only a 
small islet, the Committee are certain that it would not be in a posi- 
tion to absorb even a fraction of the gold that is being regularly 
flown into the territory. The obvious inference that the Committee 
can draw is that Macao is a nerve centre for smuggling operations 
and there is every likelihood of the gold bars being melted into 
small biscuits and smuggled mainly into India. In this context the 
mmmittee also understand that China itself dakes large purchases 
of gold in the London bullion market and the Chinese price of gold 
was not attractive enough for gold smugglers. Therefore, the porsi- 
bility of most of the gold that goes to Macao coming back to India 
through various illegal channels cannot a t  all be ruled out. The 
Committee would like to know what concrete steps have been taken 
by Government to arrest such smuggling and what arrangements '* 
exist to prevent the illicit transport of gold from Macao to India. 

An offshoot of this question is the adequacy of our organisation 
for gathering intelligence abroad. Considering the volume of under- 
invoicing, over-invoicing, smuggling and other economic evils that 
go on in the country. the Committee are strongly of the view that at 
important ports anci nerve centres of smuggling abroad, the Govern- 
ment should build up an effective organisation to gather intelligence 
on these evils on sufficient incentive basis. The Committee feel 
that merely by postinp a handful of officers at London or Kuwait or 
maintaining liaison with overseas organisations without correspon- 
ding results would not serve the objective the Committee have in 
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view. The Committee desire that this should be exrmimd by 
Government immediately and positive steps taken to build a sound 
intelligence net-work abroad. 

19 2.87 Mia Finance (Deptt. of Yet another surprsing feature that has come to the notice of the Revenue & Insuranc~) Committee is that even in an important case like this one Govern- 

Do. 

ment had not considered it fit to utilise the services of qualified 
Iawyers to present the Department's case. For instance, in the 
B.O.A.C. case, the Director of Revenue Intelligence and an Assistant 
Collecbor of Customs had been pitted against some of the choicest 
legal talents in tEe country and abroad which. to say the least, is 
cruel on the part of the officers concerned. Though this is not, in 
any way intended to cast a doubt on the competence of the ofltlcers, 
the Committee feel that this is an extremely unsatisfacbry arrange- 
ment. While the Committee take note of the fact that the system of 
adjudication requires that the adjudicating officer must look after 
the Department, the Committee would, however, recommend that, 
at least in important cases Government should be representad by 
competent legal experts. The Committee desire that this recom- 
mendation shobld be processed ex-tiously and necessary action 
taken to adequately sa fward  the Government's interests. The 
Committee would await a further report in this regard. 

Incidentally, a disconcerting fact that has been brought to the 
notice of the Committee during their examination of the case is of 
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topical interest and causes grave concern to the Committee. The 
Committee find from a writ petition filed by the then Director of 
Revenue Intelligence against the Union of India in the matter of his 
promotion, etc. in the High Court of Delhi that his transfer from the 
post of Director of Revenue Intelligence had become the 'table-talk 
amongst smugglers.' The Committee are most distressed to note the 
manner in which the officer had been made to hand over charge of 
the post at the airport. The writ petition also contains startling 
disclosures about the complicity of Government omcials with 
smugglers. 

Considering the far-reaching implications and serious nature of 
the allegations made by a responsible official of the Government, 
the Committee desire that the various allegations contained in the - 
writ petition should be investigated into immediately by an inde- 8 
pendent agency and suitable action taken. The investtgation now 
proposed by the Committee assumes particular importance in the 
context of the MISA operations now in force against the smugglers. 
The outcome of the investigations should be reported to the 
Committee. 




